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F I N A N C I A L  C O M M E N T S  O N  C O N S O L I D A T E D 
OPERATIONS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2017
The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under Section 
133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) [Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015] and other relevant provisions 
of the Act. These financial statements are the first financial statements of the Group under Ind AS. The Company has made 
available an explanation of how the transition from Indian GAAP to Ind AS has affected the Group’s financial position, financial 
performance and cash flows (Refer note 38 of Consolidated Financial Statements).

Previous Year Comparables

The previous financial year of the Company was for a nine month period from 1st July, 2015 to 31st March, 2016 (hereinafter 
referred as “Year ended 31 March, 2016”) as against twelve months for the year ended March 31, 2017 in current year. Accordingly, 
the figures for the current financial year are not comparable to those of previous year.

The Management Discussion and Analysis on Financial performance relates to Consolidated Financial statements of the 

Company and its subsidiaries. This should be read in conjunction with the financial statements and related notes to the 
consolidated accounts for the year ended March 31, 2017.

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

` Crores

Particulars FY 17
(12 months)

% of 
Revenue

FY 16
(9 months)

% of 
Revenue

Revenue 3,738 100.0 3,656 100.0

Cost of Sales 3,034 81.2 3,051 83.5

Gross Margin 704 18.8 605 16.5

Personnel Costs 541 14.5 458 12.5

Administration, Selling & Others 283 7.6 241 6.6

Depreciation 39 1.0 32 0.9

Interest income on Lease Rental 13 0.3 19 0.5

Exchange differences Loss/ (Gain) (3) (0.1) 4 0.1

Operating Other Income 103 2.8 98 2.7

Operating Profit/ (Loss) before Doubtful Debts provision (41) (1.1) (13) (0.4)

Provision for Doubtful Debts 27 0.7 36 1.0

Investment & Other Income 26 0.7 23 0.6

Borrowing costs 190 5.1 126 3.4

Profit / (Loss) Before Exceptional Items and Tax (232) (6.2) (152) (4.2)

Exceptional Items (Gain/ (Loss)) (61) (1.6) (67) (1.8)

Tax Expense (45) (1.2) (5) (0.1)

Profit/ (Loss) After Tax (248) (6.6) (214) (5.9)

Other Comprehensive Income (7) (0.2) 5 0.1

Total Comprehensive Income/(Loss) for the Year (255) (6.8) (209) (5.7)

Note: 9 months represents period from 1st July to 31st Mar
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Revenue

Consolidated Revenues for the year FY 17 (12 months) was `3,738 crores as against `3,656 crores for period FY 16 (9 months). 
Key composition of segment revenue was as under:

` Crores

Particulars FY 17
(12 Months)

% of Total FY 16
(9 Months)

% of Total

Hardware Products and Solutions 362 9.7 357 9.8

Services 946 25.3 741 20.3

Distribution 2470 66.1 2609 71.4

Learning 13 0.4 17 0.5

Inter- Segment Elimination (53) (1.4) (68) (1.9)

Total 3,738 100.0 3,656 100.0

 Services business composition of total revenue increased from 20.3% in FY 16 (9 months) to 25.3% in FY 17, mainly due to 
increase in Global Services Business (from 7.5% to 10.1%) and Consumer Services Business (from 3.4% to 5.1%)

 Distribution business composition of total revenue decreased from 71.4% in FY 16 (9 months) to 66.1% in FY 17, mainly due 
to the decline in consumer distribution business(from 51.8% to 34.7%) on account of transition into a multibrand business 
model, which could not be completely offset by the increase in enterprise distribution business (from 20.0% to 31.2%).

 Hardware products and solutions business and Learning business composition of total revenue in FY 17 remained 
unchanged at 9.7% and 0.4% respectively.

Gross Margin

Gross margin percentage increased by 229 bps from 16.5% in FY 16 (9 months) to 18.8% in FY 17, mainly on account of change in 
revenue mix (Services business with a high margin and Enterprise distribution business registered an increase in the composition 
of total revenue, whereas the Hardware Solution business remained flat). In absolute terms, gross margin was `704 crores in FY 
17 as against `605 crores in nine months period ended on March’16.

Personnel Costs

Personnel costs was `541 crores in FY 17 as against `458 crores in nine months period ended on March’16.

Administration, Selling and Other Expenses

Administration, Selling & other expenses was `283 crores in FY 17 as against `241 crores in nine months period ended on 

March’16.

` Crores

Particulars FY 17 
(12 months)

% of Total FY 16 
(9 months)

% of Total

Rent 49 17.2 33 13.8

Retainership Expenses 41 14.4 30 12.6

Legal, Professional & Consultancy Charges 39 13.6 37 15.5

Travelling and Conveyance 32 11.3 34 14.3

Packing, Freight and Forwarding 16 5.6 16 6.5

Communication 15 5.4 14 5.7

Bank Charges 12 4.1 9 3.9

Office Electricity and Water 11 3.8 8 3.2

Others 69 24.5 59 24.5

Total 283  100.0 241  100.0
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Depreciation

Depreciation was at `39 crores in FY 17 as against `32 crores in nine months period ended on March’16.

Interest income on Lease Rental

Interest income on lease rental was `13 crores in FY 17 as against `19 crores in nine months period ended on March’16 in line 
with the reduction in the lease rent recoverable. This income is operational in nature, on assets offered to our customers on a 
managed lease as a part of our offering in Solutions and Learning businesses.

Operating Other Income

Operating other income was at ̀ 103 crores in FY 17 as against ̀ 98 crores in nine months period ended on March’16. The income 
was mainly due to interest income on discounted receivables in the hardware and solutions business.

` Crores

Particulars FY 17 
(12 months)

% of Total FY 16 
(9 months)

% of Total

Interest income on discounted receivables 102 99.3 88 89.9

Provisions/Liabilities written back 1 0.7 10 10.1

Total 103 100 98 100

Operating Profit/ (Loss)

Operating Profit/ (Loss) before exceptional items and doubtful debts was `(41) crores ((1.1)% of revenue ) in FY 17 as against ` 
(13) crores ((0.4)% of revenue) in nine months period ended on March’16.

Provision for Doubtful Debts

Provisions for doubtful debts were `27 crores (0.7 % of revenue ) in FY 17 as against `36 crores (1.0% of revenue ) in nine months 
period ended on March’16. The reduction was mainly in the Enterprise Distribution business.

Investment & Other Income

Investment & other income was at `26 crores in FY 17 as against `23 crores in nine months period ended on March’16.

Finance Costs

Finance costs was `190 crores in FY 17 against `126 crores in nine months period ended on March’16. The increase in cost was 
mainly attributable to loan processing fees on long term loans.

Exceptional Items 

Net Gain/ (Loss) from Exceptional items was ` (61) crores in FY 17 as against ` (67) crores in nine months period ended on 
March’16.

` Crores

Particulars FY 17
(12 Months)

FY 16
(9 Months)

a. Impairment of Goodwill (61) (70)

b. Profit on sale of properties - 3

Total (c) = (a – b) (61) (67)

During the year, the Company has recognised Impairment of Goodwill of ` 11 crores (year ended March 31, 2016: ` 70 crores) 
and ` 50 crores (year ended March 31, 2016: NIL) for Learning and Services businesses repectively. Impairment in respect to 
Learning business has been recognised considering the impending transaction of sale of Digischool business undertaking. 
In respect of Services business, the Company has taken an impairment charge of ` 50 crores considering its past business 

performance in the markets where it operates, changes in the market dynamics, current business strategy and focus areas for 
the future years.

Tax Expense

Tax expense net of deferred tax was ` (45) crores in FY 17 as against ` (5) crores in nine months period ended on March’16.
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Profit/ (Loss) after Tax

Profit/ (Loss) after Tax changed from (5.9)% of revenue in FY 16 to (6.6)% in FY 17. The loss for FY 17 was `(248) crores as against 
`(214) crores in nine months period ended on March’16.

Total comprehensive income/ (loss) for FY 17 was `(255) crores as against ` (209) crores in nine months period ended on 
March’16.

FINANCIAL CONDITION

` Crores

Particulars FY 17
(12 Months)

FY 16
(9 Months)

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES    

Net Worth 549 804

Non Current Liabilities 433 566

Current Liabilities 2,202 2,196

 Total 3,184 3,566

ASSETS

Non-current Assets

Property, Plant & Equipment and Intangible Assets 643 732

Others 501 444

Current Assets

Investments 121 50

Others 1,919 2,340

 Total 3,184 3,566

Net Worth

The Equity Share Capital of the company remained unchanged at ` 45 crores. However the other equity reduced by ` 255 crores 
on account of total comprehensive income/ (loss) during the year FY 17.

Non Current Liabilities

Non-current liabilities were at `433 crores as at March 31, 2017 as compared to `566 crores as at March 31, 2016 mainly due to 
decrease in Bank borrowings and term loans by `102 crores.

Net Borrowings

The net borrowings were at `1,023 crores as at March 31, 2017 as compared to `1,013 crores as at March 31, 2016.

` Crores

Particulars March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016

Borrowings 1,337 1,281 

Less: Investments 121 50 

Less: Cash & Bank 193 218 

Net Borrowings 1,023 1,013 
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Current Liabilities

Current liabilities were at `2,202 crores as at March 31, 2017 as compared to ` 2,196 crores as at March 31, 2016.The details are 
as follows:

Trade payables (including acceptances) were lower by `77 crores. The reduction is mainly in distribution business by ` 88 
crores, partially offset by increase in services business by `16 crores.

Other current liabilities were lower by `111 crores, mainly due to decrease in deferred revenue by `95 crores (` 214 crores 
as at March 31, 2017) and advance received from customer decreased by `12 crores (` 104 crores as at March 31, 2017)

The short term borrowings were higher by `123 crores, due to increase in short term loan of `149 crores taken during the 
year, increase in commercial paper by `70 crores (` 195 crores as at March 31, 2017) and decrease in cash credit by `95 
crores (` 9 crores as at March 31, 2017).Other financial liabilities mainly comprise of current maturity of long term debts, 
which increased by `48 crores to `343 crores as at March 31, 2017.

Property, Plant & Equipment and Intangible Assets

Property, Plant & Equipment and Intangible Assets as at March 31, 2017 was `643 crores including Goodwill on consolidation 
as against ` 732 crores as at March 31, 2016. The reduction is mainly due to impairment of Goodwill for `61 cores in Services ` 
50 crores and Learning ` 11 crores.

Non Current Assets

Non-current assets were at `501 crores as at March 31, 2017 as compared to `444 crores as at March 31, 2016.The details are as 
follows:

Other Financial Assets mainly comprise of Lease rent recoverable, which decreased by `52 crores to `34 crores as at March 

31, 2017. The reduction is mainly in Hardware and Solutions business by ` 27 crores and the Learning business by ` 20 
crores.

Advance income tax asset (net) was higher by `49 crores.

Deferred tax assets (net) were higher by `56 crores.

Other non-current assets mainly comprises of balances with Government Authorities, which increased by ` 18 crores to 
`120 crores as at March 31, 2017, mainly on account of increase in VAT deposits under protest with the government related 
to the consumer distribution business.
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Current Assets

Investments

Investments in mutual funds as at March 31, 2017 were `121 crores as against `50 crores as at March 31, 2016.

Inventories

Inventories as at March 31, 2017 were `141 crores as against `214 crores as at March 31, 2016. The reduction is mainly in the 
Consumer Distribution business by ` 29 crores and Enterprise business by ` 21crores.

Trade Receivables

Debtors as at March 31, 2017 were `1,293 crores as against `1,550 crores as at March 31, 2016. The reduction is mainly in the 
System Integration business by ` 332 crores.

Cash and Bank

Cash in hand & Balances with Bank in collection / disbursement accounts and term deposits was ` 193 crores as at March 31, 
2017 as against `218 crores as at March 31, 2016.

Other Financial Assets

Other Financial Assets were at `188 crores as at March 31, 2017 as compared to ` 265 crores as at March 31, 2016.

0 Lease rent recoverable decreased by `45 crores to `38 crores as at March 31, 2017. The reduction is mainly in the Hardware 
and Solutions business by ` 40 crores

0 Unbilled revenue decreased by `23 crores to ` 137 crores as at March 31, 2017. The reduction is mainly in the Hardware and 

Solutions business by ` 16 crores.

Other Current Assets

Other current assets were at `104 crores as at March 31, 2017 as compared to ` 91crores as at March 31, 2016.

0 Balances with Government Authorities, increased by ` 14crores to `44 crores as at March 31, 2017

0 Prepaid expenses decreased by ` 7 crores to ` 33 crores as at March 31, 2017.

0 Advance to creditors increased by ` 8 crores to ` 25 crores as at March 31, 2017.

CASH FLOW STATEMENT

A summary of cash statement is given below:

` Crores

Particulars FY 17
(12 Months)

FY 16
(9 Months)

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 199 124

Operating Profit/(Loss) before change in operating assets and liabilities (104) (84)

Changes in operating assets and liabilities 76 (99)

Taxes (Paid)/Received (Net of Tax Deducted at Source) (2) (3)

Cash from Operating Activities (A) (30) (186)

Cash from/(used in) Investing Activities (B) 105 349

Cash from/(used in) Financing Activities (C) (136) (88)

Net Increase/ (Decrease) in Cash and Bank Balances = (A+B+C) (61) 75

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 138 199 
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Cash flow from investing activities (B)

In FY 17 the Company has generated `105 crores for investing activities as against `349 crores in FY 16 as under:

` Crores

Particulars FY 17
(12 Months)

FY 16
(9 Months)

Property, Plant & Equipment (including Intangible Assets) (net) (13) (30)

Sale/ (purchase) of investments (68) 189 

Lease rent recoverable 94  75

Investment in deposits (net) with banks (36) (9)

Interest income 122 110 

Dividend income 5 6

Net cash generated from investing activities 105 349

Cash flow from financing activities (C)

In FY 17 the Company used `136 crores for financing activities as against `88 crores in FY 16 as under:

` Crores

Particulars FY 17

(12 Months)

FY 16

(9 Months)

Proceeds from borrowings (net) 56 32 

Interest paid (191) (120)

Amount transferred to investor education & protection fund (1) (0)

Net cash used in investing activities (136) (88)
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Introduction

Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) at HCL Infosystems 
Limited is inspired by a vision of National transformation with 
strong commitment to sustainable growth. The Company 
has created business models to connect communities with 
technologies, alongside delivering long term shareholder 
value. The Company shall design and implement CSR 
programs that positively impact communities. The Company 
believes that creating shared value with stakeholder and 
communities shall enable drivers of growth. Our guiding 
principle is “Creating tomorrow’s enterprise together”.

Our Approach

HCL Infosystems shall use following channels to drive its CSR 
initiatives:

Education & Skill development: provide & facilitate 
quality of education to underprivileged children through 
the use of Information Communication Technology (ICT)

Community Development: provide ICT support to 
health care, health awareness programs, support to 
integrated child development

Environment: work towards sustainable sanitation and 
environment conservation

Special Projects: Awareness Programs on Financial 
Inclusion for rural communities not covered under 
banking ambit

Policy

The Company is committed to preserve environment in 
and around its operational jurisdiction.

The Company is committed to implement corporate 
social responsibility programs at touch points where we 
operate. This is for ensuring the long term sustainability 
of such interventions.

The Company supports organizations / institutions 
engaged in building linkages with local, regional and 
rural communities & markets.

The Company is committed to align its corporate social 
responsibility with communities and institutions so as 
to contribute in sustainable development by adopting 
innovations and technologies for improving health care, 
education and financial inclusion.

The Company is committed to engage in 
affirmative action interventions expanding skill 
development & vocational trainings, so as to 
generate livelihoods for disadvantaged sections of 

society.

The Company shall align and integrate the corporate 
social responsibility programs with the business process 
of the Company and make them outcome oriented.

The Company shall sustain and continuously 
improve standards of environment, health and 
safety through collective endeavor of the Company and 
the employees at all levels. 

The Company shall endeavor to spend a minimum 
of 2% of the average net profits on corporate 
social responsibility programs. The corporate social 
responsibility corpus would also include any income 
arising from the corporate social responsibility activities 
and any surplus arising out of such activities.

The Company declares that any surplus arising out of 
activities related to corporate social responsibility will 

not be accounted as business profits.

CSR Committee Membership and Organization

The Committee shall be appointed by and will serve at 
the discretion of the Board. The Committee shall consist 
of no fewer than three (3) Director Members with at least 
one (1) member being an Independent Director of the 
Board.

The members of the CSR Committee shall be appointed 
by the Board.

The members of the Committee shall meet as and when 
the Company is required to incur expenditure on the 
CSR activities in future. Minutes of the meeting shall be 
submitted to the board.

Committee Responsibilities and Authority

Every year, the CSR Committee shall place, a CSR plan 
outlining the CSR programmes to be carried out during 
the financial year and the specified budgets thereof for 
the Board's approval.

The Board will consider and approve the CSR plan with 
any modification(s) that may be deemed necessary.

The CSR Committee shall assign the task of 

implementation of the CSR plan within specified budgets 
and timeframes to CSR operations team.

The CSR operations team shall carry out such CSR 
programmes as determined by the CSR Committee 
within the specified budgets and timeframes and report 
back to the CSR Committee on the progress thereon on 

quarterly basis.

The CSR Committee shall review the implementation of 
the CSR programmes once a quarter and issue necessary 
directions from time to time to ensure orderly and 
efficient execution of the CSR programmes in accordance 
with this Policy.

At the end of every financial year, the CSR Committee 
shall submit its report to the Board.

The Committee shall review and reassess the adequacy 
of this charter as and when the Company is required to 

Report on Corporate Social Responsibility
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incur expenditure on CSR activities and recommend the 
changes, if any, to the Board for approval.

The policy is available on the website of the Company: https://
www.hclinfosystems.com/investors/

Social Responsibility & Community Development

Being a socially responsible and sensitive corporate citizen 
is an integral part of your Company’s business model. The 
average profit of the Company for the last three years is 
negative but still the Company has undertaken various CSR 
activities and has organized several activities for employees 
to contribute towards the underprivileged sections of 
society. Your Company continues to be committed to equal 
opportunities and non-discrimination towards all employees.

Employee Volunteering

Your Company continues to encourage employees to 
volunteer and contribute to various social causes.

HCL Employees celebrated “Joy of Giving Week” where 
employees donated clothes and stationery to ‘Goonj’, 
an NGO that works towards welfare of under privileged 
people

Some of the Employees visited “Goonj” site and have 
become volunteers for upliftment of underprivileged 
and are participating in their social campaign “ Goonj Ka 
Gullak”

HCL Infosystems undertook a ‘Cleanliness drive’ as part 
of its commitment to the ‘Swachh Bharat initiative’. 
The drive received an enthusiastic response from the 
employees, who participated in the cleanliness activities 
held in a park in Noida and Auro beach in Pondicherry. It 
was covered in India CSR.

HCL supported the cause of “Blood Donation” through 
Red Cross Society. Employees actively participated for 
the good cause.

NGO named “Sukarya” which works for Women & Child 
welfare in villages of India, set up a stall in HCL office 
for selling products manufactured by underprivileged 
women. The initiative received an encouraging response 
from the employees.

Statement on non-discriminatory employment policy of 
the business entity

Equal Opportunities & Non Discrimination Policy: 
According to this policy, HCL Infosystems does not 
discriminate against any employee or job applicant on the 
basis of race, color, religion, gender, age, sexual orientation, 

nationality, pregnancy status, marital status, family status and 
different ability. All employees or job applicants are judged 
on the principle of equal employment opportunity.

Initiatives for Affirmative Action

Your Company is working towards ensuring equal 

opportunities to all sections of the society. As a part of its 
commitment to ‘CII’s Affirmative Action Code of Conduct’, 
HCL Infosystems has taken proactive actions to provide equal 

opportunity for employability, training and mentoring to all 
sections of the society.

1. The composition of the CSR Committee:

The composition of the committee is as under:

S. 

No.

Name Category

1 Ms. Sangeeta Talwar 
(Chairperson)

Independent & Non- 
Executive Director

2 Mr. Pawan Kumar Danwar 
(Member)

Non-Independent & 
Non- Executive Director

3 Mr. Dilip Kumar Srivastava 
(Member)

Non-Independent & 
Non- Executive Director

2. Average net profit of the Company for last three 
financial years:

The average profit for last three financial years is negative.

3. Prescribed CSR Expenditure (two per cent of the 
amount as in item 2 above):

Not required.

4. Details of CSR spent during the financial year:

Not required, as the average profit for the last three 
financial years is negative.

5. In case the Company has failed to spend the two 
per cent of the average net profit of the last three 
financial years or any part thereof, the company shall 
provide the reasons for not spending the amount in 
its Board report.

NA

6. A responsibility statement of the CSR committee that 
the implementation and monitoring of CSR policy, is 
in compliance with CSR objectives and policy of the 
Company.

NA

Environment Sustainability Report

Environment Management - Our Commitment to Social 
Responsibility:

Your Company believes in building a symbiotic relationship 

with manufacturers, consumers and recyclers with the aim to 
promote integration and sustainability in operations so that 
there is minimum stress on the environment.

Your Company over the years has integrated and innovated 
products for its customer’s giving key emphasis on product 
life cycle management, commencing from sourcing, 

manufacturing to installation and recovery at the end-of-
life of the product to ensure protection of the environment, 
health and safety of all stakeholders.

Environment Management Policy under HCL ecoSafe aims 
to encapsulate knowledge, awareness, and key developments 
on all environmental issues faced by today’s world and 
to incorporate these in HCL’s operations by assuring our 

commitment in delivering quality solutions, services and 
products.
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Information provided along with the product: All the 
products carry adequate information on customer health and 
safety. Your Company mentions the hazardous constituents 
present in the product and describes the process for disposal 
of Waste of Electrical & Electronic Equipment (WEEE) in its 
information booklet. The symbol of crossed out wheeled 
bin placed on the product/product packaging indicates that 
the product should not be disposed in the municipal waste. 
The details on collection of e-waste and how to dispose 
old equipment is mentioned in detail on the website www.
hclinfosystems.com

Electronic Waste Management:

The key objective of your Company’s ‘E-Waste Policy’ aims 
at providing efficient and easy product recovery options to 
its consumers to facilitate responsible product retirement of 
all its manufactured Electrical & Electronic Equipment (EEE) 
products. Waste of Electrical & Electronic Equipment has been 
a subject of concern globally and nationally. Your Company 
believes that the manufacturers of electronic goods are 
responsible for facilitating an environment friendly disposal, 

once the product has reached the end of its life. The Company 
is no more in the manufacturing of products.

Recognizing the need to minimize the hazardous impact of 
e-waste on the environment, your Company has formulated 
a comprehensive program for the recovery and recycling of 
WEEE in an environmentally safe manner.

Separate Collection/Recovery:

Your Company extends the recycling facility to its users 
regardless of the fact, when and where they have purchased 

the product. Your Company assures to all its customers that 
the entire process of recycling/disposal of WEEE will be carried 
out by an authorized recycling agency.

Green Bag Campaign:

Under your Company’s Green Bag Campaign we collect old 
equipment from your Company’s customers across India. 

We are not only reaching out to all our customers but are 
spreading awareness about proper recycling of electronic 
waste. We have witnessed positive improvement in e-waste 
collection since the last five years. Last year we have collected 
more than 53 Metric Tons (March 2017) of e-waste and have 

successfully disposed it through our Government approved 
Authorized Recycler.

Energy Management:

Energy is one field where we have made a considerable 
improvement. Your Company is evaluating options on how to 
use more and more renewable sources of energy. HCL Green 
Data Centre at Head Office, Noida is the first Data Centre 
Building in India to be a LEED IC PLATINUM certified by the 
US-Green Building Council.

        Sd/- Sd/-
Mr. Premkumar Seshadri Ms. Sangeeta Talwar
Executive Vice-Chairman Chairperson
& Managing Director (CSR Committee)

Date : 30th May, 2017
Place : Noida
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To the Members,

Your Directors have pleasure in presenting their Thirty First Annual Report, together with the Audited Accounts for the financial 
year ended 31st March, 2017.

Financial Highlights

(` in Crores)

Particulars Consolidated Standalone

2016-17 2015-16
(9 Months)

2016-17 2015-16
(9 Months)

Net Sales and other income 3,883.21 3,792.38 2,312.97 2,572.43 

Profit before exceptional items Interest, Depreciation and Tax (2.19) 5.81 52.83  62.55 

Finance Charges 190.29 125.69 104.60 81.49

Depreciation and Amortization 39.19 31.98 4.80 4.12

Exceptional Items (61.00) (67.22) (320.19) (159.01)

Profit before Tax (292.67) (219.08) (376.76) (182.07)

Provision for Taxation: Current 11.31 8.89 6.31 8.41 

Deferred Tax Expenses / (Credit) (56.31) (13.67) (20.68) (3.17)

Net Profit after Tax (Before Minority Interest) (247.67) (214.30) (362.39) (187.31) 

Net Profit after Tax (After Minority Interest) (247.67) (214.30) (362.39) (187.31) 

After closure of the financial year, the Board of Directors has 
given its approval for sale of DigiSchool Business  undertaking 
of HCL Learning Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary, on a 
going concern basis.

Transfer to reserves

In view of losses, no amount is transferred to the general 
reserve.

Awards & Recognition

Your Company was felicitated with the CMO Asia Award for 
Brand Excellence in the ‘Telecom Service Category’ for the 
second consecutive year. Your company was recognized for 
providing excellent end-to-end support services for various 

product categories across locations in India.

HCL Services won “Best Use of Lean Six Sigma: Field Services 
in IT” award at World Quality Congress Conference for 
significantly improving Customer Experience for a leading 
multi-national OEM. The lean Six Sigma project undertaken by 
HCL Services helped augment client relationship and loyalty, 

leading to increased business & profitability for the OEM. The 
Customer Experience compliance (CE) improved from 89% in 
Q4 FY16 to 92% in Q1 FY17, with Enterprise CE achieving a 

remarkable 100% CE in the same period.

Employee Stock Option Plan

Employee Stock Option Scheme 2000

Pursuant to the approval of the Shareholders at an Extra- 
Ordinary General Meeting held on 25th February, 2000 for 

Directors’ Report

Performance

In pursuance to the requirement of Section 2(41) of the 
Companies Act, 2013, the Company last year had changed its 
previous financial year to end on 31st March, 2016 i.e. from 1st 
July, 2015 to 31st March, 2016 (9 months). Hence, the figures 
for the current financial year (12 months) are not comparable 
with the figures of the previous year (9 months).

The consolidated net revenue of the Company for the year 
ended 31st March 2017 was ` 3,883.21 Crores as against  
` 3,792.38 Crores during the previous year (9 months) ended 
31st March, 2016. The consolidated loss before tax for the 
year ended, 31st March, 2017 was ` 292.67 Crores as against 

` 219.08 Crores during the previous year (9 months) ended 
31st March, 2016. The net revenue on standalone basis for the 
year ended, 31st March, 2017 was ` 2,312.97 Crores as against  
` 2,572.43 Crores during the previous year (9 months) ended 
31st March, 2016. The loss before tax for the year ended, 31st 

March, 2017 was ` 376.76 Crores as against ` 182.07 during 
the previous year (9 months) ended 31st March, 2016.

Your Board of Directors do not recommend any dividend for 

the year under review.

Operations

A detailed analysis and insight into the financial performance 
and operations of your Company for the year ended 31st 

March, 2017 is appearing in the Management Discussion and 
Analysis, forming part of the Annual Report. There has been 
no changes in the nature of business of the Company.
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grant of options to the employees of the Company and its 
subsidiaries (the Scheme 2000), the Board of Directors had 
approved the grant of 31,90,200 options including the options 
that had lapsed out of each grant. Each option confers on the 
employee a right for five equity shares of `2/- each.

During the year under review, no shares were allotted under 
ESOP scheme 2000.

Employee Stock Based Compensation Plan 2005

Pursuant to the approval of Shareholders of the Company 
through a Postal Ballot, the result whereof was declared on 
13th June, 2005, the Board of Directors had granted 33,35,487 
options including the options that had lapsed out of each 
grant under the Employee Stock Based Compensation Plan 
2005 (the Plan 2005). Each option confers on the employee 
a right for five equity shares of ` 2/- each at the market price 
as specified in the SEBI (Employee Stock Option Scheme and 
Employee Stock Purchase Scheme) Guidelines 1999, on the 
date of grant.

During the year under review, no shares were allotted under 
ESOP Plan 2005.

Credit Rating

The credit rating by ICRA continued at ‘A1’, indicating the very 
strong degree of safety regarding timely payment of financial 
obligations to the Company’s Commercial Paper program of 
` 300 crores.

The current long term rating assigned by India Rating to 
the Company is ‘A-‘, indicating adequate degree of safety 
regarding timely servicing of financial obligations.

Fixed Deposits

Your Company has not accepted/renewed any deposits from 
the public during the year and there were no fixed deposits 
outstanding either at the beginning or at the end of the year.

Listing

The equity shares of your Company are listed at the BSE 
Limited, Mumbai (BSE) and National Stock Exchange of India 
Limited, Mumbai (NSE).

Stock Exchange where HCL Infosystems 

Ltd.’ shares are listed

Scrip Symbol 

/ Code

National Stock Exchange of India Ltd. (NSE) HCL-INSYS

BSE Ltd. (BSE) 500179

The Company has paid the listing fee for the year 2017-2018 
to BSE and NSE.

Directors and Key Managerial Personnel (KMP)

During the period under review, Mr. Sanjeev Sharma, the 
Independent Director, has resigned from the directorship 
of the Company w.e.f. 13th March, 2017. Dr. Pradeep Kumar 
Khosla, the another Independent Director, resigned from the 

directorship of the Company after closure of the financial 
year. The Board places on record its appreciation for the 
contributions made by the above Directors during their 
respective tenure as director with the Company.

In accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 
2013 and the Articles of Association of the Company, Mr. 
Dilip Kumar Srivastava, retires from office by rotation at the 
ensuing Annual General Meeting and being eligible, has 
offered himself for re-appointment. A brief resume, details of 
expertise and other directorships/committee memberships 
held by Mr. Srivastava, form part of the Notice convening the 
Thirty First Annual General Meeting.

The Company has received declarations from all the 
Independent Directors confirming that they meet the criteria 
of independence as prescribed under Section 149(6) of the 
Companies Act, 2013.

In terms of the provision of Section 149, 152(6) and other 
applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, an 
Independent Director shall hold office up to a term of five 
consecutive years on the Board of the Company and shall not 
be liable to retire by rotation.

Committees of Board

Currently, the Board has 6 (Six) Committees: Accounts and 
Audit Committee, Nomination & Remuneration Committee, 
Stakeholders Relationship Committee, Corporate Social 
Responsibility (CSR) Committee, Finance Committee and 
Technology Committee. A detailed note on Committees is 
provided in the Corporate Governance Report.

Board and Committees Evaluation

Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and 
Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations 
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, a formal 
annual performance evaluation has been done by the Board 
of its own performance, the Directors individually as well as 
the evaluation of its Committees.

The Company had appointed an external agency to assist 
Nomination & Remuneration Committee (NRC) in drafting 
the questionnaires for the purpose of evaluation of the Board 
& the Individual Directors and the Board Committees. The 
structured questionnaires were circulated to all the Directors, 
requesting them to fill and return the duly filled questionnaires 
to the Company giving their views for evaluation of the self & 
the peers.

The feedback of the evaluation was shared by the Board 
Chairman with each Board members, the entire Board and the 
Board Committees and a roadmap was framed for taking the 

corrective actions on.

Independent Directors of the Company in their separate 

meeting held on 24th March, 2017 reviewed the performance 
of the Non-Independent Directors and the Board as a whole. 
They also reviewed the performance of the Chairperson of the 

Company.

Criteria/Policy on Appointment and Remuneration

The Board has, on the recommendation of the Nomination 
& Remuneration Committee (NRC) framed a criteria for 

appointment of Directors, Key Managerial Personnel/Senior 
Management. The Board has also adopted a remuneration 
policy for Directors, Key Managerial Personnel/ Senior 
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Management and other employees. The criteria/policy on 
appointment and remuneration are stated in the Corporate 
Governance Report.

Board Meetings

During the financial year 2016-17, 8 (Eight) Board Meetings 
were held and the gap between two meetings did not exceed 

one hundred and twenty days. The details of Board Meetings 
held are stated in the Corporate Governance Report.

Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)

A report on Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) is attached 
as Annexure to this Report. The policy on CSR had been 
revised by the Board in its meeting held on 24th March, 2017 
which can be accessed on the website of the Company.

Corporate Governance Report and Management 
Discussion and Analysis Statement

The Corporate Governance Report and the Management 
Discussion and Analysis Statement are attached and are to be 
read with the Directors’ Report.

Insider Trading Regulations

As per the requirements under the SEBI (Prohibition of Insider 
Trading) Regulations, 2015, the Company had adopted the 
‘Code of Conduct for Internal Procedures and to Regulate, 
Monitor and Report Trading By Insiders’ and the ‘Code of Fair 
Disclosure’ w.e.f. 15th May, 2015.

Directors’ Responsibility Statement

Pursuant to the requirement of Section 134(3)(c) of the 
Companies Act, 2013, and based on the representations 
received from the operating management, the Directors 
hereby confirm that:

(a) in the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable 
accounting standards had been followed along with 
proper explanation relating to material departures;

(b) the directors had selected such accounting policies and 
applied them consistently and made judgments and 
estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give 
a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the company 

at the end of the financial year and of the profit and loss 

of the company for that period;

(c) the directors had taken proper and sufficient care for 
the maintenance of adequate accounting records 

in accordance with the provisions of this Act for 
safeguarding the assets of the company and for 
preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

(d) the directors had prepared the annual accounts on a 
going concern basis;

(e) the directors had laid down internal financial controls 
to be followed by the company and that such internal 

Financial controls are adequate and were operating 
effectively.

(f) the directors had devised proper systems to ensure 
compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws 

and that such systems were adequate and operating 
effectively.

Particulars of Employees and related disclosures

The information required under Section 197 of the Act 
read with rule 5(1) of the Companies (Appointment and 
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 are given 

below:.

(a) The ratio of the remuneration of each Director to 
the median remuneration of the employees of the 
Company for the financial year:

Non-Executive Directors Ratio to 
median 

remuneration

Remuneration
(`)

Dr. Nikhil Sinha - -

Mr. V.N. Koura - -

Dr. Pradeep Kumar Khosla 0.95 2,25,000

Ms. Sangeeta Talwar 8.26 19,50,000

Mr. Kaushik Dutta 6.35 15,00,000

Mr. Dhirendra Singh 7.63 18,00,000

Mr. Pawan Kumar Danwar - -

Mr. Dilip Kumar Srivastava - -

Mr. Sanjeev Sharma* 1.59 3,75,000

Ms. Ritu Arora** 0.95 2,25,000

Executive Directors Ratio to
median

remuneration

Remuneration

Mr. Premkumar Seshadri - -

Note:

1. No sitting fees is paid to Executive Director and Non-
Independent Director.

(b) The percentage increase in remuneration of each 
Director, Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial 
Officer, Company Secretary in the financial year:

Mr. Premkumar Seshadri, Executive Vice Chairman & 
Managing Director is not paid any remuneration by the 

Company.

No remuneration, other than the sitting fees was  
paid to Non-Executive and Independent Directors, 
which continued to be paid @ ` 75,000/- per Board/

Board Committee meeting, as was paid during the year 
2015-16.

*Mr. Sanjeev Sharma resigned from Directorship of the 
Company w.e.f. 13th March, 2017.

**Ms. Ritu Arora started getting the sitting fees for 
the Board/ Committee meeting held on and after 31st 
January, 2017.

The percentage increase in the remuneration of the 
Chief Financial Officer and Company Secretary were 

30.13 % and 16.90 % respectively.
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(c) The percentage increase in the median remuneration 
of employees in the financial year:

The percentage increase in the median remuneration of 
the employees in the financial year was 4.1%.

(d) The number of permanent employees on the rolls of 
Company:

The number of permanent employees on rolls of the 
Company at the end of the financial year were 3413.

(e) Average percentile increase already made in the 
salaries of employees other than the managerial 
personnel in the last financial year and its comparison 
with the percentile increase in the managerial 
remuneration and justification thereof and point 
out if there are any exceptional circumstances for 
increase in the managerial remuneration:

- The Average Annual increase was around 4.1%

- Not Applicable for managerial remuneration, as 
no remuneration is paid by the Company to the 
Managing Director by the Company

(f) Affirmation that the remuneration is as per the 
remuneration policy of the Company:

The Company affirms remuneration is as per the 
remuneration policy of the Company.

Annual Report is being sent to the members of the Company 
excluding the information under Rule 5(2) and 5(3) of the 
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial 
Personnel) Rules, 2014. Any member interested in obtaining 
the said information may write to the Company Secretary at 
the registered office of the Company.

Particulars of Loans, Guarantees or Investments

Details of Loans, Guarantees and Investments covered under 
the provisions of Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 are 
given in the notes to the Financial Statements.

Related Party Transactions

All the related party transactions were in the ordinary course 

of business and at arm’s length. The Audit Committee has 
approved all related party transactions under the provisions 
of Section 188 and other applicable sections of the Companies 

Act, 2013 read with relevant rules for the financial year 
2016-17. The Company had not entered into any contract / 
arrangement / transaction with related parties which could 
be considered material in accordance with the policy of the 
Company on materiality of related party transactions.

Policy on dealing with related party transactions is available 

on the website of the Company. https://www.hclinfosystems.
com/investors/

Internal Control Systems

Your Company has in place adequate internal financial 
controls with reference to financial statements. During the 

year, such controls were tested and no reportable material 
weakness in the design or operation were observed.

Vigil Mechanism/Whistle Blower Policy

Pursuant to the provisions of section 177(9) & (10) of the 
Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 22 of the Securities and 
Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, a Vigil Mechanism/ Whistle 
Blower Policy for Directors and employee to report concerns 
about unethical behavior, actual or suspected fraud or 
violation of the Company’s code of conduct or ethics policy. 
The said Policy is posted on the website of the Company 
and can be assessed at https://www.hclinfosystems.com/
investors/

Policy against Sexual Harassment

The organization endeavors to ensure a safe, protected and 
congenial work environment where employees shall deliver 
their best without any inhibition, threat or fear. Hence, the 
prevention of sexual harassment at workplace policy has 
been evolved.

The Company has put in place a ‘Policy on Prevention and 
Redressal of Sexual Harassment at Workplace’ under the name 
of “With You”. As per the policy, any employee may report 
his/her complaint to the supervisor or HR representative 
or member of the Committee or to the With You email-id 
“withyou@hcl.com”, in writing as mentioned.

The Committee would then investigate and submit its report 
within 45 working days. We affirm that adequate access 
was provided to any complainant who wished to register a 
complaint under the policy, during the year.

Risk Management Policy

The Board of the Company has adopted a risk management 
policy for reviewing the risk management plan and ensuring 
its effectiveness. The audit committee has additional oversight 
in the area of financial risks and controls. Major risks identified 
by the businesses and functions are systematically addressed 
through mitigating actions on a continuing basis.

The development and implementation of risk management 
policy has been covered in the management discussion and 
analysis, which forms part of this report.

Auditors & Auditors’ Report

Statutory Auditors

Pursuant to the provisions of section 139 of the Companies 
Act, 2013, an audit firm can act as auditors for a maximum 

tenure of two terms of 5 consecutive years. For the purpose 
of reckoning this limit, existing tenure of the auditors needs 
to be counted. However, companies have been given a 
transition period of 3 years from April 1, 2014 to comply with 
this provision. M/s Price Waterhouse, Chartered Accountants, 

existing auditor’s firm has completed two terms of five 
consecutive years with the Company.

M/s Price Waterhouse, Chartered Accountants, who are 
the statutory auditors of the Company, hold office until the 
conclusion of forthcoming Thirty First (31st) Annual General 
Meeting. It is proposed to appoint M/s BSR & Associates 
LLP, Chartered Accountants (FRN – 116231W/W-100024) as 
statutory auditors of the Company from the conclusion of 
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forthcoming Thirty First (31st) Annual General Meeting till the 
conclusion of Thirty Sixth (36th) AGM to be held in the year 
2022. They have confirmed their eligibility to the effect that 
their appointment, if made, would be within the prescribed 
limits under the Act and that they are not disqualified for 
appointment. It is also proposed to authorize the Board of 
Directors to fix their remuneration.

The Auditors’ Report does not contain any qualification, 
reservation or adverse remark.

Secretarial Audit

Pursuant to the requirements of the Companies Act, 2013 
and the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration 
of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, the Company had 
appointed M/s VKC & Associates, Practicing Company 
Secretaries Registration no. P2017UP060600 as the Secretarial 
Auditor for the year ended on 31st March, 2017. The Secretarial 
Audit report issued by VKC & Associates, Practicing Company 
Secretaries is attached separately to this report. The report 
does not contain any qualification, reservation or adverse 
remark.

Additional information relating to Conservation of 
Energy, Technology Absorption and Foreign Exchange 
Earnings and Outgo

The information on conservation of energy, technology 
absorption and foreign exchange earnings and outgo 
stipulated under Section 134(3) (m) of the Companies Act, 
2013 read with Rule 8 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 
2014, is attached as Annexure to this Report.

Consolidated Financial Statement

In accordance with the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) and 
Accounting Standard (AS) - 21 on Consolidated Financial 
Statements read with AS - 23 on Accounting for Investments in 
Subsidiaries/Associates/JVs and AS - 27 on Financial Reporting 
of Interests in Joint Ventures, the audited consolidated 
financial statement is provided in the Annual Report.

Subsidiaries, Joint Ventures and Associate Companies

A list of Subsidiaries/Associates/JVs is given in the Extract of 

Annual Return attached to this report.

Policy for determining material subsidiaries of the Company 
is available on the website of the Company at https://www.
hclinfosystems.com/investors/

On sale of the entire stake held by the Company in Nokia HCL 
Mobile Internet Services Limited, the JV with Nokia, stands 
cancelled during the year.

HCL Infosystems South Africa Pty Limited, a step down wholly 
owned subsidiary of your Company has been deregistered 
during the year.

Extract of Annual Return

The details forming part of the extract of the Annual Return in 
form MGT 9 is attached herewith as “Annexure to this Report”.

Significant and Material Orders Passed by the Regulators 
or Courts

There are no significant material orders passed by the 
Regulators / Courts which would impact the going concern 
status of the Company and its future operations.
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The information on conservation of energy, technology 
absorption and foreign exchange earnings and outgo 
stipulated under Section 134(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 
2013 read with Rule 8 of The Companies (Accounts) Rules, 
2014

A. Conservation of Energy

Your Company has executed measures at its facilities to 
reduce power consumption. By generating awareness 
about Energy Conservation amongst employees, we 
were able to save approximately 1000 units of electrical 
energy during the period ending 31st March 2017.

B. Research & Development

1. Product Innovation & Engineering

Your company’s Research & Development (R&D) 
unit “HCL Labs” was set up with a mission to 

create diverse services across various domains 
that can enable your company to venture into 
new businesses and acquire new customers. 

These services intend to bring continuous 
improvement in reducing delivery cost and time, 

increase customer relationship with high customer 
satisfaction (CSAT) and sustain its stronghold in the 
market for longer period.

The Puducherry R&D center has been working 
towards enhancing EMS (Enterprise Management 
System), IoT & Automation products with the 
convergence of Operational technologies 
(Connected Things - Vehicles, equipment, devices 
and people to drive Smart Logistics, Manufacturing 
and Cities etc.).

Different Tools have been built in Puducherry to 
provide the following services:

1. Enterprise Infrastructure Monitoring & 
Management

2. Enterprise Asset Management

3. Integrated Service Management

4. Client and DC Automation

In addition to the above, a platform was developed 

for deployment in IoT (Internet of Things) solutions, 
with a strong roadmap in building IOT Platform and 
Automation Utilities that helps in creating a unique 
differentiator against other competitive service 
providers. HCL Labs is currently creating engines 

and processes for delivering world-class services 
and solutions in terms of quality and standards.

2. Expenditure on R & D (Consolidated)

   (`/ Crores)
Capital : NIL
Revenue : NIL
Total : NIL

3. Technology Absorption, Adaptation and 
Innovation

HCL Labs has introduced yet another pioneering 
technology that enables banking for the unbanked 
in rural and urban migrant population in India, 
a huge challenge in the country that can be 
surmounted only with the use of technology. 
With an objective to perform banking transactions 
of any bank /branch customer at the Business 
Correspondent Agent using Hand-held Terminal 
device, the following initiative has been 
undertaken:

AEPS OFF -US (Inter Bank Aadhaar Transaction)

HCL has successfully integrated HHT (Hand-
held Terminal) devices with National Payment 

Corporation of India (NPCI) /UIDAI and with Banks’ 
CBS (Core Banking Server) as another medium to 
perform inter-bank Aadhaar Enabled Payment 

System (AEPS) transactions.   Customers simply 
need to link their Aadhaar number with their bank 

accounts to avail this banking service. During 
the transaction, the customer will be required 
to initiate the AEPS OFF-US, and the transaction 

will be drawn on the desired NPCI member Bank. 
The process is independent of branch and does 

not require any voucher/slips/ or ATM cards. The 
authentication of such transactions take place 
with the help of Customers’ biometric data which 

is stored at the UIDAI server. This makes the 
system not only robust but also enables a real time 
transaction syncing with the Banks’ CBS system. 

As compared to any other RuPay / Master/ Visa 
transaction cost, it is a very cost effective method 
of providing banking services to the rural and 

unmanaged segment.

4.  Foreign Exchange earnings and outgo

During the year under review, the Company’s 
Standalone earnings in foreign currency were 
` 6.94 Crores (Previous period ` 0.88 Crores). 

The Standalone expenditure in foreign currency 
including imports during the year amounted to ` 
126.19 Crores (Previous period ` 2.03 Crores).

Annexure to Director’s Report
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Your Company has taken the following steps to 
increase its Foreign Exchange earnings:

HCL Infosystems MEA, the Company’s subsidiary 
based out of Dubai achieved traction in the 
following:

 Bagged Datacentre Transformation Project 

from Daman Insurance worth AED 16 Million

 Received sign off for all old projects of DEWA

HCL Insys Pte. Ltd., the company’s subsidiary based 
out of Singapore won following major orders:

 Bagged ATFM (Agency Tenant Facility 

Management), an 8-year program to 
provide IT Managed Services to the entire 
Government of Singapore –

o Total Contract Value in excess of SGD 
320 Million

o Potential tenants / clients is greater than 
50

o Service subscription commencement 
incrementally from July 2017 and will 
reach peak during JFM 2019

o Major focus of ATFM is to use Remote 
Administration and ticket reduction 
/ elimination through automation 
thereby reducing onsite man-effort 
required to manage Agency’s IT 
Infrastructure and Application

 Achieved overall Revenue of SGD$ 68.09 
Million during the financial year

 Renewed contracts for Annual Contract Value 
worth over SGD10 Million; completed with 
supplementary Net Addition of 7 to 10%

 Process & Productivity improvements (Higher 
CSAT achievement through CSI framework 
for all agencies; Improvement in margin 
through higher productivity)
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EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

as on the financial year ended on 31st March, 2017

[Pursuant to section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the Companies 
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

I. REGISTRATION AND OTHER DETAILS:

i) CIN L72200DL1986PLC023955

ii) Registration Date 17/04/1986

iii) Name of the Company HCL Infosystems Limited

iv) Category / Sub-Category of the Company Company having Share Capital

v) Address of the Registered office and contact 
details

806, Siddharth, 96, Nehru Place, New Delhi – 110019
Tel. No. 011 26444812

vi) Whether listed company Yes

vii) Name, Address and Contact details of Registrar 
and Transfer Agent, if any

M/s. Alankit Assignments Limited
205-208, Anarkali Complex

Jhandewalan Extension,
New Delhi-110055

Tel. No. 011-42541234, 23541234
Fax No. 23552001
E-Mail : rta@alankit.com

II. PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY

All the business activities contributing 10 % or more of the total turnover of the company shall be stated:-

Sl. 
No.

Name and Description of main 
products/services

NIC Code of the Product/ service % to total turnover 
of the company

1 Cellular Phones 46524- Wholesale of telephone, mobile phone and 
communications equipment and parts

57.14

2 Computers/ Micro Processor 
based systems

46511- Wholesale of computers and computer 
peripheral equipment

41.01

III. PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES –

S.
No.

NAME AND ADDRESS OF THE
COMPANY

CIN/GLN HOLDING/ 
SUBSIDIARY/
ASSOCIATE

% OF 
SHARES 

HELD

APPLICABLE 
SECTION

1 HCL Services Limited (formerly known as HCL 
Care Limited)

U93000DL2012PLC242938 Subsidiary 100 2(87)(ii)

2 HCL Infotech Limited (formerly known as 

HCL System Integration Limited)

U72200DL2012PLC242944 Subsidiary 100 2(87)(ii)

3 HCL Learning Limited U80900DL2012PLC242907 Subsidiary 100 2(87)(ii)

4 Digilife Distribution and Marketing Services 
Limited (formerly known as HCL Security 
Limited)

U72900DL2008PLC175605 Subsidiary 100 2(87)(ii)

5 Pimpri Chinchwad eServices Limited U72200DL2010PLC208539 Subsidiary 85 2(87)(ii)

6 HCL Computing Products Limited U72900DL2012PLC238730 Subsidiary 100 2(87)(ii)

7 HCL Insys Pte Limited, Singapore
(Through HCL Services Limited)

Subsidiary 100 2(87)(ii)

8 HCL Investments Pte Limited, Singapore;
(Through HCL Infotech Limited)

Subsidiary 100 2(87)(ii)

9 HCL Infosystems MEA FZE, Dubai
(Through HCL Insys Pte Limited, Singapore)

Subsidiary 100 2(87)(ii)

FORM NO. MGT.9
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S.
No.

NAME AND ADDRESS OF THE
COMPANY

CIN/GLN HOLDING/ 
SUBSIDIARY/
ASSOCIATE

% OF 
SHARES 

HELD

APPLICABLE 
SECTION

10 HCL Infosystems LLC, Dubai;
(Through HCL Infosystems MEA FZE, Dubai)

Subsidiary 49 2(87)(i)

11 HCL Infosystems MEA LLC Abu Dhabi
(Through HCL Infosystems MEA FZE, Dubai)

Subsidiary 49 2(87)(i)

12 HCL Infosystems Qatar WLL, Qatar
(Through HCL Infosystems MEA LLC, Abu 
Dhabi)

Subsidiary 49 2(87)(i)

13 HCL Touch Inc., US
(Through HCL Services Limited)

Subsidiary 100 2(87)(ii)

14 HCL Infosystems South Africa Pty Limited, 
South Africa*
(Through HCL Investments Pte Limited, 
Singapore)

Subsidiary 100 2(87)(ii)

15 Nokia HCL Mobile Internet Services Limited** U74900DL2009PLC188379 Associate 49 2(6)

*HCL Infosystems South Africa Pty Limited, South Africa deregistered w.e.f. 4th January, 2017.

 ** Ceased to be Associate w.e.f. 4th August, 2016 on sale of the entire stake in its share capital by the Company

IV. SHARE HOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share Capital Break up as percentage of Total Equity)

i) Category-wise Share Holding

Category of Shareholders No. of Shares held at the

beginning of the year

(As on 31st March, 2016)

No. of Shares held  

at the end of the year

(As on 31st March, 2017)

% 

Change 

during 

the yearDemat Physical Total % of 

Total 

Shares

Demat Physical Total % of 

Total 

Shares

A. Promoters

(1) Indian

a) Individual/ HUF

b) Central Govt

c) State Govt (s)

d) Bodies Corp.

e) Banks/FI

f) Any Other..

Sub-total (A) (1):-

(2) Foreign

a) NRIs - Individuals
b) Other - Individuals

c) Bodies Corp.

d) Banks / FI
e) Any Other....

Sub-total (A) (2):-

Total shareholding of Promoter

(A) = (A)(1)+(A)( 2)

22,65,808

-

-

12,71,12,036

-

-

-

-
-

 -

-

-

12,93,77,844

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-
-

-

-
-

-

22,65,808

-

-

12,71,12,036

-

-

-

-

-
-
-

-

12,93,77,844

1.02

-

-

57.02

-

-

-

-
-

-

-
-

58.04

4,40,105

-

-

12,89,37,739

-

-

-

-

-
-
-

-

12,93,77,844

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-
-

-

-
-

-

4,40,105

-

-

12,89,37,739

-

-

-

-

-
-
-

-

12,93,77,844

0.20

-

-

57.84

-

-

-

-
-

-

-
-

58.04

-0.82*

0.82*

-

B. Public Shareholding

1. Institutions

a) Mutual Funds
b) Banks/FI
c) Central Govt

d) State Govt(s)

e) Venture Capital Funds
f) Insurance Companies
g) FIIs

h) Foreign Venture Capital Funds
i) Others (specify)

Foreign Portfolio Investor

Sub-total (B)(1):-

6,367
42,39,120

-
-

-
-

10,39,561

-

26,92,918
79,77,966

10,750
7,750

-

-
-
-

500
-

-
 19,000

17,117

42,46,870

-
-
-

-
10,40,061

26,92,918

79,96,966

0.01
1.90

-

-

-
-

0.47

1.21
3.59

5,000
44,28,815

-

-
-
-

94,976
-

42,15,719
87,44,510

10,750

7,750

-
-
-

-
500

-

-

 19,000

15,750

44,36,565
-
-

-
-

95,476
-

42,15,719
87,63,510

0.01
1.99

-

-

-
-

0.04

1.89
3.93

 -
0.09

-

-
-
-

-0.43
-

-
0.68
0.34
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Category of Shareholders No. of Shares held at the
beginning of the year

(As on 31st March, 2016)

No. of Shares held  
at the end of the year

(As on 31st March, 2017)

% 
Change 

during 
the yearDemat Physical Total % of 

Total 
Shares

Demat Physical Total % of 
Total 

Shares

2. Non-Institutions
a) Bodies Corp.

i) Indian
ii) Overseas

b) Individuals
i) Individual shareholders 

holding nominal share capital 
upto ` 1 lakh

ii) Individual shareholders 
holding nominal share capital 
in excess of Rs 1 lakh

c) Others (specify)
i) NRI

ii) Trust

iii) Foreign Body Corporate

Sub-total (B)(2):-

Total Public Shareholding

(B) = (B)(1) + (B)(2)

1,58,74,643
70,000

4,85,35,710

1,54,85,651

24,01,997

67,770

-

824,35,771

9,04,13,737

14,33,380
-

15,80,038

86,625

7,000

5

2,000

31,09,048

31,28,048 

1,73,08,023
70,000

5,01,15,748

1,55,72,276

24,08,997

67,775

2,000

8,55,44,819

9,35,41,785

7.76
0.03

22.48

6.99

1.08

0.03

0.00

38.37

41.96

1,31,17,778
70,000

5,30,81,755

1,25,89,684

27,93,098

85,320

-

8,17,37,635

9,04,82,145

14,33,380
-

15,11,630

86,625

7,000

5

2,000

30,40,640

30,59,640 

1,45,51,158
70,000

5,45,93,385

1,26,76,309

28,00,098 

85,325

2,000

8,47,78,275

9,35,41,785

6.53
0.03

24.49

5.69

1.26

0.04

0.00

38.04

41.96

-1.23
-

2.01

-1.30

0.18

0.01

-

3.13

-

C. Shares held by Custodian for GDRs & 
ADRs

- - - - - - -

Grand Total (A+B+C) 2,197,91,581, 31,28,048 22,29,19,629 100.00 21,98,59,989 30,59,640 22,29,19,629 100.00 0.00

*Ms. Nina Puri, Promoter, transferred her shares to M/s Vireet Investments Private Limited, a company owned and 
controlled by her along with her family members.

(ii) Shareholding of Promoters

S.

N o.

Shareholder’s Name Shareholding at the beginning of the 

year (As on 31st March, 2016)

Shareholding at the end of the year

(As on 31st March, 2017)

% change 

in share 

holding 

during the 

year

No. of Shares % of total 

Shares 

of the 

company

% of Shares 

Pledged/ 

encumbered 

to total 

shares

No. of Shares % of total 

Shares 

of the 

company

%of Shares 

Pledged/ 

encumbered 

to total 

shares

1 Mr. Ajai Chowdhry 1,98,490 0.09 - 1,98,490 0.09 - -

2 Ms. Gita Chowdhry 1,52,445 0.07 - 1,52,445 0.07 - -

3 Ms. Kiran Malhotra 59,060 0.03 - 59,060 0.02 -

4 Mr. Shiv Nadar 2,070 0.00 - 2,070 0.00 - -

5 Ms. Roshni Nadar 1,960 0.00 - 1,960 0.00 - -

6 Ms. Poorva Malhotra 12,880 0.01 - 12,880 0.01 - -

7 Mr. Akshay Chowdhry 900 0.00 - 900 0.00 - -

8 Mr. Shiven Malhotra 11,880 0.01 - 11,880 0.01 - -

9 Ms. Kiran Nadar 420 0.00 - 420 0.00 - -

10 Ms. Nina Puri* 18,25,703 0.82 - - - -

11 M/s Vireet Investments Private Limited* - - - 18,25,703 0.82 - -

12 M/s HCL Corporation Pvt. Ltd. (Formerly, 
Guddu Investments (Pondi) Pvt. Ltd.)

11,13,82,239 49.97 - 11,13,82,239 49.97 - -

13 M/s Vama Sundari Investments (Delhi) 
Pvt Ltd

10,38,848 0.47 - 10,38,848 0.47 - -

14 M/s AKM Systems Pvt. Ltd. 1,19,97,007 5.38 - 1,19,97,007 5.38 - -

15 M/s Apollo Trading And Finance Pvt. Ltd. 13,46,971 0.60 - 13,46,971 0.60 - -

16 M/s BFL Investments & Financial 

Consultants Pvt. Ltd.

13,46,971 0.60 - 13,46,971 0.60 - -

Total 12,93,77,844 58.04 - 12,93,77,844 58.04 - -

*Ms. Nina Puri, Promoter, transferred her shares to M/s Vireet Investments Private Limited, a company owned and 
controlled by her along with her family members.
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(iii) Change in Promoters’ Shareholding (please specify, if there is no change)

Sl. 
No.

Shareholding at the 
beginning of the year 

(As on 31st March, 2016)

Cumulative Shareholding 
during the year 

(As on 31st March, 2017)

No. of shares % of total 
shares of the 

company

No. of shares % of total 
shares of the 

company

At the beginning of the year 12,93,77,844 58.04 12,93,77,844 58.04

Date wise Increase/ Decrease in Promoters 
Shareholding during the year specifying the 
reasons for increase/decrease (e.g. allotment/
transfer/bonus/ sweat equity etc):

*

- -

At the End of the year 12,93,77,844 58.04 12,93,77,844 58.04

*Ms. Nina Puri, Promoter, transferred her shares to M/s Vireet Investments Private Limited, a company owned and 
controlled by her along with her family members.

(iv) Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders (other than Directors, Promoters and Holders of GDRs and ADRs):

Sl. 
No.

Shareholding at the 
beginning of the year 

Cumulative Shareholding 
during the year 

For Each of the Top 10 Shareholders No. of 

shares

% of total 

shares of the 
company

No. of 

shares

% of total 

shares of the 
company

1 GOPIKISHAN SHIVKISHAN DAMANI 15,00,000 0.6729 15,00,000 0.6729

Add: Market Purchase 08.04.2016 14,20,000 0.6370 29,20,000 1.3099

Less: Market Sale 07.10.2016 -4,00,000 -0.1794 25,20,000 1.1305

At the End of the year (or on the date of separation, 
if separated during the year)

NA NA 25,20,000 1.1305

2 LIFE INSURANCE CORPORATION OF INDIA 21,31,085 0.9560 21,31,085

Add/Less: 0 0.0000 21,31,085 0.9560

At the End of the year (or on the date of separation, 
if separated during the year)

NA NA 21,31,085 0.9560

3 BHADRA JAYANTILAL SHAH 22,00,000 0.9869 22,00,000

Less: Market Sale 16.12.2016 -1,00,000 -0.0449 21,00,000 0.9420

Less: Market Sale 23.12.2016 -1,00,000 -0.0449 20,00,000 0.8972

At the End of the year (or on the date of separation, 
if separated during the year)

NA NA 20,00,000 0.8972

4 CHETAN JAYANTILAL SHAH 22,00,000 0.9869 22,00,000 0.9869

Less: Market Sale 16.12.2016 -2,00,000 -0.0897 20,00,000 0.8972

At the End of the year (or on the date of separation, 
if separated during the year)

NA NA 20,00,000 0.8972

5 EMERGING MARKETS CORE EQUITY PORTFOLIO (THE 

PORTFOLIO) OF DFA INVESTMENT DIMENSIONS 
GROUP INC. (DFAIDG)

10,78,773 0.4839 10,78,773 0.4839

Add: Market Purchase 06.01.2017 1,24,236 0.0557 12,03,009 0.5397

Add: Market Purchase 20.01.2017 32,883 0.0148 12,35,892 0.5544

Add: Market Purchase 27.01.2017 99,118 0.0445 13,35,010 0.5989

Add: Market Purchase 10.02.2017 37,743 0.0169 13,72,753 0.6158

At the End of the year (or on the date of separation, 

if separated during the year)

NA NA 13,72,753 0.6158
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Sl. 
No.

Shareholding at the 
beginning of the year 

Cumulative Shareholding 
during the year 

For Each of the Top 10 Shareholders No. of 
shares

% of total 
shares of the 

company

No. of 
shares

% of total 
shares of the 

company

6 MV SCIF MAURITIUS 7,85,365 0.3523 7,85,365 0.3523

Add: Market Purchase 22.04.2016 79,198 0.0355 8,64,563 0.3878

Add: Market Purchase 29.04.2016 29,692 0.0133 8,94,255 0.4012

Add: Market Purchase 24.06.2016 31,184 0.0140 9,25,439 0.4151

Less: Market Sale 19.08.2016 -10,221 -0.0046 9,15,218 0.4106

Add: Market Purchase 23.09.2016 5,066 0.0023 9,20,284 0.4128

Less: Market Sale 23.12.2016 -45,805 -0.0205 8,74,479 0.3923

Less: Market Sale 06.01.2017 -9,785 -0.0044 8,64,694 0.3879

Less: Market Sale 03.02.2017 -3,142 -0.0014 8,61,552 0.3865

Less: Market Sale 03.03.2017 -12,384 -0.0056 8,49,168 0.3809

Add: Market Purchase 24.03.2017 15,523 0.0070 8,64,691 0.3879

At the End of the year (or on the date of separation, 
if separated during the year)

NA NA 8,64,691 0.3879

7 SUBHASH ARORA INVESTMENT P LTD 8,19,250 0.3675 8,19,250 0.3675

Add/Less: 0 0.0000 8,19,250 0.3675

At the End of the year (or on the date of separation, 
if separated during the year)

NA NA 8,19,250 0.3675

8 RAMESH DAMANI 5,92,029 0.2656 5,92,029 0.2656

Add: Market Purchase 26.08.2016 25,000 0.0112 6,17,029 0.2768

Add: Market Purchase 07.10.2016 1,00,000 0.0449 7,17,029 0.3217

Less: Market Sale 21.10.2016 -25,000 -0.0112 6,92,029 0.3104

Less: Market Sale 28.10.2016 -25,000 -0.0112 6,67,029 0.2992

Add: Market Purchase 16.12.2016 50,000 0.0224 7,17,029 0.3217

At the End of the year (or on the date of separation, 
if separated during the year)

NA NA 7,17,029 0.3217

9 GENERAL INSURANCE CORPORATION OF INDIA 7,00,000 0.3140 7,00,000 0.3140

Add/Less: 0 0.0000 7,00,000 0.3140

At the End of the year (or on the date of separation, 
if separated during the year)

NA NA 7,00,000 0.3140

10 ICICI BANK LIMITED

3,55,378 0.1594 3,55,378 0.1594

Less: Market Sale 08.04.2016 -1,328 -0.0006 3,54,050 0.1588

Less: Market Sale 15.04.2016 -550 -0.0002 3,53,500 0.1586

Less: Market Sale 22.04.2016 -2,954 -0.0013 3,50,546 0.1573

Add: Market Purchase 29.04.2016 25,308 0.0114 3,75,854 0.1686

Add: Market Purchase 06.05.2016 46,051 0.0207 4,21,905 0.1893

Add: Market Purchase 13.05.2016 9,250 0.0041 4,31,155 0.1934

Add: Market Purchase 20.05.2016 1,757 0.0008 4,32,912 0.1942

Add: Market Purchase 27.05.2016 1,009 0.0005 4,33,921 0.1947

Less: Market Sale 03.06.2016 -96,558 -0.0433 3,37,363 0.1513

Less: Market Sale 10.06.2016 -1,411 -0.0006 3,35,952 0.1507
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Sl. 
No.

Shareholding at the 
beginning of the year 

Cumulative Shareholding 
during the year 

For Each of the Top 10 Shareholders No. of 
shares

% of total 
shares of the 

company

No. of 
shares

% of total 
shares of the 

company

Add: Market Purchase 17.06.2016 8,385 0.0038 3,44,337 0.1545

Add: Market Purchase 24.06.2016 91,029 0.0408 4,35,366 0.1953

Add: Market Purchase 30.06.2016 20,368 0.0091 4,55,734 0.2044

Less: Market Sale 08.07.2016 -10,747 -0.0048 4,44,987 0.1996

Add: Market Purchase 15.07.2016 46,357 0.0208 4,91,344 0.2204

Less: Market Sale 22.07.2016 -63,153 -0.0283 4,28,191 0.1921

Add: Market Purchase 29.07.2016 23,277 0.0104 4,51,468 0.2025

Add: Market Purchase 05.08.2016 3,036 0.0014 4,54,504 0.2039

Less: Market Sale 12.08.2016 -20,379 -0.0091 4,34,125 0.1947

Less: Market Sale 19.08.2016 -170 -0.0001 4,33,955 0.1947

Add: Market Purchase 26.08.2016 1,707 0.0008 4,35,662 0.1954

Add: Market Purchase 02.09.2016 1,22,471 0.0549 5,58,133 0.2504

Less: Market Sale 09.09.2016 -11,268 -0.0051 5,46,865 0.2453

Add: Market Purchase 16.09.2016 3,140 0.0014 5,50,005 0.2467

Less: Market Sale 23.09.2016 -49,479 -0.0222 5,00,526 0.2245

Less: Market Sale 30.09.2016 -29,227 -0.0131 4,71,299 0.2114

Less: Market Sale 07.10.2016 -5,248 -0.0024 4,66,051 0.2091

Add: Market Purchase 14.10.2016 3,79,019 0.1700 8,45,070 0.3791

Add: Market Purchase 21.10.2016 14,315 0.0064 8,59,385 0.3855

Less: Market Sale 28.10.2016 -6,615 -0.0030 8,52,770 0.3825

Add: Market Purchase 04.11.2016 2,244 0.0010 8,55,014 0.3836

Less: Market Sale 11.11.2016 -3,643 -0.0016 8,51,371 0.3819

Add: Market Purchase 18.11.2016 14,532 0.0065 8,65,903 0.3884

Add: Market Purchase 25.11.2016 795 0.0004 8,66,698 0.3888

Less: Market Sale 02.12.2016 -6,030 -0.0027 8,606,68 0.3861

Less: Market Sale 09.12.2016 -13,683 -0.0061 8,46,985 0.3800

Add: Market Purchase 16.12.2016 3,956 0.0018 8,50,941 0.3817

Less: Market Sale 23.12.2016 -22,824 -0.0102 8,28,117 0.3715

Less: Market Sale 31.12.2016 -329 -0.0001 8,27,788 0.3713

Less: Market Sale 06.01.2017 -32,757 -0.0147 7,95,031 0.3566

Less: Market Sale 13.01.2017 -1,84,633 -0.0828 6,10,398 0.2738

Less: Market Sale 20.01.2017 -1,80,299 -0.0809 4,30,099 0.1929

Add: Market Purchase 27.01.2017 2,781 0.0012 4,32,880 0.1942

Less: Market Sale 03.02.2017 -12,092 -0.0054 4,20,788 0.1888

Add: Market Purchase 10.02.2017 5,004 0.0022 4,25,792 0.1910

Add: Market Purchase 17.02.2017 5,831 0.0026 4,31,623 0.1936

Add: Market Purchase 24.02.2017 18,127 0.0081 4,49,750 0.2018

Add: Market Purchase 03.03.2017 14,604 0.0066 4,64,354 0.2083

Add: Market Purchase 10.03.2017 34,063 0.0153 4,98,417 0.2236

Add: Market Purchase 17.03.2017 13,342 0.0060 5,11,759 0.2296

Add: Market Purchase 24.03.2017 1,03,700 0.0465 6,15,459 0.2761

Less: Market Sale 31.03.2017 -18,714 -0.0084 5,96,745 0.2677

At the End of the year (or on the date of separation, 
if separated during the year)

NA NA 5,96,745 0.2677
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(v) Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel:

Sl. 
No.

Shareholding at the 
beginning of the year

Cumulative Shareholding 
during the year

For Each of the Directors and KMP No. of 
shares

% of total shares of 
the company

No. of 
shares

% of total shares of 
the company

1. Mr. Kaushik Dutta (At the beginning of 

the year)

4,000 0.002 - -

Add: - - - -

Less: - - - -

At the End of the year 4,000 0.002

Key Managerial Personnel

- - - -

V. INDEBTEDNESS

Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for payment (` in Lacs)

Secured Loans 
excluding deposits

Unsecured 
Loans

Deposits Total
Indebtedness

Indebtedness at the beginning of the financial year
i) Principal Amount
ii) Interest due but not paid
iii) Interest accrued but not due

27,563.92
-

220.37

29,918.40
-

223.77

-
-
-

57,482.32
-

444.14

Total (i+ii+iii) 27,784.29 30,142.17 - 57,926.46

Change in Indebtedness during the financial year
-1,198.92 9,140.70 7,941.78

Net Change -1,198.92 9,140.70 7,941.78

Indebtedness at the end of the financial year
i) Principal Amount
ii) Interest due but not paid
iii) Interest accrued but not due

26,365.00
-

 149.09

39,059.10
-

312.53

65,424.10
-

 461.62 

Total (i+ii+iii) 26,514.09 39,371.63 65,885.72

VI. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

A. Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-time Directors and/or Manager: (` In Lacs)

Sl. 
No.

Particulars of Remuneration Name of MD/
WTD/ Manager

Total Amount

Mr. Premkumar 
Seshadri

1. Gross salary
(a) Salary as per provisions contained in section 17(1) of the Income-

tax Act, 1961
(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) Income-tax Act, 1961
(c) Profits in lieu of salary under section 17(3) Income- tax Act, 1961

-
-

-

-
-

-

2. Stock Option - -

3. Sweat Equity - -

4. Commission

- as % of profit
- others, specify...

-
-

-
-

5. Others, please specify - -

Total (A) - -

Ceiling as per the Act NA
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B. Remuneration to other directors: (` in Lacs)

Sl. 
No.

Particulars of Remuneration Fee for attending 
board /committee 

meetings

Commission Others, 
please specify

Total
Amount

1. Independent Directors

Dr. Pradeep Kumar Khosla 2.25 - - 2.25

Ms. Sangeeta Talwar 19.50 - - 19.50

Mr. Kaushik Dutta 15.00 - - 15.00

Mr. Dhirendra Singh 18.00 - - 18.00

Mr. Sanjeev Sharma* 3.75 - - 3.75

Ms. Ritu Arora** 2.25 - - 2.25

Total (1) 60.75

2. Other Non-Executive Directors

Dr. Nikhil Sinha - - - -

Mr. V.N. Koura - - - -

Mr. Pawan Kumar Danwar - - - -

Mr. Dilip Kumar Srivastava - - - -

Total (2)

Total (B)=(1+2) -

Total Managerial Remuneration - -  

Overall Ceiling as per the Act ` 1,00,000 per Board/ 
Committee meeting

*Mr. Sanjeev Sharma, Independent Director, has resigned from the directorship of the Company w.e.f. 13th March, 
2017

**Ms. Ritu Arora started getting the sitting fees for the Board/Committee meeting held on and after 31st January, 
2017.

C. REMUNERATION TO KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL OTHER THAN MD/MANAGER/WTD (` in Lacs)

Sl. 
No.

Particulars of Remuneration Key Managerial Personnel

Mr. S. G. Murali
CFO

Mr. Sushil Kumar Jain
Company Secretary

Total

1. Gross salary
(a) Salary as per provisions contained in 

section 17(1) of the Income-tax Act, 1961
(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) Income-tax 

Act, 1961
(c) Profits in lieu of salary under section 17(3) 

Income-tax Act, 1961

237.06

10.25

43.06

3.28

280.12

13.53

2. Stock Option - - -

3. Sweat Equity - - -

4. Commission

- as % of profit
- others, specify...

-
-

-
-

-
-

5. Others, please specify - - -

Total  247.31 46.34 293.65

mayur.dm
Highlight

mayur.dm
Highlight

mayur.dm
Highlight

mayur.dm
Highlight

mayur.dm
Highlight
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VII. PENALTIES/PUNISHMENT/COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES:

Type Section of the 
Companies Act

Brief 
Description

Details of Penalty/ 
Punishment/ 

Compounding fees 
imposed

Authority [RD/
NCLT/COURT]

Appeal made, 
if any (give 

Details)

A. COMPANY

Penalty - - - - -

Punishment - - - - -

Compounding - - - - -

B. DIRECTORS

Penalty - - - - -

Punishment - - - - -

Compounding - - - - -

C. OTHER OFFICERS IN DEFAULT

Penalty - - - - -

Punishment - - - - -

Compounding - - - - -
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Information Regarding Employee Stock Option Scheme

The details of the options granted under the HCL Infosystems Limited, Employee Stock Option Scheme 2000 (Scheme 
2000) and Employee Stock Based Compensation Plan 2005 (Scheme 2005) as on 31st March, 2017 are given below:-

Employee Stock Option Scheme 2000 (Scheme 2000)

Options Granted : 31,90,200 which confer a right to get 1 equity share of `10/- each (each equity share of the face value of 
` 10/- has been sub divided into five equity shares of ` 2/- each).

Pricing Formula : The members of the Company at the Extra Ordinary General Meeting held on 25th February, 2000 
approved the exercise price as the price which will be not less than 85% of the fair market value of the 
shares on the date on which the Board of Directors of the Company approved the Grant of such options to 
the employees or such price as the Board of Directors may determine in accordance with the regulations 
and guidelines prescribed by the Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI). The members of the 
Company at the Annual General Meeting held on 21st October,2004, approved the amendment to the 
pricing formula that the options granted but not yet exercised by the employees or options that would 
be granted in future, would be at the market price on the date of grant. For this purpose the market price 
as specified in the amended provisions of SEBI (Employee Stock Option Scheme and Employee Stock 
Purchase Scheme) Guidelines, 1999 and the regulations/guidelines prescribed by SEBI or any relevant 
authority, from time to time to the extent applicable.

Variance of terms of 
options :

The pricing formula has been amended that the options granted but not yet exercised by the employees 
or options that would be granted in future, would be at the market price. For this purpose, the market 
price means the market price as specified in the amended provisions of SEBI (Employee Stock Option 
Scheme and Employee Stock Purchase Scheme) Guidelines, 1999 and the regulations/guidelines 
prescribed by SEBI or any relevant authority, from time to time to the extent applicable.

Options Details : Date of 
Grant

Grant 
Price (`)

Options 
Vested till 

31/03/2017

Options 
Exercised till 
31/03/2017

Options Lapsed/
Forfeited during year 

ended 31/03/2017

Options in 
force as on 
31/03/2017

10-Aug-00 289.00 Fully vested 13,63,708 - -

28-Jan-04 538.15 Fully vested 8,44,093 - -

25-Aug-04 603.95 Fully vested 57,892 - -

18-Jan-05 809.85 Fully vested 39,977 - -

15-Feb-05 809.30 Fully vested 2,400 - -

15-Mar-05 834.40 Fully vested 3,794 - -

15-Apr-05 789.85 Fully vested 960 - -

14-May-05 770.15 Fully vested 970 - -

15-Jun-05 756.15 Fully vested 3,565 - -

15-Jul-05 978.75 Fully vested 1,318 - -

13-Aug-05 1144.00 Fully vested - - -

15-Sep-05 1271.25 Fully vested - - -

15-Mar-07 648.75 Fully vested 7,300 - -

23-Jan-08 898.25 Fully vested - 4,171 -

18-Aug-09 627.25 Fully vested - - -

26-Oct-10 586.75 Fully vested - - -

2-Feb-11 516.50 Fully vested - - -

30-Jan-12 233.25 Fully vested - - -

18-Jun-12 202.00 Fully vested - - -

9-Sep-13 132.00 Fully vested 6,000 4,000 -

18-Sep-14 380.00 3,000 - - -

21-Nov-14 363.75 3,000 - 10,000 -

Total 23,31,977 18,171 -
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Vesting Details : 30%-12 months after the grant date
30%- 24 months after the grant date
40%- 42 months after the grant date

Employee Stock Based Compensation Plan 2005 (Scheme 2005)

Options Granted : 33,35,487 which confer a right to get 5 equity shares of ` 2/- each.

Pricing Formula : As per the resolution passed by members of the Company, through postal ballot, the result whereof was 
declared on 13th June, 2005, the options are granted at the market price on the date of grant or such price 
as the Board of Directors may determine in accordance with the Regulations and Guidelines prescribed 
by SEBI or other relevant authority from time to time. For this purpose, the market price as specified in 
the amended provisions of SEBI (Employee Stock Option Scheme and Employee Stock Purchase Scheme) 
Guidelines, 1999 and the regulations/guidelines prescribed by SEBI or any relevant authority from time 
to time to the extent applicable.

Variance of terms  No variation made.
of options :

Options Details : Date of 
Grant

Grant 
Price (`)

Options 
Vested till 

31/03/2017

Options 
Exercised till 
31/03/2017

Options Lapsed/
Forfeited during year 

ended 31/03/2017

Options in 
force as on 
31/03/2017

13-Aug-05 1144.00 Fully vested 9,074 - -

19-Oct-05 1157.50 Fully vested - - -

15-Nov-05 1267.75 Fully vested - - -

15-Dec-05 1348.25 Fully vested - - -

14-Jan-06 1300.00 Fully vested - - -

15-Feb-06 1308.00 Fully vested - - -

16-Mar-06 1031.00 Fully vested - - -

17-Apr-06 868.75 Fully vested - 160   - 

15-May-06 842.50 Fully vested - 810 -

15-Jun-06 620.50 Fully vested 430 540 -

17-Jul-06 673.75 Fully vested 80 310 -

15-Mar-07 648.75 Fully vested 7,860 35,180 -

23-Jan-08 898.25 Fully vested - 5,895 4,065

16-Aug-11 375.00 Fully vested - - -

17-Aug-11 375.00 Fully vested - 7,000 -

18-Jun-12 202.00 800 - - -

30-Jan-13 186.00 16,000 - - 16,000

14-Feb-13 178.00 - - - -

10-May-13 187.00 2,000 2,000 - -

Total 19,444 49,895 20,065

Vesting Details : 20%-12 months after the grant date

20%- 24 months after the grant date
20%- 36 months after the grant date
20%- 48 months after the grant date

20%- 60 months after the grant date

Other Details

S. 

No.

Description Scheme 2000 Scheme 2005

1. Total number of shares arising as a result of exercise of options :  1,16,59,885 equity 

shares of ` 2 each

97,221 equity shares of 

`2/- each

2. Money realised by exercise of options : ` 93,18,26,384.15 `1,61,74,774.80

3. Weighted average exercise price of options granted (`) : ` 653.85 ` 1044.55

4. Weighted average fair value of options granted (`) : ` 84.90 ` 148.95

5. Employee-wise details of options granted to:
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S. 
No.

Description Scheme 2000 Scheme 2005

(i) Senior Management :

- 20,000

- 2,500

(ii) Employees holding 5% or more of the total number of options 
granted during the year :

NIL NIL

(iii) Identified employees who were granted options during any one 
year equal to or exceeding 1% of the issued capital (excluding 
outstanding warrants and conversions) of the Company at the 
time of grant

NIL NIL

The fair value of each stock option granted under Employee Stock Option Plan 2000 and Employee Stock Based 
Compensation Plan 2005, as on the date of grant has been computed using Black-Scholes Option Pricing Formula and 
the model inputs are given as under:

Description Scheme 2000 Scheme 2005

Volatility : 31% to 68% 31% to 65%

Risk free rate : 6.25% to 6.783% 6.25% to 6.82%

Exercise Price : ` 132.00 to ` 1,271.25 ` 178.00 to ` 1,348.25

Time to Maturity (years) : 2.20 to 5.50 2.50 to 7.00

Dividend Yield : 0% to 32% 0% to 37%

Life of options : 8.5 Years 10 Years

Fair Value of options as at the grant date : ` 1.69 to ` 196.18 ` 0.00 to ` 268.16

Notes:

1. Volatility: Based on historical volatility in the share price movement of the Company.

2. Risk Free Rate: Being the interest rate applicable for maturity equal to the expected life of options based on yield curve for 
Government Securities.

3. Time to Maturity: Vesting period and volatility of the underlying equity shares have been considered for estimation.

4. Dividend Yield: Based on historical dividend payouts.
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Auditors’ Certificate

The Board of Directors
HCL Infosystems Limited
806, Siddharth 
96, Nehru Place
New Delhi -110019

Report of Statutory Auditors to HCL Infosystems Limited pursuant to requirement of Securities and Exchange Board of 
India (Share Based Employee Benefits) Regulations, 2014

1. This report is issued in accordance with the terms of our agreement dated May 2, 2017.

2. The accompanying Share based Employee Benefit Scheme Employee Stock Option Plan Scheme 2000 (hereinafter referred 
to as “the 2000 Plan”) and Employee Stock based Compensation Plan 2005 (hereinafter referred to as “the Plan”) contains 
provisions with regard to issuance of securities of HCL Infosystems Limited (hereinafter referred to as the “Company”) as 
approved by the shareholders of the Company, which we have initialed for identification purposes only.

Management’s Responsibility 

3. The Management of the Company is responsible for the implementation of the Scheme in accordance with the 
requirements of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits) Regulations, 2014 (hereinafter 
referred to as the “Regulations”) and in accordance with the special resolution passed by the shareholders of the Company 
under Section 192 A of the Companies Act, 1956 approving the Scheme on February 25, 2000 for “the 2000 Plan” and on 
June 13, 2005 for “the Plan”(hereinafter referred to as the “Shareholders Resolution”).

4. The Management is also responsible for ensuring that the Company complies with the requirements of the Equity Listing 
Agreement and for furnishing the relevant information to the Securities and Exchange Board of India.

Auditors’ Responsibility

5. Pursuant to the requirements of the Regulations it is our responsibility to obtain reasonable assurance and form an 
opinion as to whether the accompanying Scheme is implemented in compliance with the Regulations and Shareholders 
Resolution. For the purpose of our examination reliance was placed on audited financial statements for the year ended 
March 31, 2017 and books and records of the Company.

6. The financial statements referred to in paragraph 5 above, have been audited by us on which we issued an unmodified 
audit opinion vide our reports dated May 30, 2017. Our audits of these financial statements were conducted in accordance 
with the Standards on Auditing as referred to in section 143(10) of the Companies Act 2013 and other applicable 
authoritative pronouncements issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those standards require that we 
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material 
misstatement. Our audits were not planned and performed in connection with any transactions to identify matters that 
may be of potential interest to third parties.

7. We carried out our examination in accordance with the Guidance Note on Reports or Certificates for Special Purposes 

issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. The Guidance Note requires that we comply with the ethical 
requirements of the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. 

8. We have complied with the relevant applicable requirements of the Standard on Quality Control (SQC) 1, Quality Control 
for Firms that Perform Audits and Reviews of Historical Financial Information, and Other Assurance and Related Services 

Engagements.

Opinion

9. Based on our examination, as above, and according to the information and explanations given to us, we report that the 
Company has implemented the Scheme in accordance with the Regulations and the Shareholders’ Resolution.

Restriction on Use

10. Our work was performed solely to assist you in meeting your responsibilities in relation to the compliance of the Scheme 
with the Regulations. Our obligations in respect of this report are entirely separate from, and our responsibility and liability 
is in no way changed by any other role we may have (or may have had) as auditors of the Company or otherwise. Nothing 
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in this report, nor anything said or done in the course of or in connection with the services that are the subject of this 
report, will extend any duty of care we may have in our capacity as auditors of the Company.

11. This report is addressed to and provided to the Board of Directors of the Company pursuant to Regulation 13 of the 
Regulations solely to enable the Board of Directors of the Company to place it before the shareholders at the ensuing 
annual general meeting of the Company and should not be used by any other person or for any other purpose. Price 
Waterhouse do not accept or assume any liability or duty of care for any other purpose or to any other person to whom 
this report is shown or into whose hands it may come save where expressly agreed by our prior consent in writing.

 For Price Waterhouse
 Firm Registration Number: 301112E
 Chartered Accountants

 Avijit Mukerji
Place: Noida  Partner
Date: May 30, 2017 Membership Number: 056155
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Report On Corporate Governance

1. COMPANY’S PHILOSOPHY ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE:

The Company firmly believes that good corporate governance practices ensure efficient conduct of the affairs of the 
Company while upholding the core values of transparency, integrity, honesty and accountability and help the Company in 
its goal to maximize value for all its stakeholders.

The Company adopts and adheres to the best recognized corporate governance practices and continuously strives to 
better them.

The Company is in compliance with the requirements of the guidelines on corporate governance stipulated in Securities 
and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

2. BOARD OF DIRECTORS:

(i) As on 31st March, 2017, the Board of Directors of the Company comprises of Ten Directors. Of the Ten Directors, Nine 
are Non-Executive Directors and Five are Independent Directors including Two Women Directors. The Composition 
of the Board is in conformity with Regulation 17(1) of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations 
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

(ii) None of the Directors on the Board is a member of more than 10 Committees or Chairman of more than 5 Committees 
as specified in Regulation 26(1) of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 across all the Public Companies in which he is a Director. Necessary disclosures 
regarding Committee position in other public companies as on 31st March, 2017 have been made by the Directors.

(iii) All the Independent Directors have confirmed that they meet the criteria as mentioned under Regulation 16(1)(b) of 
the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and 
Section 149 of the Companies Act, 2013 (Act). The maximum tenure of Independent Directors is in accordance with 
the Act.

(iv) The names and categories of the Directors on the Board, their attendance at Board Meetings held during the financial 
year 2016-17 and the last Annual General Meeting and the number of Directorship and Committee Chairmanship/
Memberships held by them in other public companies is given below. Other Directorship do not include directorship 
of private limited companies, foreign companies and companies incorporated under Section 8 of the Companies 
Act, 2013. Chairmanship/Membership of Board Committees includes only Audit Committee and Stakeholders’ 
Relationship Committee.

Names Category No of Board 
Meetings during 

2016-17

Whether 
attended last 

AGM held on 29th 
September, 2016

No. of Directorships 
in other public 

companies as on 
31st March, 2017

No. of Committee 
positions held in other 

public companies as 
on 31st March, 2017

Held Attended Chairman Member

Dr. Nikhil Sinha
(Chairman)

Non Independent & 
Non-Executive Director

8 6 Yes 2 - -

Mr. Premkumar Seshadri
(Executive Vice Chairman & 
Managing Director)

Executive Director 8 6 Yes 3 - 1

Mr. Dilip Kumar Srivastava Non Independent & 
Non-Executive Director

8 8 No 4 - -

Mr. Dhirendra Singh Independent & Non-
Executive Director

8 7 Yes 4 3 1

Mr. Kaushik Dutta Independent & Non-
Executive Director

8 8 Yes 8 - 5

Mr. Pawan Kumar Danwar Non Independent & 
Non-Executive Director

8 8 Yes 2 - 2

Dr. Pradeep K. Khosla* Independent & Non-
Executive Director

8 2 No - - -

Ms. Ritu Arora Independent & Non-
Executive Director

8 6 No - - -

Ms. Sangeeta Talwar Independent & Non-
Executive Director

8 8 No 4 - -

Mr. Sanjeev Sharma** Independent & Non-
Executive Director

7 5 Yes 2 1 1

Mr. V N Koura Non-Independent & 
Non-Executive Director

8 3 No 1 - -

*Dr. Pradeep K. Khosla resigned from Directorship of the Company w.e.f. 12th June, 2017.
**Mr. Sanjeev Sharma resigned from Directorship of the Company w.e.f. 13th March, 2017.
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(v) Eight Board Meetings were held during the financial year 2016-17 and the gap between two meetings did not exceed 
one hundred and twenty days. The dates on which the Board Meetings were held are as follows:

24/25th May, 2016 22nd July, 2016 30th July, 2016 

17th August, 2016 28th October, 2016 11th January, 2017

31st January, 2017 24th March, 2017

(vi) Necessary information as mentioned in Part A of Schedule II of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 has been placed before the Board for their consideration.

Some of the items discussed at the Board/Board Committees meetings are listed below:

a. Annual operating plans and budgets and all updates.

b. Capital budgets and all updates.

c. Quarterly Results for the Company and its operating divisions or business segments.

d. Minutes of meetings of Audit Committee and other Committees of the Board.

e.  The information on recruitment and remuneration of senior officers just below the level of board of directors, 
including appointment or removal of Chief Financial Officer and the Company Secretary, if any

f. Show cause, demand, prosecution notices and penalty notices which are materially important.

g. Details of any joint venture or collaboration agreement.

h.  Quarterly details of foreign exchange exposures and steps taken by management to limit the risks of adverse 
exchange rate movement, if material.

i. Non-compliance of any regulatory, statutory nature or listing requirements and shareholders service such as 

non-payment of dividend, delay in share transfer etc.

j. Discussion & review of Business Operations.

k. Advancing inter-corporate loan to subsidiaries.

l. Issue of corporate guarantees(s) on behalf of subsidiaries

m. Minutes of meetings of Board of Directors of subsidiary companies.

n. Review of operations of subsidiary companies.

o. Review of related party transactions.

p. Approval to make payment of remuneration by way of commission to Non Executive Director.

q. Review of statutory compliances.

3. COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD

(i) ACCOUNTS AND AUDIT COMMITTEE:

a. The Accounts and Audit Committee of the Company was constituted in August’ 1998.

b. The Committee is governed by a Charter.

c. The functions of the Audit Committee inter-alia include the following:

1. Recommending to the Board, the appointment, re-appointment, remuneration and terms of appointment 

and, if required, the replacement or removal of the auditors of the Company.

2. Approval of payment to statutory auditors for any other services rendered by the statutory auditors.

3. Oversight of the company’s financial reporting process and the disclosure of its financial information to 
ensure that the financial statement is correct, sufficient and credible.

4. To review and monitor the auditor’s independence and performance, and effectiveness of audit process.

5. Reviewing, with the management, the annual financial statements and auditor’s report thereon before 
submission to the board for approval, with particular reference to:

Matters required to be included in the Director’s Responsibility Statement to be included in the 
Board’s report under Companies Act.

Changes, if any, in accounting policies and practices and reasons for the same
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Major accounting entries involving estimates based on the exercise of judgment by management

Significant adjustments made in the financial statements arising out of audit findings

Compliance with listing and other legal requirements relating to financial statements

Disclosure of any related party transactions

Qualifications in the draft audit report.

6. Review, with the management, the quarterly financial statements before submission to the board for 
approval.

7. Examination of the financial statements and the auditors’ report thereon.

8. Evaluation of internal financial controls and risk management systems.

9. Reviewing, with the management, performance of statutory and internal auditors, and adequacy of the 
internal control systems.

10. Reviewing & monitoring, with the management, the statement of uses / application of funds raised 

through an issue (public issue, rights issue, preferential issue, etc.), the statement of funds utilized for 
purposes other than those stated in the offer document/prospectus/notice and the report submitted 
by the monitoring agency monitoring the utilisation of proceeds of a public or rights issue, and making 
appropriate recommendations to the Board to take up steps in this matter.

11. Approval or any subsequent modification of transactions of the company with related parties.

12. Scrutiny of inter-corporate loans and investments.

13. Valuation of undertakings or assets of the Company, wherever necessary.

14. Reviewing the adequacy of internal audit function, including the structure of the internal audit department, 
staffing and seniority of the official heading the department, reporting structure coverage and frequency 
of internal audit.

15. Discussion with internal auditors of any significant findings and follow up there on.

16. Reviewing the findings of any internal investigations by the internal auditors into matters where there is 
suspected fraud or irregularity or a failure of internal control systems of a material nature and reporting the 
matter to the board.

17. Discussion with statutory auditors before the audit commences, about the nature and scope of audit as 
well as post-audit discussion to ascertain any area of concern.

18. To look into the reasons for substantial defaults in the payment to the depositors, debenture holders, 
shareholders (in case of non payment of declared dividends) and creditors.

19. To review the functioning of the Whistle Blower mechanism

20. Approval of appointment of CFO (i.e., the whole-time Finance Director or any other person heading the 
finance function or discharging that function) after assessing the qualifications, experience & background, 
etc. of the candidate.

21. The Audit Committee shall mandatorily review the following information:

Management discussion and analysis of financial condition and results of operations;

Statement of significant related party transactions (as defined by the Audit Committee), submitted 
by management;

Management letters / letters of internal control weaknesses issued by the statutory auditors;

Internal audit reports relating to internal control weaknesses; and

The appointment, removal and terms of remuneration of the Chief internal auditor.

22. To perform any other function as may be assigned by the Board from time to time.

d. The composition, powers, roles and the terms of reference of the Committee are in terms of the requirement of 
Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 18 of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing 

Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. All the Committee members have reasonable 
knowledge of finance and accounting and two members possess financial and accounting expertise.
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e. The Composition of the Accounts and Audit Committee and details of meetings attended by its chairman/
members are given below:

Name Category No. of Meetings

Held Attended

Mr. Kaushik Dutta (Chairman) Independent & Non-executive 7 7

Mr. Dhirendra Singh Independent & Non-executive 7 7

Dr. Nikhil Sinha Non-Independent & Non-executive 7 6

Ms. Ritu Arora Independent & Non-executive 7 5

Ms. Sangeeta Talwar Independent & Non-executive 7 7

f.  The Audit Committee met Seven times during the financial year 2016-17 on the following dates:

24th May, 2016 30th June, 2016 29th July, 2016

28th October, 2016 11th January,2017 31st January, 2017

24th March, 2017

g. The previous Annual General Meeting of the Company was held on 29th September, 2016 and it was attended 
by the Chairman of the Committee.

h. The Company Secretary of the Company acts as Secretary to the Committee.

(ii) NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE:

a. The Nomination & Remuneration Committee was constituted in August 1998.

b. The Committee is governed by a Charter.

c. The terms of reference of the Committee inter alia includes to:-

Charter of the Committee:

The purpose of the Committee is to:

1. Manage the following set of activities with respect to members of the Board of Directors of the Company:

Appointment of Directors

- Formulate the criteria for determining qualification, positive attributes and independence of 
Directors

- Review and recommend potential candidates to the Board for appointment with due consideration 
to Board diversity

Evaluation of performance of the Directors of the Board

- Establish criteria for evaluation of Director’s performance

- Conduct evaluation and submit the report to Chairman of the Board (if necessary the committee may 

seek external consulting assistance in this matter)

Remuneration of Directors including Executive & Non-Executive Directors

- Recommend policy for approval by the Board

2. Manage the following set of activities with respect to Key Managerial Personnel viz. Executive Directors, 
Managing Director, Chief Executive Officer (CEO), Chief Financial Officer (CFO), Company Secretary of the 
Company and in future, such persons as recommended by the Board:

Establish and Review the performance scorecard for key managerial personnel for each financial year

Review and recommend compensation, incentive & bonus plans for MD/CEO and other Key Managerial 
Personnel on the basis of Performance evaluation outcomes

The committee should also review, guide and finalize succession planning for Key Managerial Personnel

3. Manage the following set of activities with respect to Senior Management of the Company:

Review the performance scorecard for the Senior Management for each financial year

Review and recommend to the Board the compensation, incentive & bonus plans for Senior Management 
as proposed by the CEO on the basis of his / her evaluation of the Performance outcomes of the Senior 
Management

The committee should also review, guide and finalize succession planning for Senior Management
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4. Other activities:

Wherever considered necessary, the committee may review matters such as Organizational Structure, HR 
Charter, proposal from the CEO on annual compensation plan, pay hikes and budgets across organization 
for all employees globally etc.

Review & recommend the Stock Option Plans

Approve the individual grant of options to employees and/or non-independent Directors

In case considered appropriate the Board may recommend a review of any other areas considered critical 
to performance of Business

d. The composition of the Nomination & Remuneration Committee and the details of meetings attended by its 
chairman/members are given below:

Name Category No. of Meetings

Held Attended

Mr. Dhirendra Singh (Chairman) Independent & Non-executive 5 5

Mr. Dilip Kumar Srivastava Non - Independent & Non-executive 5 5

Ms. Sangeeta Talwar Independent & Non-executive 5 5

e. The Committee met Five times during the financial year 2016-17 on the following dates:

24th May, 2016 24th June, 2016 28th October, 2016

11th January, 2017 24th March, ,2017

f. Compensation policy for Non-Executive Directors (NEDs):

Within the ceiling of 1% of the net profits of the Company computed under the applicable provisions of the 
Companies Act, 2013 and after obtaining the approval of the shareholders, the Non-executive Directors 
(other than Promoter Director) are paid a commission, the amount whereof is determined based on the policy 
adopted by the Company laying down the criteria relating to their positions on the Board and the various Board 
Committees. However, in view of the losses incurred by the Company during the year ended 31st March, 2017, the 
Board has decided that no commission be paid to Non-executive Directors for the year ending 31st March, 2017.

These Directors are also paid sitting fees at the rate of ` 75,000 for attending each meeting of the Board and the 
Board Committees. The sitting fees is paid only to the Independent Directors.

g. Details of remuneration paid / payable to all the Directors for the period from 1st April, 2016 to 31st March, 2017:

(` /Lacs)

Name Salary & 
Allowances

Perquisites Performance 
Linked Bonus

Commission Sitting Fees

Executive Director

Mr. Premkumar Seshadri NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL

Non-executive Directors

Dr. Nikhil Sinha NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL

Mr. V N Koura NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL

Mr. Dilip Kumar Srivastava NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL

Mr. Pawan Kumar Danwar NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL

Dr. Pradeep K. Khosla NIL NIL NIL NIL 2.25

Mr. Dhirendra Singh NIL NIL NIL NIL 18.00

Ms. Sangeeta Talwar NIL NIL NIL NIL 19.50

Mr. Kaushik Dutta NIL NIL NIL NIL 15.00

Mr. Sanjeev Sharma* NIL NIL NIL NIL 3.75

Ms. Ritu Arora** NIL NIL NIL NIL 2.25

* Mr. Sanjeev Sharma resigned from Directorship of the Company w.e.f. 13th March, 2017

** Ms. Ritu Arora started getting sitting fees for Board/Committees meetings held on and after 31st January, 2017

1. Mr. Premkumar Seshadri is not paid any remuneration by the Company.

2. The above remuneration excludes reimbursement of expenses on actual to the Directors for attending 
meetings of the Board/Committees.



57Annual Report 2016-17

h. Details of Stock Options issued to Directors:

The Company has not granted any options to any of the Director of the Company.

i. Period of contract of Executive Director:

Mr. Premkumar Seshadri, Managing Director: 3 Years from 1st January, 2015.

j. There were no pecuniary relationships or material, financial and commercial transactions of the Senior 
Management vis-à-vis the Company.

k. As on 31st March, 2017, Mr. Kaushik Dutta was holding 4,000 shares in the Company. No other Director was 
holding any shares of the Company as on 31st March 2017. There is not any relationship between the Directors 
of the Company.

(iii) STAKEHOLDERS RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE:

a. The Stakeholders Relationship Committee was constituted to oversee and review all matters connected 
with the transfer & transmission of Shares of the Company and the matters related thereto and redressal of 
Shareholders/Investors’ complaints.

b. The composition of the Stakeholders Relationship Committee and the details of meetings attended by its 
chairperson/members are given below:

Name Category No. of Meetings

Held Attended

Ms. Sangeeta Talwar 
(Chairperson)

Independent & Non-executive 4 4

Mr. Dhirendra Singh Independent & Non-executive 4 4

Mr. Premkumar Seshadri Non-Independent & executive 4 4

c. The Committee met four times during the financial year 2016-17 on the following dates:

24th May, 2016 29th July, 2016 28th October, 2016

31st January, 2017

d. Name, designation and address of Compliance Officer:

Mr. Sushil Kumar Jain
Company Secretary
HCL Infosystems Limited
E- 4,5,6, Sector 11,
NOIDA (U.P.) – 201301
Tel: 0120-2526490
Fax: 91 120 2523791

e. During the year under review, the Company received Three Complaints from SEBI/Stock Exchanges/MCA. The 
Complaint was redressed to the satisfaction of the shareholder. No complaint was pending either at beginning 

or at the end of the year. There were no shares pending for transfer as on 31st March, 2017.

(iv) OTHER COMMITTEES

a. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY COMMITTEE

1. In compliance with Section 135 of Companies Act, 2013, Corporate Social Responsibility Committee was 
constituted in 2014.

2. The Committee is governed by a Charter.

3. The terms of reference of the Committee inter alia includes to:-

To formulate and recommend to the Board, a CSR policy which shall indicate the activities to be 

undertaken by the Company;

To recommend the amount of expenditure to be incurred on the activities referred above;

To monitor the Corporate Social Responsibility Policy of the Company from time to time.

To undertake such other activities as it may deem expedient to discharge its functions or which can 
be assigned to it by the Board of Directors from time to time.
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4. The composition of the Corporate Social Responsibility Committee and the details of meetings attended 
by its chairperson/members are given below:

Name Category No. of Meetings

Held Attended

Ms. Sangeeta Talwar 
(Chairperson)

Independent & Non-executive 1 1

Mr. Pawan Kumar Danwar Non-Independent & Non-executive 1 1

Mr. Dilip Kumar Srivastava Non-Independent & Non-executive 1 1

b.  FINANCE COMMITTEE

1. The Company constituted a Committee of Director in 1999 and renamed as Finance Committee in 2011.

2. The Committee is governed by a Charter.

3. The terms of reference of the Committee inter alia includes to:-

Capital structure plans and specific equity and debt financings

Annual budgets and other financial estimates and provide its recommendations to the Board

Review the actual performance of the Company against the plans

Capital expenditure plans and specific capital projects

Evaluate the performance of and returns on approved capital expenditure

Customer financing

Mergers, acquisitions and divestitures

Evaluate the performance of acquisitions

Fresh/further Investment in subsidiaries / JVs / branches

Evaluate the performance of subsidiaries / JVs / branches

Plans and strategies for managing the foreign exchange exposure

Investment of surplus funds

Recommend dividend policy to the Board

Insurance coverage and program

Review the corporate guarantees / bonds provided by the Company either directly or through banks 
in connection with the Company’s business, to any third parties, and recommend the same to the 
Board

Approve opening / closing of bank accounts of the Company and change in signatories for operating 
the bank accounts.

Review of the total BG issued v/s BG Limits

4. The composition of the Finance Committee and the details of meetings attended by its chairperson/
members are given below:

Name Category No. of Meetings

Held Attended

Mr. Kaushik Dutta

(Chairperson)

Independent & Non-executive 5 5

Mr. Premkumar Seshadri Non-Independent & executive 5 3

Mr. Pawan Kumar Danwar Non-Independent & Non-executive 5 5

Ms. Ritu Arora Independent & Non-executive 5 4

c. TECHNOLOGY COMMITTEE

1. The Technology Committee was constituted in 2014.

2. The Committee is governed by a Charter.

3. The terms of reference of the Committee inter alia includes to:-

The Committee shall review and discuss with management the Company’s overall technology 
and innovation strategy, including objectives, strategic initiatives, investments and research and 
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development activities. Such review and discussions shall include, at the Committee’s election, 
(i) participating in and facilitating the strategic planning process with regard to technology and 
innovation; (ii) reviewing and analyzing technology budget support for corporate strategic initiatives; 
and (iii) in recognition of the need to respond quickly to a rapidly evolving market environment, 
assisting management in prioritizing technology support for corporate strategic initiatives.

The Committee shall consult with the Finance Committee in connection with the Finance Committee’s 
review and authorization of, or formulation of recommendations to the Board regarding, material 
acquisitions, dispositions, capital expenditures and long-term commitments, to the extent such 
actions relate to the Company’s technology and innovation strategy.

The Committee shall periodically monitor and evaluate the performance of the Company’s initiatives 
in support of its technology and innovation strategy, including the execution, consumer acceptance 
and integration of new products and services.

The Committee shall review and discuss with management, as appropriate, major technology risks 
and opportunities for the Company, and emerging issues and trends in the broader marketplace.

 The Committee may delegate authority to individual Committee members or such subcommittees 
as the Committee deems appropriate and shall review the actions of all such individuals or 
subcommittees as appropriate.

 The Committee may retain and terminate independent legal, financial or other advisers as it may 
deem necessary.

The Committee shall report to the Board regularly on its actions and deliberations and shall make 
recommendations, where appropriate, to the Board regarding the Company’s technology strategy, 
policies and practices.

4. The composition of the Technology Committee and the details of meetings attended by its chairperson/
members are given below:

Name Category No. of Meetings

Held Attended

Mr. Premkumar Seshadri
(Chairperson)

Non-Independent & executive 2 2

Dr. Nikhil Sinha Non-Independent & Non-executive 2 2

Dr. Pradeep Kumar Khosla Independent & Non-executive 2 1

4. INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS’ MEETING

During the period under review, the Independent Directors met on 24th March, 2017, inter alia, to discuss:

a. review the performance of non-independent directors and the Board as a whole;

b. review the performance of the Chairman of the Company, taking into account the views of executive directors and 
non-executive directors.

c. assess quality, quantity and timeliness of flow of information between the Company management and the Board 

that is necessary for the Board to effectively and reasonably perform their duties.

All the Independent Directors were present at the Meeting, except Dr. Pradeep Kumar Khosla and Ms. Ritu Arora who could 
not attend the meeting as they were not available in India.

5. FAMILIARIZATION PROGRAMMES FOR INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

During the year under review, no Independent Director was inducted on the Board of the Company. Apart of this the 
Company frequently organizes the familiarisation programme to update the Independent Directors on the business and 
operations of the Company.

The details of such familiarization programmes are posted on the website of the Company and can be accessed at 
https://www.hclinfosystems.com/investors/

6. CRITERIA/POLICY FOR APPOINTMENT OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT AND THEIR REMUNERATION

a. Criteria of appointment of Director

Qualification & Criteria

The Directors shall meet the criteria for qualification, experience and independence (in case of Independent 
Directors), as laid down by the Nomination & Remuneration Committee.
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The proposed appointee shall also fulfill the following requirements:

1. Shall possess a director’s identification number;

2. Shall not be disqualified under the Companies Act, 2013;

3. Shall provide his/her written consent to act as a Director;

4. Shall endeavour to attend all Board meetings and wherever he/she is appointed as a Board committee 
(“Committee”) member, the Committee meetings;

5. Shall abide by the Code of Conduct established by the Company for directors and senior management 
personnel;

6. Shall disclose his/her concern or interest in any company or companies or bodies corporate, firms, or other 
association of individuals including his/her shareholding at the time of appointment and the first meeting of 
the Board in every financial year and thereafter whenever there is a change in the disclosures already made;

7. Shall meet the requirements of the Companies Act, 2013 and Securities and Exchange Board of India(Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 concerning independence of directors, in the case 
of appointment of Independent Directors;

8. Such other requirements as may be prescribed, from time to time, under the Companies Act, 2013 and other 
relevant laws.

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC) shall evaluate each individual with the objective of having a 
Board that best enables the success of the Company’s business.

Vacation of office of Director

The office of Director shall be deemed to be vacated as per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

b. Criteria of appointment of Senior Management

The following criteria are adopted for appointment of the Senior Management:

1. There has to be a clear vacancy / requirement for the job for which the candidate (internal / external) is 
considered. The position should be cleared by the CPO & Managing Director.

2. The job description / responsibilities/ reporting relationships must be clearly defined.

3. The candidate being considered must be a known functional expert in the relevant field of work.

4. The Senior Management candidate shall be interviewed by CPO, MD and by the panel decided by CPO & MD.

5. The appointment of the final shortlisted candidate must also be approved by the Departmental Heads/CPO & 
MD.

Senior Management Personnel shall abide by the Code of Conduct established by the Company.

The NRC shall have discretion to consider and fix any other criteria or norms for selection of the most suitable 
candidate(s).

c. Criteria for Determining Qualifications, Positive Attributes and Independence of a Director

1. Qualification for appointment of directors (including Independent Director)

Persons of eminence, standing and knowledge with significant achievements in business, professions 

and/or public service.

Their skills, experience and knowledge in one or more fields of finance, law, management, sales, marketing, 
administration, research, corporate governance, operations or other disciplines related to the Company’s 
business.

As per the applicable provisions of Companies Act 2013, Rules made thereunder and Securities and 
Exchange Board of India(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee shall have discretion to consider and fix any other criteria or 
norms for selection of the most suitable candidate(s).

2. Positive attributes of Directors (including Independent Directors):

Directors are to demonstrate integrity, credibility, trustworthiness, ability to handle conflict constructively, 
and the willingness to address issues proactively.
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Willingness to devote sufficient time and attention to the Company’s business and discharge their 
responsibilities.
To assist in bringing independent judgment to bear on the Board’s deliberations especially on issues of 
strategy, performance, risk management, resources, key appointments and standards of conduct.
Ability to develop a good working relationship with other Board members and contribute to the Board's 
working relationship with the senior management of the Company.
To act within their authority, assist in protecting the legitimate interests of the Company, its shareholders 
and employees.
To exercise his/her responsibilities in a bona-fide manner in the interest of the Company.
To assist the Company in implementing the best corporate governance practices.
To maintain confidential information, including commercial secrets, technologies, advertising and sales 
promotion plans, unpublished price sensitive information, unless such disclosure is expressly approved by 
the Board or required by law.
Independent Directors to meet the requirements of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Rules made 
thereunder and Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015.

3. Independence of Independent Directors-

An Independent director should meet the requirements of the Companies Act, 2013 and Securities and Exchange 
Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 concerning independence 
of directors.

d. Remuneration Policy

1. Key principles of the Policy

While designing compensation for Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management, the following 
set of principles act as guiding factors:

Aligning key executive and board remuneration with the long term interests of the Company and its 
shareholders;

Minimize complexity and ensure transparency;

Link compensation to long term strategy and annual business performance of the Company.

Promotes a culture of meritocracy and is linked to key performance and business drivers.

Reflective of line expertise, market competitiveness so as to attract the best talent.

In evaluating the suitability of individual Board members, the Committee will take into account multiple 
factors, including their general understanding of the business, education, professional background, 
personal achievements, etc. Few important criteria against which each prospective candidate will also be 
evaluated are personal and professional ethics, integrity and values.

Conduct a review of remuneration on a periodic basis to ensure directors of the Company are compensated 
effectively in a manner consistent with the business strategy of the Company, and to further ensure 

that the Company will be able to attract, retain and reward those who contribute to the success of the 
Company.

2. Remuneration Policy for Executive Directors

The remuneration paid to Executive Directors is recommended by the Committee and approved by 
the Board in the Board meeting, subject to the subsequent approval by the shareholders at the general 

meeting and such other authorities, as the case may be.

At the Board meeting, only the Non-Executive and Independent Directors participate in the item 
approving the remuneration paid to the Executive Directors. The remuneration is arrived at by considering 

various factors such as qualification, experience, expertise, prevailing remuneration in the industry and 
the financial position of the Company. The elements of the remuneration and limits are pursuant to the 
sections 178 and 197 of the Act, read with schedule V to the Act and Securities and Exchange Board of 

India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

The Board on the recommendation of the, Committee shall also review and approve the remuneration 
payable to the Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) of the Company.
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The remuneration structure to the Executive Directors and the KMP shall interalia include the following 
components as:-

- basic pay,

- perquisite & allowances,

- stock options,

-  annual performance bonus, and

-  retiral benefits

In determining the remuneration (including the fixed increment and performance bonus) the Committee 
shall ensure/ consider the following:

- the relationship of remuneration and performance benchmarks is clear;

- balance between fixed and incentive pay reflecting short and long term performance objectives is 
appropriate as per the working of the Company and its goals;

- responsibility required to be shouldered by the Executive Director, the industry benchmarks and the 
current trends;

- Company’s performance vis-à-vis the annual budget achievement and individual performance vis-a-
vis the KRAs / KPIs.

3. Remuneration policy for Non- Executive & Independent Directors

The Non-Executive Directors shall be entitled to receive remuneration by way of sitting fees, reimbursement of 
expenses for participation in the Board / Committee meetings and commission as detailed hereunder:

A Non-Executive Director shall be entitled to receive sitting fees for each meeting of the Board or  attended 
by them, of such sum as may be approved by the Board of Directors within the overall limits prescribed 
under the Companies Act, 2013 and The Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial 
Personnel) Rules, 2014;

A Non-Executive Director will also be entitled to receive commission on an annual basis, of such sum as 
may be approved by the Board on the recommendation of the Committee subject to approval from the 
shareholders.

The total commission payable to the Non-Executive Directors shall not exceed 1% of the net profit of the 
Company;

The commission shall be payable on prorata basis to those Directors who occupy office for a part of the 
year.

The Independent Directors of the Company shall not be entitled to participate in the Stock Option Scheme 
of the Company.

4. Remuneration policy for Key Managerial Personnel/Senior Management & Other Employees

The Key Managerial Personnel /senior management & other employees shall be paid remuneration basis 
their employment agreement with the Company.

Performance of Key Managerial Personnel/senior management & other employees shall be evaluated 

periodically against the defined & agreed Key Result Areas aligned to business & organization objectives 
transparently.

The Remuneration for Key Managerial Personnel/senior management & other employees shall include 

fixed and performance bonus/ variable, balancing the short and long term performance objectives, scope 
of the role; appropriate as per the working of the Company and its goals.

Schemes detailing the performance parameters & metrics for Key Managerial Personnel/senior 
management & other employees to earn their bonus/ variable shall be documented & made available for 
them to read & comprehend.

Any changes in the remuneration value or structure for Key Managerial Personnel/senior management & 
other employees shall be in accordance to applicable employment law & will be communicated in writing 
to them.
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7. PERFORMANCE EVALUATION

Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and Securities and Exchange Board of India(Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, a formal annual performance evaluation has been done by the Board of its 
own performance, the Directors individually as well as the evaluation of its Committees.

The Company had appointed an external agency to assist in drafting the questionnaires for the evaluation of the Board, 
Committees and Individual directors. The structured questionnaires were circulated to all the Directors, requesting them 

to fill and return the duly filled questionnaires to the Company. Based on the feedbacks received from Directors, the Board 
completed the evaluation of the Board as a whole, the Committees of the Board and the Individual Directors including 
Independent Directors.

Independent Directors in their separate meeting have reviewed the performance of non-independent directors and the 
Board as a whole. They also reviewed the performance of the Chairperson of the Company.

8. CODE OF BUSINESS CONDUCT AND ETHICS FOR DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT:

The Company has adopted a comprehensive Code of Conduct for its Directors and Senior Management, which lays the 
standards of business conduct, ethics and governance.

The Code has been circulated to all the members of the Board and Senior Management and they have affirmed compliance 
of the same.

The declaration signed by the “Executive Vice Chairman & MD” is given below:

“I hereby confirm that:

The Company has obtained from all the members of the Board and Senior Management, affirmation that they have 
complied with the Code of Conduct for Directors and Senior Management in respect of the financial year 2016-17.”

 Sd/-
 Premkumar Seshadri
 Executive Vice Chairman & MD

9. UNLISTED SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES:

The Company has Thirteen unlisted subsidiaries as on 31st March, 2017 as under:

S. No. Name of the Company Date of Incorporation / Acquisition

1. Digilife Distribution and Marketing Services Limited 19th March, 2008

2. HCL Services Limited
(formerly known as HCL Care Limited)

28th September, 2012

3. HCL Learning Limited 28th September, 2012

4. HCL Infotech Limited
(formerly known as HCL System Integration Limited)

28th September, 2012

5. Pimpri Chinchwad eServices Limited 21st September, 2010

6. HCL Computing Products Limited 12th July, 2012

7. HCL Infosystems MEA FZE, Dubai (acquired) 4th July, 2010

8. HCL Infosystems LLC, Dubai (acquired) 4th July, 2010

9. HCL Infosystems MEA LLC Abu Dhabi (acquired) 4th July, 2010

10. HCL Insys Pte. Limited, Singapore 17th December, 2009

11. HCL Investments Pte. Limited, Singapore 29th November, 2010

12. HCL Touch Inc., US 29th August, 2011

13. HCL Infosystems Qatar WLL (acquired) 26th January, 2012

Note:

HCL Infosystems South Africa (Pty) Limited, South Africa, the erstwhile wholly owned subsidiary ceased to step down on 
deregistration by Companies and Intellectual Property Commission w.e.f. 4th January, 2017

The Audit Committee reviewed the financial statements of the unlisted subsidiary companies. The Minutes of the Board 
and Committee Meetings of the unlisted subsidiary companies are regularly placed before the Board. The Board also 
review the statement of all significant transaction and arrangement entered into by the unlisted subsidiary companies. 
Presently the company is having a policy on Subsidiaries which is posted on the website of the Company and can be 

assessed at https://www.hclinfosystems.com/investors/
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10. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

All the related party transactions as defined under the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 23 of Securities and Exchange 
Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 entered during the financial year 2016-
17 were in the ordinary course of business and at arm’s length. The Audit Committee has approved all the related party 
transactions for the financial year 2016-17. The Company has not entered into any contract/arrangement/transaction with 
related parties which could be considered material in accordance with the policy of the Company on materiality of related 
party transactions.

The Board of Directors of the Company has on the recommendation of the Audit Committee, adopted a Related Party 
Transactions Policy in compliance with the applicable provisions of the Companies Act 2013 and the Listing Regulations. 
The said Policy is posted on the website of the Company and can be assessed at https://www.hclinfosystems.com/
investors/

All Related Party Transactions are placed before the Audit Committee and also the Board for approval.

11. VIGIL MECHANISM/WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY

Pursuant to the provisions of section 177(9) & (10) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 22 of Securities and Exchange 
Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, a Vigil Mechanism/ Whistle Blower 
Policy for Directors and employees to report concerns about unethical behaviour, actual or suspected fraud or violation 

of the Company’s code of conduct or ethics policy. No person has been denied access to the Chairman of the Audit 
Committee. The said policy is posted on the website of the Company and can be assessed at https://www.hclinfosystems.
com/investors/

12. PROHIBITION OF INSIDER TRADING

As Per SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015, the Company had adopted the revised Code of Conduct for 
internal Procedures and to regulate, monitor and report trading by Insiders.

13. GENERAL BODY MEETINGS:

(i) The last three Annual General Meetings were held as under:

Financial Year Date Time Location

2015-16 29th September, 2016 10:00 A.M. Kamani Auditorium, 1, Copernicus Marg, New Delhi- 110001

2014-15 19th November, 2015 10:00 A.M. FICCI Auditorium, 1, Tansen Marg, New Delhi-110001

2013-14 12th November, 2014 10:30 A.M FICCI Auditorium, 1, Tansen Marg, New Delhi-110001

(ii) Special resolutions which were passed at last three AGMs are as follows:

29th September, 2016

Approval for offer or invitation to subscribe to Redeemable Non- Convertible Debentures on Private Placement 
Basis

19th November, 2015

No Special Resolution was passed

12th November, 2014

To continue payment of remuneration on existing basis to Mr. Harshavardhan Madhav Chitale, Managing 
Director & CEO.

14. POSTAL BALLOT

No resolution had been approved through Postal Ballot during the year.

15. MD/CFO CERTIFICATION:

The Certificate as stipulated in Regulation 17(8) of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 was placed before the Board along with the financial statements for the 
financial year ended 31st March, 2017 and the Board reviewed the same.

16. DISCLOSURES:

(i) The Company has complied with the requirements of the Stock Exchanges/SEBI/any Statutory Authority on all 
matters related to capital markets during the last three years. There are no penalties or strictures imposed on the 
Company by Stock Exchanges or SEBI or any statutory authorities relating to the above.
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(ii) A qualified Practicing Company Secretary carried out a Secretarial Audit to reconcile the total admitted capital with 
National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) and Central Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL) and the total 
issued and listed capital. The secretarial audit report confirms that the issued/paid-up capital is in agreement with the 
total number of shares in physical form and the total number of dematerialized shares held with NSDL and CDSL.

(iii) As per risk management policy adopted by the Company, the Company had identified the risk which in the opinion 
of the Board may threaten the existence of the Company. The top management of the Company takes periodic 
review of the business processes and environment risk analysis reports by the respective business heads. It covers 
identifying, analysing, planning, monitoring, controlling and preventing risks.

(iv) Pursuant to Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No. 9 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration 
of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, Secretarial Audit has been done by M/s VKC & Associates, a firm of Practicing 
Company Secretaries.

(v) The Company has fulfilled the following non-mandatory requirements as prescribed in Part E of Schedule II Regulation 
27(1) of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 :

a. The Company has appointed separate persons to the post of Chairperson and Managing Director.

b. The statutory financial statements of the Company are unqualified.

c. Internal Auditor can directly report to the Audit Committee.

17. MEANS OF COMMUNICATION:

(i) Quarterly/Half Yearly/Annual Results: The Quarterly, Half Yearly and Annual Results of the Company are sent to 
the Stock Exchanges immediately after they are approved by the Board.

(ii) News Releases: The Quarterly, Half Yearly and Annual Results of the Company are published in the prescribed format 
within 48 hours of the conclusion of the meeting of the Board in which they are considered, at least in one English 
newspaper circulating in the whole or substantially the whole of India and in one Vernacular newspaper of the State 
where the Registered Office of the Company is situated.

The quarterly financial results during the financial year 2016-17 were published as detailed below:

Quarter
(FY 2016-17)

Date of Board Meeting Date of Publication Name of the Newspaper

1 24/25th May, 2016 26th May, 2016 Business Standard

2 30th July, 2016 1st August, 2016 Business Standard 

3 28th October, 2016 29th October, 2016 Business Standard 

4 31st January, 2017 1st February, 2017 Business Standard 

(iii) Website: The Company’s website www.hclinfosystems.com contains a separate section on ‘Investors’ where the 
latest shareholders information is available. The Quarterly, Half Yearly and Annual Results are regularly posted on the 
website. Press releases made by the Company from time to time and presentations made to investors and analysts 
are displayed on the Company’s website.

(iv) NSE Electronic Application Processing System (NEAPS), BSE Corporate Compliance & Listing centre:

National Stock Exchange of India Limited (NSE) and BSE Limited (BSE) have developed web based applications for 
Corporates. Periodical compliances like financial results, shareholding Pattern and corporate governance report etc. 
are also filed electronically on NEAPS/ BSE Listing centre.

(v) Annual Report: Annual Report containing, inter alia, Audited Annual Accounts, Consolidated Financial Statements, 
Directors’ Report, Auditors’ Report and other important information is circulated to members and others entitled 

thereto. The Management Discussion and Analysis (MDA) Report forms part of the Annual Report. The Annual Report 
is also available on the Company’s website.

(vi) Reminders to Investors: Reminders for unpaid/unclaimed dividend are sent to the Shareholders as per records.

21. GENERAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INFORMATION:

(i) Annual General Meeting:

Date : Thursday, 14th September, 2017

Time : 10:00 A.M.

Venue : Kamani Auditorium, 1, Copernicus Marg, New Delhi- 110001
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(ii) The Company follows April to March year end.

(iii) Financial Calendar (Tentative Calendar for the financial year 2017-18):

Adoption of Results for the quarter ending 30th June, 2017 : 26th July, 2017

Adoption of Results for the quarter ending 30th September, 2017 : 25th October, 2017

Adoption of Results for the quarter ending 31st December, 2017 : 29th January, 2018

 Adoption of Results for the quarter ending 31st March, 2018 : 30th May, 2018

(iv) Date of Book Closure : 11th September, 2017 (Monday) to 14th September, 2017
(Thursday) (both days inclusive)

(v) Listing on Stock Exchanges : National Stock Exchange of India Limited
BSE Limited

(vi) Stock Codes/Symbol:

National Stock Exchange of India Limited : HCL-INSYS

BSE Limited : Physical Form – 179

  : Electronic Form – 500179

(vii) Market price data:

Month Company’s Share 
Price

High
(`)

Low
(`)

April, 2016 47.65 40.20

May, 2016 42.70 36.65

June, 2016 41.40 36.05

July, 2016 46.60 37.55

August, 2016 42.75 38.75

September, 2016 48.20 39.50

October, 2016 58.00 42.90

November, 2016 55.90 39.30

December, 2016 64.30 52.20

January, 2017 64.90 57.10

February, 2017 59.90 53.15

March, 2017 56.70 51.20

(source : The National Stock Exchange of India Ltd.)

(viii) Registrar and Transfer Agents (RTA):

Name & Address : M/s. Alankit Assignments Limited

205-208,Anarkali Complex
Jhanewalan Extension,
New Delhi-110055

Contact Person : Mr. J. K. Singla, Senior Manager 

Phone No. : 011-42541234,23541234

Fax No. : 23552001

E-Mail : rta@alankit.com

(ix) Share Transfer System:

Transfer of dematerialized shares is done through the depositories with no involvement of the Company. As regards 
transfer of shares held in physical form, the transfer documents can be lodged with Alankit Assignments Limited, the 

RTA of the Company, at their address mentioned above. Transfer of shares in physical form are normally processed 
within 10-15 days from the date of receipt, if the documents are complete in all respects.

(x) Shareholders’ Referencer:

The shareholders’ referencer is available on the Company’s website. Any shareholder who wishes to obtain copy of 

the same can send his request to the Company Secretary.
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(xi) Distribution of Shareholding as on 31st March, 2017:

No. of equity shares Shareholders Total Shares

Number (%) Number (%)

Upto 500 75,008 79.07 1,13,24,589 5.08

501-1000 9,624 10.15 81,28,824 3.65

1001-2000 4,944 5.21 77,54,025 3.48

2001-3000 1,762 1.86 46,19,275 2.07

3001-4000 768 0.81 28,06,731 1.26

4001-5000 807 0.85 38,99,787 1.75

5001-10000 1,008 1.06 77,77,955 3.49

10001 and above 936 0.99 17,66,08,443 79.22

Total 94,857 100.00 22,29,19,629 100.00

(xii) Shareholding pattern as on 31st March, 2017:

Category No. of shares Percentage (%)

Promoters / Promoters Group 12,93,77,844 58.04

Mutual Funds / UTI 15,750 0.01

NBFCs 2,16,950 0.10

Financial Institutions / Banks 44,36,565 1.99

Foreign Portfolio Investors 43,11,195 1.93

Bodies Corporate 1,43,34,208 6.43

Indian Public 6,72,69,694 30.17

NRI / OCBs/Foreign Body Corporate/Trust 29,57,423 1.33

TOTAL 22,29,19,629 100.00

(xiii) Dematerialization of shares:

The shares of the Company are compulsorily traded in dematerialized form and are available for trading on both the 
depositories in India i.e. NSDL & CDSL. As on 31st March, 2017, 98.63 % equity shares of the Company were held in 
dematerialized form.

The Company’s shares are regularly traded on the NSE and the BSE in electronic form.

Under the Depository system, the International Securities Identification Number (ISIN) allotted to the Company’s 
shares is INE 236A01020.

(xiv) The Company has not issued any GDRs/ADRs. There are no outstanding Warrants or Convertible instruments as on 
31st March, 2017.

(xv) Plant locations:

Plot Nos. 1, 2, 27 & 28,  Sector- 5,  I.I.E - Pant Nagar (SIDCUL-Rudrapur),  Distt.-Udham Singh Nagar,  Uttarakhand 
- 263 153

R.S. No: 107/5,6 & 7, Main road, Sedarapet, Pondicherry-605111 

(xvi) Address for Correspondence:

The shareholders may address their communication/suggestions/grievances/queries to the Registrar and Share 
Transfer Agents at the address mentioned above, or to:

The Company Secretary

HCL Infosystems Limited

E – 4, 5, 6, Sector – 11,
NOIDA (U.P.) – 201301.
Tel. No.: 0120-2520977,2526518, 2526519
Fax: 91-120-2523791
Email: cosec@hcl.com

(xvii) Company Website:

The Company has its website namely www.hclinfosystems.in. This provides detailed information about the Company, 
its subsidiaries, products and services offered, locations of its corporate office and various sales offices etc. It also 
contains updated information on the financial performance of the Company and procedures involved in completing 

various investors’ related transactions expeditiously. The quarterly results, annual reports and shareholding 
distributions etc. are updated on the website of the Company from time to time.



68 Annual Report 2016-17

Auditors’ Certificate regarding compliance of 
conditions of Corporate Governance 

To the Members of HCL Infosystems Limited

We have examined the compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance by HCL Infosystems Limited, for the year ended 
March 31, 2017 as stipulated in Regulations 17, 18, 19, 20, 21, 22, 23, 24, 25, 26, 27 and clauses (b) to (i) of sub-regulation (2) 
of regulation 46 and para C , D and E of Schedule V of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (collectively referred to as “SEBI Listing Regulations, 2015). 

The compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our examination 
was carried out in accordance with the Guidance Note on Certification of Corporate Governance, issued by the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of India and was limited to procedures and implementation thereof, adopted by the Company for 
ensuring the compliance of the conditions of Corporate Governance. It is neither an audit nor an expression of opinion on the 
financial statements of the Company. 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, we certify that the Company has 
complied with the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in the SEBI Listing Regulations, 2015.

We state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor the efficiency or effectiveness 
with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company. 

 For Price Waterhouse
 Firm Registration Number: 301112E
 Chartered Accountants

 Avijit Mukerji
Place : Noida  Partner
Date:  May 30, 2017 Membership Number: 056155
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Form No. MR-3

(For the Financial Year ended on 31st March, 2017)

[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No.9 of the Companies  
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To

The Members,

HCL INFOSYSTEMS LIMITED

CIN: L72200DL1986PLC023955

Registered Office Address: - 806 Siddharth, 96 Nehru Place New Delhi, 110019, India.

We have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to good 
corporate practices by HCL INFOSYSTEMS LIMITED (hereinafter called ‘the Company’). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a 
manner that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing our 

opinion thereon.

Based on our verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained 
by the Company and also the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during 
the conduct of secretarial audit, we hereby report that in our opinion, the Company has during the audit period covering the 
financial year ended on March 31, 2017 complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has 
proper Board- processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made 
hereinafter:

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the Company for 
the financial year ended on March 31, 2017 according to the provisions of:

(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder;

(ii) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made thereunder;

(iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder;

(iv) The Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder to the extent of Foreign 
Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial Borrowings;

(v) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI 
Act’): -

(a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011;

(b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015;

(c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015;

(d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2009;  

- Not Applicable

(e) The Securities and exchange board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits) Regulations, 2014;  

(f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt securities) Regulations, 2008; - Not Applicable

(g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993 
regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client;

(h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity shares) Regulations, 2009; - Not Applicable

(i) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buy back of securities) Regulations, 1998; - Not Applicable

(vi) The Company has identified following laws applicable specifically to the Company:

1. The Information Technology Act, 2000;

2. The Indian Copyright Act, 1957;

3. The Patents Act, 1970;

Secretarial Audit Report
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4. The Trade Marks Act, 1999;

5. The Legal Metrology Act, 2009.

We have also examined compliance with the applicable provisions of the following: -

(i) Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India.

(ii) The Listing Agreements entered into by the Company with BSE Limited and National Stock Exchange of India Limited.

During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations, Standards and 

Guidelines etc. mentioned above.

We further report that the Board of Directors of the Company has been duly constituted with proper balance of Executive 
Directors, Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors. The changes in the composition of the Board of Directors that 
took place during the period under review were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act.

Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on agenda were sent 
at least seven days in advance and in case of shorter notice, with due consent from the directors have been obtained and a 
system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for 
meaningful participation at the meeting.

Majority decision is carried through while the dissenting members’ views are captured and recorded as part of the minutes.

We further report that there are adequate systems and process in the company commensurate with the size and operations of 
the company to monitor and ensure compliances with the applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

We further report that during the audit period the Company has no specific event/action having major bearing on the 
Company’s affairs in pursuance of the above referred laws, rules, regulations, standards & guidelines, if any.

For VKC & Associates;
(Company Secretaries)

Date : 30th May, 2017 CS Mohit K Dixit

Place : Noida Partner ACS No. 49021, C P No. 17827

Note: This report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as ‘Annexure- A’ and forms an integral part of this 
report.
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‘Annexure - A’

To

The Members,

HCL INFOSYSTEMS LIMITED

CIN: L72200DL1986PLC023955

Registered Office Address: - 806 Siddharth, 96, Nehru Place, New Delhi, 110019, India.

Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter -

1. Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the company. Our responsibility is to express 
an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit.

2. We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance about the 
correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. The verification was done on test basis to ensure that correct facts 
are reflected in secretarial records. We believe that the processes and practices, we followed provide a reasonable basis for 
our opinion.

3. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of Accounts of the company.

4. Where ever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the compliance of laws, rules and 
regulations and happening of events etc.

5. The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards is the responsibility 
of management. Our examination was limited to the verification of procedures on test basis.

6. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the company nor of the efficacy or 
effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the company.

For VKC & Associates;
(Company Secretaries)

Date : 30th May, 2017 CS Mohit K Dixit
Place : Noida Partner ACS No. 49021, C P No. 17827
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TO 

The Members of HCL Infosystems Limited 
Report on the Standalone Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) Financial Statements

1. We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of HCL Infosystems Limited (“the Company”), which 
comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2017, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive 
Income), the Cash Flow Statement and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and a summary of the 
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Management’s Responsibility for the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements

2. The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the 
Act”) with respect to the preparation of these standalone Ind AS financial statements to give a true and fair view of the 
financial position, financial performance (including other comprehensive income), cash flows and changes in equity of 
the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting 
Standards specified in the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended) under Section 133 of the 
Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the 
Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection 
and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; 
and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for 
ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the 
standalone Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due 
to fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

3. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these standalone Ind AS financial statements based on our audit.

4. We have taken into account the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder including the accounting and 
auditing standards and matters which are required to be included in the audit report under the provisions of the Act and 
the Rules made thereunder.

5. We conducted our audit of the standalone Ind AS financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing 
specified under Section 143(10) of the Act and other applicable authoritative pronouncements issued by the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and pronouncements require that we comply with ethical requirements 
and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone Ind AS financial statements 
are free from material misstatement.

6. An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and the disclosures in the standalone 
Ind AS financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgment, including the assessment 

of the risks of material misstatement of the standalone Ind AS financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In 
making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal financial control relevant to the Company’s preparation 

of the standalone Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view, in order to design audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting policies used 
and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by the Company’s Directors, as well as evaluating the overall 

presentation of the standalone Ind AS financial statements.

7. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion 
on the standalone Ind AS financial statements. 

Opinion

8. In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid standalone 
Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so required and give a true and fair view 
in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 

31, 2017, and its loss (including other comprehensive income), its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year ended 
on that date.

Other Matter

9. The financial information of the Company for the nine months period ended March 31, 2016 and the transition date 
opening balance sheet as at July 1, 2015 included in these standalone Ind AS financial statements, are based on the 
previously issued statutory financial statements for the nine months period ended March 31, 2016 and for the year ended 

Annual Accounts - Parent Company
Independent Auditors’ Report
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June 30, 2015 prepared in accordance with the Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006 (as amended) which were 
audited by us, on which we expressed an unmodified opinion dated May 25, 2016 and August 20, 2015 respectively. The 
adjustments to the financial statements for the nine months ended March 31, 2016 for the differences in accounting 
principles adopted by the Company on transition to the Ind AS have been audited by us, on which we have expressed 
an unmodified opinion vide our report dated, January 31, 2017. The adjustments to the financial statements for the year 
ended June 30, 2015 for the differences in accounting principles adopted by the Company on transition to the Ind AS have 
been audited by us.

 Our opinion is not qualified in respect of this matter.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

10. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016, issued by the Central Government of India in terms of sub-
section (11) of section 143 of the Act (“the Order”), and on the basis of such checks of the books and records of the Company 

as we considered appropriate and according to the information and explanations given to us, we give in the Annexure B a 
statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

11. As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief 
were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it appears from 
our examination of those books.

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive income), the Cash Flow Statement 
and the Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone Ind AS financial statements comply with the Indian Accounting Standards 
specified under Section 133 of the Act.

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2017 taken on record by the 
Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2017 from being appointed as a director in 
terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act. 

(f )  With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company and the 
operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in Annexure A.

(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditors’ Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies 
(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our knowledge and belief and according to the 
information and explanations given to us:

i. The Company has disclosed the impact, if any, of pending litigations as at March 31, 2017 on its financial position 
in its standalone Ind AS financial statements – Refer Note 29 and 42; 

ii.  The Company has long-term contracts as at March 31, 2017 for which there were no material foreseeable losses. 
The Company did not have any long-term derivative contracts as at March 31, 2017; 

iii. There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the Investor Education and 
Protection Fund by the Company during the year ended March 31, 2017. 

iv. The Company has provided requisite disclosures in the financial statements as to holdings as well as dealings 
in Specified Bank Notes during the period from November 8, 2016 to December 30, 2016. Based on audit 

procedures and relying on the management representation we report that the disclosures are in accordance 
with books of account maintained by the Company and as produced to us by the Management – Refer Note 54.

  For Price Waterhouse
  Firm Registration Number: 301112E
  Chartered Accountants

  Avijit Mukerji
Place of the Signature : Noida Partner
Date : May 30, 2017 Membership Number: 056155



74 Annual Report 2016-17

Referred to in paragraph 11(f) of the Independent Auditors’ Report of even date to the members of HCL Infosystems Limited 
on the standalone Ind AS financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2017

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Act

1. We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of HCL Infosystems Limited (“the Company”) as of March 31, 
2017 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone Ind AS financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

2. The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal control 
over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the 
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of 
India (ICAI).These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that 
were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, 
the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting 
records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditors’ Responsibility

3. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls over financial reporting based on our audit. 
We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting 
(the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act to the extent 
applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of internal financial controls and both issued by 
the ICAI. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the 
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established 
and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects. 

4 Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls system 
over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included 
obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness 
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The 
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the 
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

5. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the 
Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

6. A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding 
the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally 
accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and 
procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions 
and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary 
to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts 
and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the 
company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or 
disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

7. Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility of collusion or 
improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, 
projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk 
that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the 
degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. 

Opinion

8. In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting 
and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2017, based on the internal 
control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control 
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India.

 For Price Waterhouse
 Firm Registration Number: 301112E
 Chartered Accountants

 Avijit Mukerji
Place of the Signature: Noida  Partner
Date : May 30, 2017 Number : 056155

Annexure A to Independent Auditors’ Report
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Annexure B to Independent Auditors’ Report

Referred to in paragraph 10 of the Independent Auditors’ Report of even date to the members of HCLI Infosystems 
Limited on the standalone Ind AS financial statements as of and for the year ended March 31, 2017

i.  (a) The Company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details and situation, of 
fixed assets.

(b) The fixed assets are physically verified by the Management according to a phased programme designed to cover all 
the items over a period of three years which, in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company 
and the nature of its assets. Pursuant to the programme, a portion of the fixed assets has been physically verified by 
the Management during the year and no material discrepancies have been noticed on such verification.

(c) The title deeds of immovable properties, as disclosed in Note 3 on fixed assets to the financial statements, are held in 

the name of the Company, except for the immovable property mentioned below.

Particulars Gross Block Net Block

Land and Building, Ambattur, Chennai 5.58 Crores 3.24 Crores

ii.  The physical verification of inventory have been conducted at reasonable intervals by the Management during the year. 
The discrepancies noticed on physical verification of inventory as compared to book records were not material.

iii. (a) The Company has granted unsecured loans, to one company covered in the register maintained under Section 189 
of the Act.

(b) In respect of the aforesaid loans, the terms and conditions under which such loans were granted are not prejudicial 
to the Company’s interest.

(c) In respect of the aforesaid loans, the schedule of repayment of principal and payment of interest has been stipulated, 
and the parties are repaying the principal amounts, as stipulated, and are also regular in payment of interest as 
applicable.

(d) In respect of the aforesaid loans, there is no amount which is overdue for more than ninety days.

iv. The Company has not granted any loans or made any investments, or provided any guarantees or security to the parties 
covered under Section 185 and 186. Therefore, the provisions of Clause 3(iv) of the said Order are not applicable to the 
Company.

v. The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public within the meaning of Sections 73, 74, 75 and 76 of the Act 

and the Rules framed there under to the extent notified.

vi. The Central Government of India has not specified the maintenance of cost records under sub-section (1) of Section 148 of 
the Act for any of the products of the Company.

vii. (a) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company examined by us, in our 
opinion, the Company is generally regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues in respect of value added tax and 
employees’ state insurance and is regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues, including sales tax, service tax, 

provident fund, income tax, duty of customs, duty of excise and other material statutory dues, as applicable, with the 
appropriate authorities.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company examined by us, there 
are no dues of service-tax, duty of customs as at March 31, 2017 which have not been deposited on account of a 
dispute. The particulars of dues of income tax, sales tax, value added tax and duty of excise as at March 31, 2017 
which have not been deposited on account of a dispute, are as follows:

Name of the statute Nature of 
dues

Amount
(Rs. In 
crores)

Amount 
deposited

(Rs. In crores)

Period to which 
the amount 

relates

Forum where the dispute is 
pending

Income Tax Act, 1961 Income Tax 3.00 - 2011-12 CIT (Appeal)

Income Tax Act, 1961 Income Tax 0.77 - 2012-13 CIT (Appeal)

Income Tax Act, 1961 Income Tax 2.41 - 2004-05

2005-06
2006-07

Assessing Officer/ Income Tax 
Appellate Tribunal
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Name of the statute Nature of 
dues

Amount
(Rs. In 
crores)

Amount 
deposited

(Rs. In crores)

Period to which 
the amount 

relates

Forum where the dispute is 
pending

Central Excise Act,
1944

Excise Duty 99.65 7.49 2002-2014 CESTAT /
Commissioner (Appeals)

Haryana Sales Tax, 1973 Sales Tax 0.20 - 2012-2013 Assessing Authority

Maharashtra Value 
Added Tax Act, 2002

Sales Tax 2.76 0.68 2005-2012 Joint Commissioner Appeal

M.P. Value Added Tax 
Act, 2002

Sales Tax 0.25 0.17 2011-2014 Joint Commissioner Appeal

Jharkhand Value 
Added Tax Act, 2005

Sales Tax 0.59 0.04 2011-2012 Joint Commissioner Appeal 

Bihar Value Added Tax 
Act, 2005

Sales Tax 9.64 5.26 2006-2007
2008-2015

Joint Commissioner Appeal

Orissa Value Added Tax 
Act, 2004

Sales Tax 0.17 0.01 2012-2014 Honorable High Court of 
Orissa/ Deputy commissioner 
Appeal (Bhubaneswar)

Karnataka Value Added 
Tax Act, 2003

Sales Tax 9.07 0.94 2006-2012 Deputy commissioner 
Appeal/ Honorable High 
Court of Karnataka/Tribunal

Andhra Pradesh Value 
Added Tax Act, 2005

Sales Tax 0.27 0.20 2006-2007
2008-2009

Deputy commissioner Appeal 
(Hyderabad)

Punjab General Sales 
Tax Act, 1948

Sales Tax 0.12 0.03 2007-2008 Deputy commissioner 
Appeals Punjab

Jammu & Kashmir 
Value Added Tax Act, 
2005

Sales Tax 2.71 0.04 2007-2008
2008-2009 

Deputy Commissioner 
Appeals Jammu

The Uttarakhand Value 
Added Tax Act-2005

Sales Tax - 0.37 2012-2013 Assessing Officer

Kerala General Sales Tax 
Act, 1963

Sales Tax 0.58 0.22 2007-2008
2008-2009
2009-2010
2010-2011
2011-2012
2013-2014
2014-2015
2016-2017

Commercial Tax Officer 

Rajasthan Sales Tax Act, 
1994

Sales Tax 178.17 71.67 2008-2015 Deputy Commissioner 
(Appeals) of Commercial 
Tax Jaipur / Tax board 

Commercial Tax Jaipur / Tax 
board / Commercial Tax Jaipur 
/ Hon’ble Rajasthan High 
Court

West Bengal Sales Tax 
Act, 1994

Sales Tax 13.97 1.26 2005-2006
2007-2012
2013-2014

Board of Sales Tax Kolkata / 
Sales Tax Tribunal, Kolkata 
/ Additional Commissioner 

(Appeals) of Sales Tax Kolkata

Tamil Nadu General 
Sales Tax Act, 1959

Sales Tax 0.59 6.64 2004-2005
2006-2008
2009-2016

Commercial Tax Officer 
Chennai / Deputy 
Commissioner (Appeals) of 
Sales Tax Chennai

Delhi Sales Tax Act, 1975 Sales Tax 16.71 0.27 2003-2004
2005-2006
2007-2014

Tribunal of Sales Tax Delhi 
/ Deputy Commissioner 
(Appeals) of Sales Tax Delhi/ 
Assistant Commissioner Sales 

Tax
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Name of the statute Nature of 
dues

Amount
(Rs. In 
crores)

Amount 
deposited

(Rs. In crores)

Period to which 
the amount 

relates

Forum where the dispute is 
pending

U.P. Value Added Tax 
Act-2008

Sales Tax 20.35 6.32 2007-2016 Tribunal Commercial 
Tax, Noida/ Additional 
Commissioner (Appeals) 
of Commercial Tax/ Noida/ 
Hon’ble High court Allahabad

Uttar Pradesh Trade Tax 
Act, 1948

Sales Tax 0.83 0.57 2003-2007 Tribunal Commercial 
Tax, Noida/ Additional 
Commissioner (Appeals) 
of Commercial Tax/ Noida/ 
Hon’ble High court Allahabad

viii. According to the records of the Company examined by us and the information and explanation given to us, the Company 
has not defaulted in repayment of loans or borrowings to any financial institution or bank or Government or dues to 
debenture holders as at the balance sheet date.

 ix. In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the moneys raised by way of term loans 
have been applied for the purposes for which they were obtained. The Company has not raised any moneys by way of 
initial public offer or further public offer (including debt instruments).

x. During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried out in accordance with the 
generally accepted auditing practices in India, and according to the information and explanations given to us, we have 
neither come across any instance of material fraud by the Company or on the Company by its officers or employees, 
noticed or reported during the year, nor have we been informed of any such case by the Management.

xi. The Company has not paid/ provided for managerial remuneration- Refer Note-52 to the financial statements. Accordingly, 
the provisions of Clause 3(xi) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

xii. As the Company is not a Nidhi Company and the Nidhi Rules, 2014 are not applicable to it, the provisions of Clause 3(xii) of 
the Order are not applicable to the Company.

xiii. The Company has entered into transactions with related parties in compliance with the provisions of Sections 177 and 
188 of the Act. The details of such related party transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements as required 
under Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 24, Related Party Disclosures specified in the Companies (Indian Accounting 
Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended) under Section 133 of the Act..

xiv. The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partly convertible 
debentures during the year under review. Accordingly, the provisions of Clause 3(xiv) of the Order are not applicable to 
the Company.

xv.  The Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected with him. Accordingly, 
the provisions of Clause 3(xv) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

xvi.  The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. Accordingly, the 
provisions of Clause 3(xvi) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

 For Price Waterhouse
 Firm Registration Number: 301112E

 Chartered Accountants

 Avijit Mukerji

Place of the Signature : Noida  Partner
Date : May 30, 2017 Membership Number: 056155
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Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2017

Notes As at

31.03.2017

`/Crores

As at

31.03.2016

`/Crores

As at

01.07.2015

`/Crores

I. ASSETS

(1) Non-current assets

Property, Plant and Equipment 3 76.49 81.48 80.70

Capital work-in-progress 5 - 0.25 0.15

Intangible assets 4 0.19 0.04 0.11

Financial Assets

(i) Investments 6 535.51 777.51 589.50

(ii) Other financial assets 8 0.53 0.56 1.06

Deferred tax assets (net) 9 64.70 44.04 46.48

Other non-current assets 10 109.45 93.17 31.78

Advance Income Tax (Net) 11 8.78 795.65 19.30 1,016.35 - 749.78

(2) Current assets

Inventories 12 59.47 95.76 126.80

Financial Assets -

(i) Investments 7 120.87 50.16 235.66

(ii) Trade receivables 13 432.00 302.23 399.39

(iii) Cash and cash equivalents 14 67.68 94.39 61.88

(iv) Bank balances other than (iii) above 15 4.41 4.94 5.33

(v) Loans 16 389.02 598.84 1,202.27

(vi) Other financial assets 17 6.30 4.69 5.11

Other current assets 18 45.94 1,125.69 34.79 1,185.80 60.55 2,096.99

Total Assets 1,921.34 2,202.15 2,846.77

II. EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

(1) Equity

Equity Share capital 19 44.58 44.58 44.58

Other Equity 20 577.49 622.07 939.82 984.40 1,127.06 1,171.64

(2) Liabilities

Non-current liabilities

Financial Liabilities

(i) Borrowings 21 134.11 106.70 163.50

(ii) Trade Payables 22 - - 0.59

(iii) Other financial liabilities 23 - 5.32 5.32

Provisions 24 5.33 139.44 4.76 116.78 2.60 172.01

Current liabilities

Financial Liabilities

(i) Borrowings 25 568.28 423.53 575.98

(ii) Trade payables 26 391.87 434.07 532.88

(iii) Other financial liabilities 27 144.62 151.07 309.29

Other current liabilities 28 47.96 87.32 79.32

Provisions 29 7.10 4.98 4.61

Current Tax Liabilities 30 - 1,159.83 - 1,100.97 1.04 1,503.12

Total Equity and Liabilities 1,921.34 2,202.15 2,846.77

Significant Accounting Policies 1,2

This is the Balance Sheet referred to The notes referred to above form an integral part of the
in our report of even date Balance Sheet

For Price Waterhouse For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Firm Registration Number-301112E
Chartered Accountants

AVIJIT MUKERJI PREMKUMAR SESHADRI KAUSHIK DUTTA
Partner Executive Vice Chairman Director
Membership Number - 056155 & Managing Director DIN - 03328890
 DIN - 03114983

Place : Noida S G MURALI SUSHIL KUMAR JAIN
Dated : May 30, 2017 Group Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
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Statement of Profit & Loss for the year ended March 31, 2017

Notes Year ended

31.03.2017

`/Crores

Nine months ended

31.03.2016

`/Crores

Income :

Revenue From Operations 31 2,265.36 2,499.27

Other Income 32 47.61 73.16

Total Income 2,312.97 2,572.43

Expenses :

Cost of materials consumed 0.79 0.08

Purchases of Stock-in-Trade 2,078.06 2,321.83

Changes in inventories of finished goods, Stock-in -Trade and work-

in-progress
33 36.13 31.23

Other direct expense 34 26.63 22.60

Employee benefits expense 35 58.11 54.87

Finance costs 36 104.60 81.52

Depreciation and amortization expense 3,4 4.80 4.12

Other expenses 37 60.42 79.24

Total expenses 2,369.54 2,595.49

Loss before exceptional items and tax (56.57) (23.06)

Exceptional Items 41 (320.19) (159.01)

Loss before tax (376.76) (182.07)

Income Tax expense:

(1) Current tax 6.31 8.41

(2) Deferred tax 56 (20.68) (14.37) (3.17) 5.24

Loss for the year/period (362.39) (187.31)

Other Comprehensive Income

A (i) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

Gain/(loss) on remeasurement of defined benefit plan 51 0.08 0.04

(ii) Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit 

or loss
0.02 0.06 0.01 0.03

Total Comprehensive Loss for the year / period (362.33) (187.28)

Loss per equity share

(1) Basic 49 (16.25) (8.40)

(2) Diluted (16.25) (8.40)

Significant Accounting Policies 1,2

This is the Statement of Profit and Loss referred to The notes referred to above form an integral part of the
in our report of even date Statement of Profit and Loss

For Price Waterhouse For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Firm Registration Number-301112E
Chartered Accountants

AVIJIT MUKERJI PREMKUMAR SESHADRI KAUSHIK DUTTA
Partner Executive Vice Chairman Director
Membership Number - 056155 & Managing Director DIN - 03328890
 DIN - 03114983

Place : Noida S G MURALI SUSHIL KUMAR JAIN
Dated : May 30, 2017 Group Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
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Cash Flow Statement for the year ended March 31, 2017

Year ended

31.03.2017

`/Crores

Nine months ended

31.03.2016

`/Crores

1. Cash Flow from Operating Activities:

Loss before tax (376.76) (182.07)

Adjustments for:

Depreciation and Amortisation Expense 4.80 4.12

Finance Cost 104.60 81.52

Interest Income (28.04) (54.73)

Dividend Income (4.82) (5.68)

Net Profit on Sale of Property, Plant & Equipment (0.22) (2.74)

Property, Plant & Equipment Written-Off 0.86 0.06

Profit on Disposal of Unquoted (Others) Current Investments (2.20) (3.80)

Diminution Other than Temporary in the value of Long term 
Investment

250.00 122.00

Provision against Inter Company Deposits given to 

subsidiaries

70.19 39.79

Fair value change in financial instruments - (0.06)

Provision for Doubtful Debts - 16.34

Provision for Doubtful Loans and Advances and Other Current 

Assets

- 0.84

Provisions/Liabilities no longer required Written Back (0.57) 394.60 (0.57) 197.09

Operating Profit before working capital changes 17.84 15.02

Adjustments for changes in working capital:

- (Increse)/Decrease in Trade Receivables (129.77) 80.82

- (Increase)/Decrease in Non Current Assets (8.56) (83.51)

- (Increase)/Decrease in Current Assets (11.98) 25.34

- Decrease in Inventories 36.29 31.04

- Increase/(Decrease) in Non Current Liabilities (4.75) 1.57

- (Decrease) in Current Liabilities (69.08) (187.85) (94.30) (39.04)

Cash used in operations (170.01) (24.02)

- Taxes (Paid)/Received (Net of Tax Deducted at Source) (3.26) (2.23)

Net cash used in operating activities (A) (173.27) (26.25)

2. Cash flow from Investing Activities:

Purchase of Fixed Assets (including Intangible Assets) (0.75) (10.37)

Capital Work-In-Progress (including Intangible Assets under 
Development)

0.25 (0.10)

Proceeds from Sale of Fixed Assets 0.26 10.24

Proceeds from Sale of Current Investments 492.54 358.67

Purchase of Current Investments (561.05) (170.00)

Interest Received 28.04 54.73

Redemption/Maturity of Bank Deposits (with original maturity 

of more than twelve months)

(0.06) -

Movement in Margin Money Account - 0.01

Movement in Balances with Banks on Dividend Account 0.53 0.38

Dividend Received on Current Investments 4.82 5.68

Inter corporate deposits given (1,337.10) (1,068.19)

Inter corporate deposits received back 1,476.73 1631.83

Purchase of Investment in Subsidiary (8.00) 96.21 (310.00) 502.88

Net cash from investing activities (B) 96.21 502.88
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Year ended

31.03.2017

`/Crores

Nine months ended

31.03.2016

`/Crores

3. Cash Flow from Financing Activities:

Securities Premium Received (Net) - 0.04

Secured Loans

Proceeds from short term borrowings - 581.38

Repayment of short term borrowings (73.92) (558.52)

Proceeds from long term borrowings 6.17 49.36

Repayment of long term borrowings (18.20) (249.21)

Unsecured Loans

Proceeds from short term borrowings 220.00 900.00

Repayment of short term borrowings - (1,075.00)

Proceeds from long term borrowings 41.98 71.49

Repayment of long term borrowings (20.57) (83.43)

Interest Paid (104.59) (79.89)

Dividend Paid/Amount Transferred to Investor Education & 

Protection Fund

(0.52) 50.35 (0.34) (444.12)

Net cash from/(used in) financing activities (C) 50.35 (444.12)

Net Increase/(Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents (A+B+C) (26.71) 32.51

Opening Balance of Cash and Cash Equivalents 94.39 61.88

Closing Balance of Cash and Cash Equivalents 67.68 94.39

Cash and cash equivalents comprise of 67.68 94.39

Cash, Cheques and Drafts (on hand) 5.98 3.90

Balances with Banks on Current Accounts 24.33 84.58

Balances with Banks on Deposits Accounts 37.37 5.91

Notes:

1 Figures in brackets indicate cash outflow.

This is the Cash Flow Statement
in our report of even date

For Price Waterhouse For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Firm Registration Number-301112E
Chartered Accountants

AVIJIT MUKERJI PREMKUMAR SESHADRI KAUSHIK DUTTA
Partner Executive Vice Chairman Director
Membership Number - 056155 & Managing Director DIN - 03328890
 DIN - 03114983

Place : Noida S G MURALI SUSHIL KUMAR JAIN
Dated : May 30, 2017 Group Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
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Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended March 31, 2017

a. Equity Share Capital

(`/Crores)

Number of 
Equity Shares

Equity Share 
Capital

At 1 July, 2015 222,904,629 44.58

Add : Issue of Equity Share Capital* 15,000 0.00

At 31 March 2016 222,919,629 44.58

Add : Issue of Equity Share Capital - -

At 31 March 2017 222,919,629 44.58

* 15000 Equity shares having a face value of ` 2 each issued against Employee stock option.

b. Other Equity

(`/Crores)

Particulars Reserves and Surplus Total

Securities 
Premium 

Reserve

General 
Reserve

Retained 
Earnings

As at 1 July, 2015 720.12 215.83 191.11 1,127.06

Loss for the period - - (187.31) (187.31)

Other Comprehensive Income for the period 0.03 0.03

On issue of Shares 0.04 - - 0.04

As at 31 March, 2016 720.16 215.83 3.83 939.82

Loss for the year (362.39) (362.39)

Other Comprehensive Income for the year 0.06 0.06

As at 31 March, 2017 720.16 215.83 (358.50) 577.49

This is the Statement of Changes in Equity referred to
in our report of even date

For Price Waterhouse For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Firm Registration Number-301112E
Chartered Accountants

AVIJIT MUKERJI PREMKUMAR SESHADRI KAUSHIK DUTTA
Partner Executive Vice Chairman Director
Membership Number - 056155 & Managing Director DIN - 03328890
 DIN - 03114983

Place : Noida S G MURALI SUSHIL KUMAR JAIN
Dated : May 30, 2017 Group Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
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Notes to the Financial Statements

1. Corporate information

HCL Infosystems Limited (‘the Company’) is domiciled and incorporated in India and publicly traded on the National Stock 
Exchange (‘NSE’) and the Bombay Stock Exchange (‘BSE’) in India. The registered office of the Company is situated at 806, 
Siddharth, 96, Nehru Place, New Delhi - 110019.

The Company is primarily engaged in value-added distribution of technology, mobility and consumer electronic products.

The financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors and authorised for issue on May 30, 2017.

2. Significant accounting policies

This note provides a list of the significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial statements. 
These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

(i) Compliance with Ind AS

The financial statements comply in all material aspects with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified 
under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) [Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015] 
and other relevant provisions of the Act.

The financial statements up to nine months period ended 31 March 2016 were prepared in accordance with the 

accounting standards notified under Companies (Accounting Standard) Rules, 2006 (as amended) and other 
relevant provisions of the Act. These financial statements are the first financial statements of the Company 

under Ind AS. Refer note 57 for an explanation of how the transition from Indian GAAP to Ind AS has affected 
the Company’s financial position, financial performance and cash flows.

(ii) Historical cost convention

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for the following which have 
been measured at fair value:

Certain Financial assets and liabilities, including derivative financial instruments, which are being measured 
at fair value

Defined benefit plans – plan assets measured at fair value

2.2 Exemptions and exceptions availed

The applicable Ind AS 101 optional exemptions and mandatory exceptions applied in the transition from previous 
GAAP to Ind AS are set out below

A. Ind AS optional exemptions

The following exemptions have been availed from other Ind AS as per Appendix D of Ind AS 101.

1. Deemed cost for Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE) and Intangible Assets– The Company has 
elected to carry items for all of its PPE and intangible assets at the date of transition to Ind AS at their 

previous GAAP carrying amount, which is considered as deemed cost on transition.

2. Fair value of financial assets and liabilities: The Company has financial receivables and payables that 
are non-derivative financial instruments. Under previous GAAP, these were carried at transactions cost 
less allowances for impairment, if any. Under Ind AS, these financial assets and liabilities are required 
to be initially recognised at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost, less allowance for 
impairment, if any. For transactions entered into on or after the date of transition to Ind AS, the requirement 

of initial recognition at fair value is applied prospectively.

3. Employee Share Stock Option: The Company has decided to not apply Ind AS 102, Share-based Payments 
to the employee share stock option that has vested before the date of transition.

B. Ind AS mandatory exceptions

1. Estimates The Company’s estimates in accordance with Ind AS at the date of transition to Ind AS are 
consistent with previous GAAP other than the following items in accordance with Ind AS at the date of 

transition as these were not required under previous GAAP.
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Investment in debt instruments carried at FVPL; and

Impairment of financial assets based on expected credit loss model.

2.3 Use of estimates

The preparation of Financial Statements in conformity with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles requires the 
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and 
expenses disclosure of contingent liabilities and contingent assets at the date of the Financial Statements and the 
results of operations during the reporting period. The actual results could differ from those estimates. Any revision to 
accounting estimates is recognised prospectively in current and future periods.

2.4 Critical accounting estimates, assumptions and judgements

In the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies, management has made the following estimates, 
assumptions and judgements, which have significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statement:

(a) Property, plant and equipment

Management engages external adviser or internal technical team to assess the remaining useful lives and 
residual value of property, plant and equipment. Management believes that the assigned useful lives and 
residual value are reasonable.

(b) Intangibles

Internal technical or user team assess the remaining useful lives of Intangible assets. Management believes that 
assigned useful lives are reasonable.

(c) Income taxes

Management judgment is required for the calculation of provision for income taxes and deferred tax assets 
and liabilities. The Company reviews at each balance sheet date the carrying amount of deferred tax assets. 
The factors used in estimates may differ from actual outcome which could lead to significant adjustment to the 
amounts reported in the financial statements.

(d) Contingencies

Management judgement is required for estimating the possible outflow of resources, if any, in respect of 
contingencies/claim/litigations against the Company as it is not possible to predict the outcome of pending 
matters with accuracy.

(e) Allowance for uncollected accounts receivable and advances

Trade receivables do not carry any interest and are stated at their amortised cost as reduced by appropriate 
allowances for estimated irrecoverable amounts. Individual trade receivables are written off when management 
deems them not to be collectible. Impairment is made on the expected credit losses, which are the present 
value of the cash shortfall over the expected life of the financial assets.

(f) Liquidated damages

Liquidated damages payable are estimated and recorded as per contractual terms; estimate may vary from 

actual as levied by customer.

(g) Impairment of investments

Investments in Subsidiaries are reviewed for impairment, whenever events or changes in circumstances 
indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. Such circumstances include, though are not limited 
to, significant or sustained decline in revenues or earnings and material adverse changes in the economic 

environment.

Impairment test is performed at entity level. An impairment loss is recognised whenever the carrying amount of 
Investment exceeds its recoverable amount.

The recoverable amount is the greater of its fair value less costs to sell and value in use. To calculate value in use, 

the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects 
current market rates and the risks specific to the asset. The calculation involves use of significant estimates and 
assumptions which include turnover and gross margin, growth rate and net margin used to calculate projected 

Notes to the Financial Statements
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future cash flows, discount rate and long term growth rate.

2.5 Current Versus non-current Classification

All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company’s normal operating cycle 
and other criteria set out in the Schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013. Based on the nature of products and the 

time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash equivalents, the Company 
has ascertained its operating cycle as 12 months for the purpose of current – non-current classification of assets and 
liabilities.

2.6 Property, Plant and equipment

Freehold land is carried at historical cost. All other items of property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost 
less depreciation. Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items. The 
gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment is determined as the 
difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in the Statement of 
Profit and Loss on the date of disposal or retirement.

Subsequent costs are capitalised on the carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when 
future economic benefits associated with the item are probable to flow to the Company and cost of the item can be 
measured reliably. All other repair and maintenance are charged to profit or loss during the reporting period in which 
they are incurred.

On transition to Ind AS, the Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of its property, plant and 
equipment recognised as at 1 July, 2015 measured as per the previous GAAP and use that carrying value as the 
deemed cost of the property, plant and equipment.

Depreciation on Property, Plant and equipment is provided on straight-line basis over the useful lives of assets as 
determined on the basis of technical estimates which are similar to the useful lives as prescribed under Schedule II 
to the Companies Act, 2013:-

Assets residual values, depreciation method and useful lives are reviewed at each financial year end considering the 
physical condition of the assets or whenever there are indicators for review and adjusted residual life prospectively. 
An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is 
greater than its estimated recoverable amount.

Leasehold land is amortised over a period of lease. Leasehold improvements are amortised on straight line basis over 
the period of three years or lease period whichever is lower.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with carrying amount. These are included in 
profit or loss within other income.

2.7 Intangible assets

On transition to Ind AS, the Company has opted for the option given under Ind AS 101 to measure all the items of 
Intangible Assets at their carrying value under previous GAAP (Refer Note 4). Consequently the carrying value under 
IGAAP has been assumed to be deemed cost of Intangible Assets on the date of transition to Ind AS.

Identifiable intangible assets are recognised when the Company controls the asset, it is probable that future economic 
benefits attributed to the asset will flow to the Company and the cost of the asset can be reliably measured.

At initial recognition, the separately acquired intangible assets are recognised at cost. The cost of intangible assets 
that are acquired in a business combination is its fair value as at the date of acquisition. Following initial recognition, 
the intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, if 

any.

Amortisation is recognised in profit or loss on a straight line basis over the estimated useful lives of intangible assets 
from the date they are available for use. The amortisation period and the amortisation method are reviewed at least 

at each financial year end. If the expected useful life of the asset is significantly different from previous estimates, the 
amortisation period is changed accordingly. Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of an intangible 
asset are determined as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and 

recognised as income or expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Notes to the Financial Statements
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Softwares

Softwares are capitalised at the amounts paid to acquire the respective license for use and are amortised over the 
period of license.

Estimated useful life of other acquired intangibles is as follows:

Intangible Assets are amortised at straight line basis as follows:

Software   1-5 years

2.8 Leases

As a Lessee

Leases of property, plant and equipment where the Company, as lessee, has substantially all the risks and rewards of 
ownership are classified as finance leases. Finance leases are capitalised at the lease’s inception at the fair value of the 
leased property or, if lower, the present value of the minimum lease payments. The corresponding rental obligations, 
net of finance charges, are included in borrowings or other financial liabilities as appropriate. Each lease payment is 
allocated between the liability and finance cost. The finance cost is charged to the profit or loss over the lease period 
so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability for each period.

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are not transferred to the Company as 
lessee are classified as operating leases. Payments made under operating leases (net of any incentives received from 
the lessor) are charged to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease unless the payments are 
structured to increase in line with expected general inflation to compensate for the lessor’s expected inflationary 
cost increases.

As a Lessor

Lease income from operating leases where the Company is a lessor is recognised as income on a straight-line 
basis over the lease term unless the receipts are structured to increase in line with expected general inflation to 
compensate for the expected inflationary cost increases. The respective leased assets are included in the balance 
sheet based on their nature.

Assets given under finance lease are recognised as receivables at an amount equal to the net investment in the lease. 
Inventories given on finance lease are recognised as deemed sale at fair value. Lease income is recognised over the 
period of the lease so as to yield a constant rate of return on the net investment in the lease.

2.9 Financial Instruments

A. Financial Instruments – Initial Recognition and Measurement

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the Company’s statement of financial position when 
the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. The Company determines the 
classification of its financial assets and liabilities at initial recognition. All financial assets and liabilities are initially 

recognised at fair value plus directly attributable transaction costs in case of financial assets and liabilities not 
at fair value through profit or loss. Financial assets and liabilities carried at fair value through profit or loss are 
initially recognised at fair value, and transaction costs are expensed in the income statement.

B. Financial Assets

1. Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their classification as follows:

Debt instrument

a. Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include financial assets held for trading and those 
designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss. Financial assets are classified 
as held for trading if they are acquired for the purpose of selling in the near term. Derivatives are 

classified as held for trading unless they are designated as effective hedging instruments. Financial 
assets are designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss when the same are 
managed by the Company on the basis of their fair value and their performance is evaluated on fair 

Notes to the Financial Statements
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value basis in accordance with a risk management or investment strategy of the Company. Financial 
assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in the statement of financial position at fair value 
with changes in fair value recognised in other income in the income statement.

b. Financial assets measured at amortised cost

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets that are held for collection of contractual 
cash flows, where the assets’ cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest, are 
measured at amortised cost. Interest income from these financial assets is included in other income.

c. Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI):

Financial assets are measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (OCI) if these 
financial assets are held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting 
contractual cash flows and selling financial assets and the contractual terms of the financial asset 
give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the 
principal amount outstanding. Movements in the carrying amount are taken through OCI, except 
for the recognition of impairment gains or losses, interest revenue and foreign exchange gains 
and losses which are recognised in profit and loss. When the financial asset is derecognised, the 
cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCI is reclassified from equity to profit or loss and 
recognised in other gains/ (losses). Interest income from these financial assets is included in other 
income using the effective interest rate method.

Investment in Subsidiaries

Investment in Subsidiaries is carried at cost in separate financial statement.

Equity instruments

The Company subsequently measures all equity investments at fair value. Dividends from such investments 
are recognised in profit or loss as other income when the Company’s right to receive payments is 
established.

2. Derecognition

The Company derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the 
asset expires or it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of 
the asset.

C. Financial Liabilities

1. Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification as follows:

Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost

After initial recognition, interest bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised 
cost using the effective interest rate method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any 

discount or premium on acquisition and fee or costs that are an integral part of the effective interest 
rate method. The effective interest rate method’s amortisation is included in finance costs in the income 
statement.

2. Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or 

expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially 
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or 
modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability, and 
the difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the income statement.

D. Offsetting Financial Instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the consolidated statement 
of financial position if, and only if, there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts 
and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Notes to the Financial Statements
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E. Derivative Financial Instruments - Current versus Non- Current Classification

Derivative instruments will be held for a period beyond twelve months after the reporting date, are classified 
as noncurrent (or separated into current and non-current portions) consistent with the classification of the 
underlying item. These are classified as current, when the remaining holding period is upto twelve months after 
the reporting date.

F. Fair Value Measurement

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data 
are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of 
unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised 
within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair 
value measurement as a whole:

Level 1- Quoted (Unadjusted) marked prices in the active markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2- Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement 
is directly or indirectly observable

Level 3- Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement 
is unobservable.

2.10 Income tax

The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax payable on the current period’s taxable income based 
on the applicable income tax rate for each jurisdiction adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities 

attributable to temporary differences and to unused tax losses.

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the end 
of the reporting period in the countries where the company operate and generate taxable income. Management 
periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulation is 
subject to interpretation. It establishes provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be paid to 
the tax authorities.

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability method, on temporary differences arising between the tax 
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements. However, deferred tax liabilities 
are not recognised if they arise from the initial recognition of goodwill. Deferred income tax is also not accounted 
for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction other than a business combination that 
at the time of the transaction affects neither accounting profit nor taxable profit (tax loss). Deferred income tax is 
determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or substantially enacted by the end of the reporting 
period and are expected to apply when the related deferred income tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax 
liability is settled.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences and unused tax losses only if it is probable 
that future taxable amounts will be available to utilise those temporary differences and losses.

Deferred tax liabilities are not recognised for temporary differences between the carrying amount and tax bases of 
investments in subsidiaries and interest in joint arrangements where the Company is able to control the timing of the 
reversal of the temporary differences and it is probable that the differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets 
and liabilities and when the deferred tax balances relate to the same taxation authority. Current tax assets and tax 
liabilities are offset where the entity has a legally enforceable right to offset and intends either to settle on a net basis, 

or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in other 
comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income 
or directly in equity, respectively.

2.11 Inventories

Raw materials, stock-in-trade and finished goods are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
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Cost of raw materials and stock-in-trade comprises cost of purchases. Cost of finished goods comprises direct 
materials, direct labour and an appropriate proportion of variable and fixed overhead expenditure, the latter being 
allocated on the basis of normal operating capacity. Cost of inventories also include all other costs incurred in bringing 
the inventories to their present location and condition. Cost is determined on the basis of weighted average. Costs 
of purchased inventory are determined after deducting rebates and discounts. Net realisable value is the estimated 
selling price in the ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs 
necessary to make the sale.

Goods in-transit is valued inclusive of custom duty, where applicable.

2.12 Trade receivables

Trade receivables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the 
effective interest method, less provision for impairment.

2.13 Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of presentation in the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand, 
deposits held at call with financial institutions, other short-term, highly liquid investments with original maturities of 
three months or less that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant 
risk of changes in value, and bank overdrafts. Bank overdrafts are shown within borrowings in current liabilities in the 
balance sheet.

2.14 Impairment of assets

a. Financial assets

The Company assesses on a forward looking basis the expected credit losses associated with its assets carried 
at amortised cost and FVOCI. The impairment methodology applied depends on whether there has been a 
significant increase in credit risk.

For trade receivables only, the Company applies the simplified approach permitted by Ind AS 109 Financial 
Instruments, which requires expected lifetime losses to be recognised from initial recognition of the receivables.

b. Non-financial assets

(i) Intangible assets and property, plant and equipment

Intangible assets and property, plant and equipment are are reviewed for impairment, whenever events 
or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. For the purpose of 
impairment testing, the recoverable amount (i.e. the higher of the fair value less cost to sell and the value-
in-use) is determined on an individual asset basis unless the asset does not generate cash flows that are 
largely independent of those from other assets. In such cases, the recoverable amount is determined for 
the CGU to which the asset belongs.

If such assets are considered to be impaired, the impairment to be recognized in the Statement of Profit 
and Loss is measured by the amount by which the carrying value of the assets exceeds the estimated 
recoverable amount of the asset. An impairment loss is reversed in the statement of profit and loss if there 
has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. The carrying amount of 
the asset is increased to its revised recoverable amount, provided that this amount does not exceed the 

carrying amount that would have been determined (net of any accumulated amortization or depreciation) 
had no impairment loss been recognized for the asset in prior years.

c. Investment in Subsidiaries

Investments in Subsidiaries are reviewed for impairment, whenever events or changes in circumstances 

indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. Such circumstances include, though are not limited 
to, significant or sustained decline in revenues or earnings and material adverse changes in the economic 
environment.

Impairment test is performed at entity level. An impairment loss is recognised whenever the carrying amount of 
Investment exceeds its recoverable amount.
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The recoverable amount is the greater of its fair value less costs to sell and value in use. To calculate value in use, 
the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects 
current market rates and the risks specific to the asset.

Fair value less costs to sell is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in 
an orderly transaction between market participants, less the costs of disposal. Impairment losses, if any are 
recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Other impairment losses are only reversed to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the 
carrying amount that would have been determined if no impairment loss had previously been recognised.

2.15 Trade and other payables

These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the Company prior to the end of financial year 
which are unpaid. The amounts are unsecured and are usually paid in accordance with the terms with the vendors. 
Trade and other payables are presented as current liabilities unless payment is not due within 12 months after the 
reporting period. They are recognised initially at their fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using 
the effective interest method.

2.16 Borrowings

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently 
measured at amortised cost. Any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption 
amount is recognised in profit or loss over the period of the borrowings using the effective interest method. Fees 
paid on the establishment of loan facilities are recognised as transaction costs of the loan to the extent that it is 
probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn down. In this case, the fee is deferred until the draw down 
occurs. To the extent there is no evidence that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn down, the 
fee is capitalised as a prepayment for liquidity services and amortised over the period of the facility to which it relates.

Borrowings are removed from the balance sheet when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, 
cancelled or expired. The difference between the carrying amount of a financial liability that has been extinguished 
or transferred to another party and the consideration paid, including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities 
assumed, is recognised in profit or loss as other gains/(losses).

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Company has an unconditional right to defer settlement 
of the liability for at least 12 months after the reporting period. Where there is a breach of a material provision of a 
long-term loan arrangement on or before the end of the reporting period with the effect that the liability becomes 
payable on demand on the reporting date, the entity does not classify the liability as current, if the lender agreed, 
after the reporting period and before the approval of the financial statements for issue, not to demand payment as 
a consequence of the breach.

2.17 Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets

a) Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past 
events, it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation and the amount can 
be reliably estimated. Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses.

Provisions are measured at the present value of management’s best estimate of the expenditure required to 

settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting period. The discount rate used to determine the present 
value is a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific 
to the liability. The increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as interest expense.

b) Contingencies

Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising from past events, the existence of 

which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not 
wholly within the control of the Company or a present obligation that arises from past events where it is either 
not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle or a reliable estimate of the amount cannot 
be made. Information on contingent liability is disclosed in the Notes to the Financial Statements.
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2.18 Foreign currency translation

(i) Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of are measured using the currency of the primary economic 
environment in which the Company operates (`the functional currency’). The Company’s operations are primarily 

in India. The financial statements are presented in Indian rupee (INR), which is the Company’s functional and 
presentation currency.

(ii) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates at the dates 
of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and 
from the translation of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at year end exchange 
rates are recognised in profit or loss.

Foreign exchange differences regarded as an adjustment to borrowing costs are presented in the statement of 
profit and loss, within finance costs. All other foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in the statement 
of profit and loss on a net basis within other income.

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange 
rates at the date when the fair value was determined. Translation differences on assets and liabilities carried at 
fair value are reported as part of the fair value gain or loss.

2.19 Revenue recognition

The Company derives revenues primarily from sale of products. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the 
consideration received or receivable.

The Company recognises revenue when the amount of revenue can be reliably measured, it is probable that future 
economic benefits will flow to the entity and specific criteria have been met for each of the Company’s activities 

as described below. The Company bases its estimates on historical results, taking into consideration the type of 
customer, the type of transaction and the specifics of each arrangement.

Sale of Products

Timing of recognition

The Company is engaged into the business of –

Purchase/ sale and distribution of IT products, including computer hardware and mobile handsets.

Revenue from the sale of products is recognised when the following criteria for the transaction have been met:

all significant risks and rewards of ownership have transferred to the buyer;

continuing managerial involvement and effective control usually associated with ownership has been ceased;

the amount of revenue can be measured reliably; and

it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the transaction will flow to the Company.

Measurement of revenue

Revenue from sales is based on the price specified in the sales contract, net of the estimated volume discounts and 

returns at the time of sale. For separately identified component from multiple element arrangement, pertaining to 
the sale of products, the revenues are measured based on fair value allocated to such component within the overall 
arrangement.

Amounts disclosed as revenue are inclusive of excise duty and net of returns, trade allowances, rebates, value added 
taxes and amounts collected on behalf of third parties.

Revenue from services

Timing of recognition

Service income includes income from IT infrastructure managed services, break-fix services, office automation 
maintenance services and managed print services. Revenues relating to time and materials contracts are recognized 
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as the related services are rendered. Revenue in case of fixed priced contracts is recognised on percentage of 
completion basis. Revenue from a period based service contracts is recognised on a pro rata basis over the period in 
which such services are rendered.

Measurement of Revenue

Revenue are based on the price specified in the sales contract, net of the estimated volume discounts. For separately 
identified component from multiple element arrangement, pertaining to the sale of services, the revenues are 
measured based on fair value allocated to such component within the overall arrangement.

Estimates of revenue, costs or extent of progress towards completion are revised if circumstances change. Any 
resulting increases or decreases in estimated revenues or costs are reflected in profit or loss in the period in which 
the circumstances that give rise to the revision become known by management.

Interest income

Interest income from loans and receivables (debt instruments) is recognised using the effective interest rate method. 
The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life 
of the financial asset to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset. When calculating the effective interest rate, the 
Company estimates the expected cash flows by considering all the contractual terms of the financial instrument (for 
example, prepayment, extension, call and similar options) but does not consider the expected credit losses.

2.20 Employee benefits

Defined benefit plans

Gratuity

The liability recognised in the balance sheet is the present value of the defined benefit obligation at the end of the 

reporting period less the fair value of plan assets. The defined benefit obligation is calculated annually by actuaries 
using the projected unit credit method.

The present value is determined by discounting the estimated future cash outflows by reference to market yields at 
the end of the reporting period on government bonds that have terms approximating to the terms of the related 
obligation.

The net interest cost is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net balance of the defined benefit obligation 
and the fair value of plan assets. This cost is included in employee benefit expense in the statement of profit and loss.

Remeasurement gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are 
recognised in the period in which they occur, directly in other comprehensive income. They are included in retained 
earnings in the statement of changes in equity and in the balance sheet.

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation resulting from plan amendments or curtailments are 

recognised immediately in profit or loss as past service cost.

Provident Fund

In respect of certain employees, Provident Fund contributions are made to a multi-employer Trust administered by 
the Company. The Company’s liability is actuarially determined (using the Projected Unit Credit method) at the end 

of the year and any shortfall in the fund size maintained by the Trust set up by the Company is additionally provided 
for. Actuarial losses/gains are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the year in which they arise.

Defined contribution plans

Contributions to the employees’ state insurance fund, administered by the prescribed government authorities, are 
made in accordance with the Employees’ State Insurance Act, 1948 and are recognised as an expense on an accrual 

basis.

Company’s contribution towards Superannuation Fund is accounted for on accrual basis.

The Company makes defined contributions to a Superannuation Trust established for the purpose. The Company has 
no further obligation beyond the monthly contributions.
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Other Benefits

Compensated Absences

Accumulated compensated absences, which are expected to be availed or encashed within 12 months from the 
end of the year end are treated as short term employee benefits. The obligation towards the same is measured at 

the expected cost of accumulating compensated absences as a result of the unused entitlement as at the year end.

Accumulated compensated absences, which are expected to be availed or encashed beyond 12 months from the end 
of the year end are treated as other long term employee benefits. The Company’s liability is actuarially determined 
(using the Projected Unit Credit method) at the end of each year. Actuarial losses/ gains are recognised in the 
Statement of Profit and Loss in the year in which they arise.

Long Term Employee Benefits

Employee benefits, which are expected to be availed or encased beyond 12 months from the end of the year are 
treated as other long term employee benefits. The Company’s liability is actuarially determined (using the Projected 
Unit Credit method) at the end of each year.

Employee Options

The fair value of options granted is recognised as an employee benefits expense with a corresponding increase in 
equity. The total amount to be expensed is determined by reference to the fair value of the options granted:

The total expense is recognised over the vesting period, which is the period over which all of the specified vesting 
conditions are to be satisfied. At the end of each period, the entity revises its estimates of the number of options that 
are expected to vest based on the non-market vesting and service conditions. It recognises the impact of the revision 
to original estimates, if any, in profit or loss, with a corresponding adjustment to equity.

2.21 Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of 
a qualifying asset are capitalised during the period of time that is required to complete and prepare the asset for its 
intended use or sale. Qualifying assets are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for 
their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on 
qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.

2.22  Earnings per Share

(i) Basic earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing:

the profit attributable to owners of the Company

by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the financial year

(ii) Diluted earnings per share

Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used in the determination of basic earnings per share to take into 
account:

the after income tax effect of interest and other financing costs associated with dilutive potential equity 

shares, and

the weighted average number of additional equity shares that would have been outstanding assuming 
the conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares.
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2.23 Exceptional Items

Items which are material either because of their size or their nature, and which are non-recurring, are highlighted 
through separate disclosure. The separate reporting of exceptional items helps provide a better picture of the 
Company’s underlying performance.

23. New standards that are not yet effective and have not been early adopted:

As set out below, amendments to standards are effective for annual periods beginning on or after April 1, 2017, and 
have not been applied in preparing these financial statements. None of these is expected to have a significant effect 
on the Financial Statements of the Company: 

Amendments to Ind AS 102, Share-based Payment

The amendment to Ind AS 102 clarifies the measurement basis for cash-settled share-based payments and the 
accounting for modifications that change an award from cash-settled to equity-settled. 

Since the Company does not have any cash-settled share based payments outstanding at the reporting date, the 
above mentioned amendment will not have any impact on the Financial Statements of the Company.

Amendments to Ind AS 7, Statement of Cash Flows

The amendment to Ind AS 7 introduces an additional disclosure that will enable users of Financial Statements to 
evaluate changes in liabilities arising from financing activities. The said amendment will not have any impact on the 
Company’s Cash Flow Statement. 

There are no other Ind ASs that are not yet effective that would be expected to have a material impact on the 
Consolidated Cash Flow Statement.
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3 Property, Plant and Equipment

`/Crores

Particulars Gross Carrying Amount Accumulated Depreciation / Amortisation Net Carrying Amount

As at 
01.04.2016

Additions Disposal/ 
Adjustment 

As at 
31.03.2017

As at 
01.04.2016

Additions Disposal/ 
Adjustment

As at 
31.03.2017

As at 
31.03.2017

As at 
31.03.2016

Leasehold Land 12.33 - - 12.33 0.12 0.16 - 0.28 12.05 12.21

Freehold Land 7.65 - - 7.65 - - - - 7.65 7.65

Buildings 49.77 - 0.73 49.04 0.98 1.30 0.02 2.26 46.78 48.79

Plant and 
Machinery

3.30 - - 3.30 0.57 0.60 - 1.17 2.13 2.73

Furniture and 
Fixtures

5.76 - 0.18 5.58 0.81 0.62 0.13 1.30 4.28 4.95

Office 

Equipments
2.09 0.04 0.17 1.96 0.54 0.54 0.06 1.02 0.94 1.55

Vehicles 2.43 0.30 0.05 2.68 0.34 0.67 0.02 0.99 1.69 2.09

Computers 2.15 0.29 0.04 2.40 0.64 0.81 0.02 1.43 0.97 1.51

Sub-Total (a) 85.48 0.63 1.17 84.94 4.00 4.70 0.25 8.45 76.49 81.48

Notes:

1. Land and Building at Ambattur amounting to ` 3.24 Crores (2016 - ` 3.28 Crores, 2015 - ` 3.31 Crores) are pending registration in the 

name of the Company.

`/Crores

Particulars Gross Carrying Amount Accumulated Depreciation / Amortisation Net Carrying 

Amount

Deemed 

Cost As at 

01.07.2015

Additions Disposal/ 

Adjustment

As at 

31.03.2016

As at 

01.07.2015

Additions Disposal/ 

Adjustment

As at 

31.03.2016

As at 

31.03.2016

Leasehold Land 17.28 - 4.95 12.33 - 0.14 0.02 0.12 12.21

Freehold Land 7.65 - - 7.65 - - - - 7.65

Buildings 48.93 3.33 2.49 49.77 - 0.99 0.01 0.98 48.79

Plant and Machinery 1.16 2.17 0.03 3.30 - 0.58 0.01 0.57 2.73

Furniture and Fixtures 1.32 4.45 0.01 5.76 - 0.81 - 0.81 4.95

Office Equipments 1.55 0.66 0.12 2.09 - 0.55 0.01 0.54 1.55

Vehicles 1.55 0.88 - 2.43 - 0.34 - 0.34 2.09

Computers 1.26 0.90 0.01 2.15 - 0.64 0.00 0.64 1.51

Sub-Total (a) 80.70 12.39 7.61 85.48 - 4.05 0.05 4.00 81.48

Notes:
1. Land and Building at Ambattur amounting to ` 3.28 Crores (2015 - ` 3.31 Crores) are pending registration in the name of the 

Company.

4 Intangible Assets

`/Crores

Particulars Gross Carrying Amount Accumulated Depreciation / Amortisation Net Carrying Amount

As at 
01.04.2016

Additions Disposal/ 
Adjustment

As at 
31.03.2017

As at 
01.04.2016

Additions Disposal/ 
Adjustment 

As at 
31.03.2017

As at 
31.03.2017

As at 
31.03.2016

Intangible Assets:

Software 0.11 0.24 - 0.35 0.07 0.10 - 0.17 0.18 0.04

Sub-Total (b) 0.11 0.24 - 0.35 0.07 0.10 - 0.17 0.18 0.04
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Particulars Gross Carrying Amount Accumulated Depreciation / Amortisation Net Carrying 

Amount

Deemed 
Cost As at 

01.07.2015

Additions Disposal/ 
Adjustment

As at 
31.03.2016

As at 
01.07.2015

Additions Disposal/ 
Adjustment

As at 
31.03.2016

As at 
31.03.2016

Intangible Assets:

Software 0.11 - - 0.11 - 0.07 - 0.07 0.04

Sub-Total (b) 0.11 - - 0.11 - 0.07 - 0.07 0.04

5 Capital Work-In-Progress

`/Crores

Particulars As at 01.04.2016 Additions Capitalisation As at 
31.03.2017

Capital Work-In-Progress 0.25 0.00 0.25 -

Particulars Deemed Cost As 
at 01.07.2015

Additions Capitalisation As at 
31.03.2016

Capital Work-In-Progress 0.11 0.14 - 0.25

6 Non-current investments

As at 31.03.2017 As at 31.03.2016 As at 01.07.2015

Units Amount
`/Crores

Units Amount
`/Crores

Units Amount

Unquoted

Investments in Equity Instruments

Investments in Equity Instruments of 
Subsidiaries (At Cost)

Digilife Distribution and Marketing Services 
Limited

560,500,000 56.05 48,050,000 48.05 48,050,000 48.05

Pimpri Chinchwad eServices Limited 42,500 0.04 42,500 0.04 42,500 0.04

HCL Computing Products Ltd 100,000 0.10 100,000 0.10 100,000 0.10

HCL Infotech Limited - Refer Note 41 220,300 668.46 220,300 668.46 50,000 418.46

HCL Learning Limited - Refer Note 41 75,274 166.46 75,274 166.46 50,000 106.46

HCL Services Limited 77,036 684.86 77,036 684.86 50,000 434.85

1,575.97 1,567.97 1,007.96

Less: Impairement in the value of Investment* 1040.46 790.46@ 418.46

Total Investments in Equity Instruments 
of Subsidiaries (A)

535.51 777.51 589.50

*Impairment includes impairment for investment in HCL Services Limited ` 250.00 Crores (2016 - Nil, 2015 - Nil) HCL Infotech Limited ` 

668.46 Crores (2016 - ` 668.46 Crores, 2015 - ` 418.46 Crores) and HCL Learning Limited ` 122.00 Crores (2016 - ` 122.00 Crores, 2015 - Nil) 

@ Includes ` 250.00 Crores which was provided against Inter Company Deposits which were converted to equity in 2015-16.
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Investments in Equity Instruments of Joint Venture

Nokia HCL Mobile Internet Services Limited - - 490 0.25 490 0.25

Less:Impairement in the value of Investment 0.25 0.25

Total Investments in Equity Instruments of 
Joint Venture (B)

- - -

The Company has sold its investments in 
Nokia HCL Mobile Internet Services Limited 
during the current year.

Total Non-Current Investments (Unquoted) 
(A)+(B)

535.51 777.51 589.50

Aggregate amount Unquoted Investments 535.51 777.51 589.50

Aggregate amount of Impairment in the 
Value of Investments

1,040.46 790.71 418.71

7 Current investments

As at 31.03.2017 As at 31.03.2016 As at 01.07.2015

Units Amount

`/Crores

Units Amount

`/Crores

Units Amount

`/Crores

(i) Unquoted (Others): Current

Investment in Mutual Funds, Growth 
Options

Birla Sunlife Savings Fund - - - - 549,224 15.10

HDFC Floating Rate Income Fund - STP-WP - - - - 6,171,009 15.10

Kotak Floater Long Term - - - - 2,213,065 5.03

ICICI Prudential Flexible Income Plan - - - - 749,081 20.13

Reliance Money Manager Fund - - - - 103,183 20.15

UTI Treasury Advantage Plan - - - - 25,954 5.03

SBI-SHF Ultra Short Term Fund - - - - 27,410 5.03

Sub - Total (a) - - 85.57

Investment in Mutual Funds, Dividend 
Options

Birla Sunlife Savings Fund # - - 7,485,239 75.00

Axis Treasury Advantage Fund 601,311 60.56

Kotak Floater Long Term # - - - - 24,800,849 25.10

Reliance Money Manager Fund # 498,809 50.31 498,809 50.16 498,809 49.99

UTI Treasury Advantage Plan 99,438 10.00 - - - -

Sub - Total (b) 120.87 50.16 150.09

Total Current Investments (a) + (b) 120.87 50.16 235.66

Aggregate amount Unquoted 
Investments

120.87 50.16 235.66

# Under lien with bank
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As at

31.03.2017
`/Crores

As at

31.03.2016
`/Crores

As at

01.07.2015
`/Crores

8 Other Non-Current Financial Assets

Considered Good

Security Deposits 0.25 0.34 0.84

Bank Deposits with original maturity of more than 

twelve months

0.28 0.22 0.22

TOTAL 0.53 0.56 1.06

9 Deferred tax assets (net)

Deferred tax assets (Refer Note 56) 64.70 44.04 46.48

64.70 44.04 46.48

10 Other Non-Current Assets

Unsecured

Capital Advances 0.18 0.49 1.72

Deposits with Tax authorities 109.21 91.61 29.77

Prepaid Expenses 0.06 1.07 0.29

Considered Doubtful

Capital Advances 0.50 0.50 0.50

Less: Allowance for Doubtful Loans and Advances 0.50 - 0.50 - 0.50 -

TOTAL 109.45 93.17 31.78

11 Advance Income Tax Asset (Net)

Advance Income Tax
[Net of Provision for Income Tax of ` 46.65 Crores 
(2016 - ` 548.54 Crores, 2015 - Nil)]

8.78 19.30 -

TOTAL 8.78 19.30 -

12 Inventories

Raw Materials and Components 
[Including In-Transit ` 0.06 Crores (2016 - ` 0.06 
Crores, 2015 - Nil)]

0.11 0.26 -

Finished Goods 
[Including In-Transit ` 0.12 Crores (2016 - ` 0.17 

Crores, 2015 - ` 0.18 Crores)]

0.11 0.58 1.99

Stock-In-Trade
[Including In-Transit ` 19.63 Crores (2016 - ` 31.59 
Crores, 2015 - ` 13.54 Crores)]

58.47 94.13 123.95

Stores and Spares 0.78 0.79 0.86

TOTAL 59.47 95.76 126.80

Write - downs of inventories to net realisable value recognised as an expense during the year amounts to ` 0.67 Crores  

(2016 - ̀  0.48 Crores ). These were included in ‘ changes in value of inventories of work-in-progress, stock-in-trade and finished 
goods’ in statement of profit and loss.
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As at

31.03.2017
`/Crores

As at

31.03.2016
`/Crores

As at

01.07.2015
`/Crores

13 Trade Receivables (Refer Note 52)

Unsecured:

Considered Good 432.00 302.23 399.39

Considered Doubtful 24.78 26.73 10.39

456.78 328.96 409.78

Less : Allowance for Doubtful Debts 24.78 432.00 26.73 302.23 10.39 399.39

14 Cash and Cash Equivalents

Balances with Banks

- In Current Account 24.33 84.59 29.36

Less: Money held in Trust 24.33 0.01 84.58 0.01 29.35

Cash on Hand (Refer Note 54) - 0.01 0.02

Cheques on Hand 5.98 5.98 3.89 2.53

Bank Deposits with original maturity of three 
months or less

37.68 6.23 30.30

Less: Money held in Trust 0.31 37.37 0.32 5.91 0.32 29.98

TOTAL 67.68 94.39 61.88

There are no repatriation restrictions with regard to cash and cash equivalents as at the end of the reporting period and prior 
periods.

15 Other Bank Balances

Balances with Banks

- On Dividend Account 1.28 1.81 2.19

- On Margin Account 3.13 3.13 3.14

TOTAL 4.41 4.94 5.33

16 Loans

Unsecured

Considered Good

Loans and Advances to Subsidiaries (Refer Note 52) 389.02 598.84 1,202.27

Considered Doubtful

Loans and Advances to Subsidiaries (Refer Note 52) 83.53 13.34 223.55

Less: Allowance for Doubtful Loans and Advances 

to Subsidiaries

83.53 13.34 - 223.55 -

TOTAL 389.02 598.84 1,202.27
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As at

31.03.2017
`/Crores

As at

31.03.2016
`/Crores

As at

01.07.2015
`/Crores

17 Other Current Financial Assets

Considered Good

Security Deposits 1.72 2.81 3.07

Others (Includes Employee advances, Insurance 

claim recoverable and expenses recoverable)*

4.58 1.88 2.04

Considered Doubtful

Others (Includes Employee advances, Insurance 
claim recoverable)

1.06 0.64 0.86

Less: Allowance for Doubtful Loans and Advances 1.06 - 0.64 - 0.86 -

TOTAL 6.30 4.69 5.11

* includes ` 3.36 Crores (2016 - Nil, 2015 - Nil)) recoverable from related parties

18 Other Current Assets

Unsecured

Considered Good

Balances with Customs, Port Trust, Excise and Sales 
Tax Authorities

30.66 17.50 26.78

Advances to Creditors 10.49 12.94 24.07

Deposits with Tax authorities - - 0.15

Prepaid Expenses 4.63 3.85 8.45

Others (Expenses recoverable) 0.16 0.50 1.10

Considered Doubtful

Deposits and Other Advances 5.20 6.40 3.23

Less: Allowance for Doubtful Loans and Advances 5.20 - 6.40 - 3.23 -

TOTAL 45.94 34.79 60.55

19 Share capital

Authorised

55,25,00,000 Equity Shares (2016 - 55,25,00,000, 
2015 - 55,25,00,000) of ` 2/- each

110.50 110.50 110.50

5,00,000 Preference Shares (2016 - 5,00,000, 2015 - 

5,00,000) of ` 100/- each

5.00 5.00 5.00

TOTAL 115.50 115.50 115.50

Issued, Subscribed and Paid up

22,29,19,629 Equity Shares (2016 - 22,29,19,629, 
2015 - 22,29,04,629) of ` 2/- each

44.58 44.58 44.58

(Fully Paid up)

TOTAL 44.58 44.58 44.58

Notes:

(i) Rights attached to Equity Shares:
The Company has only one class of equity share having a face value of ` 2/- each. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per 
share held. The Company declares and pays dividend in Indian Rupees. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the 

approval of the Shareholders in ensuing General Meeting, except in case of interim dividend.

In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive the remaining assets of the Company 
after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by Shareholders.
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(ii) Shareholders holding more than 5% of the 

aggregate shares in the Company

Number of 

Shares

% of 

shares

Number of 

Shares

% of 

shares

Number of 

Shares

% of 

shares

(a) HCL Corporation Private Limited 111,382,239 49.97 111,382,239 49.97 111,382,239 49.97

(b) AKM Systems Private Limiited 11,997,007 5.38 11,997,007 5.38 11,997,007 5.38

(iii) Shares reserved for issue under options:

Information related to Employee Stock Option Plan, including details of options issued, exercised, expired and forfeited 
during the financial year and options outstanding at the end of the reporting period, is set out in Note 47

As at
31.03.2017

`/Crores

As at
31.03.2016

`/Crores

20 Other Equity

A. Reserve & Surplus

 (a) Securities Premium Reserve

Opening Balance# 720.16 720.12

Current Year Transfer - 0.04

Closing Balance 720.16 720.16

 (b) General Reserve

Opening Balance# 215.83 215.83

Closing Balance 215.83 215.83

 (c) Retained Earnings

Opening Balance# 3.83 191.11

Net Loss for the year/period (362.39) (187.31)

Remeasurements of post employment benefit obligation, net 
of tax

0.06 0.03

Closing Balance (358.50) 3.83

TOTAL 577.49 939.82

# Total equity is ` 1127.06 Crores as at July 01, 2015. (Refer note 57 for reconciliation of balance reported under Indian 
GAAP with restated balance under Ind AS

As at
31.03.2017

`/Crores

As at
31.03.2016

`/Crores

As at
01.07.2015

`/Crores

21 Non-Current Borrowings

Secured:

Term Loans

- From Banks 20.26 38.04 79.15

- From Others 3.21 - -

Unsecured:

Term Loans

- From Others 110.64 68.66 84.35

TOTAL 134.11 106.70 163.50

Notes:

1. (i) Secured Term Loan from Bank and Others amounting to ` 38.04 Crores (2016 - ` 48.43 Crores, 2015 - NIL), out of 
which ` 14.57 Crores (2016 - ` 10.39 Crores, 2015 - NIL) is shown under current maturity of long term debt, is secured 
by way of (1) First pari passu charge on all immovable, movable and intangible assets of the HCL Infosystems Ltd and 
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it’s Material Subsidiaries (2) First pari-passu charge on all Current Assets of the HCL Infosystems Ltd & it’s Material 
Subsidiaries (except Lease Rental Receivables). (3) Negative lien on Two Identified Properties (4) Exclusive charge 
on Debt Service Reserve Account created by way of lien on mutual funds of ` 70.42 Crs . The Hypothecation of the 
movable assets has been created on 22nd May’2017 and the mortgage of the immovable assets is under process. The 
loan is repayable in 13 quarterly installments starting from September 2016 and carries interest @ 11 % to 11.10% p.a.

(ii) Secured Long Term Loan of Nil ( 2016- Nil, 2015 - ` 5.73 Crores ) out of which Nil (2016 - Nil, 2015 - ` 5.73 Crores ) 
is shown under current maturity of debt, is secured by way of subservient charge on stock and receivables of the 
Company. It also carries a lien on Mutual Funds of ` 50.31 Crores (2016 - ` 50.16 Crores, 2015 - ` 49.99 Crores). Short 
Term Loan of ` 74.14 Crores is repayable in one year from the date of disbursement and carries interest @ 9.50 % p.a. 
and ` 25 Crores is repayable in three months from the date of disbursement and carries interest @ 11.50 % p.a.

(iii) Secured Term Loan from Banks amounting to Nil (2016 - Nil, 2015 - ` 143.48 Crores), out of which Nil (2016 - Nil, 
2015 - ` 143,48 Crores) is shown under current maturity of long term debt, was secured by way of subservient charge 
on current assets of the Company. It had a lien on Mutual Funds of ` 100.01 Crores . The loan was repayable in 23 
monthly equal instalments starting from July 2014 and carries interest @ 11.25 %.

(iv) Secured Term Loan from Banks amounting to Nil (2016 - Nil, 2015 - ` 99.07 Crores), out of which Nil (2016 - Nil,  
2015 - ` 19.92 Crores ) is shown under current maturity of long term debt, was secured by way of Hypothecation 
over the receivable from a particular project. The loan was repayable in 15 quarterly equal instalments having a 
moratortium of 3 months and carries interest @ 11.25 % p.a.

2.  (i) Unsecured Term loans from Others amounting to ` 191.87 Crores (2016 - ` 154.85 Crores, 2015 - ` 142.05 Crores), out 
of which ` 82.93 Crores (2016 -  ` 89.89 Crores, 2015 - ` 73.32 Crores) is shown under current maturity of long term 
debt, is repayable in 12 to 20 equal quarterly instalments from the date of the disbursement which carries interest @ 
11.25% to 12.50% p.a.

(ii) Unsecured Term loans from Others amounting to ` 3.72 Crores (2016 - ` 19.34 Crores, 2015 - ` 41.70 Crores), out of 
which ̀  2.02 Crores (2016 -  ̀  15.63 Crores, 2015 - ̀  26.07 Crores) is shown under current maturity of long term debt, is 
repayable in 1 quarterly, 1 half yearly and balance 16 quarterly instalments from the date of the disbursement which 
carries interest @ 13.04 % p.a.

(iii) Unsecured Term loans from others amounting to Nil (2016 - Nil, 2015 - ̀  2.36 Crores), out of which Nil (2016 - Nil, 2015 
- ` 2.36 Crores) is shown under current maturity of long term debt, were repayable in 19 equal quarterly installments 
from the date of the loans.

3. Long term borrowings, Short term borrowings and Current maturities of long term debts is net of the loan amounting to 
` 2.16 Crores (2016 - ` 23.09 Crores, 2015 - ` 46.46 Crores), Nil (2016 - Nil, 2015 - ` 26.13 Crores) and ` 19.87 Crores (2016 
- ` 29.51 Crores, 2015 - ` 68.94 Crores) respectivley that the Company has transferred to its subsidaries pursuant to the 
scheme of arrangement. However Company shall make repayments of such principal amounts and payments of interest 
or any other dues thereon on behalf of the respective Transferee Companies (HCL Infotech Ltd, HCL Services Ltd and 
HCL Learning Ltd) and the respective Transferee Companies shall be under an obligation to place with HCL Infosystems 
Limited funds at the relevant time so as to enable HCL Infosystems Ltd to make payments to the lenders on or before their 
respective due dates

Note: As per Ind AS provisions, the term loan balances are adjusted with the transaction/processing fees paid on the facility. 

Note: Material Subsidiaries include HCL Infotech Ltd., HCL Services Ltd. and HCL Learning Ltd.

As at

31.03.2017
`/Crores

As at

31.03.2016
`/Crores

As at

01.07.2015
`/Crores

22 Trade Payables

Trade Payables 
[Including Acceptance ` Nil (2015 - ` Nil)]

Trade Payables - - 0.59

TOTAL - - 0.59
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As at

31.03.2017
`/Crores

As at

31.03.2016
`/Crores

As at

01.07.2015
`/Crores

23 Other Non-Current Financial Liabilities

Deposits - 5.32 5.32

TOTAL - 5.32 5.32

24 Non-Current Provisions

Provision for Gratuity and other Employee Benefits
(includes ` 2.60 Crores (2016 - ` 2.59 Crores, 2015 - 
Nil for Other Employee Benefits)

5.33 4.76 2.60

TOTAL 5.33 4.76 2.60

25 Current Borrowings

Secured:

Loans from Banks

- Term Loans 223.92 224.61 255.77

- Cash Credits - 73.92 9.92

- Buyers Credit - - 10.29

Unsecured:

- From Other Parties 149.36 - -

- Commercial Paper 195.00 125.00 300.00

TOTAL 568.28 423.53 575.98

Note:

1. (i) Secured Term Loan from Banks amounting to ` 124.78 Crores (2016 - ` 124.61 Crores, 2015 - ` 139.90 Crores) is 
secured by way of (1) First pari passu charge on all immovable, movable and intangible assets of the HCL Infosystems 
Ltd and it’s Material Subsidiaries (2) First pari-passu charge on all Current Assets of the HCL Infosystems Ltd & it’s 
Material Subsidiaries (except Lease Rental Receivables). (3) Negative lien on Two Identified Properties, along with 
non-fund based facilities from Bank.The Hypothecation of the movable assets has been created post balance sheet 
date and the mortgage of the immovable assets is under process. It carries interest @ 11.50 % p.a.

(ii) Short Term Loan of ` 99.14 Crores (2016 - ` 100.00 Crores, 2015 - ` 75 Crores ) is secured by way of subservient charge 
on stock and receivables of the Company and against Support from promoter company. It also carries a lien on 
Mutual Funds of ` 49.97 Crores (2016 - ` 49.97 Crores). Short Term Loan of ` 74.14 Crs is repayable in one year from 

the date of disbursement and carries interest @ 9.50 % p.a. and ` 25 Crs is repayable in three months from the date of 
disbursement and carries interest @ 11.50 % p.a. (Refer Note 21).

(iii) Secured Loan from Banks amounting to Nil (2016 - ` 73.92 Crores, 2015 - ` 61.08 Crores) are secured by way of (1) 

First pari passu charge on all immovable, movable and intangible assets of the HCL Infosystems Ltd and it’s Material 
Subsidiaries (2) First pari-passu charge on all Current Assets of the HCL Infosystems Ltd & it’s Material Subsidiaries 

(except Lease Rental Receivables). (3) Negative lien on Two Identified Properties. The Hypothecation of the movable 

assets has been created on 30th March ‘2017 and the mortgage of the immovable assets is under process.

(iv) Unsecured Term loans from Others amounting to ` 149.36 Crores (2016 - Nil, 2015 - Nil) and against support from 
promoter company, is repayable in 1 yearly instalments from the date of the disbursement which carries interest @ 
9.50% p.a.

(v) Unsecured commercial papers from Others amounting to ` 195.00 Crores (2016 - ` 125.00 Crores, 2015 - ` 300.00 
Crores ) is repayable in next 3 to 6 months from the date of availament of each tranche, which carries interest @ 

10.50% to 11% p.a.

Note: As per Ind AS provisions, the term loan balances are adjusted with the transaction/processing fees paid on the 
facility.

Note: Material Subsidiaries means HCL Services Ltd., HCL Infotech Ltd. and HCL Learning Ltd.
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As at

31.03.2017
`/Crores

As at

31.03.2016
`/Crores

As at

01.07.2015
`/Crores

26 Trade Payables (Refer Note 52)

Trade Payables

(a) Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises 
and small enterprises (Refer Note 44) and

0.02 0.03 0.07

(b) Total outstanding dues of other than micro 
enterprises and small enterprises
[Includes Acceptance ` 56.95 Crores (2016 - ` 
101.90 Crores, 2015 - ` 140.07 Crores)]

391.85 434.04 532.81

TOTAL 391.87 434.07 532.88

27 Other Current Financial Liabilities

Current Maturities of Long-Term Debts (Refer Note 
21)

99.52 116.22 270.88

Interest Accrued but not due on Borrowings 4.64 4.63 3.00

Other Payable to related parties (Refer Note 44) 18.60 16.62 15.92

Deposits 5.30 - -

Unpaid Dividends* 1.28 1.81 2.16

Employee Benefits Payable 14.73 11.12 16.96

Capital Creditors 0.55 0.67 0.37

TOTAL 144.62 151.07 309.29

* There are no amount due and outstanding to be credited to Investor Education and Protection Fund under Section 
205C of the Companies Act, 1956.These shall be credited and paid to the Fund as and when due.

28 Other Current Liabilities

Deferred Revenue 11.17 30.16 28.10

Advances Received from Customers 29.59 50.14 27.18

Statutory Dues Payable 7.20 7.02 24.04

TOTAL 47.96 87.32 79.32

29 Current Provisions

Provision for Gratuity and Other Employee 
Benefits#

5.48 3.40 2.69

Provision for Warranty (Refer Note 43) - - 0.27

Provision for Litigation 1.62 1.58 1.65

TOTAL 7.10 4.98 4.61

[# includes ` 1.09 Crores (2016- ` 1.20 Crores, 2015 - 1.25 Crores) for provision for leave encashment and ` 3.57 Crores 

(2016 - ` 0.53 Crores, 2015 - Nil) for other employee benefits]

30 Current Tax Liabilities

Current income tax liabilities 
[2015 - Net of Advance Income Tax of ` 544.67 
Crores]

- - 1.04

TOTAL - - 1.04
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Year ended

31.03.2017
`/Crores

Nine months 

ended
31.03.2016

`/Crores

31 Revenue from operations

Sale of Products (including excise duty) 2,237.95 2,479.87

Sale of Services 27.41 19.40

TOTAL 2,265.36 2,499.27

32 Other income

Interest Income from financial asset at amortised cost

- On Fixed Deposits (Gross) 1.69 1.30

- On Others
[Includes Interest on Inter Company Deposits amounting to ` 26.35 Crores (2016 - ` 
53.43 Crores)]

26.35 53.43

- Dividend from Investment in Mutual Funds 4.82 5.68

Gain on sale of Investment carried at Fair Value Through Profit or Loss 2.20 3.80

Net Profit on Sale of Property, Plant & Equipment 0.22 -

Gain on Foreign Exchange Fluctuation 1.64 -

Provisions/Liabilities no longer required written back 0.57 0.57

Miscellaneous Income 10.12 8.38

TOTAL 47.61 73.16

33 Changes in inventories of finished goods, work-in-progress and stock-in-trade

Closing Balance

- Finished Goods (Including in Transit) 0.11 0.58

- Stock-In-Trade 58.47 94.13

58.58 94.71

Opening Balance

- Finished Goods (Including in Transit) 0.58 1.99

- Stock-In-Trade 94.13 123.95

94.71 125.94

Changes in Inventories of finished goods and stock-in-trade 36.13 31.23

34 Other direct expenses

Purchase of Services 24.67 16.63

Spares and Stores Consumed 1.63 5.41

Labour and Processing Charges 0.25 0.55

Excise duty 0.08 0.01

TOTAL 26.63 22.60

Notes to the Financial Statements



106 Annual Report 2016-17

Year ended

31.03.2017
`/Crores

Nine months 

ended
31.03.2016

`/Crores

35 Employee benefits expense

Salaries, Wages, Bonus and Gratuity 54.95 52.19

Contribution to Provident and Other Funds 2.45 2.13

Staff Welfare Expenses 0.71 0.55

TOTAL 58.11 54.87

36 Finance costs

Interest on Non - current and current Borrowings 96.80 78.92

Other Borrowing Costs 7.80 2.60

TOTAL 104.60 81.52

37 Other expenses

Rent (Refer Note 48) 7.57 7.46

Rates and Taxes 4.43 2.03

Printing and Stationery 0.63 0.53

Communication 1.64 1.21

Travelling and Conveyance 5.44 7.33

Packing, Freight and Forwarding 5.76 7.23

Legal, Professional and Consultancy Charges (Refer Note 46) 13.79 15.76

Retainership Expenses 5.71 4.23

Training and Conference 1.17 1.17

Office Electricity and Water 0.43 0.33

Insurance 3.14 3.26

Advertisement, Publicity and Entertainment 1.91 1.35

Hire Charges 0.44 0.41

Commission on Sales 4.10 3.04

Bank Charges 3.96 3.80

Allowance for Doubtful Debts - 16.34

Allowance for Doubtful Loans and Advances and Other Current Assets - 0.84

Loss on Sale of Property, Plant & Equipment - 0.04

Property, Plant & Equipment Written-Off 0.86 0.06

Repairs

- Buildings 0.08 0.01

- Others 1.27 0.85

Net Loss on Foreign Exchange Fluctuation (other than considered as Finance Cost) - 0.47

Miscellaneous 3.12 4.16

Operating cost allocated from HCL Services Limited, the subsidiary Company 10.91 10.62

76.36 92.53

Less: Operating cost recovered from Subsidiaries 15.94 13.29

TOTAL 60.42 79.24
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38 Fair Value Measurements

The carrying value of financial instruments by categories are as under :

As at 31.03.2017

` Crores

Particulars Notes Fair Value 
through 

OCI

Fair value 
through 

Profit or Loss

Amortised 
Cost

Total 
Carrying 

Value

Total Fair 
Value

Non-current assets

(i) Investments 6 535.51 535.51 535.51

(ii) Others 8 0.53 0.53 0.53

536.04 536.04 536.04

Current assets

(i) Investments 7 120.87 120.87 120.87

(ii) Trade receivables 13 432.00 432.00 432.00

(iii) Cash and cash equivalents 14 67.68 67.68 67.68

(iv) Bank balances other than (iii) above 15 4.41 4.41 4.41

(v) Loans 16 389.02 389.02 389.02

(vi) Others 17 6.30 6.30 6.30

-

120.87 899.41 1,020.28 1,020.28

Financial Liabilities

Non-current liabilities

(i) Borrowings 21 134.11 134.11 134.11

134.11 134.11 134.11

Current liabilities

(i) Borrowings 25 568.28 568.28 568.28

(ii) Trade payables 26 391.87 391.87 391.87

(iii) Other financial liabilities 27 144.62 144.62 144.62

1,104.77 1,104.77 1,104.77

As at 31.03.2016

` Crores

Particulars Notes Fair Value 
through 

OCI

Fair value 
through 

Profit or Loss

Amortised 
Cost

Total 
Carrying 

Value

Total Fair 
Value

Non-current assets

(i) Investments 6 777.51 777.51 777.51

(ii) Others 8 0.56 0.56 0.56

- - 778.07 778.07 778.07

Current assets

(i) Investments 7 50.16 50.16 50.16

(ii) Trade receivables 13 302.23 302.23 302.23

(iii) Cash and cash equivalents 14 94.39 94.39 94.39

(iv) Bank balances other than (iii) above 15 4.94 4.94 4.94

(v) Loans 16 598.84 598.84 598.84

(vi) Others 17 4.69 4.69 4.69

-

- 50.16 1,005.09 1,055.25 1,055.25
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` Crores

Particulars Notes Fair Value 
through 

OCI

Fair value 
through 

Profit or Loss

Amortised 
Cost

Total 
Carrying 

Value

Total Fair 
Value

Non-current liabilities

(i) Borrowings 21 106.70 106.70 106.70

(ii) Other financial liabilities 23 5.32 5.32 5.32

- 112.02 112.02 112.02

Current liabilities

(i) Borrowings 25 423.53 423.53 423.53

(ii) Trade payables 26 434.07 434.07 434.07

(iii) Other financial liabilities 27 151.07 151.07 151.07

- 1,008.67 1,008.67 1,008.67

Fair Value Measurements

As at 01.07.2015

` Crores

Particulars Notes Fair Value 
through 

OCI

Fair value 
through 

Profit or Loss

Amortised 
Cost

Total 
Carrying 

Value

Total Fair 
Value

Non-current assets

(i) Investments 6 589.50 589.50 589.50

(iii) Others 8 1.06 1.06 1.06

- - 590.56 590.56 590.56

Current assets

(i) Investments 7 235.66 - 235.66 235.66

(ii) Trade receivables 13 399.39 399.39 399.39

(iii) Cash and cash equivalents 14 61.88 61.88 61.88

(iv) Bank balances other than (iii) above 15 5.33 5.33 5.33

(v) Loans 16 1,202.27 1,202.27 1,202.27

(vi) Others 17 5.11 5.11 5.11

- 235.66 1,673.98 1,909.64 1,909.64

Financial Liabilities

Non-current liabilities

(i) Borrowings 21 163.50 163.50 163.50

(ii) Trade Payables 22 0.59 0.59 0.59

(iii) Other financial liabilities 23 5.32 5.32 5.32

- 169.41 169.41 169.41

Current liabilities

(i) Borrowings 25 575.98 575.98 575.98

(ii) Trade payables 26 532.88 532.88 532.88

(iii Other financial liabilities 27 309.29 309.29 309.29

- 1,418.15 1,418.15 1,418.15
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Fair Value hierarchy

This section explains the judgements and estimates made in determining the fair values of the financial instruments that are 
recognized and measured at fair value. To provide an indication about the reliability of the inputs used in determining fair 
values, the Company has classified its financial instruments into the three levels prescribed under the accounting standard. An 
explanation of each level follows underneath the table.

(i) Quantitative disclosures of fair value measurement hierarchy for assets and liabilities as at 31.03.2017:

Fair Value measurement using ` Crores

Date of 
Valuation

Quoted prices 
in active 
markets

Significant 
Observable 

inputs

Significant 
Unobservable 

inputs

Total

(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)

Financial Assets measured at FVTPL

Investment in Mutual Funds 31.03.2017 120.87 120.87

(ii) Quantitative disclosures of fair value measurement hierarchy for assets and liabilities as at 31.03.2016:

Fair Value measurement using ` Crores

Date of 
Valuation

Quoted prices 
in active 
markets

Significant 
Observable 

inputs

Significant 
Unobservable 

inputs

Total

(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)

Financial Assets measured at FVTPL

Investment in Mutual Funds 31.03.2016 50.16 50.16

(ii) Quantitative disclosures of fair value measurement hierarchy for assets and liabilitiesas at 01.07.2015:

Fair Value measurement using ` Crores

Date of 
Valuation

Quoted prices 
in active 
markets

Significant 
Observable 

inputs

Significant 
Unobservable 

inputs

Total

(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)

Financial Assets measured at FVTPL

Investment in Mutual Funds 01.07.2015 235.66 235.66

*There were no transfers between the Level 1, Level 2 and Level 3 during the year.

* There is no change in the valuation technique during the year.

Valuation techniques used to derive Level 2 fair values

a) Investment in mutual funds have been fair valued using published statement for NAV’s.

39 Financial Risk Management

The Company’s activities expose it to market risk, liquidity risk and credit risk. The Company’s financial risk management is 
an integral part of how to plan and execute its business strategies.

In order to minimize any adverse effects on the financial performance of the Company, derivative financial instruments, 
such as foreign exchange forward contracts are entered to hedge certain foreign currency exposures. Derivatives are used 
exclusively for hedging purposes and not as trading or speculative instruments.

This note explains the sources of risk which the entity is exposed to and how the entity manages the risk and the impact of 

hedge accounting in the financial statements.
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Risk Exposure Arising from Measurement Management

Credit Risk Investments 
Trade receivables 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Bank balances 
Loans 
Other financial assets

Aging Analysis 
Credit appraisal

Diversification of bank 
deposits, investments, credit 
limits and letters of credit

Liquidity risk Borrowings and Other Liabilities Rolling cash flow 
forecasts

Availability of committed 
credit lines, borrowing 
facilities and liquid 
investments

Market risk - foreign 
exchange

Future commercial transactions 
Recognized financial assets not 
denominated in Indian rupee (INR)

Hedging percentage 
Sensitivity analysis

Forward foreign exchange 
contracts

Market risk - interest rate Long-term borrowings at variable 
rates

Sensitivity analysis Replacement of high cost 
debt with low cost debt

The Company’s risk management is carried out by the Treasury and Credit Control department under policies approved by 
the senior management and audit committee.

Financial Risk Management

Credit Risk

Credit risk arise from possibility that customer may default on its obligation resulting into financial loss. The maximum 
exposure to the credit risk is primarily from trade receivables.

Credit risk on cash and cash equivalent and Bank balances is not significant as it majorly includes Deposits with Bank and 
financial institutions with high credit ratings assigned by international and domestic credit rating agencies.

Investment primarily includes investment in Mutual funds

The credit risk is managed by the group through Credit approvals, establishing the financial reliability of the customers 
taking into account the financial condition, analysis of historical bad debts and ageing of accounts receivables. Individual 
limits are set accordingly by the group credit control department.

The Company uses a provision matrix to compute the expected credit loss for trade receivables. The provision matrix takes 
into consideration historical credit loss experience and other relevant available external and internal credit risk factors.

Following table provides agewise breakup of Receivables

As at 31-03-2017 As at 31-03-2016 As at 01-07-2015

Not Due 183.51 145.85 164.94

0-90 days past due 213.87 87.77 146.63

91-180 days past due 8.96 12.23 9.71

181-365 days past due 13.07 16.30 21.45

1 - 2 years past due 8.50 48.05 65.83

More than 2 years past due 28.87 18.76 1.22

456.78 328.96 409.78

Financial assets are written off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovery, such as a debtor failing to engage 
in a repayment plan with the Company. The Company categorises a trade receivable for write off when a debtor fails to 
make contractual payments greater than 3 years past due. Where loans or receivables have been written off, the company 
continues to engage in enforcement activity to attempt to recover the receivable due. Where recoveries are made, these 
are recognised in profit or loss.
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The summary of life time expected credit loss allowance made on customer balances during the year and balance 
at the year end is given below:

` Crores

As at 31-03-2017 As at 31-06-2016

Balance at the beginning 26.73 10.39

Provided during the year - 16.37

Amounts written off 1.95 0.03

Balance at the end 24.78 26.73

Financial Risk Management

Liquidity risk:

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will not be able to settle or meet its obligations on time or at a reasonable price. 
The Company’s treasury department is responsible for liquidity, funding as well as settlement management. In addition, 
processes and policies related to such risks are overseen by senior management. Management monitors the Company’s 
net liquidity position through rolling forecasts on the basis of expected cash flows.

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Company’s financial liabilities based on contractual 
undiscounted payments

` Crores

As at 31 March 2017 Carrying 
Value

On 
demand

Less than 
1 year

1 to 2 
Years

2 to 5 
Years

More than 
5 Years

Non-derivatives

Borrowings

 -From Banks 258.41 - 237.86 12.96 7.59 -

 -From Others 350.83 - 236.98 78.54 35.31 -

 -Commercial Paper 195.00 - 195.00 - - -

Trade payables 391.87 - 391.87 - - -

Other financial liabilities

 -Deposits 5.30 - 5.30 - - -

 -Interest accrued but not due 4.64 - 4.64 - - -

 -Other Payable to related parties 18.60 - 18.60 - - -

 -Capital Creditors 0.55 - 0.55 - - -

 -Unpaid dividends 1.28 1.28 - - - -

 -Employee Benefits Payable 14.73 14.73

Total non-derivative liabilities 1,241.21 1.28 1,105.53 91.50 42.90 -
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` Crores

As at 31 March 2016 Carrying 
Value

On 
demand

Less than 
1 year

1 to 2 
Years

2 to 5 
Years

More than 
5 Years

Non-derivatives

Borrowings

 -From Banks 348.83 73.93 236.15 15.00 23.75 -

 -From Others 174.18 - 105.52 40.72 27.94 -

 -Commercial Paper 125.00 - 125.00 - - -

Trade payables 434.07 - 434.07 - - -

Other financial liabilities

 -Deposits 5.32 - - 5.32 - -

 -Interest accrued but not due 4.63 - 4.63 - - -

 -Other Payable to related parties 16.62 - 16.62 - - -

 -Capital Creditors 0.67 - 0.67 - - -

 -Unpaid dividends 1.81 1.81 - - - -

 -Employee Benefits Payable 11.12 11.12

Total non-derivative liabilities 1,122.25 75.74 933.78 61.04 51.69 -

` Crores

As at 30 June 2015 Carrying 
Value

On 
demand

Less than 
1 year

1 to 2 
Years

2 to 5 
Years

More than 
5 Years

Non-derivatives

Borrowings

 -From Banks 525.11 20.21 424.91 26.68 53.31 -

 -From Others 186.10 - 101.75 65.50 18.85 -

 -Commercial Paper 300.00 - 300.00 - - -

Trade payables 532.88 - 532.88 - - -

Other financial liabilities

 -Deposits 5.32 - - 5.32 - -

 -Interest accrued but not due 3.00 - 3.00 - - -

 -Other Payable to related parties 15.92 - 15.92 - - -

 -Capital Creditors 0.37 - 0.37 - - -

 -Unpaid dividends 2.16 - 2.16 - - -

 -Employee Benefits Payable 16.96 - 16.96 - - -

Total non-derivative liabilities 1,587.82 20.21 1,397.95 97.50 72.16 -

Financial Risk Management

Market Risk

(i) Interest rate risk

The Company’s main interest rate risk arise from borrowings with variable interest rates, which expose the Company 
to Cash flow interest rate risk. As on March 31, 2017 the Company has ` 38.75 Crores (2016- ` 123.93 Crores, 2015- ` 

163.69 Crores) of borrowings with variable interest rates. In order to optimize the Company’s position with regards to 
interest expenses and to manage the interest rate risk, treasury performs a comprehensive corporate interest rate risk 
management by balancing of fixed rate and floating rate financial instruments in its total portfolio.
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(a) Interest rate risk exposure ` Crores

The exposure of the Company’s borrowing to interest rate changes at the end of the reporting period are as 
follows:

31.03.3017 31.03.2016 01.07.2015

Variable rate borrowings 38.74 123.62 264.44

Fixed rate borrowings 765.50 524.38 746.77

Total borrowings 804.24 648.00 1,011.21

As at the end of the reporting period, the Company had the following variable rate borrowings:

31.03.3017 31.03.2016 01.07.2015

Weighted 
average 

interest rate

Balance % of 
total 

loans

Weighted 
average 

interest rate

Balance % of 
total 

loans

Weighted 
average 

interest rate

Balance % of 
total 

loans

Bank loans, Cash 

credits

11.04% 38.74 4.82% 10.98% 123.62 19.08% 11.43% 264.44 26.15%

Net exposure to cash 

flow interest rate risk

38.74 123.62 264.44

(b) Sensitivity ` Crores

Profit or loss is sensitive to higher / lower interest expense from borrowings as a result of changes in interest 
rates.

Impact on profit after tax Impact on other 
components of equity

Year ended 
31.03.2017

Nine months 
period ended 

31.03.2016

Year ended 
31.03.2017

Nine months 
period ended 

31.03.2016

Interest rates - increase by 10 basis points (50 

bps)

(0.03) (0.43) (0.03) (0.43)

Interest rates - decrease by 10 basis points 
(50 bps)

0.03 0.43 0.03 0.43

(ii) Foreign currency risk

The Company’s major operations are in India and are in INR and therefore, the Company is not exposed to significant 
foreign currency risk. The Company evaluates the exchange rate exposure arising from foreign currency transactions 
and the Company follows established risk management policies which are approved by the senior management and 
the Audit Committee, including the use of derivatives like foreign exchange forward contracts to hedge exposure to 
foreign currency risk.

(a) Foreign currency risk exposure ` Crores

The Company’s exposure to foreign currency risk at the end of the reporting period expressed in INR are as 

follows

As at 31.03.2017

USD EUR GBP JPY SEK AED SGD

Financial Assets

Trade receivables 9.30 - - - - 1.13 0.11

Derivative assets - - - - - - -

Net exposure to foreign currency risk (assets) 9.30 - - - - 1.13 0.11

Financial Liabilities

Trade Payables 21.77 0.03 0.01 - - - -

Derivative liabilities

Foreign exchange forward contracts (19.12) - - - - - -

Net exposure to foreign currency risk (liabilities) 2.65 0.03 0.01 - - - -
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As at 31.03.2016

USD EUR GBP JPY SEK AED SGD

Financial Assets

Trade receivables 27.96 0.14 - - - - -

Derivative assets - - - - - - -

Net exposure to foreign currency risk (assets) 27.96 0.14 - - - - -

Financial Liabilities

Trade Payables 49.97 0.25 0.06 0.03 (0.12) - 0.07

Derivative liabilities

Foreign exchange forward contracts (38.92) - - - - - -

Net exposure to foreign currency risk (liabilities) 11.05 0.25 0.06 0.03 (0.12) - 0.07

` Crores

As at 01.07.2015

USD EUR GBP JPY SEK AED SGD

Financial Assets

Trade receivables 28.25 0.13 - - - -

Derivative assets - - - - - -

Net exposure to foreign currency risk (assets) 28.25 0.13 - - - -

Financial Liabilities

Trade Payables 35.30 0.09 0.01

Derivative liabilities

Foreign exchange forward contracts (23.76) - - - - -

Net exposure to foreign currency risk (liabilities) 11.54 0.09 0.01 - - -

(b) The Company’s foreign currency exposure as at the reporting date is not significant, hence, sensitivity analysis 
has not been reported.

40 Capital Management

(a) Risk Management

The Company’s objective when managing capital are to safeguard their ability to continue as going concern so that 
they can continue to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal 
capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

The Capital structure as of March 31, 2017, March 31,2016 and 01 July, 2015 are as follows:

` Crores

As at
31-03-2017

As at
31-03-2016

As at
31-03-2015

Total Debt 801.91 646.45 1,010.36

Equity 622.07 984.40 1,171.64

Capital and net debt 1,423.98 1,630.85 2,182.00

Gearing ratio 56.31% 39.64% 46.30%

The Company is not subject to any externally imposed capital requirements for the year ended March 31, 2017, nine 

months ended March 31, 2016 and year ended June 30, 2015
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41 Exceptional items include :

` Crores

Particulars Year ended 
31.03.2017

(` Crores)

Nine months 
period ended 

31.03.2016
(` Crores)

a. Net Profit on Sale of Properties - 2.78

b. Provision for impairment in the value of investment in HCL Learning Limited 
(Refer Note 6)

- (122.00)

c. Provision against Loans given to HCL Infotech (70.19) (39.79)

d. Provision for impairment in the value of investment in HCL Services Limited 
(Refer Note 6)

(250.00) -

Total (320.19) (159.01)

Commentary :

a) Land & Building was sold during the nine months period ended March 31, 2016 which management believes was of 
exceptional nature.

b) In respect to Investment in HCL Learning Limited, the Company in 2015-16 recognized an impairment charge of ` 
122 Crores , being excess of carrying value of investment over the recoverable value. This impairment was due to 
modification in the business model and changes in the overall business environment for the segment

Recoverable value of business was calculated based on value in use and discounting rate used for the ‘value in use’ 
calculation was 12-18%, based on the pre tax risk adjusted weighted average cost of capital.

c) The Company has made provision of ` 70.19 Crores (2015-16 - ` 39.79 Crores) against loan given to HCL Infotech 
Limited. The Company, considering that HCL Infotech Limited has negative net worth as on March 31, 2017 due to 
continuous loss incurred by entity and based on future plan of this entity, may not be able to recover the loans given 
to HCL Infotech Ltd upto the value of its negative net worth.

d) In respect to Investment in HCL Services Limited, the Company considering the past business performance in the 
markets wherein Group operates in, changes in the market dynamics, current business strategy and focus areas 
in the future years, the management has computed recoverable value based on value in use and provided for an 
impairment charge of ` 250 crores, being excess of carrying value over the recoverable value. Though the group 
is optimistic about the future growth prospects, the management has taken a holistic view of its past performance 
while designing the future outlook, with renewed strategy. No impairement was identified during the nine months 
period ended March 31, 2016. 

Discounting rate used for the ‘value in use’ calculation was 16.5-20%, based on the pre tax risk adjusted weighted 

average cost of capital.

42 a) Contingent Liabilities :

Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debts:

As at
31-03-2017

 `/Crores

As at
31-03-2016

`/Crores

As at
30-06-2015

`/Crores

Sales Tax* 256.27 305.38 146.32

Excise* 98.77 96.68 96.72

Income Tax* 6.19 6.19 5.39

Industrial Disputes, Civil Suits and Consumer Disputes 3.20 8.11 2.70

“* Includes sum of ` 102.24 Crores (2016 - ` 84.69 Crores, 2015 - ` 20.83 Crores) deposited by the Company against 
the above. 

The amounts shown in item (a) represents the best possible estimates arrived at on the basis of available information. 
The uncertainties and possible reimbursements are dependent on the out come of the different legal processes 
which have been initiated by the Company or the claimants as the case may be and therefore cannot be predicted 

Notes to the Financial Statements



116 Annual Report 2016-17

accurately.It is not practicable for the Company to estimate the timing of cash outflows, if any, in respect of the above 
pending resolution of the respective proceedings.

b) Corporate Guarantees :

(i) Corporate Guarantee of ` 484.40 Crores (2016 - ` 663.92 Crores, 2015 - ` 624.52 Crores) was given to Banks and 

Financial Institutions for working capital facilities sanctioned to subsidiaries of which the total amount utilised 
as at March 31, 2017 is ` 143.40 Crores (2016 - ` 183.55 Crores, 2015 - ` 164.80 Crores).

(ii) Corporate Guarantee of Nil (2016 - ` 40.76 Crores, 2015 - ` 20.8 Crores) was given by the Company, on behalf of 
its subsidiaries, to third parties for assigning credit limit to subsidiaries.”

c) Other Litigations :

(i) The Company has been named in a supplementary charge sheet filed with the Court with respect to a Contract 
awarded to the Company in 2009 by the UP state Government, amounting to ` 4.94 Crores, for the supply of 
computer hardware and related services under the National Rural Health Mission and therefore summons have 
been issued by the Court. The matter is currently pending for adjudication before the Special Court CBI . The 
management is of the view that the company has not been engaged in any wrong doing.

(ii) The Company has certain sales tax and other related litigation amounting to ` 1.62 Crores (2016 ` 1.58 Crores, 
2015 - ̀  1.65 Crores) against which provision have been made. Provision amounting to ̀  0.04 Crores was created 
during the year.”

d) Commitments :

Estimated value of contracts on capital account for Property, plant & equipment, excluding capital advances, 
remaining to be executed and not provided for amount to Nil (2016 - Nil, 2015 - ` 6.85 Crores).

43 The Company has the following provision for warranty in the books of accounts:

As at
31-03-2017

 `/Crores

As at
31-03-2016

`/Crores

As at
30-06-2015

`/Crores

Opening Balance - 0.27 0.00

Additions during the year / period - - 0.66

Utilised/Reversed during the year / period - 0.27 0.39

Closing Balance - - 0.27

The warranty provision has been recognised for expected warranty claims for the first year of warranty on products sold 
during the year. Due to the very nature of such costs, Outflows of economic benefits against this provision is expected to 
happen within one year.

44 Disclosure of Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises based on information available with the Company:

As at

31-03-2017
 `/Crores

As at

31-03-2016
`/Crores

As at

30-06-2015
`/Crores

a. (i) Principal amount remaining unpaid to any supplier 
as at the end of the year.

0.01 0.02 0.01

(ii) Interest due on the above amount. 0.01 0.01 0.01

b. (i) Amount of interest paid in terms of section 16 of the 
Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development 

Act, 2006 (Act).

- - -

(ii) Amount of principal payments made to the suppliers 
beyond the appointed day during the year.

0.11 - 1.14

c. Amount of interest due and payable for the period of 

delay in making payment but without adding the interest 
specified under the Act.

- - -

d. Amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the 
end of the year.

0.01 0.01 0.06
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As at

31-03-2017
 `/Crores

As at

31-03-2016
`/Crores

As at

30-06-2015
`/Crores

e. Amount of further interest remaining due and payable 
even in the succeeding years, until such date when the 
interest dues as above are actually paid to the small 
enterprises.

- - -

45 As per provisions of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company has to provide at least 2% of average net profits 
of the preceeding three financial years towards Corporate Social Responsibility (“CSR”). Accordingly, a CSR Committee has 
been formed for carrying out CSR activities as per Schedule VII of the Companies Act, 2013. The Company was not requred 
to spend/contribute to CSR Activity during the year as per Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 as average net profit for 
the last three financial year is negative.

46 Remuneration to Auditor*:

Particulars Year ended 
31.03.2017

(` Crores)

Nine months 
period ended 

31.03.2016
(` Crores)

a) Statutory Audit 1.04 1.36

b) Other Audit Services/Certifications 0.24 0.60

c) Out-of-Pocket Expenses 0.06 0.08

TOTAL 1.34 2.04

* Excluding service tax.

47 Employee Stock Option Plan (ESOP):

(a) The Company has established Employee Stock Option Scheme 2000 and Employee Stock Based Compensation Plan 
2005, for which a total grant of 31,90,200 and 33,35,487 options have been set aside respectively for the employees of 
the Company and its subsidiaries. These options vest on a graded basis over a period of 42 and 60 months respectively 

from the date of grant and are to be exercised with in a maximum period of 5 years from the date of vesting.

The Board of Directors/Committee approves the grant of options, including the grant of options that lapse out of 
each grant. Each option of ` 10/- confers on the employee a right to five equity shares of ` 2/- each. 

Exercise price is market price as specified in the Employee Stock Option Scheme and Employee Stock Purchase 
Scheme Guidelines, 1999 issued by the Securities and Exchange Board of India(“”SEBI””). 

Details of Grants made under Employee Stock Option Scheme 2000 as on 31.03.2017

Date of 
Grant

Exercise price 
of the option 

for five equity 
shares of ` 2/- 

each

Options 
outstanding 

at the 

beginning 
of the year

Options 

granted 

during the 
year

Options 
forfeited 

during the 
year

Options 

exercised 
during the 

year

Options 

expired 
during the 

year

Options 
outstanding 
at the end of 

the year

Options 
exercisable 

at the end 
of the year

15-Mar-07 648.75 - - - - - - -

(49,200) (-) (-) (-) (49,200) (-) (-)

23-Jan-08 898.25 4,171 - - - 4,171 - -

(7,598) (-) (-) (-) (3,427) (4,171) (4,171)

30-Jan-12 233.25 - - - - - - -

(6,000) (-) (-) (-) (6000) (-) (-)

9-Sep-13 132 4,000 - 4,000 - - - -

(7,000) (-) (-) (3000) (-) (4,000) (-)

21-Nov-14 363.75 10,000 - 7,000 - 3,000 - -

(10,000) (-) (-) (-) (-) (10,000) (3,000)

Total 18,171 - 11,000 - 7,171 - -

(94798) (-) (12000) (3000) (61627) (18171) (7171)

Note: Previous period’s figures are given in brackets.
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Details of Grants made under Employee Stock Based Compensation Plan 2005 as on 31.03.2017

Date of 
Grant

Exercise price 
of the option 

for five equity 
shares of ` 2/- 

each

Options 
outstanding 

at the 
beginning 
of the year

Options 
granted 

during the 
year

Options 
forfeited 

during the 
year

Options 
exercised 

during the 
year

Options 
expired 

during the 
year

Options 
outstanding 
at the end of 

the year

Options 
exercisable 

at the end 
of the year

13-Aug-05 1144.00 - - - - - - -

(188,698) (-) (-) (-) (188,698) (-) (-)

19-Oct-05 1157.50 - - - - - - -

(3,198) (-) (-) (-) (3,198) (-) (-)

15-Nov-05 1267.75 - - - - - - -

(1,070) (-) (-) (-) (1,070) (-) (-)

15-Dec-05 1348.25 - - - - - - -

(470) (-) (-) (-) (470) (-) (-)

14-Jan-06 1300.00 - - - - - - -

(340) (-) (-) (-) (340) (-) (-)

15-Feb-06 1308.00 - - - - - - -

(280) (-) (-) (-) (280) (-) (-)

16-Mar-06 1031.00 - - - - - - -

(690) (-) (-) (-) (690) (-) (-)

17-Apr-06 868.75 160 - - - 160 - -

(160) (-) (-) (-) (-) (160) (160)

15-May-06 842.50 810 - - - 810 - -

(810) (-) (-) (-) (-) (810) (810)

15-Jun-06 620.50 540 - - - 540 - -

(860) (-) (-) (-) (320) (540) (540)

17-Jul-06 673.75 310 - - - 310 - -

(620) (-) (-) (-) (310) (310) (310)

15-Mar-07 648.75 35,180 - - - 35,180 - -

(78,840) (-) (-) (-) (43,660) (35,180) (35,180)

23-Jan-08 898.25 9,960 - - - 5,895 4,065 4,065

(18,585) (-) (-) (-) (8,625) (9,960) (9,960)

17-Aug-11 375.00 7,000 - - - 7,000 - -

(7000) (-) (-) (-) (-) (7,000) (5600)

30-Jan-13 186.00 20000 - - - - 20,000 16,000

(20000) (-) (-) (-) (-) (20000) (12000)

Total 73,960 - - - 49,895 24,065 20,065

(321,621) (-) (-) (-) (247,661) (73,960) (64,560)

Note: Previous period’s figures are given in brackets.
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(b) Fair Value of options

Assumptions

The fair value of each stock option granted under Employee Stock Option Scheme 2000 and Employee Stock Based 
Compensation Plan 2005 as on the date of grant has been computed using Black-Scholes Option Pricing Formula and 

the model inputs are given as under:

Employee Stock 
Option Scheme 

2000

Employee Stock 
Based Compensation 

Plan 2005

Volatility 31% to 68% 31% to 65%

Risk free rate 6.25% to 6.783% 6.25% to 6.82%

Exercise Price 132.00 to 1,271.25 178.00 to 1,348.25

Time to Maturity (years) 2.20 to 5.50 2.50 to 7.00

Dividend Yield 0% to 32% 0% to 37%

Life of options 8.5 Years 10 Years

Fair Value of options as at the grant date ` 1.69 to ` 196.18 ` 0.00 to ` 268.16

Notes:

1. Volatility: Based on historical volatility in the share price movement of the Company.

2. Risk Free Rate: Being the interest rate applicable for maturity equal to the expected life of options based on yield 
curve for Government Securities.

3. Time to Maturity: Vesting period and volatility of the underlying equity shares have been considered for 
estimation.

4. Dividend Yield: Based on historical dividend payouts.

48 Leases:

a) Cancelable Operating Leases

As Lessee:

(i) The Company has taken various residential/commercial premises under cancelable operating leases. These 
leases are for a period of eleven months to three years and are normally renewable on expiry.

(ii) The rental expense in respect of operating leases is ̀  7.57 Crores (2016 - ̀  7.46 Crores) which is disclosed as Rent 
expense under ‘Other expenses’.

As Lessor:

The gross block, accumulated depreciation and depreciation expense in respect of the assets given on operating 
lease are as below:

`/Crores

Particulars As at Gross Block Accumulated 
Depreciation

Net Block Depreciation 
Expense

Freehold Land March 31, 2017 1.87 - 1.87 -

March 31, 2016 (1.87) (-) (1.87) (-)

July 1, 2015 (1.01) (-) (1.01)

Building March 31, 2017 16.98 3.93 13.05 0.26

March 31, 2016 (14.71) (1.41) (13.30) (0.19)

July 1, 2015 (2.30) (-) (2.30)

Plant and Machinery March 31, 2017 2.06 0.54 1.52 0.36

March 31, 2016 (2.06) (0.18) (1.88) (0.18)

July 1, 2015 (-) (-) (-)

March 31, 2017 5.09 1.18 3.91 0.54
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`/Crores

Particulars As at Gross Block Accumulated 
Depreciation

Net Block Depreciation 
Expense

Furniture and Fixtures & Office 
Equipments

March 31, 2016 (5.09) (0.65) (4.44) (0.62)

July 1, 2015 (-) (-) (-)

March 31, 2017 0.20 0.12 0.08 0.06

Computers March 31, 2016 (0.22) (0.08) (0.14) (0.04)

July 1, 2015 (-) (-) (-)

TOTAL March 31, 2017 26.20 5.77 20.43 1.22

March 31, 2016 (23.95) (2.32) (21.63) (1.03)

July 1, 2015 (3.31) (-) (3.31)

Note: Previous year’s/period’s figures are given in brackets.

49 Loss per share (EPS)

Basic loss per share is calculated by dividing the net loss for the year attributable to equity shareholders by the weighted 
average number of equity shares outstanding during the period. The loss considered in ascertaining the company’s EPS 
represent loss for the period after tax. Diluted EPS is computed and disclosed using the weighted average number of 
equity and dilutive equivalent shares outstanding during the year except when results would be anti-dilutive.

Calculation of EPS:

Particulars Year ended 
31.03.2017

Nine months ended 
31.03.2016

Loss after tax (`/Crores) (362.33) (187.28)

Weighted average number of shares considered as outstanding in 
computation of Basic EPS

222,919,629 222,913,520

Weighted average number of shares outstanding in computation of 
Diluted EPS

222,919,629 222,913,520

Basic EPS (of ` 2/- each) (` 16.25) (` 8.40)

Diluted EPS (of ` 2/- each) (` 16.25) (` 8.40)

50 Segment Reporting

The Company publishes standalone financial statements along with the consolidated financial statements in the annual 
report. In accordance with Indian Accounting Standard 108, Operating Segments, the Company has disclosed the segment 
information in the consolidated financial statements.

51 The Company has calculated the various benefits provided to employees as under:

 (a) Defined Contribution

During the year, the Company has recognised the following amounts in the Statement of Profit and Loss:

Particulars Year ended 
31.03.2017

`/Crores

Nine months ended 
31.03.2016

`/Crores

(i) Employers Contribution to Superannuation Fund* 0.28 0.25

(ii) Employers Contribution to National Pension Scheme* 0.18 0.06

(iii) Employers contribution to Employee State Insurance* 0.02 0.01

(iv) Employers contribution to Employee’s Pension Scheme 1995* 0.83 0.79

* Included in Contribution to Provident and Other Funds under Employee benefits expense (Refer Note 35).
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(b) Defined Benefit

(i) Gratuity

(ii) Provident Fund#

The Company contributes to the employee provident fund trust “Hindustan Computers Limited Employees 
Provident Fund Trust” which is managed by the Company. The Company’s Provident Fund Trust is exempted 
under Section 17 of Employees’ Provident Fund Act, 1952. Conditions for grant of exemptions stipulate that the 
employer shall make good deficiency, if any, in the interest rate declared by the trust vis-à-vis statutory rate. As 
per Ind AS – 19, Employee Benefits, provident funds set up by employers, which requires interest shortfall to be 
met by the employer, needs to be treated as defined benefit plan. 

The Trust includes employees of the Company as well as of it’s Indian wholly owned subsidiaries and of HCL 
Corporation Private Limited, a related party. In view of the same, it is a multi employer defined benefit plan. 

The Trust has been investing the Provident fund contributions of the employees of all the six companies in a 
composite manner and the same cannot be separately identified entity wise. 

In view of the same an actuarial valuation, in accordance with the Ind AS-19, was carried out at composite level. 
As per actuarial certificate there is no shortfall in the earning of fund against statutorily required “interest rate 
guarantee” and accordingly, the “liability on account of interest rate guarantee”” is nil. 

In accordance with Ind AS 19, an actuarial valuation was carried out in the respect of the aforesaid defined 
benefit plan based on the following assumptions:

Gratuity Provident Fund

Year 

ended 

31.03.2017

Nine months 

ended 

31.03.2016

Year 

ended 30 

June 2015

Year 

ended 

31.03.2017

Nine months 

ended 

31.03.2016

Year 

ended 30 

June 2015

Discount rate (per annum) 6.57% 7.44% 8.00% Not 

Applicable

Not 

Applicable

Not 

Applicable

Rate of increase in 

compensation levels

4.10% 6.00% 6.00% Not 

Applicable

Not 

Applicable

Not 

Applicable

Rate of return on plan assets Not 

Applicable

Not 

Applicable

Not 

Applicable

Not 

Applicable

Not 

Applicable

Not 

Applicable

Expected statutory interest 

rate

Not 

Applicable

Not 

Applicable

Not 

Applicable

8.65% 8.80% 8.75%

Expected short fall in interest 

earnings

Not 

Applicable

Not 

Applicable

Not 

Applicable

0.05% 0.05% 0.05%

Expected average remaining 

working lives of employees 

(years)

17.94 19.20 19.74 17.94 19.20 19.74

As of March 31, 2017, every 0.5 percentage point increase / decrease in discount rate will affect our gratuity 
benefit obligation by approximately by ` 0.06 Crores.

As of March 31, 2017, every 0.5 percentage point increase / decrease in weighted average rate of increase in 
compensation levels will effect our gratuity benefit obligation by approximately ` 0.06 Crores

The estimates of future salary increases considered in actuarial valuation take account of inflation, seniority, 
promotion and other relevant factors such as supply and demand in the employment market.

Description of Risk Exposures:

Valuations are based on certain assumptions, which are dynamic in nature and vary over time. As such company 

is exposed to various risks as follow - 

A) Salary Increases- Actual salary increases will increase the Plan’s liability. Increase in salary increase rate 
assumption in future valuations will also increase the liability.

B) Investment Risk – If Plan is funded then assets liabilities mismatch & actual investment return on assets 

lower than the discount rate assumed at the last valuation date can impact the liability.
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C) Discount Rate : Reduction in discount rate in subsequent valuations can increase the plan’s liability.

D)  Mortality & disability – Actual deaths & disability cases proving lower or higher than assumed in the 
valuation can impact the liabilities.

E) Withdrawals – Actual withdrawals proving higher or lower than assumed withdrawals and change of 

withdrawal rates at subsequent valuations can impact Plan’s liability

Reconciliation of opening and closing balances of the present value of the defined benefit obligation:

`/Crores

As at 31.03.2017 As at 31.03.2016 As at 01.07.2015

Gratuity Provident 
Fund

Gratuity Provident 
Fund

Gratuity Provident 
Fund

Present value of obligation at the 
beginning of the year

3.84 182.22 4.04 167.44 3.88 169.36

Current service cost 0.33 6.28 0.35 6.80 0.20 7.11

Interest cost 0.27 14.58 0.24 13.40 0.29 13.55

Total amount recognised in profit or 
loss

0.61 0.59 0.49

Actuarial (gain)/loss from change in 
demographic assumptions

0.01 - - - 0.05 -

Actuarial (gain)/loss from change in 
financial assumptions

(0.11) 0.01 - - 0.07 -

Experience (gain)/loss 0.02 (1.96) (0.04) (1.46) 1.17 (9.11)

Total amount recognised in other 
comprehensive income

(0.08) (0.04) 1.29

Benefits (paid) (0.81) (32.32) (0.75) (31.78) (1.62) (36.07)

Settlements/transfer in - 6.89 - 9.34 - 5.23

Contribution by plan participants - 16.75 - 18.48 - 17.37

Present value of obligation at the end 
of the year

3.55 192.45 3.84 182.22 4.04 167.44

Reconciliation of fair value of plan assets:

`/Crores

As at 31.03.2017 As at 31.03.2016 As at 01.07.2015

Provident Fund Provident Fund Provident Fund

Fair value of plan assets at the beginning 
of the year

195.62 177.69 169.62

Expected Return on Plan Assets 16.57 15.09 14.84

Contribution by employer 6.28 6.80 7.11

Settlements/Transfer In 6.89 9.34 5.23

Contribution by employee 16.75 18.48 17.37

Benefit Paid (32.32) (31.78) (36.07)

Actuarial gain/(loss) on Plan Assets 0.00 0.00 (0.41)

Fair value of plan assets at the end of the 
year

209.79 195.62 177.69
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As at 31.03.2017 As at 31.03.2016

Gratuity Provident 
Fund

Gratuity Provident 
Fund

Cost recognised for the year :

Current service cost 0.33 - 0.35 -

Company contribution to Provident Fund - 6.28 - 6.80

Past service cost - - - -

Interest cost 0.28 - 0.24 -

Actuarial (gain)/loss (0.08) - (0.04) -

Interest guarantee liability - - - -

Shortfall in fund - - - -

Net cost recognised for the year* 0.53 6.28 0.55 6.80

* Included in Salaries, Wages, Bonus and Gratuity for Gratuity and Contribution to Provident and Other Funds for 
Provident Fund under Employee benefits expense (Refer Note 35).

@ The Company’s contribution to Provident Fund for the year is ̀  1.14 Crores (2016 - ̀  1.02 Crores) and the remaining 

relates to other related companies as mentioned above.

The major categories of plan assets are as follows:

As at 31.03.2017 As at 31.03.2016 As at 01.07.2015

Unquoted in % Unquoted in % Unquoted in %

Central Government Securities 35.44 37.35 38.31

State Government Securities 19.9 16.02 15.13

Public Sector Bonds 34.36 37.1 37.25

Special Deposit Scheme 7.73 8.31 9.18

Equity 1.69 0.79 0.00

Bank Balance 0.88 0.43 0.13

Total 100 100 100

Reconciliation of the present value of the defined benefit obligation and the fair value of the plan assets: 

`/Crores

Gratuity

2017 2016 2015 2014 2013

Present value of the obligation as at 
the end of the year

3.55 3.84 4.04 3.88 19.41

Fair value of plan assets at the end of 

the year

- - - - -

Assets/(Liabilities) recognised in the 
Balance Sheet

(3.55) (3.84) (4.04) (3.88) (19.41)

Experience adjustment in plan 
liabilities

0.02 (0.04) (1.17) 0.27 0.16

Experience adjustment in plan assets - - - - -

Provident Fund

2017 2016 2015 2014 2013

Present value of the obligation as at 
the end of the year

(192.45) (182.22) (167.44) (169.36) (152.84)

Fair value of plan assets at the end of 
the year

209.79 195.62 177.69 169.62 152.85

Assets/(Liabilities) recognised in the 
Balance Sheet

-** -** -** -** -**

2017 2016 2015

Expected Contribution to the 
Provident fund in the next year

6.78 7.34 7.82

** As there is surplus, the same has not been recognised in Balance Sheet.
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52 Disclosure of related parties and related party transactions:

a) Company having substantial interest:

HCL Corporation Private Limited

b) List of parties where control exists/existed:

Subsidiaries:

HCL Infotech Limited

HCL Learning Limited

HCL Services Limited

Digilife Distribution and Marketing Services Limited

HCL Computing Products Limited

Pimpri Chinchwad eServices Limited (85% Shareholding of HCL Infosystems Limited)

RMA Software Park Private Limited (up to September 24 , 2014)

HCL Insys Pte. Limited, Singapore

HCL Investments Pte. Limited, Singapore

HCL Touch Inc., USA

HCL Infosystems MEA FZE, Dubai

HCL Infosystems LLC, Dubai (49% Shareholding of HCL Infosystems MEA FZE)

HCL Infosystems MEA LLC, Abu Dhabi (49% Shareholding of HCL Infosystems MEA FZE)

HCL Infosystems Qatar, WLL (49% Shareholding of HCL Infosystems MEA FZE)

HCL Infosystems South Africa Pty. Limited

Joint Venture :

Nokia HCL Mobile Internet Services Limited

(The Company has sold its investments in Nokia HCL Mobile Internet Services Limited during the current year)

c) Others (Enterprises over which, individual having indirect significant influence over the company, has 
significant influence) and with whom transactions have taken place during the year and/or where balances 
exist:

HCL Technologies Limited

HCL Comnet Limited

HCL Comnet Systems and Services Limited

HCL Avitas Private Limited

HCL Talent Care Private Limited

HCL IT City Lucknow Private Limited

SSN Trust

RMA Software Park Private Limited (with effect from September 25, 2014)

Vama Sundari Investments (Pondi) Private Limited

Shiv Nadar Foundation

Naksha Enterprises Private Limited

d) Key Management Personnel:

Mr. Premkumar Seshadri * (Executive Vice Chairman Managing Director)

Mr. SG Murali (Group CFO with effect from April 1, 2015)

Mr Sushil Jain (Company Secretary)

*Remuneration has been paid by HCL Corporation Private Limited

Note: Parties with whom transactions are more than 10% of the total value have been disclosed separately.
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Summary of Related Party disclosures

(`/Crores)

A. Transactions Company having 
substantial 

interest

Subsidiaries Others Key 
Management 

Personnel

Total

Mar-
17

Mar-
16

Jun-
15

Mar-
17

Mar-
16

Jun-
15

Mar-
17

Mar-
16

Jun-
15

Mar-
17

Mar-
16

Jun-
15

Mar-
17

Mar-
16

Jun-
15

Sales and Related Income 0.02 - - 46.57 95.48 18.12 5.66 64.71 101.14

- HCL Infotech Limited # 2.92# 3.03

- HCL Services Limited 22.88 34.40

- Digilife Distribution and 
Marketing Services Limited

20.74 57.87

- HCL Technologies Limited 15.95 4.48

- Shiv Nadar Foundation 1.03 0.95

 Sale of Services 0.31 0.12 0.07 0.38 0.12

- HCL Infotech Limited # 0.00# 0.09

- HCL Technologies Limited 0.07 -

- HCL Services Limited 0.31 0.02

Purchase of Goods 2.43 0.41 0.30 - 2.73 0.41

- Digilife Distribution and 
Marketing Services Limited

1.91 0.17

- HCL Infotech Limited # 0.45# 0.20

-HCL Services Limited 0.01 0.04

- HCL Learning Limited 0.06 -

- HCL Comnet Limited - -

Purchase of Fixed Assets 0.01 0.04 0.30 - 0.01 0.04

-Naksha Enterprises Pvt Ltd 0.30

Purchase of Services 22.44 24.94 - - 22.44 24.94

- HCL Services Limited 22.44 17.59

- HCL Infotech Limited # -# 7.34

Business Consideration Receivable 
Converted to Equity 

- 121.00 - 121.00

- HCL Services Limited - 61.00

- HCL Learning Limited - 60.00

Business Consideration Receivable 
Converted to Inter Company 
Deposit

- 44.85 - 44.85

- HCL Learning Limited - 44.85

Inter Company Deposit 
Payable Converted to Equity

- 439.00 - 439.00

- HCL Infotech Limited - 250.00

- HCL Services Limited - 189.00

Purchase of Investment 8.00 8.00 -

- Digilife Distribution and 
Marketing Services Limited

8.00 -

Loans and Advances 
Refunded/Adjusted (Net)

- 179.74 257.39 - - 179.74 257.39

- Digilife Distribution and 
Marketing Services Limited

-

- HCL Infotech Limited 178.18 240.86

- HCL Learning Limited 1.56 16.53

- RMA Software Park Private 
Limited

- -
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(`/Crores)

A. Transactions Company having 
substantial 

interest

Subsidiaries Others Key 
Management 

Personnel

Total

Mar-
17

Mar-
16

Jun-
15

Mar-
17

Mar-
16

Jun-
15

Mar-
17

Mar-
16

Jun-
15

Mar-
17

Mar-
16

Jun-
15

Mar-
17

Mar-
16

Jun-
15

Loans and Advances Given (Net) 101.23 83.68 101.23 83.68

- HCL Infotech Limited - -

- HCL Services Limited 99.60 83.67

- Digilife Distribution and 
Marketing Services Limited

1.64 -

- Pimpri Chinchwad Eservices 
Limited

- 0.01

Interest Charged on Loans & 
Advances Given

26.35 88.51 26.35 88.51

- HCL Infotech Limited - 66.77

- HCL Learning Limited 0.30 2.35

- HCL Services Limited 25.84 19.39

Rent Received 7.46 6.01 7.46 6.01

- HCL Talent Care Private 
Limited

5.67 4.38

- HCL Technologies Limited 1.79 1.63

Remuneration 2.93 1.73 2.93 1.73

- Mr. S.G. Murali 2.47 1.43

- Mr.Sushil Jain 0.46 0.30

Reimbursements towards 
expenditure

a) Received 48.46 34.22 48.46 34.22

- HCL Infotech Limited 19.90 13.50

- HCL Services Limited 23.20 16.08

- HCL Learning Limited 1.35 4.10

- HCL Insys Pte Limited, 
Singapore

2.22 0.11 - -

b) Paid 0.68 - 10.09 10.08 - - 10.77 10.08

- HCL Services Limited 10.08 9.08

- HCL Learning Limited - 0.99

- HCL Corporation Private 
Limited*

0.68 -

B. Amount due to / from 
related parties

-

Investment In Subsidaries 1,575.97 1,567.97 1,007.96 - - 1,575.97 1,567.97 1,007.96

Business Consideration & 
Other Receivables

- - 165.85 - - 165.85

Trade Receivables - - 0.01 170.04 37.37 121.83 8.54 3.39 4.37 178.57 40.76 126.21

Loans and Advances 568.77 648.88 1,259.97 - - - 568.77 648.88 1,259.97

Trade Payables 192.84 66.57 168.02 0.35 0.35 0.44 193.19 66.92 168.46

Other Payables 18.60 16.62 15.92 4.81 4.81 4.81 23.41 21.43 20.73

Notes:

# Sales and Related Income, Sale of Services, Purchase of Goods and Purchase of Services are net of transactions between HCL Infosystems and 
HCL Infotech on account of pending Novation of Contracts of System Integration Business.

* Related to Corporate Guarantee of ` 325 Crores taken from HCL Corporation Private Limited

Amount due to / from related parties are unsecured and are repayable/to be received in cash.
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53 Compensation of key management personnel of the Company*

Year ended 
31.03.2017

Nine months ended 
31.03.2016

Short-term employee benefits 2.93 1.73

Total compensation paid to key management personnel 2.93 1.73

The amounts disclosed in the table are the amounts recognised as an expense during the reporting period related to key 
management personnel.

* Post employment benefit comprising gratuity, and compensated absences are not disclosed as these are determined for 

the Company as a whole.

54 Details of Specified Bank Notes (SBN) held and transacted during 
the period from November 8, 2016 to December 30, 2016 are 
provided below:

SBNs Other 
denomination 

notes

Total

Closing cash in hand as on 08.11.2016 0.01 - 0.01

(+) Permitted receipts - - -

(-) Permitted payments - - -

(-) Amount deposited in Banks from 09.11.2016 0.01 - 0.01

Closing cash in hand as on 30.12.2016 - - -
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56 Taxation:

(a) Provision for taxation has been computed by applying the Income Tax Act, 1961 and other relevant tax regulations in 
the jurisdiction where the Company conducts the business to the profit for the year. Deferred tax assets and deferred 
tax liabilities are offset, if a legally enforeable right exists to set-off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and 
the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relates to the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

(b) Deferred Tax:

Major components of Deferred tax arising on account of timing difference along with their movement as at March 
31, 2017 are:

`/Crores

As at 
01.07.15

Movement 
during the 

period

As at 
31.03.16

Movement 
during the 

year

As at 
31.03.17

Assets

Unrealised gain on Indexation of land 5.72 - 5.72 - 5.72

Provision for Doubtful Debts/Advances/
Other Current Assets

5.16 6.08 11.24 (0.83) 10.41

Tax Losses 12.79 (9.09) 3.70 14.57 18.27

“Impact of expenditure charged to 
statement of profit & loss but allowable 
for tax purpose in future years”

1.82 - 1.82 0.18 2.00

MAT Credit (Refer Note below) 32.60 1.64 34.24 3.03 37.27

Total (A) 58.09 (1.37) 56.72 16.95 73.67

Liabilities

Difference between WDV of fixed assets as 
per books and under Income tax Act, 1961

(5.90) (0.88) (6.78) (0.15) (6.93)

Duties, Taxes & Cess allowed for tax 
purpose on payment basis.

(4.95) - (4.95) 3.97 (0.98)

Unrealised Gain on Fair valuation of 

Investment in Mutual Funds

(0.25) 0.19 (0.06) (0.09) (0.15)

Forward Contracts (0.25) (0.17) (0.42) 0.00 (0.42)

Other timing differences (0.26) (0.21) (0.47) (0.02) (0.49)

Total (B) (11.61) (1.07) (12.68) 3.71 (8.97)

Net Deferred Tax Assets (A)-(B) 46.48 (2.44) 44.04 20.66 64.70

Note: MAT credit movement for the financial year 2015-16 includes adjustment of `5.60 Crores. There is no impact on 

Statement of Profit & Loss for this adjustment as this is a Balance Sheet movement.

Notes to the Financial Statements
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(c) Income Tax Expense:

This note provides an analysis of the company’s income tax expense,and how the tax expense is affected by non-
assessable and non-deductible items.

For the Year ended 
March 31, 2017

Nine months ended 
March 31, 2016

(a) Income tax expense - Current tax

Current tax on profits for the year 3.28 8.41

Mat Credit

Adjustments for current tax of prior periods 3.03 -

Total current tax expense 6.31 8.41

Deferred tax

Decrease (increase) in deferred tax assets (16.95) (4.23)

(Decrease) increase in deferred tax liabilities (3.71) 1.07

Total deferred tax expense/(benefit) (20.66) (3.16)

Income tax expense (14.35) 5.25

31-Mar-2017 31-Mar-2016

(b) Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit 
multiplied by India’s tax rate:

Loss before income tax expense (376.68) (182.03)

Tax at the Indian tax rate of 30.90% (2015-2016 – 33.06%) (116.39) (60.18)

Tax effect of amounts which are not deductible (taxable) in 
calculating taxable income:

Disallowances for which deferred tax not created

Impairment of investment and Inter Corporate Deposits 98.93 64.36

Expenditure related to exempt dividend income 0.30 1.08

Dividend Income (1.49) -

Other items (0.02) (0.01)

Tax on Singapore Branch profit 2.60

Adjustments for current tax of prior periods 1.72 -

Income tax expense (14.35) 5.25

Notes to the Financial Statements



131Annual Report 2016-17

57 First-time adoption of Ind AS

Transition to Ind AS

These are the Company’s first financial statements prepared in accordance with Ind AS.

The accounting policies set out in Note 1 have been applied in preparing the financial statements for the year ended 
31 March 2017, the comparative information presented in these financial statements for the nine months period ended 
31 March 2016 and the opening Ind AS balance sheet at 1 July 2015 (the Company’s date of transition). In preparing 
its opening Ind AS balance sheet, the Company has adjusted the amounts reported previously in financial statements 
prepared in accordance with the accounting standards notified under Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006 (as 
amended) and other relevant provisions of the Act (previous GAAP or Indian GAAP). An explanation of how the transition 
from previous GAAP to Ind AS has affected the group’s financial position, financial performance and cash flows is set out 
in the following tables and notes.

Reconciliation between previous GAAP and IND AS

(i) Equity Reconciliation

` / Crores

Particulars As at 
31.03.2016

As at 
01.07.2015

As reported under previous GAAP 1,226.91 1,437.14

Adjustments:

Less : Impairment of Long term investments (242.42) (277.01)

Less : Recognition of Expected Credit Loss (10.76) (2.99)

Add: Recognition of deferred tax 9.80 13.87

Add: Others 0.87 0.63

Equity under IND AS 984.40 1,171.64

(ii) Total Comprehensive Income Reconciliation

` / Crores

Particulars Nine months 
period ended 

31.03.2016

Net Income under Previous GAAP (210.27)

Adjustments:

Add : Reversal of Impairment of Long term investments 34.59

Less : Recognition of Expected Credit Loss (7.77)

Less: Reversal of deferred tax (4.07)

Add: Others 0.21

Profit for the period under IND AS (187.31)

Other Comprehensive income 0.03

Total Comprehensive Income for the period under IND AS (187.28)

Notes to the Financial Statements
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For Price Waterhouse For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Firm Registration Number-301112E
Chartered Accountants

AVIJIT MUKERJI PREMKUMAR SESHADRI KAUSHIK DUTTA
Partner Executive Vice Chairman Director
Membership Number - 056155 & Managing Director DIN - 03328890
 DIN - 03114983

Place : Noida S G MURALI SUSHIL KUMAR JAIN
Dated : May 30, 2017 Group Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

(iii) Cash Flow Reconciliation

Previous GAAP Adjustments Ind AS

Net cash flow from operating activities (28.27) 2.02 (26.25)

Net cash flow from investing activities 502.02 0.86 502.88

Net cash flow from financing activities (441.62) (2.50) (444.12)

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 32.13 0.38 32.51

Cash and cash equivalents as at 01.07.2015 64.07 (2.19) 61.88

Cash and cash equivalents as at 31.03.2016 96.20 (1.81) 94.39

58 In compliance with the Section 2(41) of Companies Act, 2013, during 2015-16 , the company had changed its accounting 
period from July - June to April - March in 2015-16. Therefore, the previous year’s figures are for the nine month period 
from July 1, 2015 to March 31, 2016 as against twelve months in the 2016-17, hence are not comparable. Previous year’s 
figures have also been regrouped / recasted, wherever necessary, to conform to the current year’s presentation.
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To the Members of HCL Infosystems Limited 

Report on the Consolidated Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) Financial Statements

1. We have audited the accompanying consolidated Ind AS financial statements of HCL Infosystems Limited (“hereinafter 
referred to as the Holding Company”) and its subsidiaries (the Holding Company and its subsidiaries together referred 
to as “the Group”) (refer Note 2.6 (v) to the attached consolidated financial statements), comprising of the consolidated 
Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2017, the consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive 

Income), the consolidated Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the 
year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information prepared based on 
the relevant records (hereinafter referred to as “the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements”). 

Management’s Responsibility for the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements 

2. The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of these consolidated Ind AS financial 
statements in terms of the requirements of the Companies Act, 2013 (hereinafter referred to as “the Act”) that give a 
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position, consolidated financial performance, consolidated cash flows and 
changes in equity of the Group in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in India including the Indian 
Accounting Standards specified in the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended) under Section 
133 of the Act. The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is also responsible for ensuring accuracy of records including 
financial information considered necessary for the preparation of consolidated Ind AS financial statements. The respective 
Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group are responsible for maintenance of adequate accounting records 
in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Group and for preventing and detecting 
frauds and other irregularities; the selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgements and 
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial 
controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant 
to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which has been used for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated Ind 
AS financial statements by the Directors of the Holding Company, as aforesaid. 

Auditors’ Responsibility 

3. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated Ind AS financial statements based on our audit. While 
conducting the audit, we have taken into account the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder including the 
accounting standards and matters which are required to be included in the audit report.

4. We conducted our audit of the consolidated Ind AS financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing 
specified under Section 143(10) of the Act and other applicable authoritative pronouncements issued by the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and pronouncements require that we comply with ethical requirements 
and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated Ind AS financial statements 
are free from material misstatement.

5. An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated 
Ind AS financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgement, including the assessment of the 
risks of material misstatement of the consolidated Ind AS financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making 

those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal financial control relevant to the Holding Company’s preparation 
of the consolidated Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view, in order to design audit procedures that 
are appropriate in the circumstances. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting policies 

used and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by the Holding Company’s Board of Directors, as well as 
evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated Ind AS financial statements.

6. We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us and the audit evidence obtained by the other auditors in terms of 
their reports referred to in sub-paragraph 8 of the Other Matters paragraph below, other than the unaudited financial 

statements as certified by the management and referred to in sub-paragraph 9 of the Other Matters paragraph below, is 
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the consolidated Ind AS financial statements. 

Opinion

7. In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid consolidated 

Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so required and give a true and fair 

Independent Auditors’ Report 
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view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India of the consolidated state of affairs of the 
Group as at March 31, 2017, and their consolidated loss (including other comprehensive income), their consolidated cash 
flows and consolidated changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Other Matter

8. We did not audit the financial statements of one subsidiary whose financial statements reflect total assets of ` Nil and net 
assets of ` (0.03) crores as at March 31, 2017, total revenue of ` Nil, net loss of ` (0.01) crores and net cash flows amounting 

to ` (0.01) crores for the year ended on that date, as considered in the consolidated Ind AS financial statements. These 
financial statements/ financial information have been audited by other auditors whose reports have been furnished to us 
by the Management, and our opinion on the consolidated Ind AS financial statements insofar as it relates to the amounts 
and disclosures included in respect of this subsidiary and our report in terms of sub-section (3) of Section 143 of the Act 
insofar as it relates to the aforesaid subsidiary, is based solely on the reports of the other auditors. 

9. We did not audit the financial statements of one subsidiary whose financial statements reflect total assets of ` 1.99 crores 
and net assets of ` 1.82 crores as at March 31, 2017, total revenue of ` Nil, net loss of ` (1.56) crores and net cash flows 
amounting to ` 1.75 crores for the year ended on that date, as considered in the consolidated Ind AS financial statements. 
These financial statements/ financial information are unaudited and have been furnished to us by the Management, and 
our opinion on the consolidated Ind AS financial statements insofar as it relates to the amounts and disclosures included 
in respect of these subsidiaries and our report in terms of sub-section (3) of Section 143 of the Act insofar as it relates to 
the aforesaid subsidiaries, is based solely on such unaudited financial statements. In our opinion and according to the 
information and explanations given to us by the Management, these financial statements are not material to the Group.

Our opinion on the consolidated Ind AS financial statements and our report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 
below, is not modified in respect of the above matters with respect to our reliance on the work done and the reports of the 
other auditors and the financial statements/ financial information certified by the Management.

10. The comparative financial information of the Group for the nine months period ended March 31, 2016 and the transition 
date opening balance sheet as at July 1, 2015 included in these consolidated Ind AS financial statements, are based on 
the previously issued statutory financial statements for the nine months period ended March 31, 2016 and year ended 
June 30, 2015 prepared in accordance with the Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006 (as amended) which were 
audited by us, on which we expressed an unmodified opinion dated May 25, 2016 and August 20, 2015 respectively. The 
adjustments to the financial statements for the nine months ended March 31, 2016 for the differences in accounting 
principles adopted by the Group on transition to the Ind AS have been audited by us, on which we have expressed an 
unmodified opinion vide our report dated January 31, 2017. The adjustments to the financial statements as at July 1, 2015 
for the differences in accounting principles adopted by the Group on transition to the Ind AS have been audited by us.

Our opinion is not qualified in respect of these matters.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

11. As required by Section143(3) of the Act, we report, to the extent applicable, that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief 
were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid consolidated Ind AS financial statements.

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law maintained by the Holding Company and its subsidiaries 

included in the Group including relevant records relating to preparation of the aforesaid consolidated Ind AS financial 
statements have been kept so far as it appears from our examination of those books and records of the Holding 
Company and the reports of the other auditors.

(c) The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive 
income), Consolidated Cash Flow Statement and the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this 
Report are in agreement with the relevant books of account maintained by the Holding Company and its subsidiaries 

included in the Group including relevant records relating to the preparation of the consolidated Ind AS financial 
statements.

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated Ind AS financial statements comply with the Indian Accounting Standards 

specified under Section 133 of the Act. 

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Holding Company as on March 31, 

2017 taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Holding Company, the reports of the statutory auditors of 
its subsidiary companies and unaudited financial information of the subsidiary company furnished to us by the 
management, none of the directors of the Group companies, is disqualified as on March 31, 2017 from being 
appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.
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(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Holding Company and 
its subsidiary companies in India and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in 
Annexure A.

(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditors’ Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies 
(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations 
given to us:

i. The consolidated Ind AS financial statements disclose the impact, if any, of pending litigations as at March 31, 
2017 on the consolidated financial position of the Group– Refer Note 26 and 37 to the consolidated Ind AS 
financial statements.

ii. Provision has been made in the consolidated Ind AS financial statements, as required under the applicable law 
or accounting standards, for material foreseeable losses, if any, on long-term contracts as at March 31, 2017– 
Refer Note 26 to the consolidated Ind AS financial statements in respect of such items as it relates to the Group. 
The Group did not have any long-term derivative contracts as at March 31, 2017.

iii. There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the Investor Education and 
Protection Fund by the Holding Company and its subsidiary companies during the year ended March 31, 2017.

iv. The Group has provided requisite disclosures in the financial statements as to holdings as well as dealings 

in Specified Bank Notes during the period from November 8, 2016 to December 30, 2016. Based on audit 
procedures and relying on the management representation we report that the disclosures are in accordance 
with books of account maintained by the Holding Company, and its subsidiary companies and as produced to 
us by the Management – Refer Note 56.

 For Price Waterhouse
 Firm Registration Number: 301112E
 Chartered Accountants

 Avijit Mukerji
Place of the Signature: Noida  Partner
Date: May 30, 2017 Membership Number: 056155
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Annexure A to Independent Auditors’ Report
Referred to in paragraph 11(f) of the Independent Auditors’ Report of even date to the members of HCL Infosystems 
Limited on the consolidated Ind AS financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2017

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Act

1. In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated Ind AS financial statements of HCL Infosystems Limited (hereinafter 
referred to as “the Holding Company”) as of and for the year ended March 31, 2017, we have audited the internal financial 
controls over financial reporting of HCL Infosystems Limited (hereinafter referred to as “the Holding Company”) and its 
subsidiary companies, which are companies incorporated in India, as of that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

2. The respective Board of Directors of the Holding company and its subsidiary companies, which are companies incorporated 
in India, are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on internal control over 
financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated 
in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India (ICAI)”. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate 
internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, 
including adherence to the respective company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection 
of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable 
financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility

3. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Holding 
Company and its subsidiary companies, which are companies incorporated in India, based on our audit. We conducted 
our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the 
“Guidance Note”) issued by the ICAI and the Standards on Auditing deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of 
the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of 
internal financial controls and both issued by the ICAI. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply 
with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal 
financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all 
material respects.

4. Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls 
system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial 
reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk 
that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control 
based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the 
risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

5. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained and the audit evidence obtained by the statutory auditors’ of the 
subsidiary company referred to in the Other Matters paragraph below, in terms of their reports, is sufficient and appropriate 

to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

6. A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance 
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in 

accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting 
includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately 
and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that 
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally 
accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance 

with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding 
prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a 
material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

7. Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility of 

collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and 
not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future 
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periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because 
of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

8. In our opinion, the Holding Company and its subsidiary companies, which are companies incorporated in India, have, in 
all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial 
controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2017, based on the internal control over 

financial reporting criteria established by the Holding Company and its subsidiary companies, which are incorporated in 
India, considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial 
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

Other Matters

9. Our aforesaid reports under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the internal 
financial controls over financial reporting insofar as it relates to one subsidiary company, is based on the corresponding 
report of the auditors of the subsidiary company. Our opinion is not qualified in respect of this matter.

 For Price Waterhouse
 Firm Registration Number: 301112E
 Chartered Accountants

 Avijit Mukerji
Place of the Signature: Noida  Partner
Date: May 30, 2017 Membership Number: 056155
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Consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2017

Notes As at

31.03.2017

`/Crores

As at

31.03.2016

`/Crores

As at

01.07.2015

`/Crores

I. ASSETS

(1) Non-current assets
Property, Plant and Equipment 3(a) 115.70 131.06 135.80
Capital work-in-progress 3(d) 1.42 2.01 0.84
Goodwill 3(b) 504.24 567.71 635.27
Other Intangible assets 3(c) 18.38 28.72 39.47
Intangible assets under development 3(e) 3.15 2.16 -
Other Financial assets 5 41.39 92.61 158.38
Advance Income Tax Asset (net) 6 160.54 111.84 63.57
Deferred tax assets (net) 7, 45 165.43 109.64 101.80
Other non-current assets 8 133.62 1,143.87 130.23 1,175.98 51.42 1,186.55

(2) Current assets
Inventories 9 141.31 214.20 254.74
Financial Assets
(i) Investments 4 120.87 50.16 235.66
(ii) Trade receivables 10 1,292.73 1,550.42 1,754.71
(iii) Cash and cash equivalents 11 138.09 198.91 124.17
(iv) Bank balances other than (iii) above 12 55.33 19.22 10.02
(v) Loans 13 0.60 1.20 0.25
(vi) Other Financial assets 14 187.56 265.30 290.08
Other Current Assets 15 103.67 2,040.16 91.01 2,390.42 148.05 2,817.68

Total Assets 3,184.03 3,566.40 4,004.23
II. EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
(1) Equity

Equity attributable to the owners of HCL 

Infosystems Limited
Equity Share capital 16 (a) 44.58 44.58 44.58
Other Equity 16 (b) 504.84 549.42 759.35 803.93 968.59 1,013.17
Non Controlling Interests (0.00) (0.00) (0.00)

(2) Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Financial Liabilities
(i) Borrowings 17 413.16 528.22 233.67
(ii) Trade Payables 18 - - 0.60
(iii) Other financial liabilities 19 - 14.45 13.42
Provisions 20 18.71 19.83 14.47
Deferred tax liabilities (Net) 45 0.35 0.73 0.93
Other non-current liabilities 21 0.69 432.91 2.56 565.79 6.08 269.17
Current liabilities
Financial Liabilities
(i) Borrowings 22 576.84 453.63 643.88
(ii) Trade payables 23 723.22 800.31 969.70
(iii) Other financial liabilities 24 426.63 358.62 435.34
Other current liabilities 25 344.75 455.58 534.94
Provisions 26 125.66 127.54 135.06
Current Tax Liabilities (Net) 27 4.60 2,201.70 1.00 2,196.68 2.97 2,721.89

Total Equity and Liabilities 3,184.03 3,566.40 4,004.23
Significant Accounting Policies 1,2

This is the Balance Sheet referred to The notes referred to above form an integral part of the
in our report of even date Balance Sheet

For Price Waterhouse For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Firm Registration Number-301112E
Chartered Accountants

AVIJIT MUKERJI PREMKUMAR SESHADRI KAUSHIK DUTTA
Partner Executive Vice Chairman Director
Membership Number - 056155 & Managing Director DIN - 03328890
 DIN - 03114983

Place : Noida S G MURALI SUSHIL KUMAR JAIN
Dated : May 30, 2017 Group Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
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Consolidated Statement of Profit & Loss for the year ended March 31, 2017

Notes Year ended

31.03.2017

`/Crores

Nine months ended

31.03.2016

`/Crores

Income :

Revenue From Operations 28 3,737.53 3,656.23

Other Income 29 145.68 136.15

Total Income 3,883.21 3,792.38

Expenses :

Cost of materials consumed 0.79 0.08

Purchases of Stock-in-Trade 2,507.24 2,606.36

Changes in inventories of finished goods and Stock-in -Trade 30 57.13 41.13

Other direct expense 31 468.28 403.44

Employee benefits expense 32 541.35 458.26

Finance costs 33 190.29 125.69

Depreciation and amortization expense 3(a), (c ) 39.19 31.98

Other expenses 34 310.61 277.30

Total expenses 4,114.88 3,944.24

Profit/(loss) before exceptional items and tax (231.67) (151.86)

Exceptional Items 35 (61.00) (67.22)

Profit/(loss) before tax (292.67) (219.08)

Income Tax expense:

(1) Current tax 45 11.31 8.89

(2) Deferred tax 45 (56.31) (45.00) (13.67) (4.78)

(Loss) for the year/ period (247.67) (214.30)

Other Comprehensive Income

A (i) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

 - Gain/(loss) on remeasurement of defined benefit plan 48 0.91 0.11

 - Income tax relating to above item (0.14) 0.77 (0.03) 0.08

B (i) Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss

 - Exchange differences on translation of foreign operation (7.61) 4.94

Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax (6.84) 5.02

Total Comprehensive Income for the Year / period (254.51) (209.28)

Profit is attributable to:

- Shareholders of HCL Infosystems Limited (247.67) (214.30)

- Non-controlling interests (0.00) (0.00)

Other comprehensive income is attributable to:

- Shareholders of HCL Infosystems Limited (6.84) 5.02

- Non-controlling interests - -

Total comprehensive income is attributable to:

- Shareholders of HCL Infosystems Limited (254.51) (209.28)

- Non-controlling interests (0.00) (0.00)

Loss per equity share 47

(1) Basic (11.11) (9.61)

(2) Diluted (11.11) (9.61)

Significant Accounting Policies 1,2

This is the Statement of Profit and The notes referred to above form an integral part of the
Loss referred to in our report of even date Statement of Profit and Loss

For Price Waterhouse For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Firm Registration Number-301112E
Chartered Accountants

AVIJIT MUKERJI PREMKUMAR SESHADRI KAUSHIK DUTTA
Partner Executive Vice Chairman Director
Membership Number - 056155 & Managing Director DIN - 03328890
 DIN - 03114983

Place : Noida S G MURALI SUSHIL KUMAR JAIN
Dated : May 30, 2017 Group Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement for the year ended March 31, 2017

Year ended

31.03.2017

`/Crores

Nine months ended

31.03.2016

`/Crores

1. Cash Flow from Operating Activities:

Loss before tax (292.67) (219.08)

Adjustments for:

Depreciation and Amortisation Expense 39.19 31.98

Finance Cost 190.29 125.69

Interest Income (122.04) (110.39)

Dividend Income (4.82) (5.68)

Net Profit on Sale of Property, Plant & Equipment (0.29) (0.08)

Property, Plant & Equipment Written-Off 1.23 1.15

Profit on Disposal of Unquoted (Others) Current Investments (2.57) (3.80)

Provision for Doubtful Debts 22.94 35.33

Provision for Doubtful Loans and Advances and Other Current 

Assets

4.25 1.00

Provisions/Liabilities no longer required Written Back (0.69) (9.88)

Gain on Sale of Joint Venture (0.45) -

Impairment of Goodwill 61.00 70.00

188.04 135.32

Operating Profit/(Loss) before changes in operating 

assets and liabilities

(104.63) (83.76)

Changes in Operating assets and liabilities:

- Decrease in Trade Receivables 227.14 173.88

- (Increase)/Decrease in Non Current Assets (62.12) (133.15)

- (Increase)/Decrease in Current Assets 20.90 74.15

- Decrease in Inventories 72.89 40.54

- Increase/(Decrease) in Non Current Liabilities (17.44) 2.27

- (Decrease) in Current Liabilities (164.98) 76.39 (257.24) (99.55)

Cash used in operations (28.24) (183.31)

- Taxes (Paid)/Received (Net of Tax Deducted at Source) (1.71) (2.97)

Net cash used in operating activities (A) (29.95) (186.28)

2. Cash flow from Investing Activities:

Payment for Property, Plant and Equipment (including 

Intangible Assets)
(13.55) (29.99)

Proceeds from Sale of Property, Plant and Equipment 1.55 8.18

Proceeds from Sale of Current Investments 492.54 358.67

Lease Rental Recoverable 94.48 74.66

Purchase of Current Investments (560.68) (169.37)

Investments in Bank Deposits (with original maturity of more 

than three months)
(36.19) (8.95)

Movement in Margin Money Account (0.51) (0.63)

Movement in Balances with Banks on Dividend Account 0.53 0.38

Dividend Received on Current Investments 4.82 5.68

Interest Received 122.04 110.39

105.03 349.02

Net cash inflow from investing activities (B) 105.03 349.02
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This is the Cash Flow Statement
in our report of even date

For Price Waterhouse For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Firm Registration Number-301112E
Chartered Accountants

AVIJIT MUKERJI PREMKUMAR SESHADRI KAUSHIK DUTTA
Partner Executive Vice Chairman Director
Membership Number - 056155 & Managing Director DIN - 03328890
 DIN - 03114983

Place : Noida S G MURALI SUSHIL KUMAR JAIN
Dated : May 30, 2017 Group Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

Year ended

31.03.2017

`/Crores

Nine months ended

31.03.2016

`/Crores

3. Cash Flow from Financing Activities:

Securities Premium Received - 0.04 -

Proceeds from loans and borrowings 2,748.75 2,205.59

Repayment of loans and borrowings (2,692.67) (2,173.34)

Interest Paid (191.45) (119.95)

Dividend Paid/Amount Transferred to Investor Education & 

Protection Fund

(0.53) (135.90) (0.34) (88.00)

Net cash outflow flow financing activities (C) (C) (135.90) (88.00)

Net Increase/(Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents (A+B+C) (60.82) 74.74

Opening Balance of Cash and Cash Equivalents 198.91 124.17

Closing Balance of Cash and Cash Equivalents 138.09 198.91

Cash and cash equivalents comprise of

Cash, Cheques and Drafts (on hand) 7.57 7.63

Balances with Banks on Current Accounts 82.11 172.83

Balances with Banks on Deposits Accounts 48.41 18.45

Notes:

1 Figures in brackets indicate cash outflow.
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Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended March 31, 2017

a. Equity Share Capital

(`/Crores)

Number of 
Equity Shares

Equity Share 
Capital

At 1 July, 2015 222,904,629 44.58

Add : Issue of Equity Share Capital* 15,000 0.00

At 31 March 2016 222,919,629 44.58

Add : Issue of Equity Share Capital - -

At 31 March 2017 222,919,629 44.58

* 15000 Equity shares having a face value of ` 2 each issued against Employee stock option.

b. Other Equity

(`/Crores)

Particulars Attributable to Shareholders of HCL Infosystems Limited Non 

Controlling 

interests

Total

Other reserves Total 

Equity
Securities 

Premium 

Reserve

General 

Reserve

Capital 

Reserve

Retained 

Earnings

Exchange 

differences 

on translating 

the financial 

statements 

of a foreign 

operation

As at 1 July, 2015 (Refer Note 38) 720.12 215.76 0.04 18.90 13.77 968.59 (0.00) 968.59

Total (Loss) for the period - - - (214.30) - (214.30) (0.00) (214.30)

Other Comprehensive Income for the period - - - 0.08 4.94 5.02 5.02

Securities Premium on issue of Shares 0.04 - - - - 0.04 0.04

As at 31 March, 2016 720.16 215.76 0.04 (195.32) 18.71 759.35 (0.00) 759.35

As at 1 April, 2016 720.16 215.76 0.04 (195.32) 18.71 759.35 (0.00) 759.35

Total (Loss) for the year - - - (247.67) - (247.67) (0.00) (247.67)

Other Comprehensive Income for the year - - - 0.77 (7.61) (6.84) (6.84)

-

As at 31 March, 2017 720.16 215.76 0.04 (442.22) 11.10 504.84 (0.00) 504.84

This is the Statement of Changes in Equity referred to
in our report of even date

For Price Waterhouse For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Firm Registration Number-301112E
Chartered Accountants

AVIJIT MUKERJI PREMKUMAR SESHADRI KAUSHIK DUTTA
Partner Executive Vice Chairman Director
Membership Number - 056155 & Managing Director DIN - 03328890
 DIN - 03114983

Place : Noida S G MURALI SUSHIL KUMAR JAIN
Dated :  Group Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
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1. Corporate information

These Consolidated Financial Statements comprise Financial Statements of HCL Infosystems Limited (the “Company”), its 
subsidiaries and a joint venture (Refer accounting policy 2.6 (v)) (collectively, the “Group”) for the year ended March 31, 
2017. The Company is domiciled and incorporated in India and publicly traded on the National Stock Exchange (‘NSE’) and 
the Bombay Stock Exchange (‘BSE’) in India. The registered office of the Company is situated at 806, Siddharth, 96, Nehru 
Place, New Delhi - 110019.

The Group’s business is primarily diversified into four segments viz. Distribution, Hardware Products and Solutions, 
Services and Learning, engaged into selling of computer hardware and mobile handsets to enterprise and consumers, 
system integration business, rendering wide portfolio of services including IT Infrastructure Services, Infrastructure 

Managed Services, Enterprise Application Services, Office Automation Services, Managed Print Services, Life Cycle Services 
and After-Sales Support Services and selling digitised educational content & learning solutions.

The consolidated financial statements have been approved by the Board of Directors and authorised for issue on May 30, 
2017.

2. Significant accounting policies

This note provides a list of the significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these consolidated financial 
statements. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

(i) Compliance with Ind AS

The consolidated financial statements comply in all material aspects with Indian Accounting Standards 
(Ind AS) notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) [Companies (Indian Accounting 
Standards) Rules, 2015] and other relevant provisions of the Act.

The financial statements up to nine months period ended March 31, 2016 were prepared in accordance 

with the accounting standards notified under Companies (Accounting Standard) Rules, 2006 (as amended) 
and other relevant provisions of the Act. These financial statements are the first financial statements of the 
Group under Ind AS. Refer note 38 for an explanation of how the transition from Indian GAAP to Ind AS has 

affected the Group’s financial position, its financial performance and its cash flows.

(ii) Historical cost convention

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for the following which 
have been measured at fair value:

Certain Financial assets and liabilities, including derivative financial instruments, which are being 
measured at fair value

Defined benefit plans – plan assets measured at fair value,

2.2 Exemptions and exceptions availed

The applicable Ind AS 101 optional exemptions and mandatory exceptions applied in the transition from 
previous GAAP to Ind AS are set out below.

A. Ind AS optional exemptions

The following exemptions have been availed from other Ind AS as per Appendix D of Ind AS 101.

1. Deemed cost for Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE)and Intangible Assets– The Group has 

elected to carry items for all of its PPE and intangible assets at the date of transition to Ind AS at their 
previous GAAP carrying amount, which is considered as deemed cost on transition.

2. Fair value of financial assets and liabilities:The Group has financial receivables and payables that 

are non-derivative financial instruments. Under previous GAAP, these were carried at transactions 
cost less allowances for impairment, if any. Under Ind AS, these financial assets and liabilities are 
required to be initially recognised at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost, less 

allowance for impairment, if any. For transactions entered into on or after the date of transition to Ind 
AS, the requirement of initial recognition at fair value is applied prospectively.
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3. Employee Share Stock Option: The Company has decided to not apply Ind AS 102, Share-based 
Paymentsto the employee share stock option that has vested before the date of transition.

B. Ind AS mandatory exceptions

1. Estimates The Group’s estimates, in accordance with Ind AS at the date of transition to Ind AS,are 

consistent with previous GAAP other than the following items at the date of transition as these were 
not required to be estimated under previous GAAP.

Investment in debt instruments carried at FVPL; and

Impairment of financial assets based on expected credit loss model.

2.3. Use of estimates

The preparation of Consolidated Financial Statements in conformity with Generally Accepted Accounting 
Principles requires the management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of 
assets, liabilities, income and expenses, disclosure of contingent liabilities and contingent assets at the date of 
these Consolidated Financial Statements and the results of operations during the reporting period. The actual 
results could differ from these estimates. Any revision to accounting estimates is recognised prospectively in 
current and future periods.

2.4. Critical accounting estimates, assumptions and judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies, the management has made following estimates, 
assumptions and judgements, which have significant effect on the amounts recognised in these consolidated 
financial statement:

(a) Property, plant and equipment

The management engages external adviser or internal technical team to assess the remaining useful lives 
and residual value of property, plant and equipment. The management believes that the assigned useful 
lives and residual value are reasonable.

(b) Intangibles

Internal technical or user team assess the remaining useful lives of Intangible assets. The management 
believes that assigned useful lives are reasonable.

(c) Income taxes

Management’s judgment is required for the calculation of provision for income taxes and deferred tax 
assets and liabilities. The Group reviews, at each balance sheet date, the carrying amount of deferred tax 
assets and amount of unrecognised deferred tax assets, in view of availability of future taxable income 
to realise such recognised and unrecognised assets. The Group has significant business losses which are 
available to be set-off against the future taxable income, at each reporting date, the management evaluates 

whether it is reasonably certain to recognise deferred tax assets on such business losses, considering the 
future outlook of business. The factors used in estimates may differ from actual outcome which could lead 
to significant adjustment to the amounts reported in the consolidated financial statements.

(d) Contingencies

Management’s judgement is required for estimating the possible outflow of resources, if any, in respect of 
contingencies/claim/litigations against the Group as it is not possible to predict the outcome of pending 

matters with accuracy.

(e) Allowance for uncollected accounts receivable and advances

Trade receivables do not carry any interest and are stated at their amortised cost as reduced by appropriate 

allowances for estimated irrecoverable amounts. Individual trade receivables are written off when 
management deems them not to be collectible. Impairment is made on the expected credit losses, which 
are the present value of the cash shortfall over the expected life of the financial assets.

(f) Liquidated damages

Liquidated damages payable are estimated and recorded as per contractual terms; estimate may vary 
from actual as levied by customer.
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(g) Impairment assessment

Goodwill is tested for impairment at least annually and whenever events or changes in circumstances 
indicate that the recoverable amount of Cash Generating Unit (‘CGU’) or group of CGUs, to which goodwill 
is allocated, is less than the carrying value. Impairment test for goodwill is performed at the level of each 
CGU or groups of CGUs expected to benefit from acquisition-related synergies and represent the lowest 
level within the entity at which the goodwill is monitored for internal management purposes, within an 
operating segment. The management applies its judgement to identify the CGUs, which are expected to 
derive synergies together, and allocates goodwill to such group of CGUs.

Other Intangibles and Property, plant and equipment (PPE) are tested for impairment, whenever events or 

changes in circumstances indicate that the recoverable amount of Cash Generating Unit (‘CGU’), to which 
such Intangibles or PPE are allocated, is less than the carrying value.

The recoverable amount of an CGU is the greater of its fair value less costs to sell and value in use. The 
calculation of value in use involves use of significant estimates and assumptions which includes turnover 
and gross profit, growth rates and EBIT margin to calculate projected future cash flows, discount rate and 
long term growth rate.

(h) Revenue recognition

The Group follows percentage-of-completion method in accounting for its fixed-price contracts to deliver 
System Integration business. Use of the percentage-of-completion method requires the Group to estimate 
the efforts or costs expended to date as a proportion of the total efforts or costs to be expended. Efforts or 
costs expended have been used to measure progress towards completion as there is a direct relationship 
between input and productivity. Provisions for estimated losses, if any, on uncompleted contracts are 
recorded in the period in which such losses become probable based on the expected contract estimates 
at the reporting date.

2.5 Current Versus non-current Classification

All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Group’s normal operating cycle 
and other criteria set out in the Schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013. Based on the nature of products and 
the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash equivalents, the 
Group has ascertained its operating cycle as 12 months for the purpose of current – non-current classification of 
assets and liabilities, except for System Integration business. The System Integration business which comprises 
of long-term contracts and have an operating cycle exceeding one year. For classification of current assets 
and liabilities related to System Integration business (forming part of Hardware Products and Solutions), the 
Company elected to use the duration of the individual contracts as its operating cycle.

2.6. Principles of consolidation and equity accounting

(i) Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities (including structured entities) over which the Group has control. The Group 

controls an entity when the Group is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from its involvement 
with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its power to direct the relevant activities 
of the entity. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to the Group. 

They are deconsolidated from the date that control ceases.

The acquisition method of accounting is used to account for business combinations by the Group.

The Group combines the financial statements of the parent and its subsidiaries line by line adding 
together like items of assets, liabilities, equity, income and expenses. Intercompany transactions, balances 

and unrealised gains on transactions between Group companies are eliminated. Unrealised losses are also 
eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the transferred asset. Accounting 
policies of subsidiaries have been changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies 
adopted by the Group.

Non-controlling interests, if any, in the results and equity of subsidiaries are shown separately in the 
consolidated statement of profit and loss, consolidated statement of changes in equity and balance sheet 
respectively.
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(ii) Associates

Associates are all entities over which the Group has significant influence but not control or joint control. 
This is generally the case where the Group holds between 20% and 5o% of the voting rights. Investments 
in associates are accounted for using the equity method of accounting, after initially being recognised at 
cost.

(iii) Joint arrangements

Under Ind AS in Joint Arrangements, investments in joint arrangements are classified as either joint 
operations or joint ventures. The classification depends on the contractual rights and obligations of each 
investor, rather than the legal structure of the joint arrangement. The Group had joint venture, which has 
been disposed-off during the year.

Interests in joint ventures are accounted for using the equity method, after initially being recognised at 
cost in the consolidated balance sheet.

(iv) Equity method

Under the equity method of accounting, the investments are initially recognised at cost and adjusted 
thereafter to recognise the Group’s share of the post-acquisition profits or losses of the investee in profit 
and loss, and the Group’s share of other comprehensive income of the investee in other comprehensive 
income. Dividends received or receivable from associates and joint ventures are recognised as a reduction 
in the carrying amount of the investment.

When the Group’s share of losses in an equity-accounted investment equals or exceeds its interest in the 
entity, including any other unsecured long-term receivables, the Group does not recognise further losses, 
unless it has incurred obligations or made payments on behalf of the other entity.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group and its associates and joint ventures are eliminated 
to the extent of the Group’s interest in these entities. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the 
transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting policies of equity 
accounted investees have been changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted 
by the Group.

The carrying amount of equity accounted investments are tested for impairment in accordance with the 

policy described below.

(v) Changes in ownership interests

The Group treats transactions with non-controlling interests that do not result in a loss of control as 
transactions with equity owners of the Group. A change in ownership interest results in an adjustment 
between the carrying amounts of the controlling and non-controlling interests to reflect their relative 
interests in the subsidiary. Any difference between the amount of the adjustment to non-controlling 
interests and any consideration paid or received is recognised within equity.

When the Group ceases to consolidate or equity account for an investment because of a loss of control, joint 
control or significant influence, any retained interest in the entity is remeasured to its fair value with the 
change in carrying amount recognised in profit or loss. This fair value becomes the initial carrying amount 

for the purposes of subsequently accounting for the retained interest as an associate, joint venture or 
financial asset. In addition, any amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income in respect 
of that entity are accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities. This 

may mean that amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income are reclassified to profit 
or loss.

If the ownership interest in a joint venture or an associate is reduced but joint control or significant influence 
is retained, only a proportionate share of the amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive 

income are reclassified to profit or loss where appropriate.

These consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statement of HCL Infosystems Limited (the 
Company”), its subsidiaries and the joint venture (the “Group”), as given in the following table:
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Name of the Subsidiary/ JV Country of 

Incorporation

Extent of Holding (%)

    31-Mar-17 31-Mar-16 1-Jul-15

Subsidiary        

Digilife Distribution and Marketing Services Limited India 100 100 100

Pimpri Chinchwad eServices Limited India 85 85 85

HCL Computing and Products Limited India 100 100 100

HCL Infotech Limited India 100 100 100

HCL Learning Limited India 100 100 100

HCL Services Limited India 100 100 100

Step-down Subsidiary of HCL Services Limited        

HCL InsysPte. Limited. Singapore 100 100 100

HCL Touch Inc. USA 100 100 100

Step-down Subsidiary of HCL Infotech Limited        

HCL Investment Pte. Limited. Singapore 100 100 100

Step-down Subsidiary of HCL Investment Pte. Limited        

HCL Infosystems South Africa Pty. Limited* South Africa - 100 100

Step-down Subsidiary of HCL Insys Pte. Limited

HCL Infosystems MEA FZE Dubai 100 100 100

Step-down Subsidiary of HCL Infosystems MEA FZCO        

HCL Infosystems LLC, Dubai# Dubai 49 49 49

HCL Infosystems MEA LLC, Abu Dhabi # Abu Dhabi 49 49 49

HCL Infosystems Qatar, WLL # Qatar 49 49 49

Joint Venture        

Nokia HCL Mobile Internet Services Limited ** India - 49 49

# Due to control over composition of the Board of Directors.

* With effect from August 10, 2016 HCL Infosystems South Africa Pty. Limited has been wind down

** With effect from June 02, 2016 the company have sold its investment in the joint venture.

2.7. Property, Plant and equipment

Freehold land is carried at historical cost. All other items of property, plant and equipment are stated at historical 

cost less depreciation. Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the 
items. The gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment is 
determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised 

in the Statement of Profit and Loss on the date of disposal or retirement.

Subsequent costs are capitalised on the carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, 
only when future economic benefits associated with the item are probable to flow to the Company and cost 
of the item can be measured reliably. All other repair and maintenance are charged to profit or loss during the 

reporting period in which they are incurred.

On transition to Ind AS, the Group has elected to continue with the carrying value of its property, plant and 
equipment recognised as at 1 July, 2015 measured as per the previous GAAP and use that carrying value as the 
deemed cost of the property, plant and equipment.
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Depreciation on Property, Plant and equipment is provided on straight-line basis over the useful lives of assets 
as determined on the basis of technical estimates which are similar to the useful lives as prescribed under 
Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013 except for following assets:-

(i) Hand Held Terminal  5 years

(ii) Depreciation on fixed assets of the foreign subsidiaries:

Building 20 Years

Computers 3-4 Years

Furniture and Fixtures 4-6 Years

Office Equipment 6 Years

Assets residual values, depreciation method and useful lives are reviewed at each financial year end considering 
the physical condition of the assets or whenever there are indicators for review and adjusted residual life 
prospectively.An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s 
carrying amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount.

Leasehold land is amortised over a period of lease. Leasehold improvements are amortised on straight line basis 
over the period of three years or lease period whichever is lower.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with carrying amount. These are included 
in profit or loss within other income.

2.8. Intangible assets

On transition to Ind AS, the Group has opted the option given under Ind AS 101 to measure all the items of 
Intangible Assets at their carrying value under previous GAAP (refer Note 2.2). Consequently the carrying value 

under IGAAP has been assumed to be deemed cost of Intangible Assets on the date of transition to Ind AS.

Identifiable intangible assets are recognised when the Group controls the asset, it is probable that future 
economic benefits attributed to the asset will flow to the Group and the cost of the asset can be reliably 
measured.

At initial recognition, the separately acquired intangible assets are recognised at cost. The cost of intangible 
assets that are acquired in a business combination is its fair value as at the date of acquisition. Following initial 
recognition, the intangible assets are carried at costless any accumulated amortisation and accumulated 
impairment losses, if any.

Amortisation is recognised in profit or loss on a straight line basis over the estimated useful lives of intangible 
assets from the date they are available for use. The amortisation period and the amortisation method are 
reviewed at least at each financial year end. If the expected useful life of the asset is significantly different from 
previous estimates, the amortisation period is changed accordingly. Gains or losses arising from the retirement 
or disposal of an intangible asset are determined as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the 
carrying amount of the asset and recognised as income or expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Goodwill

Goodwill is initially recognised at cost and is subsequently measured at cost less anyaccumulated impairment 
losses. On disposal of a subsidiary, the attributable amount of goodwill is included in the determination of the 
profit or loss recognised in the Statement of Profit or Loss on disposal.

Softwares

Softwares are capitalised at the amounts paid to acquire the respective license for use and are amortised over 
the period of license.

Digitised educational content (Intellectual Property Rights)

Research costs are expensed as incurred. Development expenditure incurred on an individual project is 
recognised as an intangible asset when technical and commercial feasibility of the project is demonstrated, 
future economic benefits are probable, the Group has ability and intention to complete the asset and use or sell 
it and cost can be measured reliably. The costs incurred, during the development stage but before completion, 
are deferred and classified as Intangible assets under development. Upon completion, such costs are transferred 

to Intangible assets and amortised over the estimated useful life of such asset.
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Estimated useful life of other acquired intangibles is as follows:

Intangible Assets (other than Goodwill) are amortised at straight line basis as follows:

Intellectual Property Rights 7 years

Software 1-5 years

2.9. Leases

As a Lessee

Leases of property, plant and equipment where the Group, as lessee, has substantially all the risks and rewards 
of ownership are classified as finance leases. Finance leases are capitalised at the lease’s inception at the fair 
value of the leased property or, if lower, the present value of the minimum lease payments. The corresponding 
rental obligations, net of finance charges, are included in borrowings or other financial liabilities as appropriate. 
Each lease payment is allocated between the liability and finance cost. The finance cost is charged to the profit 
or loss over the lease period so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of 
the liability for each period.

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are not transferred to the group as 
lessee are classified as operating leases. Payments made under operating leases (net of any incentives received 
from the lessor) are charged to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease unless the 
payments are structured to increase in line with expected general inflation to compensate for the lessor’s 
expected inflationary cost increases.

As a Lessor

Lease income from operating leases where the group is a lessor is recognised in income on a straight-line 

basis over the lease term unless the receipts are structured to increase in line with expected general inflation 
to compensate for the expected inflationary cost increases. The respective leased assets are included in the 

balance sheet based on their nature.

Assets given under finance lease are recognised as receivables at an amount equal to the net investment in the 
lease. Inventories given on finance lease are recognised as deemed sale at fair value. Lease income is recognised 
over the period of the lease so as to yield a constant rate of return on the net investment in the lease.

Sale and Leaseback

Profit on sale and leaseback transactions is recognised over the period of the lease.

In sale and leaseback transactions and further sub-lease resulting in finance leases, the deemed sale is recognised 
at fair value at an amount equal to the net investment in the lease where substantially all risks and rewards of 
ownership have been transferred to the sub-lessee. A liability is created at the inception of the lease at the lower 

of fair value or the present value of minimum lease payments for sale and leaseback transaction. Each lease 
rental payable/receivable is allocated between the liability/receivable and the interest cost/income, so as to 
obtain a constant periodic rate of interest on outstanding liability/receivable for each period.

2.10 Financial Instruments

A. Financial Instruments – Initial Recognition and Measurement

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the Group’s statement of financial position when 
the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. The Group determines the 

classification of its financial assets and liabilities at initial recognition. All financial assets and liabilities 

are initially recognised at fair value plus directly attributable transaction costs in case of financial assets 
and liabilities not at fair value through profit or loss. Financial assets and liabilities carried at fair value 
through profit or loss are initially recognised at fair value, and transaction costs are expensed in the 
income statement.
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B. Financial Assets

1. Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their classification as follows:

Debt instrument

a. Financial assets at fair value through profit o rloss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include financial assets held for trading and 
those designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss. Financial assets 
are classified as held for trading if they are acquired for the purpose of selling in the near term. 
Derivatives are classified as held for trading unless they are designated as effective hedging 
instruments. Financial assets are designated upon initial recognition at fair value through 
profit or loss when the same are managed by the Group on the basis of their fair value and 
their performance is evaluated on fair value basis in accordance with a risk management or 
investment strategy of the Group. Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried 
in the statement of financial position at fair value with changes in fair value recognised in other 
income in the income statement.

b. Financial assets measured at amortised cost

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets that are held for collection of 
contractual cash flows, where the assets’ cash flows represent solely payments of principal and 
interest, are measured at amortised cost. Interest income from these financial assets is included 
in other income.

c. Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI):

Financial assets are measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (OCI) if these 

financial assets are held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting 
contractual cash flows and selling financial assets and the contractual terms of the financial 
asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest 

on the principal amount outstanding. Movements in the carrying amount are taken through 
OCI, except for the recognition of impairment gains or losses, interest revenue and foreign 

exchange gains and losses which are recognised in profit and loss. When the financial asset 
is derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCI is reclassified from 
equity to profit or loss and recognised in other gains/ (losses). Interest income from these 

financial assets is included in other income using the effective interest rate method.

Equity instruments

The Group subsequently measures all equity investments at fair value. Dividends from such 
investments are recognised in profit or loss as other income when the Group’s right to receive 

payments is established.

2. Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the 
asset expires or it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership 
of the asset.

C. Financial Liabilities

1. Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification as follows:

Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost

After initial recognition, interest bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at 
amortised cost using the effective interest rate method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking 
into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fee or costs that are an integral part of 

the effective interest rate method. The effective interest rate method’s amortisation is included in 
finance costs in the income statement.
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2. Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled 
or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on 
substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an 
exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability and the recognition 
of a new liability, and the difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the income 
statement.

D. Offsetting Financial Instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the consolidated 
statement of financial position if, and only if, there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the 
recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the 
liabilities simultaneously.

E. Derivative Financial Instruments - Current versus Non- Current Classification

Derivative instruments will be held for a period beyond twelve months after the reporting date, are classified 
as non-current(or separated into current and non-current portions) consistent with the classification of the 
underlying item. These are classified as current, when the remaining holding period is upto twelve months 
after the reporting date.

F. Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses on a forward looking basis the expected credit losses associated with its assets carried 
at amortised cost and FVOCI. The impairment methodology applied depends on whether there has been 
a significant increase in credit risk.

For trade receivables only, the Group applies the simplified approach permitted by Ind AS 109 Financial 
Instruments, which requires expected lifetime losses to be recognised from initial recognition of the 
receivables.

G. Fair Value Measurement

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient 
data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising 
the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are 
categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is 
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1- Quoted (Unadjusted) marked prices in the active markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2- Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value 

measurement is directly or indirectly observable

Level 3- Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value 
measurement is unobservable.

2.11 Income tax

The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax payable on the current period’s taxable income based 

on the applicable income tax rate for each jurisdiction adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities 

attributable to temporary differences and to unused tax losses.

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the 
end of the reporting period in the countries where the Company and its subsidiaries and associates operate 

and generate taxable income. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect 
to situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes provisions where 
appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability method, on temporary differences arising between the 
tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial statements. However, 
deferred tax liabilities are not recognised if they arise from the initial recognition of goodwill. Deferred income 
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tax is also not accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction other than 
a business combination that at the time of the transaction affects neither accounting profit nor taxable profit 
(tax loss). Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or substantially 
enacted by the end of the reporting period and are expected to apply when the related deferred income tax 
asset is realised or the deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences and unused tax losses only if it is 
probable that future taxable amounts will be available to utilise those temporary differences and losses.

Deferred tax liabilities are not recognised for temporary differences between the carrying amount and tax 
bases of investments in subsidiaries and interest in joint arrangements where the Group is able to control the 

timing of the reversal of the temporary differences and it is probable that the differences will not reverse in the 
foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets 
and liabilities and when the deferred tax balances relate to the same taxation authority. Current tax assets and 
tax liabilities are offset where the entity has a legally enforceable right to offset and intends either to settle on a 
net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in 
other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive 
income or directly in equity, respectively.

2.12 Inventories

Raw materials, stock-in-trade and finished goods are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Stores 
and Spares are valued at lower of cost and net realisable value/future economic benefit expected to arise when 
consumed during rendering of services.

Cost of raw materials, stores and spares and stock-in-trade comprises cost of purchases. Cost of finished 
goods comprises direct materials, direct labour and an appropriate proportion of variable and fixed overhead 
expenditure, the latter being allocated on the basis of normal operating capacity. Cost of inventories also include 
all other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition. Cost is determined 
on the basis of weighted average. Costs of purchased inventory are determined after deducting rebates and 
discounts. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the estimated 
costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

Goods in-transit is valued inclusive of custom duty, where applicable.

2.13 Trade receivables

Trade receivables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the 
effective interest method, less provision for impairment.

2.14 Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of presentation in the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents includes cash on 
hand, deposits held at call with financial institutions, other short-term, highly liquid investments with original 
maturities of three months or less that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject 
to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and bank overdrafts. Bank overdrafts are shown within borrowings 
in current liabilities in the balance sheet.

2.15 Impairment of assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life, for example goodwill, are not subject to amortisation and are tested 
annually for impairment. Assets that are subject to depreciation and amortisation are reviewed for impairment, 
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable or 
when annual impairment testing for an asset is required. Such circumstances include, though are not limited 

to, significant or sustained decline in revenues or earnings and material adverse changes in the economic 
environment.

Impairment test for goodwill is performed at the level of each Cash Generating Unit (‘CGU’) or groups of CGUs 
expected to benefit from acquisition-related synergies and represent the lowest level within the entity at 
which the goodwill is monitored for internal management purposes, within an operating segment. A CGU is 
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the smallest identifiable group of assets that generates cash inflows that are largely independent of the cash 
inflows from other assets or group of assets. An impairment loss is recognised whenever the carrying amount of 
an asset or its cash-generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount.

The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater of its fair value less costs to sell and value in use. To calculate 
value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate 
that reflects current market rates and the risks specific to the asset. For an asset that does not generate largely 
independent cash inflows, the recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating unit to which the 
asset belongs.

Fair value less costs to sell is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in 

an orderly transaction between market participants, less the costs of disposal. Impairment losses, if any are 
recognised in profit or loss as a component of depreciation and amortisation expense.

An impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not reversed. Other impairment losses are only reversed to the 
extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined 
if no impairment loss had previously been recognised.

2.16 Non-current Assets (or disposal groups) held for Sale

Non-current assets (or disposal groups) are classified as assets held for sale when their carrying amount is to be 
recovered principally through a sale transaction and a sale is considered highly probable. The sale is considered 
highly probable only when the asset or disposal group is available for immediate sale in its present condition, it 
is unlikely that the sale will be withdrawn and sale is expected within one year from the date of the classification. 
Disposal groups classified as held for sale are stated at the lower of carrying amount and fair value less costs to 
sell. Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets are not depreciated or amortised once classified as 
held for sale. Assets and liabilities classified as held for sale are presented separately in the statement of financial 
position.

If the criteria stated by Ind AS 105 “Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations” are no longer 
met, the disposal group ceases to be classified as held for sale. Non-current asset that ceases to be classified 
as held for sale are measured at the lower of (i) its carrying amount before the asset was classified as held for 
sale, adjusted for depreciation that would have been recognised had that asset not been classified as held for 
sale, and (ii) its recoverable amount at the date when the disposal group ceases to be classified as held for sale.

2.17 Trade and other payables

These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the Group prior to the end of financial 
year which are unpaid. The amounts are unsecured and are usually paid in accordance with the terms with 
the vendors. Trade and other payables are presented as current liabilities unless payment is not due within 12 
months after the reporting period. They are recognised initially at their fair value and subsequently measured 
at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

2.18 Borrowings

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently 
measured at amortised cost. Any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption 

amount is recognised in profit or loss over the period of the borrowings using the effective interest method. 
Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are recognised as transaction costs of the loan to the extent that 
it is probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn down. In this case, the fee is deferred until the draw 

down occurs. To the extent there is no evidence that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn 
down, the fee is capitalised as a prepayment for liquidity services and amortised over the period of the facility 
to which it relates.

Borrowings are removed from the balance sheet when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, 
cancelled or expired. The difference between the carrying amount of a financial liability that has been 
extinguished or transferred to another party and the consideration paid, including any non-cash assets 

transferred or liabilities assumed, is recognised in profit or loss as other gains/(losses).

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement 
of the liability for at least 12 months after the reporting period. Where there is a breach of a material provision 

of a long-term loan arrangement on or before the end of the reporting period with the effect that the liability 
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becomes payable on demand on the reporting date, the entity does not classify the liability as current, if the 
lender agreed, after the reporting period and before the approval of the financial statements for issue, not to 
demand payment as a consequence of the breach.

2.19 Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets

a) Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past 
events, it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation and the amount 
can be reliably estimated. Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses.

Provisions are measured at the present value of management’s best estimate of the expenditure required 
to settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting period. The discount rate used to determine 
the present value is a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and 
the risks specific to the liability. The increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as 
interest expense.

b) Contingencies

Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising from past events, the 
existence of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain 
future events not wholly within the control of the Company or a present obligation that arises from past 
events where it is either not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle or a reliable 
estimate of the amount cannot be made. Information on contingent liability is disclosed in the Notes to 
the Consolidated Financial Statements.

2.20 Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the Chief 
Operating Decision Maker.

The Board of Directors of the Company has authorised its Executive Vice Chairman & Managing Director to 
assess the financial performance and position of the Group, and makes decisions in normal course of business 

operations. For key strategic decisions, the Board of Directors take decisions after evaluating the possible 
options and recommendations given by the management. The Board of Directors, together with Executive Vice 

Chairman &Managing Director has been identified as being the chief operating decision maker. Refer note 44 
for segment information presented.

2.21 Foreign currency translation

(i) Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each of the Group’s entities are measured using the currency 
of the primary economic environment in which the entity operates (`the functional currency’). The 
Group’s operations are primarily in India, except operations in subsidiaries incorporatedoutside India. The 

consolidated financial statements are presented in Indian rupee (INR), which is the Company’s functional 
and presentation currency.

(ii) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates at 
the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such 

transactions and from the translation of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies 
at year end exchange rates are recognised in profit or loss.

Foreign exchange differences regarded as an adjustment to borrowing costs are presented in the statement 
of profit and loss, within finance costs. All other foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in the 
statement of profit and loss on a net basis within other income.

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the 
exchange rates at the date when the fair value was determined. Translation differences on assets and 
liabilities carried at fair value are reported as part of the fair value gain or loss.
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(iii) Group companies

The results and financial position of foreign operations that have a functional currency different from the 
presentation currency are translated into the presentation currency as follows:

approximation of the cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on the transaction dates, in which case 
income and expenses are translated at the dates of the transactions), and

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition of a foreign operation are treated as assets and 
liabilities of the foreign operation and translated at the closing rate.

2.22 Revenue recognition

The Group derives revenues primarily from sale of products and services and long term composite contracts, 
requiring sale and integration of IT products. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received 
or receivable.

The Group recognises revenue when the amount of revenue can be reliably measured, it is probable that future 
economic benefits will flow to the entity and specific criteria have been met for each of the Group’s activities 
as described below. The Group bases its estimates on historical results, taking into consideration the type of 
customer, the type of transaction and the specifics of each arrangement.

Sale of Products

Timing of recognition

The Group is engaged into the business of –

Revenue from the sale of products, including content licenses, is recognised when the following criteria for the 
transaction have been met:

ceased;

Measurement of revenue

Revenue from sales is based on the price specified in the sales contract, net of the estimated volume discounts 
and returns at the time of sale. For separately identified component from multiple element arrangement, 

pertaining to the sale of products, the revenues are measured based on fair value allocated to such component 
within the overall arrangement.

Amounts disclosed as revenue are inclusive of excise duty and net of returns, trade allowances, rebates, value 

added taxes and amounts collected on behalf of third parties.

Revenue from services

Timing of recognition

Service income includes income from IT infrastructure managed services, break-fix services, cloud services, 
enterprise application services, software development & support services, office automation maintenance 
services, managed print services and telecom & consumer electronics support services. Revenues relating to 

time and materials contracts are recognized as the related services are rendered. Revenue in case of fixed priced 
contracts is recognised on percentage of completion basis. Revenue from a period based service contracts is 
recognised on a pro rata basis over the period in which such services are rendered.
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Measurement of Revenue

Revenue are based on the price specified in the sales contract, net of the estimated volume discounts. For 
separately identified component from multiple element arrangement, pertaining to the sale of services, the 
revenues are measured based on fair value allocated to such component within the overall arrangement.

Estimates of revenue, costs or extent of progress towards completion are revised if circumstances change. Any 
resulting increases or decreases in estimated revenues or costs are reflected in profit or loss in the period in 
which the circumstances that give rise to the revision become known by management.

Revenue from long term composite contracts

The Group enters into long term fixed price composite contracts with its customers, which requires design and 
integration of IT hardware and software to build an integrated solution. The contract involves seamless sale of 
products and services, with objective to build a solution which meets specifications mentioned in the contract. 
The execution of these contracts require long period of time, usually more than 12 months.

Timing of recognition

The accounting for these composite contracts, outcome of which can be reliably estimated, where no significant 
uncertainty exists regarding realisation of the consideration, the revenue is recognised in accordance with the 
percentage completion method, under which revenue is recognised on the basis of cost incurred as a proportion 
of total cost expected to be incurred. The costs incurred is considered as reasonable source to measure progress 
towards completion as there is direct relationship between the input and productivity. Provision for foreseeable 
losses, if any, on uncompleted contracts are recorded in the period in which such losses become probable 
based on current contract estimates. Costs and earnings in excess of billings are classified as unbilled revenues, 
while billings in excess of costs and earnings are classified as deferred revenues.

Measurement of Revenue

The revenues are measured based on overall price for the solution as mentioned in the contract, applying 
percentage of completion method. For delivery of integrated solution is identified as separate component 
from multiple element arrangement, the revenues are measured based on fair value allocated to the solution/ 
deliverable within the overall arrangement. Such allocated fair value is recognised as revenues using percentage 
of completion method over the period of contract.

Revenue from Multiple-element arrangement

Timing of Revenue Recognition

The Company enters into contracts consisting of any combination of supply of IT solutions & hardware and 
Installation and other services. Within these multiple element arrangements, separate components are 
identified and accounted for based on the nature of those components, considering the economic substance of 
the entire arrangement. The revenue allocated to each component is recognized when the revenue recognition 

criteria for that component have been met.

Measurement of Revenue

Revenue is allocated to each separately identifiable component based on the fair value of each component. 
Where the relative fair value of all the components are not separately identifiable, fair value of one component 

is determined by taking into consideration factors such as the price of the component when sold separately and 
the component cost plus a reasonable margin. Fair values of the remaining components are determined based 
on the residual approach.

Estimates of revenue, costs or extent of progress towards completion are revised if circumstances change. Any 
resulting increases or decreases in estimated revenues or costs are reflected in profit or loss in the period in 
which the circumstances that give rise to the revision become known by management.

Interest income

Interest income from loans and receivables (debt instruments) is recognised using the effective interest rate 
method. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through 

the expected life of the financial asset to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset. When calculating the 
effective interest rate, the Group estimates the expected cash flows by considering all the contractual terms of 
the financial instrument (for example, prepayment, extension, call and similar options) but does not consider 
the expected credit losses.
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2.23 Employee benefits

Defined benefit plans

Gratuity

The liability recognised in the balance sheet is the present value of the defined benefit obligation at the end of 
the reporting period less the fair value of plan assets. The defined benefit obligation is calculated annually by 
actuaries using the projected unit credit method.

The present value is determined by discounting the estimated future cash outflows by reference to market 
yields at the end of the reporting period on government bonds that have terms approximating to the terms of 
the related obligation.

The net interest cost is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net balance of the defined benefit 
obligation and the fair value of plan assets. This cost is included in employee benefit expense in the statement 
of profit and loss.

Remeasurement gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions 
are recognised in the period in which they occur, directly in other comprehensive income. They are included in 
retained earnings in the statement of changes in equity and in the balance sheet.

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation resulting from plan amendments or curtailments 
are recognised immediately in profit or loss as past service cost.

Provident Fund

In respect of certain employees, Provident Fund contributions are made to a multi-employer Trust administered 
by the Company. The Company’s liability is actuarially determined (using the Projected Unit Credit method) 
at the end of the year and any shortfall in the fund size maintained by the Trust set up by the Company is 
additionally provided for. Actuarial losses/gains are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the year 
in which they arise.

Defined contribution plans

Contributions to the employees’ state insurance fund, administered by the prescribed government authorities, 
are made in accordance with the Employees’ State Insurance Act, 1948 and are recognised as an expense on an 
accrual basis.

Company’s contribution towards Superannuation Fund is accounted for on accrual basis.

The Company makes defined contributions to a Superannuation Trust established for the purpose. The 
Company has no further obligation beyond the monthly contributions.

Other Benefits

Compensated Absences

Accumulated compensated absences, which are expected to be availed or encashed within 12 months from the 
end of the year end are treated as short term employee benefits. The obligation towards the same is measured 
at the expected cost of accumulating compensated absences as a result of the unused entitlement as at the 
year end.

Accumulated compensated absences, which are expected to be availed or encashed beyond 12 months from 
the end of the year end are treated as other long term employee benefits. The Company’s liability is actuarially 
determined (using the Projected Unit Credit method) at the end of each year. Actuarial losses/ gains are 
recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the year in which they arise.

Long Term Employee Benefits

Employee benefits, which are expected to be availed or encased beyond 12 months from the end of the year 
are treated as other long term employee benefits. The Company’s liability is actuarially determined (using the 
Projected Unit Credit method) at the end of each year.

Employee Options

The fair value of options granted is recognised as an employee benefits expense with a corresponding increase 
in equity. The total amount to be expensed is determined by reference to the fair value of the options granted:
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The total expense is recognised over the vesting period, which is the period over which all of the specified 
vesting conditions are to be satisfied. At the end of each period, the entity revises its estimates of the number 
of options that are expected to vest based on the non-market vesting and service conditions. It recognises the 
impact of the revision to original estimates, if any, in profit or loss, with a corresponding adjustment to equity.

2.24 Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production 
of a qualifying asset are capitalised during the period of time that is required to complete and prepare the asset 
for its intended use or sale. Qualifying assets are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get 
ready for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on 
qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.

2.25 Earnings per Share

(i) Basic earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing:

(ii) Diluted earnings per share

Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used in the determination of basic earnings per share to take 
into account:

equity shares, and

assuming the conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares.

2.26 Exceptional Items

Items which are material either because of their size or their nature, and which are non-recurring, are highlighted 
through separate disclosure. The separate reporting of exceptional items helps provide a better picture of the 
Group’s underlying performance.

2.27 New standards that are not yet effective and have not been early adopted:

As set out below, amendments to standards are effective for annual periods beginning on or after April 1, 
2017, and have not been applied in preparing these financial statements. None of these is expected to have a 
significant effect on the Consolidated Financial Statements of the Group:

Amendments to Ind AS 102, Share-based Payment

The amendment to Ind AS 102 clarifies the measurement basis for cash-settled share-based payments and the 
accounting for modifications that change an award from cash-settled to equity-settled. 

Since the Group does not have any cash-settled share based payments outstanding at the reporting date, the 
above mentioned amendment will not have any impact on the Consolidated Financial Statements of the Group.

Amendments to Ind AS 7, Statement of Cash Flows

The amendment to Ind AS 7 introduces an additional disclosure that will enable users of Consolidated Financial 
Statements to evaluate changes in liabilities arising from financing activities. The said amendment will not have 
any impact on the Group’s Cash Flow Statement.

There are no other Ind ASs that are not yet effective that would be expected to have a material impact on the 
Consolidated Cash Flow Statement.
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3 (a) Property, Plant & Equipment

(`/Crores)

Particulars Gross Carrying Amount Accumulated Depreciation / Amortisation Net Carrying Amount

As at 
01.04.2016

Additions /
Adjustment

Disposal /
Adjustment

As at 
31.03.2017

As at 
01.04.2016

Additions /
Adjustment

Disposal/ 
Adjustment

As at 
31.03.2017

As at 
31.03.2017

As at 
31.03.2016

Leasehold Land 12.30 - - 12.30 0.12 0.16 - 0.28 12.02 12.18

Leasehold 
improvements

5.76 4.98 - 10.74 1.14 2.81 - 3.95 6.79 4.62

Freehold Land 7.64 - - 7.64 - - - - 7.64 7.64

Buildings 53.67 - 0.73 52.94 1.29 1.71 0.02 2.98 49.96 52.38

Plant and 
Machinery

22.39 0.89 0.03 23.25 5.81 6.45 0.01 12.25 11.00 16.58

Furniture and 
Fixtures

10.45 1.06 0.32 11.19 1.43 1.27 0.16 2.54 8.65 9.02

Office Equipments 6.57 0.85 0.32 7.10 1.68 1.63 0.15 3.16 3.94 4.89

Vehicles 5.19 0.30 1.14 4.35 0.51 1.24 0.36 1.39 2.96 4.68

Computers 26.14 6.59 2.66 30.07 7.07 12.27 2.01 17.33 12.74 19.07

Total 150.11 14.67 5.20 159.58 19.05 27.54 2.71 43.88 115.70 131.06

Notes:

1. Land and Building at Ambattur amounting to ` 3.24 Crores (2016- ` 3.28 Crores, 2015 - ` 3.31 Crores) are pending registration in the 

name of the Group.

Property, Plant & Equipment

(`/Crores)

Particulars Gross Carrying Amount Accumulated Depreciation / Amortisation Net Carrying 

Amount

Deemed 

Cost As at 

01.07.2015

Additions /

adjustment

Disposal /

Adjustment

As at 

31.03.2016

As at 

01.07.2015

Additions /

Adjustment

Disposal/ 

Adjustment 

As at 

31.03.2016

As at 

31.03.2016

Leasehold Land 17.25 - 4.95 12.30 - 0.14 0.02 0.12 12.18

Leasehold improvements 3.95 1.81 - 5.76 - 1.14 - 1.14 4.62

Freehold Land 7.64 - - 7.64 - - - - 7.64

Buildings 52.22 3.99 2.54 53.67 - 1.30 0.01 1.29 52.38

Plant and Machinery 19.53 3.02 0.16 22.39 - 5.84 0.03 5.81 16.58

Furniture and Fixtures 5.52 5.35 0.42 10.45 - 1.44 0.01 1.43 9.02

Office Equipments 5.61 1.09 0.13 6.57 - 1.71 0.03 1.68 4.89

Vehicles 3.97 1.22 - 5.19 - 0.88 0.37 0.51 4.68

Computers 20.11 7.78 1.75 26.14 - 7.30 0.23 7.07 19.07

Total 135.80 24.26 9.95 150.11 - 19.75 0.70 19.05 131.06

Notes:

1. Land and Building at Ambattur amounting to ` 3.28 Crores ( 2015 - ` 3.31 Crores) are pending registration in the name of the Group.

Intangible Assets

3 (b) Goodwill

(`/Crores)

Particulars Gross Carrying Amount Accumulated Impairment Net Carrying Amount

As at 

01.04.2016

Additions/ 

Adjustment

Disposal As at 

31.03.2017

As at 

01.04.2016

Additions Disposal/ 

Adjustment

As at 

31.03.2017

As at 

31.03.2017

As at 

31.03.2016

Goodwill 56.89 - - 56.89 - - - - 56.89 56.89

Goodwill on 

Consolidation

580.82 (2.47) - 578.35 70.00 61.00 - 131.00 447.35 510.82

Total 637.71 -2.47 - 635.24 70.00 61.00 - 131.00 504.24 567.71

Notes:

1. Addition in Amortisation and Impairment during the year includes impairment of Goodwill in respect of Learning Business ` 11 
Crores and in respect of services business ` 50 Crores (Refer Note-55)
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Goodwill

Particulars Gross Carrying Amount Accumulated Impairment Net Carrying 
Amount

Deemed 
Cost As at 

01.07.2015

Additions/ 
Adjustment

Disposal As at 
31.03.2016

As at 
01.04.2016

Additions Disposal/ 
Adjustment

As at 
31.03.2016

As at 
31.03.2016

Goodwill 56.89 - - 56.89 - - - - 56.89

Goodwill on 
Consolidation

578.38 2.44 - 580.82 - 70.00 - 70.00 510.82

Total 635.27 2.44 - 637.71 - 70.00 - 70.00 567.71

Notes:

1. Addition in Amortisation and Impairment during the year includes ` 70 Crores Impairment loss on Goodwill related 
to Learning Segment (Refer Note-55)

3 (c) Other Intangible Assets

Particulars Gross Carrying Amount Accumulated Amortisation/Impairment Net Carrying Amount

As at 

01.04.2016

Additions /

Adjustment

Disposal As at 

31.03.2017

As at 

01.04.2016

Additions Disposal/ 

Adjustment 

As at 

31.03.2017

As at 

31.03.2017

As at 

31.03.2016

Intangible Assets:

Software 7.28 1.31 - 8.59 3.58 2.25 - 5.83 2.76 3.58

Intellectual Property 

Rights
28.97 - - 28.97 5.97 7.68 - 13.65 15.32 23.07

Technical Knowhow 4.70 - - 4.70 2.68 1.72 - 4.40 0.30 2.07

Total 40.95 1.31 - 42.26 12.23 11.65 - 23.88 18.38 28.72

Notes:

1. Software comprise cost of acquiring licences and SAP implementation charges.

2. Intellectual Property Rights comprise of designing and implementing education content.

3. Technical know how comprise of development cost of new technology/products.

Other Intangible Assets

Particulars Gross Carrying Amount Accumulated Amortisation/Impairment Net Carrying 

Amount

Deemed 

Cost As at 
01.07.2015

Additions/ 

Adjustment 

Disposal As at 

31.03.2016

As at 

01.04.2016

Additions Disposal/ 

Adjustment 

As at 

31.03.2016

As at 

31.03.2016

Intangible Assets:

Software 5.80 1.48 - 7.28 3.58 - 3.58 3.70

Intellectual Property 
Rights

28.97 - - 28.97 5.97 - 5.97 23.00

Technical Knowhow 4.70 - - 4.70 2.68 - 2.68 2.02

Total 39.47 1.48 - 40.95 - 12.23 - 12.23 28.72

Notes:

1. Software comprise cost of acquiring licences and SAP implementation charges.

2. Intellectual Property Rights comprise of designing and implementing education content.

3. Technical know how comprise of development cost of new technology/products.
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3 (d) Capital Work-In-Progress

(`/Crores)

Particulars As at 01.07.2016 Addition Capitalisation As at 31.03.2017

Capital Work-In-Progress 2.01 2.01 2.60 1.42

Particulars Deemed Cost As 
at 01.07.2015

Addition Capitalisation As at 31.03.2016

Capital Work-In-Progress 0.84 1.55 0.38 2.01

3 (e) Intangible assets under development

`/Crores

Particulars As at 01.07.2016 Addition Capitalisation As at 31.03.2017

Intangible assets under development 2.16 0.99 3.15

Intangible assets under development

Particulars Deemed Cost As 
at 01.07.2015

Addition Capitalisation As at 31.03.2016

Intangible assets under development - 2.16 - 2.16

4 Current investments

As at 31.03.2017 As at 31.03.2016 As at 30.06.2015

Units Amount
`/Crores

Units Amount
`/Crores

Units Amount
`/Crores

Financial Assets

(i) Investment in Mutual Funds - Growth 
Options -Unquoted

Birla Sunlife Savings Fund - - - - 549,224 15.10

HDFC Floating Rate Income Fund - STP-WP - - - - 6,171,009 15.10

Kotak Floater Long Term - - - - 2,213,065 5.03

ICICI Prudential Flexible Income Plan - - - - 749,081 20.13

Reliance Money Manager Fund - - - - 103,183 20.15

UTI Treasury Advantage Plan - - - - 25,954 5.04

SBI-SHF Ultra Short Term Fund - - - - 27,410 5.02

Sub - Total (a) - - 85.57

(ii) Investment in Mutual Funds- Dividend 
Options-Unquoted

Birla Sunlife Savings Fund # - - - - 7,485,239 75.00

Axis Treasury Advantage Fund 601,311 60.56 - - - -

Kotak Floater Long Term # - - - - 24,800,849 25.10

Reliance Money Manager Fund # 498,809 50.31 498,809 50.16 498,809 49.99

UTI Treasury Advantage Plan 99,438 10.00

Sub - Total (b) 120.87 50.16 150.09

Total Current Investments (a) + (b) 120.87 50.16 235.66

# Under lien with bank

Aggregate amount of unquoted investment 120.87 50.16 235.66
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As at

31.03.2017
`/Crores

As at

31.03.2016
`/Crores

As at

01.07.2015
`/Crores

5 Other Non-Current Financial Assets

Bank Deposits with original maturity of more than 
twelve months

0.28 0.22 0.22

Lease Rental Recoverable 35.14 89.58 158.52

Less: Allowance for Doubtful Lease Rental 
Recoverable

1.05 34.09 3.60 85.98 5.13 153.39

Security Deposits 7.02 6.41 4.77

TOTAL 41.39 92.61 158.38

6 Advance Income Tax Asset (Net)

Advance Income Tax
[Net of Provision for Income Tax of ` 52.70 Crores 
(2016- ` 544.58 Crores, 2015 - ` 6.62 Crores)]

160.54 111.84 63.57

TOTAL 160.54 111.84 63.57

7 Deferred Tax Asset (Net) (Refer Note 45)

Deferred Tax Asset 165.43 109.64 101.80

165.43 109.64 101.80

8 Other Non-Current Assets

Unsecured, considered good

Capital Advances 0.19 1.06 1.72

Others

Balances with Government Authorities 119.97 101.63 44.71

Prepaid Expenses 12.89 26.93 4.41

Others 0.57 0.61 0.58

Considered Doubtful

Capital Advances 0.50 0.50 0.50

Less: Allowance for Doubtful Loans and Advances (0.50) - (0.50) - (0.50) -

TOTAL 133.62 130.23 51.42

9 Inventories

Raw Materials and Components 
[Including In-Transit ` 0.06 Crores (2016 - ` 0.06 
Crores, 2015- Nil)]

0.11 0.26 -

Finished Goods 
[Including In-Transit ` 0.12 Crores (2016 - ` 0.17 
Crores, 2015- ` 0.18 Crores)]

0.11 0.56 1.91

Stock-In-Trade
[Including In-Transit `20.88 Crores (2016- ` 36.70 
Crores, 2015 - ` 16.40 Crores)]

80.77 137.45 177.23

Stores and Spares 60.32 75.93 75.60

TOTAL 141.31 214.20 254.74

Write-downs of inventories to net realisable value recognised as an expense during the year amounts to ` 16.38 Crores 
( 2016- ` 5.38 Crores). These were included in changes in value of inventories of work-in-progress, stock in trade and 
finished goods in statement of profit or loss.
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As at

31.03.2017
`/Crores

As at

31.03.2016
`/Crores

As at

01.07.2015
`/Crores

10 Trade receivables (Refer Note 39)

Unsecured:

Considered Good 1,292.73 1,550.42 1,754.71

Considered Doubtful 205.85 227.36 211.21

1,498.58 1,777.78 1,965.92

Less: Allowance for Doubtful Debts 205.85 1,292.73 227.36 1,550.42 211.21 1,754.71

TOTAL 1,292.73 1,550.42 1,754.71

11 Cash and Cash Equivalents (Refer Note 56)

Balances with Banks

- in Current Account 82.12 172.84 85.71

Less: Money held in Trust 0.01 82.11 0.01 172.83 0.01 85.70

Cash on Hand 0.22 0.16 0.13

Cheques on Hand 7.35 7.47 7.46

Bank Deposits with original maturity of three 
months or less

48.72 18.77 31.20

Less: Money held in Trust 0.31 48.41 0.32 18.45 0.32 30.88

TOTAL 138.09 198.91 124.17

12 Other Bank Balances

Bank Deposits with original maturity of more than 
three months and upto twelve months

48.83 12.70 3.75

Balance with Banks

-On Margin Account 5.22 4.71 4.08

-On Dividend Account 1.28 1.81 2.19

TOTAL 55.33 19.22 10.02

13 Loans

Unsecured Considered Good

Loan to employees 0.60 1.20 0.25

TOTAL 0.60 1.20 0.25

14 Other Financial Assets

Lease Rental Recoverable 60.81 100.85 106.57

Less: Allowance for Doubtful Lease Rental 
Recoverable

22.78 38.03 17.78 83.07 20.91 85.66

Security Deposits 6.56 16.30 19.69

Unbilled revenue 137.30 160.28 178.77

Others (Includes Employee advances, Insurance 

claim recoverable)

5.67 5.65 5.96

Considered Doubtful

Others (Includes Employee advances, Insurance 

claim recoverable)

4.83 1.01 -

Less: Allowance for Doubtful Loans and Advances 4.83 - 1.01 - - -

TOTAL 187.56 265.30 290.08
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As at

31.03.2017
`/Crores

As at

31.03.2016
`/Crores

As at

01.07.2015
`/Crores

15 Other Current Assets

Unsecured, Considered Good

Balances with Custom, Port Trust, Excise and
Sales Tax

43.63 29.77 38.83

Advances to Creditors 24.72 16.23 48.29

Deposits with Tax Authorities - - 0.15

Prepaid Expenses 33.30 40.75 56.45

Others (Expenses recoverable) 2.02 4.26 4.33

Considered Doubtful

Other Current Assets 9.80 16.82 8.55

Less: Allowance for Doubtful Other Current Assets 9.80 - 16.82 - 8.55 -

TOTAL 103.67 91.01 148.05

16 Equity Share capital and other equity

(a) Authorised

55,25,00,000 Equity Shares (2016 - 55,25,00,000, 
2015 - 55,25,00,000) of ` 2/- each

110.50 110.50 110.50

5,00,000 Preference Shares (2016 - 5,00,000, 2015 - 
5,00,000) of ` 100/- each

5.00 5.00 5.00

TOTAL 115.50 115.50 115.50

Equity Share capital

Issued, Subscribed and Paid up

22,29,19,629 Equity Shares (2016- 22,29,19,629, 
2015 - 22,29,04,629) of ` 2/- each

44.58 44.58 44.58

(Fully Paid up) (Number of share issued: 2016- 
15,000, 2015-25,000)

- -

TOTAL 44.58 44.58 44.58

Notes:

(i) Rights attached to Equity Shares:

The Company has only one class of equity share having a face value of ` 2/- each. Each holder of equity shares 

is entitled to one vote per share held. The Company declares and pays dividend in Indian Rupees. The dividend 

proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the Shareholders in ensuing General Meeting, except 
in case of interim dividend.

In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive the remaining 

assets of the Company after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the 
number of equity shares held by Shareholders.

(ii) Shareholders holding more than 5% of the 
aggregate shares in the Company

Number of 
Shares

% of 
shares

Number of 
Shares

% of 
shares

Number of 
Shares

% of 
shares

(a) HCL Corporation Private Limited 111,382,239 49.97 111,382,239 49.97 111,382,239 49.97

(b) AKM Systems Private Limiited 11,997,007 5.38 11,997,007 5.38 11,997,007 5.38
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(iii) Shares reserved for issue under options: 

Information related to Employee Stock Option Plan, including details of options issued, exercised, expired and forfeited 
during the financial year and options outstanding at the end of the reporting period, is set out in Note 54”

(b) Other Equity

Reserve and Surplus (Refer note 38)

Securities premium reserve

Opening balance # 720.16 720.12

Securities Premium on issue of Shares - 0.04

Closing balance 720.16 720.16

General reserve

Opening balance # 215.76 215.76

Appropriation during the year - -

Closing balance 215.76 215.76

Capital reserve

Opening balance # 0.04 0.04

Appropriation during the year - -

Closing balance 0.04 0.04

Retained earning

Opening balance # (195.33) 18.90

Remeasurement of post-employment benefit 
obligation, net of tax

0.77 0.08

Net loss for the year (247.67) (214.30)

Closing balance (442.23) (195.32)

Foreign currency translation of foreign 
operations

Opening balance # 18.71 13.77

Exchange difference on translation of foreign 
operations

(7.61) 4.94

Closing balance 11.10 18.71

HCL Infosystems Limited 504.83 759.35

# Total Equity attributable to the shareholders of HCL Infosystems limited is ` 968.59 Crores as at July 1, 2015. Refer Note 
38 for reconciliation of balance reported under Indian GAAP with restricted balance under IND AS.
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As at

31.03.2017
`/Crores

As at

31.03.2016
`/Crores

As at

01.07.2015
`/Crores

Financial Liabilities

17 Borrowings

Secured:

Term Loans

- From Banks 247.15 377.30 79.15

- From Others 27.79 - -

274.94 377.30 79.15

Unsecured:

Term Loans

- From Others 136.02 144.82 144.73

Finance Lease Obligation (Refer Note 46) 2.20 6.10 9.79

138.22 150.92 154.52

TOTAL 413.16 528.22 233.67

Notes:

(i). Secured Term Loan from Bank and Others amounting to `404.43 Crores (2016 - ` 481.80 Crores, 2015 - NIL), out of which 
` 154.49 Crores (2016 - ` 104.50 Crores, 2015 - NIL) is shown under current maturity of long term debt, is secured by way 
of (1) First pari passu charge on all immovable, movable and intangible assets of the HCL Infosystems Ltd and it’s Material 
Subsidiaries (2) First pari-passu charge on all Current Assets of the HCL Infosystems Ltd & it’s Material Subsidiaries (except 
Lease Rental Receivables). (3) Negative lien on Two Identified Properties (4) Exclusive charge on Debt Service Reserve 
Account created by way of lien on mutual funds of ` 70.56 Crores . The Hypothecation of the movable assets has been 
created on May 22,2017 and the mortgage of the immovable assets is under process. The loan is repayable in 13 quarterly 
installments starting from September 2016 and carries interest @ 11 % to 11.10% p.a.

(ii). Secured Term Loan from Bank amounting to ̀  75.00 Crores (2016 - Nil,2015 - Nil), out of which ̀  50.00 Crores (2016 - Nil, 2015 
- Nil) is shown under current maturity of long term debt, is secured by way of exclusive charge on Lease Rent Receivables 
(LRR) of HCL Infotech Ltd and HCL Learning Ltd and against Support from HCL Corporation Pvt Limited. Security has been 
created on May 8,2017. The loan is repayable in 8 quarterly instalments from the date of the disbursement and carries 
interest @ 11 % p.a.

(iii). Secured Term Loan from Banks amounting to Nil (2016 - Nil, 2015 - ` 142.64 Crores), out of which Nil (2016 - Nil, 2015 - ` 
142.64 Crores) is shown under current maturity of long term debt, was secured by way of subservient charge on current 
assets of HCL Infosystems Limited. It had a lien on Mutual Funds of ` 100.10 Crores . The loan was repayable in 23 monthly 
equal instalments starting from July 2014 and carries interest @ 11.25 % p.a.

(iv). Secured Long Term Loan of Nil ( 2016- Nil, 2015 - ` 26.28 Crores ) out of which ` NIL ( 2016 - Nil, 2015 - `26.28 Crores ) is 
shown under current maturity of debt, is secured by way of subservient charge on stock and receivables of HCL Infosystems 
Limited. It also carries a lien on Mutual Funds of Nil (2016 - Nil, 2015 - ` 49.99 Crores ). The loan was repayable in 8 quarterly 
equal instalments and carries interest @ 11.50 % p.a.

(v). Secured Term Loan from Banks amounting to Nil (2016 - Nil, 2015 - ` 99.08 Crores), out of which Nil (2016 - Nil, 2015 - ` 
19.93 Crores ) is shown under current maturity of long term debt, was secured by way of Hypothecation over the receivable 
from a particular project. The loan was repayable in 15 quarterly equal instalments having a moratortium of 3 months and 
carries interest @ 11.25 % p.a.

(vi). Unsecured Term loans from Others amounting to ` 11.38 Crores (2016 - ` 17.14 Crores,2015 - ` 7.79 Crores) and ` 5.99 
Crores (2016 - ` 32.94 Crores, 2015 - ` 29.26 Crores), out of which ` 10.36 Crores (2016 -  ` 34.70 Crores, 2015 - ` 27.04 
Crores) is shown under current maturity of long term debt, are repayable in 10 to 11 equal half yearly and 4 yearly ( Interest 
Free ) installments from the date of the loans and in 20 equal quarterly , 9 half yearly and 7 yearly installments (carries 
interest @ 2.97% to 10.20%) from the date of the loan disbursement.

(vii). Unsecured Loan under receivable buyout facility amounting to ` 13.40 Crores (2016 - ` 34.90 Crores, 2015 - ` 53.26 Croes), 
out of which ` 13.18 Crores (2016 -  ` 20.55 Crores, 2015 - ` 21.96 Crores) is shown under current maturity of long term debt, 
are repayable in 20 equal quarterly instalments from the date of the disbursement which carries interest @ 12.80% p.a.
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(viii). Unsecured Term loans from Others amounting to ` 240.45 Crores (2016 - ` 231.06 Crores, 2015 - ` 187.85 Crores), out of 
which ` 113.36 Crores (2016 -  ` 119.69 Crores, 2015 - ` 100.06 Crores) is shown under current maturity of long term debt, 
is repayable in 12 to 20 equal quarterly instalments from the date of the disbursement which carries interest @ 11.25% to 
12.50% p.a.

(ix). Unsecured Term loans from Others amounting to ` 3.72 Crores (2016 - ` 19.33 Crores, 2015 - ` 41 70 Crores), out of which 
` 2.02 Crores (2016 -  ` 15.61 Crores, 2015 - ` 26.07 Crores) is shown under current maturity of long term debt, is repayable 

in 1 quarterly, 1 half yearly and balance 16 quarterly instalments from the date of the disbursement which carries interest 
@ 13.04% p.a.

As at
31.03.2017

`/Crores

As at
31.03.2016

`/Crores

As at
01.07.2015

`/Crores

18 Non-current Trade Payables

Trade Payable - - 0.60

TOTAL - - 0.60

19 Other Non-Current Financial Liabilities

Deposits - 14.45 13.42

TOTAL - 14.45 13.42

20 Non-current Provisions (Refer Note 48)

Provision for Gratuity and other Employee Benefits
(includes ̀  5.73 Crores (2016- ̀  7.40 Crores, 2015 - ̀  
Nil) Crores for Other Employee Benefits) 

18.71 19.83 14.47

TOTAL 18.71 19.83 14.47

21 Other Non-Current Liabilities

Deferred Revenue 0.69 2.56 6.08

TOTAL 0.69 2.56 6.08

22 Current borrowings

Secured:

Loans from Banks

- Term Loans 223.92 224.90 281.90

- Cash Credits 8.56 103.73 48.14

- Buyers Credit - - 10.29

232.48 328.63 340.33

Unsecured:

Term Loan From Others 149.36 - -

Commercial Paper 195.00 125.00 300.00

Term Loans from Banks - - 3.55

344.36 125.00 303.55

TOTAL 576.84 453.63 643.88

Note:

1. Secured Term Loan from Banks amounting to ` 124.78 Crores (2016 - ` 124.90 Crores, 2015 - ` 139.90 Crores) is secured 
by way of (1) First pari passu charge on all immovable, movable and intangible assets of the HCL Infosystems Ltd and it’s 
Material Subsidiaries (2) First pari-passu charge on all Current Assets of the HCL Infosystems Ltd & it’s Material Subsidiaries 
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(except Lease Rental Receivables). (3) Negative lien on Two Identified Properties, along with non-fund based facilities from 
Banks.The Hypothecation of the movable assets has been created on March 30,2017 and the mortgage of the immovable 
assets is under process. It carries interest @ 11.50 % p.a.

2. Short Term Loan of ` 99.14 Crores (2016 - ` 100.00 Crores,2015 - ` 75 Crores) is secured by way of subservient charge on 

stock and receivables of the Company and against Support from HCL Corporation Pvt Limited. It also carries a lien on 
Mutual Funds of ̀  50.31 Crores (2016 - ̀  50.16 Crores, 2015 - ̀  49.99 Crores ). Short Term Loan of ̀  74.14 Crores is repayable 

in one year from the date of disbursement and carries interest @ 9.50 % p.a. and ` 25 Crs is repayable in three months from 
the date of disbursement and carries interest @ 11.50 % p.a. 

3. Secured Loan (Cash Credit,WCDL and Buyer’s Credit) from Banks amounting to Nil (2016 - ` 73.92 Crore, 2015 - ` 87.21 
Crores) are secured by way of (1) First pari passu charge on all immovable, movable and intangible assets of the HCL 
Infosystems Ltd and it’s Material Subsidiaries (2) First pari-passu charge on all Current Assets of the HCL Infosystems Ltd & it’s 
Material Subsidiaries (except Lease Rental Receivables) (3) Negative lien on Two Identified Properties. The Hypothecation 
of the movable assets has been created on March 30,2017 and the mortgage of the immovable assets is under process.

4. Secured Loan from Banks amounting to ` 8.56 Crores (2016 - ` 29.81 Crores, 2015 - ` 38.22 Crores) are secured by way 
of general charge over the receivables of overseas subsidiaries (HCL Insys PTE Ltd and HCL Infosystems MEA FZE ) and 
continuing Guarantee from HCL Infosystems Ltd.

5. Term Loan from Banks amounting to Nil Crores (2016 - Nil, 2015 - ` 3.55 Crores) are secured by way of general charge over 

the receivables of HCL Insys PTE Ltd and continuing Guarantee from HCL Infosystems Ltd.

6. Unsecured Term loans from Others amounting to ` 149.36 Crores (2016 - Nil, 2015 - Nil) and against Support from HCL 
Corporation Pvt Limited is repayable in 1 yearly instalments from the date of the disbursement which carries interest @ 
9.50% p.a.

7. Unsecured commercial papers from Others amounting to ` 195.00 Crores (2016 - ` 125.00 Crores, 2015 - ` 300.00 Crores ) 
is repayable in next 12 months from the date of availament of each tranche, which carries interest @ 10.50% to 11% p.a.

As at
31.03.2017

`/Crores

As at
31.03.2016

`/Crores

As at
01.07.2015

`/Crores

23 Trade payables

(a) Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises 
and small enterprises and

0.14 0.36 10.14

(b) Total outstanding dues of other than 
micro enterprises and small enterprises 

[Including Acceptance ̀  69.64 Crores (2016 - ̀  
166.12 Crores, 2015 - ` 153.57 Crores)”

723.08 799.95 959.56

TOTAL 723.22 800.31 969.70

24 Other financial liabilities

Current Maturities of Long-Term Debts
(Refer Note 17)

343.41 295.05 363.98

Current Maturities of Finance Lease Obligations 
(Refer Note 17)

3.90 4.33 7.45

Interest Accrued but not due on Borrowings 8.95 10.11 4.37

Unpaid Dividends* 1.28 1.81 2.16

Employee Benefits Payable 52.19 43.44 54.06

Capital Creditors 0.98 1.49 0.63

Deposits 15.92 - -

Other Payable - 2.39 2.69

TOTAL 426.63 358.62 435.34

* There are no amount due and outstanding to be credited to Investor Education and Protection Fund under Section 
205C of the Companies Act, 1956.These shall be credited and paid to the Fund as and when due.
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As at

31.03.2017
`/Crores

As at

31.03.2016
`/Crores

As at

01.07.2015
`/Crores

25 Other current liabilities

Deferred Revenue 213.55 308.91 374.91

Advances Received from Customers 104.47 116.35 94.47

Statutory Dues Payable 26.73 30.32 65.56

TOTAL 344.75 455.58 534.94

26 Current provisions

Provision for Gratuity and Other Employee Benefits 
# (Refer Note 48)

16.02 13.84 11.29

Provision for Warranty (Refer Note 44) - - 2.12

Provision for Contract losses 92.96 98.09 109.00

Provision for Litigations (Refer Note 37 (b)) 16.68 15.61 12.65

TOTAL 125.66 127.54 135.06

# includes ` 6.69 Crores (2016- ` 5.64 Crores 2015-` 5.66 Crores) for provision for leave encashment and ` 6.55 Crores 
(2016- `0.53 Crores, 2015- Nil Crores) for other employee benefits.

27 Current tax liabilities (Net)

Current income tax liabilities
[Net of Advance Income Tax of Nil (2016- ` 3.16 
Crores, 2015 - ` 537.09 Crores)]

4.60 1.00 2.97

TOTAL 4.60 1.00 2.97

Year ended
31.03.2017

`/Crores

Nine months 
ended

31.03.2016
`/Crores

28 Revenue from operations

Sale of Products (including excise duty) 2,583.86 2,691.69

Sale of Services 914.57 728.62

Revenue from long term composite contracts 238.79 235.64

Other Operating Revenue

- Scrap Sale 0.31 0.28

TOTAL 3,737.53 3,656.23
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Year ended

31.03.2017
`/Crores

Nine months 

ended
31.03.2016

`/Crores

29 Other income

Interest Income from financial asset at amortised cost

- On Lease Rental 13.46 19.07

- On Fixed Deposits 5.02 1.90

- On Others 1.29 1.31

- On trade receivables 102.27 88.11

-Dividend from Unquoted (Others) Current Investments 4.82 5.68

Gain/Loss on sale of investment carried at Fair Value Through Profit or Loss 2.57 3.80

Net Profit on Sale of Property, Plant & Equipment 0.29 0.08

Gain/(Loss) on Foreign Exchange Fluctuation 2.93 (4.02)

Provisions/Liabilities no longer required written back 0.69 9.88

Miscellaneous Income 11.89 10.34

Gain on Sale of Joint Venture (Refer Note 52) 0.45 -

TOTAL 145.68 136.15

30 Changes in inventories of finished goods, work-in-progress and stock-in-trade

Closing Balance

- Finished Goods (Including in Transit) 0.11

[Including excise duty of Nil (2016- Nil, 2015 - Nil)] 0.56

- Stock-In-Trade 80.77 137.45

80.88 138.01

Opening Balance

- Finished Goods (Including in Transit) 0.56 1.91

[Including excise duty of Nil (2016- Nil, 2015 - ` 0.19 Crores)]

- Stock-In-Trade 137.45 177.23

138.01 179.14

Changes in Inventories of finished goods, work-in-progress and stock-in-trade 57.13 41.13

31 Other direct expenses

Purchase of Services 259.79 228.85

Spares and Stores Consumed 208.16 173.92

Excise Duty 0.08 0.12

Labour and Processing Charges 0.25 0.55

TOTAL 468.28 403.44

32 Employee benefits expense

Salaries, Wages, Bonus and Gratuity 510.89 433.54

Contribution to Provident and Other Funds (Refer Note 48) 23.91 19.19

Staff Welfare Expenses 6.55 5.53

TOTAL 541.35 458.26
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Year ended

31.03.2017
`/Crores

Nine months 

ended
31.03.2016

`/Crores

33 Finance costs

Interest on Borrowings 181.37 111.57

Other Borrowing Costs 8.92 14.12

TOTAL 190.29 125.69

34 Other expenses

Rent (Refer Note 46) 48.88 33.23

Rates and Taxes 8.35 6.20

Printing and Stationery 2.71 2.16

Communication 15.35 13.85

Travelling and Conveyance 31.90 34.40

Packing, Freight and Forwarding 15.81 15.76

Legal, Professional and Consultancy Charges (Refer Note 57) 38.66 37.33

Retainership Expenses 40.84 30.36

Training and Conference 1.79 1.39

Office Electricity and Water 10.88 7.76

Insurance 6.89 7.21

Advertisement, Publicity and Entertainment 2.67 3.07

Hire Charges 5.32 4.73

Commission on Sales 4.66 3.21

Bank Charges 11.64 9.33

Allowance for Doubtful Debts 22.94 35.33

Allowance for Doubtful Loans and Advances and Other Current Assets 4.25 1.00

Property, Plant & Equipment Written-Off 1.23 1.15

Repairs

- Plant and Machinery 1.20 0.97

- Buildings 2.16 1.35

- Others 9.73 7.45

Miscellaneous 22.75 20.06

TOTAL 310.61 277.30

35 Exceptional items include :

Particulars 2017
(`/Crores)

2016
(`/Crores)

a. Net Profit on Sale of Properties - 2.78

b. Impairment of Goodwill (Refer Note 55 and 3 (b)) (61.00) (70.00)

Total (61.00) (67.22)

36 Estimated value of contracts on capital account for Property, plant and equipment, excluding capital advances, remaining 

to be executed and not provided for amount to ` 0.23 Crores (2016- ` 4.12 Crores, 2015 - ` 6.97 Crores).
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37 Contingent Liabilities :

(a) Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debts:

Particulars 2017
(`/Crores)

2016
(`/Crores)

2015
(`/Crores)

Sales Tax* 269.70 313.80 151.86

Excise* 98.79 96.68 96.72

Income Tax* 6.21 6.24 5.44

Industrial Disputes, Civil Suits and Consumer Disputes 4.66 95.07 86.38

* Includes sum of ` 108.50 crores (2016 - ` 89.58 Crores, 2015 - ` 24.53 Crores) deposited by the Group against the 
above. 

The amounts shown above represents the best possible estimates arrived at on the basis of available information. 
The uncertainties and possible reimbursements are dependent on the out come of the different legal processes 
which have been initiated by the Group or the claimants as the case may be and therefore cannot be predicted 
accurately.It is not practicable for the Company to estimate the timing of cash outflows, if any, in respect of the above 
pending resolution of the respective proceedings.

(b) Other Litigations :

(i) The Company has been named in a supplementary charge sheet filed with the Court with respect to a Contract 
awarded to HCL Infosystems Limited in 2009 by the UP state Government, amounting to ` 4.94 Crores, for 
the supply of computer hardware and related services under the National Rural Health Mission and therefore 
summons have been issued to the Company by the Court. The matter is currently pending for adjudication 
before the Special Court CBI . The management is of the view that the company has not been engaged in any 
wrong doing. 

(ii) The Company has certain Sales tax and other litigation of ` 16.68 Crores (2016- ` 15.61 Crores, 2015 - ` 12.65 
Crores), against which provisions have been made. Provision of ̀  1.07 crore (2016- ̀  3.03 Crores) has been made 
during the year and Nil (2016- ` 0.07 Crores) utilised during the year.

38 First-time adoption of IND AS

These are the Group’s first consolidated financial statements prepared in accordance with Ind AS. 

The accounting policies set out in Note 1 have been applied in preparing the financial statements for the year ended March 
31, 2017, the comparative information presented in these financial statements for the nine month period ended March 31, 
2016 and in the opening Ind AS balance sheet at July 1,2015 (the Group’s date of transition). In preparing its opening Ind 
AS balance sheet, the Group has adjusted the amounts reported previously in financial statements prepared in accordance 
with the accounting standards notified under Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006 (as amended) and other 
relevant provisions of the Act (previous GAAP or Indian GAAP). An explanation of how the transition from previous GAAP 
to Ind AS has affected the Group’s financial position, financial performance and cash flows is set out in the following tables 

and notes. 

Reconciliation between Previous GAAP and IND AS

(i) Equity Reconciliation

(`/Crores)

Particulars As at
31 March, 2016

As at
1 July, 2015

As reported under Previous GAAP 1,008.04 1,257.50

Adjustments:

Impact on account of measurement of revenue at fair value (324.28) (266.06)

Recognition of Expected Credit Loss (45.77) (47.56)

Recognition of deferred tax 73.59 67.51

Unwinding of discounted receivables 88.11 -

Others 4.24 1.78

Equity under IND AS 803.93 1,013.17
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(ii) Total Comprehensive Income Reconciliation

(`/Crores)

Particulars For nine months 
ending as on

31 March, 2016

Net Income under Previous GAAP (254.44)

Adjustments:

Impact on account of measurement of revenue at fair value (58.22)

Recognition of Expected Credit Loss 1.80

Recognition of deferred tax 6.08

Unwinding of discounted receivables 88.11

Others 2.37

Profit for the period under IND AS (214.30)

Other Comprehensive income 5.02

Total Comprehensive Income for the period under IND AS (209.28)

(iii) Cash Flow Reconciliation

(`/Crores)

As at 31 March, 2016

Particulars IGAAP IND AS 
Adjustment

IND AS

Net cash flow from operating activities (127.27) (59.01) (186.28)

Net cash flow from investing activities 262.66 86.36 349.02

Net cash flow from financing activities (61.04) (26.96) 88.00

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 74.35 0.39 74.74

Cash and cash equivalents as at 1 July 2015 126.36 (2.19) 124.17

Cash and cash equivalents as at 31 March 2016 200.71 (1.80) 198.91

39 Disclosure of related parties and related party transactions:

a) Company having substantial interest:

HCL Corporation Private Limited

b) Others (Enterprises over which, individual having indirect significant influence over the Group, has significant 
influence) and with whom transactions have taken place during the year and/or where balances exist:

HCL Technologies Limited

HCL Comnet Limited

HCL Comnet Systems and Services Limited

HCL Avitas Private Limited

HCL Training & Staffing Services Private Limited

HCL Talent Care Private Limited

HCL IT City Lucknow Private Limited

SSN Trust

Shiv Nadar Foundation

Shiv Nadar University

Vama Sundari Investments (Pondi) Private Limited

Statestreet HCL Services India Limited

Naksha Enterprises Private Limited
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Joint Venture:

Nokia HCL Mobile Internet Services Limited (The Company has sold its investments in Nokia HCL Mobile Internet 
Services Limited during the current year)

c) Key Management Personnel:

Mr. Premkumar Sheshadri* (Executive Vice Chairman & Managing Director)

Mr. SG Murali (Group CFO with effect from April 1, 2015)

Mr. Sushil Jain (Company Secretary)

*Remuneration has been paid by HCL Corporation Private Limited

Note: Parties with whom transactions are more than 10% of the total value have been disclosed separately.

d) Summary of Consolidated Related Party disclosures:

Note: All transactions with related parties have been entered into in the normal course of business.

(`/Crores)

A. Transactions Company having 

substantial 

interest

Others Key Management 

Personnel

Total

Mar-

17

Mar-

16

Jun-

15

Mar-

17

Mar-

16

Jun-

15

Mar-

17

Mar-

16

Jun-

15

Mar-

17

Mar-

16

Jun-

15

Sales and Related Income 0.02 - 20.21 8.48 20.23 8.48

- HCL Technologies Limited 18.04 4.83

- HCL Talent Care Private Limited 2.66

- Shiv Nadar Foundation 1.03 0.95

Services 0.01 0.01 10.24 10.86 10.25 10.87

- HCL Technologies Limited 9.35 9.11

- HCL Talent Care Private Limited 0.46 0.39

- HCL Comnet Limited 0.16 0.24

- HCL Training & Staffing Services Private Limited 0.17 1.11

Purchase of Services 4.87 9.97 4.87 9.97

- HCL Technologies Limited 4.87 9.97

Purchase of Goods 0.34 - 0.34 -

- HCL Technologies Limited - BPO Services 0.34

Purchase of Fixed assets 0.30 0.30 -

-Naksha Enterprises Pvt Ltd 0.30 -

Rent Received 7.46 6.01 7.46 6.01

- HCL Technologies Limited 1.79 1.63

- HCL Talent Care Private Limited 5.67 4.38

Remuneration 2.94 1.72 2.94 1.72

- Mr. S.G. Murali 2.47 1.43

- Mr.Sushil Jain 0.46 0.30

Reimbursements towards expenditure Made * 0.68 - - 0.68 -

B. Amount due to/from related parties

Trade Receivables - - 0.04 15.88 9.86 16.41 15.88 9.86 16.45

Other Recoverables - - - - - 0.11 - - 0.11

Trade Payables - - 0.05 2.54 51.55 152.53 2.54 51.55 152.58

Other Payables - - - 4.81 4.81 4.81 4.81 4.81 4.81

* Related to Corporate Guarantee of ` 325 crores taken from HCL Corpration Private Limited.

Amount due to / from related parties are unsecured and are receivable / payable in cash
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e) Compensation of key management personnel of the Company *

(`/Crores)

Particulars 31 March, 2017 31 March, 2016

Short-term employee benefits 2.94 1.72

Total compensation paid to key management personnel 2.94 1.72

The amounts disclosed in the table are the amounts recognised as an expense during the reporting period related to 
key management personnel.

*Post employment benefit comprising gratuity, and compensated absences are not disclosed as these are determined 
for the Group as a whole.

40 Financial Instruments

The carrying value of financial instruments by categories are as under :

` Crores

Particulars Notes Fair Value 
through 

OCI

Fair value 
through 

Profit or Loss

Amortised 
Cost

Total 
Carrying 

Value

Total Fair 
Value

As at 31.03.2017

Financial assets

Non-current assets

(i) Others Financial Assets 5 - - 41.39 41.39 41.39

- - 41.39 41.39 41.39

Current assets

(i) Investments 4 - 120.87 - 120.87 120.87

(ii) Trade receivables 10 - - 1,292.73 1,292.73 1,292.73

(iii) Cash and cash equivalents 11 - - 138.09 138.09 138.09

(iv) Bank balances other than (iii) above 12 - - 55.33 55.33 55.33

(v) Loans 13 - - 0.60 0.60 0.60

(vi) Others 14 - - 187.56 187.56 187.56

- 120.87 1,674.31 1,795.18 1,795.18

Financial Liabilities

Non-current liabilities

(i) Borrowings 17 - - 413.16 413.16 413.16

- - 413.16 413.16 413.16

Current liabilities

(i) Borrowings 22 - - 576.84 576.84 576.84

(ii) Trade payables 23 - - 723.22 723.22 723.22

(iii) Other financial liabilities 24 - - 426.63 426.63 426.63

- - 1,726.69 1,726.69 1,726.69

As at 31.03.2016

Financial assets

Non-current assets

(i) Others Financial Assets 5 - - 92.61 92.61 92.61

- - 92.61 92.61 92.61
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` Crores

Particulars Notes Fair Value 
through 

OCI

Fair value 
through 

Profit or Loss

Amortised 
Cost

Total 
Carrying 

Value

Total Fair 
Value

Current assets

(i) Investments 4 - 50.16 - 50.16 50.16

(ii) Trade receivables 10 - - 1,550.42 1,550.42 1,550.42

(iii) Cash and cash equivalents 11 - - 198.91 198.91 198.91

(iv) Bank balances other than (iii) above 12 - - 19.22 19.22 19.22

(v) Loans 13 - - 1.20 1.20 1.20

(vi) Others 14 - - 265.30 265.30 265.30

- 50.16 2,035.05 2,085.21 2,085.21

Financial Liabilities

Non-current liabilities

(i) Borrowings 17 - - 528.22 528.22 528.22

(ii) Other financial liabilities 19 - - 14.45 14.45 14.45

- - 542.67 542.67 542.67

Current liabilities

(i) Borrowings 22 - - 453.63 453.63 453.63

(ii) Trade payables 23 - - 800.31 800.31 800.31

(iii) Other financial liabilities 24 - - 358.62 358.62 358.62

- - 1,612.56 1,612.56 1,612.56

As at 01.07.2015

Financial assets

Non-current assets

(i) Others Financial Assets 5 - - 158.38 158.38 158.38

- - 158.38 158.38 158.38

Current assets

(i) Investments 4 - 235.66 - 235.66 235.66

(ii) Trade receivables 10 - - 1,754.71 1,754.71 1,754.71

(iii) Cash and cash equivalents 11 - - 124.17 124.17 124.17

(iv) Bank balances other than (iii) above 12 - - 10.02 10.02 10.02

(v) Loans 13 - - 0.25 0.25 0.25

(vi) Others 14 - - 290.08 290.08 290.08

- 235.66 2,179.23 2,414.89 2,414.89

Financial Liabilities

Non-current liabilities

(i) Borrowings 17 - - 233.67 233.67 233.67

(ii) Trade payables 18 - - 0.60 0.60 0.60

(iii) Other financial liabilities 19 - - 13.42 13.42 13.42

- - 247.69 247.69 247.69

Current liabilities

(i) Borrowings 22 - - 643.88 643.88 643.88

(ii) Trade payables 23 - - 969.7 969.70 969.70

(iii) Other financial liabilities 24 - - 435.34 435.34 435.34

- - 2,048.92 2,048.92 2,048.92
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Fair Value hierarchy

This section explains the judgements and estimates made in determining the fair values of the financial instruments that 
are recognised and measured at fair value. To provide an indication about the reliability of the inputs used in determining 
fair value, the Group has classified its financial instruments into the three levels prescribed under the accounting standards. 
An explanation of each level follows underneath the table.

(i) Quantitative disclosures of fair value measurement hierarchy for assets and liabilities as at March 31, 2017:

Fair Value measurement using ` Crores

Date of 
Valuation

Quoted prices 
in active 
markets

Significant 
Observable 

inputs

Significant 
Unobservable 

inputs

Total

(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)

Assets measured at FVTPL

Investment in Mutual Funds March 31, 
2017

- 120.87 - 120.87

(ii) Quantitative disclosures of fair value measurement hierarchy for assets and liabilities as at March 31, 2016:

Fair Value measurement using ` Crores

Date of 
Valuation

Quoted prices 
in active 
markets

Significant 
Observable 

inputs

Significant 
Unobservable 

inputs

Total

(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)

Assets measured at FVTPL

Investment in Mutual Funds March 31, 
2016

- 50.16 - 50.16

(iii) Quantitative disclosures of fair value measurement hierarchy for assets and liabilitiesas at July 1, 2015:

Fair Value measurement using ` Crores

Date of 
Valuation

Quoted prices 
in active 
markets

Significant 
Observable 

inputs

Significant 
Unobservable 

inputs

Total

(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)

Assets measured at FVTPL

Investment in Mutual Funds July 1, 
2015

- 235.66 - 235.66

*There were no transfers between the Level 1, Level 2 and Level 3 during the year.

* There is no change in the valuation technique during the year.

Valuation techniques used to derive Level 2 fair values

a) Investment in mutual funds have been fair valued using published statement for Net asset value (NAV) by the 
Mutual fund agencies.

41 Financial Risk Management

The Group activities expose it to market risk, liquidity risk and credit risk. The Group financial risk management is an 
integral part of how to plan and execute its business strategies.

In order to minimize any adverse effects on the financial performance of the Group, derivative financial instruments, such 
as foreign exchange forward contracts are entered to hedge certain foreign currency exposures. Derivatives are used 
exclusively for hedging purposes and not as trading or speculative instruments.
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This note explains the sources of risk which the entity is exposed to and how the entity manages the risk.

Risk Exposure Arising from Measurement Management

Credit Risk Investments 
Trade receivables 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Bank balances 
Loans 
Other financial assets

Aging Analysis and 
Credit appraisal

Diversification of bank 
deposits, investments, credit 
limits and letters of credit

Liquidity risk Borrowings and Other Liabilities Rolling cash flow 
forecasts

Availability of committed 
credit lines, borrowing 
facilities and liquid 
investments

Market risk - foreign 
exchange

Future commercial transactions
Recognized financial assets not 
denominated in Functional currency

Position of net 
foreign exchange 
risk, based on relative 
assets and liabilities

Forward foreign exchange 
contracts

Market risk - interest rate Borrowings at variable rates Sensitivity analysis Replacement of high cost 
debt with low cost debt

The Company’s risk management is carried out by the Treasury and Credit Control department under policies approved by 
the Senior management and Board of directors.

Credit Risk

Credit risk arise from possibility that customer may default on its obligation to make timely payments,resulting into 
financial loss. The maximum exposure to the credit risk is primarily from trade receivable, lease rent recoverable and 
unblilled revenues.

Credit risk on cash and cash equivalent and bank balances is not significant as it majorly includes deposits with bank and 
financial institutions with high credit ratings assigned by international and domestic credit rating agencies.

Investment primarily includes investment in Mutual funds

The credit risk is managed by the group through credit approvals, establishing the financial reliability of the customers 
taking into account the financial condition, analysis of historical bad debts and ageing of accounts receivables. Individual 
limits are set accordingly by the group credit control department.

The Group uses a provision matrix to compute the expected credit loss for trade receivable and lease rent recoverable, 
the provision matrix takes into consideration historical credit loss experience and other relevant available external and 
internal credit risk factors.

Following table agewise breakup of Receivables

(`/Crores)

March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016 July 1, 2015

Debtors billed but not due 949.95 940.27 1,222.81

0-90 days past due 184.97 225.03 401.51

91-180 days past due 82.94 323.45 78.00

180-365 days past due 73.20 56.14 66.78

1-2 years past due 66.68 90.47 95.87

More than 2 years past due 140.84 142.42 100.95

1,498.58 1,777.78 1,965.92

Financial assets are written off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovery, such as a debtor failing to engage 

in a repayment plan with the Group. The Group categorises a trade receivable for write off when a debtor fails to make 
contractual payments greater than 3 years past due. Where loans or receivables have been written off, the Group 
continues to engage in enforcement activity to attempt to recover the receivable due. Where recoveries are made, these 
are recognised in profit or loss.
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The summary of life time expected credit loss allowance made on customer balnces during the year and balance at 
the year end is given below:

(`/Crores)

March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016

Balance at the beginning 227.36 211.21

Provided during the year 22.94 35.33

Reversal during the year (0.60) (0.15)

Amounts written off (43.85) (19.03)

Balance at the end 205.85 227.36

Liquidity risk:

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will not be able to settle or meet its obligations on time or at a reasonable 
price. The Group’s treasury department is responsible for liquidity, funding as well as settlement management. In addition, 
processes and policies related to such risks are overseen by senior management. Management monitors the Group’s net 
liquidity position through rolling forecasts on the basis of expected cash flows.

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities based on contractual undiscounted 
payments.

(`/Crores)

Year ended 31 March 2017 Carrying 
Value

On 
demand

Less than 
1 year

1 to 2 
Years

2 to 5 
Years

More than 
5 Years

Non-derivatives

Borrowings

-From Banks 669.19 - 417.84 167.94 83.41 -

-From Others 472.02 - 306.47 116.93 48.62 -

-Finance Lease Obligation 6.10 3.90 1.81 0.39 -

-Cash Credit 8.56 8.56

-Commercial Paper 195.00 195.00

Trade payables 723.22 723.22 - -

Other financial liabilities

-Deposits 15.92 15.92 -

-Interest accrued but not due 8.95 8.95 -

-Capital Creditors 0.98 0.98 -

-Employee Benefit Payable 52.19 52.19 -

-Unpaid dividends 1.28 1.28 -

Total non-derivative liabilities 2,153.41 9.84 1,724.47 286.68 132.42 -



Consolidated Notes to the Financial Statements

182 Annual Report 2016-17

(`/Crores)

Year ended 31 March 2016 Carrying 
Value

On 
demand

Less than 
1 year

1 to 2 
Years

2 to 5 
Years

More than 
5 Years

Non-derivatives

Borrowings

-From Banks 724.90 - 337.40 150.00 237.50 -

-From Others 339.40 - 190.84 94.76 53.80 -

-Finance Lease Obligation 10.43 4.33 3.89 2.21 -

-Cash Credit 103.73 103.73

-Commercial Paper 125.00 125.00

Trade payables 800.31 - 800.31 - - -

Other financial liabilities

-Deposits - - - - -

-Interest accrued but not due 10.11 - 10.11 - - -

-Capital Creditors 1.49 - 1.49 - - -

-Employee Benefit Payable 43.44 - 43.44 - - -

-Unpaid dividends 1.81 1.81 - - - -

-Other Payable 2.39 2.39

Total non-derivative liabilities 2,163.01 105.54 1,515.31 248.65 293.51 -

(`/Crores)

Year ended 1 July 2015 Carrying 
Value

On 
demand

Less than 
1 year

1 to 2 
Years

2 to 5 
Years

More than 
5 Years

Non-derivatives

Borrowings

-From Banks 554.29 - 474.30 26.68 53.31

-From Others 321.28 - 175.14 106.21 39.93

-Finance Lease Obligation 17.24 7.45 4.44 5.35

-Cash Credit 48.14 48.14

-Buyers Credit 10.29 10.29

-Commercial Paper 300.00 300.00

Trade payables 970.30 969.70 0.60

Other financial liabilities

-Deposits - - -

-Interest accrued but not due 4.37 4.37

-Capital Creditors 0.63 0.63

-Employee Benefit Payable 54.06 54.06

-Unpaid dividends 2.16 2.16

-Other Payable 2.69 2.69

Total non-derivative liabilities 2,285.45 50.30 1,998.63 137.93 98.59 -

Market risk

(i) Interest rate risk

The Group’s main interest rate risk primarily arises from borrowings with variable interest rates, which exposed the 

Group to Cash flow interest rate risk. As at March 31, 2017 the Group has ̀  487.98 Crores (2016- ̀  585.24 Crores, 2015- 
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` 300.98 Crores) of borrowings with variable interest rates. In order to optimize the Group’s position with regards to 
interest expenses and to manage the interest rate risk, treasury performs a comprehensive corporate interest rate risk 
management by balancing of fixed rate and floating rate financial instruments in its total portfolio.

(a) Interest rate risk exposure (`/Crores)

The exposure of the Group’s borrowing to interest rate changes at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016 July 1, 2015

Variable rate borrowings 487.98 585.24 300.98

Fixed rate borrowings 849.33 695.99 948.00

Total borrowings 1,337.31 1,281.23 1,248.98

As at the end of the reporting period, the Group had the following variable rate borrowings:

March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016 July 1, 2015

Weighted 

average 

interest rate

Balance % of 

total 

loans

Weighted 

average 

interest rate

Balance % of 

total 

loans

Weighted 

average 

interest rate

Balance % of 

total 

loans

Bank loans, Cash credits 11.17% 487.98 36.49% 11.39% 585.24 45.68% 11.59% 300.98 24.10%

Net exposure to cash flow 

interest rate risk

487.98 585.24 300.98

(b) Sensitivity (`/Crores)

Profit or loss is sensitive to higher / lower interest expense from borrowings as a result of changes in interest 
rates.

Impact on loss after tax Impact on other 
components of equity

March 31, 
2017

March 31, 
2016

March 31, 
2017

March 31, 
2016

Interest rates-increase by 20 basis points (20 
bps)

0.91 1.03 0.91 1.03

Interest rates-increase by 20 basis points (20 
bps)

(0.91) (1.03) (0.91) (1.03)

(ii) Foreign currency risk (`/Crores)

The Group’s operations are primarily in India and in INR and therefore, is not exposed to significant foreign currency 
risk. The Group evaluates the exchange rate exposure arising from foreign currency transactions and follows 
established risk management policies which are approved by the senior management and the Finance Committee, 
including the use of derivatives like foreign exchange forward contracts to hedge exposure to foreign currency risk.

Foreign currency risk exposure (`/Crores)

The Company’s exposure to foreign currency risk at the end of the reporting period expressed in INR are as follows

31-Mar-17

USD EUR GBP JPY SEK AED SGD AUD QAR

Financial Assets

Trade receivables 54.11 - - - - 1.27 0.11 -

Derivative assets - - - - - - -

Net exposure to foreign currency risk (assets) 54.11 - - - - 1.27 0.11 -

Financial Liabilities

Trade Payables 67.21 0.57 0.01 - 0.01 0.38 (0.03) 0.00 (0.79)

Derivative liabilities

Foreign exchange forward contracts (19.12) - - - - - -

Net exposure to foreign currency risk (liabilities) 48.09 0.57 0.01 - 0.01 0.38 (0.03) 0.00 (0.79)
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(`/Crores)

31-Mar-16

USD EUR GBP JPY SEK AED SGD

Financial Assets

Trade receivables 35.98 0.14 - - - 1.26 -

Derivative assets - - - - - - -

Net exposure to foreign currency risk (assets) 35.98 0.14 - - - 1.26 -

Financial Liabilities

Trade Payables 80.57 0.26 0.06 0.03 (0.10) - (0.01)

Derivative liabilities

Foreign exchange forward contracts (50.17) - - - - - -

Net exposure to foreign currency risk (liabilities) 30.40 0.26 0.06 0.03 (0.10) - (0.01)

(`/Crores)

1-Jul-15

USD EUR GBP JPY SEK AED SGD ZAR

Financial Assets

Trade receivables 32.59 0.13 - - - 3.70 - 0.14

Derivative assets - - - - - -

Net exposure to foreign currency risk (assets) 32.59 0.13 - - - 3.70 - 0.14

Financial Liabilities

Trade Payables 55.81 0.07 0.01 0.15 0.02 - (0.33)

Derivative liabilities

Foreign exchange forward contracts (28.18) - - - - - -

Net exposure to foreign currency risk (liabilities) 27.63 0.07 0.01 0.15 0.02 - (0.33)

(b) Sensitivity

The Group’s foreign currency exposure as at the reporting date is insignificant, hence, any change in underlying rates 
of foreign currency are not expected to materially impact the financial statements.

42 Capital Management

Risk management

The Group’s objective when managing capital are to safeguard their ability to continue as going concern and to maintain 
an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

The Capital structure as of March 31, 2017, March 31, 2016 and July 1, 2015 were as follows:

(`/Crores)

March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016 July 1, 2015

Total Debt 1,337.31 1,281.23 1,248.98

Equity 549.42 803.93 1,013.17

Capital and net debt 1,886.73 2,085.16 2,262.15

Gearing ratio 70.88% 61.45% 55.21%

The Group is not subject to any externally imposed capital requirements for the year ended March 31, 2017, March 31, 

2016 and July 1, 2015.

43 Segment Reporting

a) The Company’s chief operating decision maker, considering the products’ portfolio and geographies of operations, 
has identified following as primary business segments :

(i) Hardware Products & Solution business comprise of sale of IT products and solutions to enterprise and 
government customers
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(ii) The Services business provides IT infrastructure managed services, multi vendor technical support, break-
fix services, cloud services, enterprise application services, software development & support services, office 
automation maintenance services, managed print services and telecom & consumer electronics support 
services.

(iii) Learning business includes rendering training services, sale of educational digital content and related Hardware 
offerings for private schools, colleges and other education institutes and vocational training.

(iv) The distribution segment consist of distribution of (a) Consumer Products including telecommunication, digital 
lifestyle products and consumer electronic & home appliances (b) Enterprise products including IT products, 
Enterprise software and Office Automation products.

Consolidated Segment wise performance for the year ended March 31, 2017 

(b) Primary Segments

(`/Crores)

Hardware 

Products & 

Solutions

Services Distribution Learning Inter-

segment 

Elimination

Total

(i) Revenue

External Revenue 360.53 917.56 2446.21 13.23 3737.53

(347.84) (718.99) (2572.92) (16.48) (3656.23)

Inter-segment Revenue 1.08 28.27 23.83 0.06 -53.24

(9.46) (22.36) (36.20) (0.03) (-68.05)

Total Gross Revenue 361.61 945.83 2470.04 13.29 -53.24 3737.53

(357.30) (741.35) (2609.12) (16.51) (-68.05) (3656.23)

(ii) Results -5.69 -52.08 7.10 -7.85 (58.52)

(2.63) (-39.84) (6.44) (-9.07) (-39.84)

Exceptional Items (50.00) (11.00) (61.00)

(70.00) (70.00)

Results (after Exceptional Items) -5.69 -102.08 7.10 -18.85 -119.52

(2.63) (-39.84) (6.44) (-79.07) (-109.84)

Less: Unallocable Expenditure 10.52

(10.49)

Operating Profit -130.04

(-120.33)

Add: Other Income
(Excluding Operational Income)

27.66

(26.94)

Less: Finance Charges 190.29

(125.69)

Profit/(Loss) before exceptional and 
extraordinary items and tax

-292.67

(-219.08)

Profit/(Loss) before tax (-292.67)

(-219.08)

Less: Tax Expense -45.00

(-4.78)

Profit After Tax -247.67

(-214.30)
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(`/Crores)

Hardware 

Products & 

Solutions

Services Distribution Learning Inter-

segment 

Elimination

Total

(iii) Segment Assets as at

-March 31, 2017 1,238.50 740.53 442.04 74.35 2,495.42

-March 31, 2016 (1,548.91) (947.11) (491.28) (142.48) (3,129.78)

-July 1, 2015 (1,808.13) (985.91) (465.22) (244.70) (3,503.96)

Unallocated Corporate Assets

a) Liquid Assets as at

-March 31, 2017 120.87

-March 31, 2016 (50.16)

-July 1, 2015 (318.63)

b) Others as at

-March 31, 2017 567.74

-March 31, 2016 (386.46)

-July 1, 2015 (205.44)

Total Assets as at

-March 31, 2017 3,184.03

-March 31, 2016 3,566.40

-July 1, 2015 4,028.03

(iv) Segment Liabilities as at

-March 31, 2017 585.37 222.15 427.39 16.39 1251.30

-March 31, 2016 (708.51) (215.50) (470.76) (21.40) (1,416.17)

-July 1, 2015 (909.81) (255.62) (425.79) (23.01) (1,614.23)

Unallocated Corporate Liabilities as at

-March 31, 2017 1,383.31

-March 31, 2016 (1,346.30)

-July 1, 2015 (1,376.84)

Total Liabilities as at

-March 31, 2017 2,634.61

-March 31, 2016 (2,762.47)

-July 1, 2015 (2,991.07)

(v) Capital Expenditure (allocable) 2.02 9.22 0.19 0.03 11.46

(3.37) (6.50) (0.93) (0.23) (11.03)

Capital Expenditure (unallocable) 4.53

(14.54)

(vi) Depreciation 13.30 13.93 0.82 7.86 35.91

(9.25) (13.27) (0.59) (6.04) (29.15)

Depreciation (unallocable) 3.27

(2.83)

(vii) Other Non Cash Expenses (allocable) 18.95 61.00 0.86 8.73 89.54

(16.25) (9.97) (5.04) (76.97) (108.23)

Other Non Cash Expenses 
(unallocable)

-

(1.02)

Note: Previous Period / year figures are given in brackets.
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There are no transactions with a single external customer that amount to 10 percent or more of the group’s revenue.

The Company is domiciled in India. The amounts of its revenue from external customers attributed the entity’s 
country of domicile and to all foreign countries is shown in the table below:

(`/Crores)

Revenue from external customers For the Year 
ended 

March 31, 2017

For the Nine months 
Period ended 

March 31, 2016

India 3,291.15 3,372.98

Other countries 446.38 283.25

Total 3,737.53 3,656.23

The total of non-current assets other than financial instruments, investments accounted for using equity method and 
deferred tax assets, broken down by location of the assets, is shown below:

(`/Crores)

Revenue from external customers March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016 July 1, 2015

India 890.24 920.86 875.23

Other countries 46.81 52.87 51.14

Total non - current assets 937.05 973.73 926.37

44 The Group has the following provision for warranty in the books of accounts:

2017
(`/Crores)

2016
(`/Crores)

2015
(`/Crores)

Opening Balance as on April 1/ July 1 - 2.12 4.54

Additions during the year - - 2.10

Utilised/Reversed during the year - 2.12 4.52

Closing Balance as on March 31 / June 30 - - 2.12

The warranty provision has been recognised for expected warranty claims for the first year of warranty on products sold 
during the year. Due to the very nature of such costs, Outflows of economic benefits against this provision is expected to 
happen with in one year.

45 Taxation:

(a) Provision for taxation has been computed by applying the Income Tax Act, 1961 and other relevant tax regulations in 
the jurisdiction where the Group conducts the business to the profit for the period. Deferred tax assets and deferred 

tax liabilities are offset, if a legally enforeable right exists to set-off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and 
the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relates to the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.
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(b) Deferred Tax:

Major components of Deferred tax arising on account of timing difference along with their movement as at March 
31, 2017 are as follows:

(`/Crores)

As at 
01.07.15

Movement 
during the year

As at 
31.03.16

Movement 
during the year

As at 
31.03.17

Deferred Tax Assets

Unrealised gain on Indexation of land 5.72 - 5.72 - 5.72

Provision for Doubtful Debts/Advances/
Other Current Assets

25.51 (4.92) 20.59 1.50 22.09

Tax Losses 47.10 9.15 56.25 46.54 102.79

Impact of expenditure charged to 
statement of profit & loss but allowable for 
tax purpose in future years

8.28 1.14 9.42 2.72 12.14

Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT) 33.86 1.81 35.67 2.97 38.64

Total 120.47 7.18 127.65 53.73 181.38

Deferred Tax Liabilities

Difference between WDV of fixed assets as 
per books and under Income tax Act, 1961

13.89 (1.05) 12.84 1.44 14.28

Duties, Taxes & Cess allowed for tax purpose 
on payment basis.

4.95 - 4.95 (3.97) 0.98

Unrealised Gain on Fair valuation of 
Investment in Mutual Funds

0.25 (0.19) 0.06 0.09 0.15

Forward Contracts 0.25 0.17 0.42 - 0.42

Other timing differences 0.26 0.21 0.47 - 0.47

Total 19.60 (0.86) 18.74 (2.44) 16.30

Net Deferred Tax Assets (A)-(B) 100.87 8.04 108.91 56.17 165.08

Note: MAT credit movement for the financial year 2015-16 includes adjustment of `5.66 Crores. There is no impact on 
Statement of Profit & Loss for this adjustment as this is a Balance Sheet movement.

(c) Income tax expense

This note provides an analysis of the Group’s income tax expense,and how the tax expense is affected by non-

assessable and non-deductible items.

(i) Income tax expense

(`/Crores)

For the
year ending

March 31, 2017

For the
Period ending

March 31, 2016

Current tax on profits for the year 8.28 11.37

Adjustments for current tax of prior periods 3.03 (2.48)

Total current tax expense 11.31 8.89

Deferred tax

Decrease/(increase) in deferred tax assets (53.74) (12.83)

(Decrease)/increase in deferred tax liabilities (2.43) (0.81)

Total deferred tax expense/(benefit) (56.17) (13.64)

Income tax expense (44.86) (4.75)
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(ii) Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by India’s tax rate:

(`/Crores)

31 March, 2017 31 March, 2016

Profit before income tax expense after other comprehensive income (291.76) (218.97)

Tax at the Indian tax rate of 30.90% (2015-2016 – 30.90%) (90.15) (67.66)

Tax effect of amounts which are not deductible (taxable) in calculating 
taxable income:

Goodwill Impairment 18.83 22.38

Expenditure related to exempt income 0.30 1.04

Dividend Income (1.49) 0.06

Other items (0.72) (0.76)

Tax rate difference 1.57 0.43

Adjustments for current tax of prior periods 0.27 12.81

Tax losses for which deferred tax assets was not recognised 26.53 26.95

Income tax expense (44.86) (4.75)

Unused tax losses for which no deferred tax assets has been recognised 673.32 465.22

Potential tax benefit @ 30.90% 208.05 143.75

The unused tax losses is not likely to generate taxable income in foreseeable future. The losses can be carried 
forward as per details below:

31-Mar-18 1.51 3.12

31-Mar-19 9.81 9.81

31-Mar-20 0.00 0.00

31-Mar-21 5.94 5.94

31-Mar-22 119.07 119.07

31-Mar-23 126.38 126.38

31-Mar-24 129.47 129.47

31-Mar-25 195.61 0.00

No limit 85.53 71.43

Total 673.32 465.22

46 Leases:

a) Finance Leases:

As Lessor:

(i) The Group has given on finance lease certain assets/inventories which comprise of computers, radio terminals 
and office equipments, etc. These leases have a primary period, which is fixed and non-cancelable. There are no 
exceptional/restrictive covenants in the lease agreements.
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(ii) The gross investment in the assets given on finance leases as at March 31, 2017 and its present value as at that 
date are as follows:

Total minimum 
lease receivable

(`/Crores)

Interest included 
in minimum 

lease receivable
(`/Crores)

Present value of 
minimum lease 

receivable
(`/Crores)

Not later than one year

As at March 31, 2017 64.33 6.50 57.83

As at March 31, 2016 (112.86) (14.78) (98.08)

As at July 1, 2015 (125.20) (23.55) (101.65)

Later than one year and not later than five years

As at March 31, 2017 35.64 1.01 34.63

As at March 31, 2016 (92.64) (6.43) (86.21)

As at July 1, 2015 (171.70) (18.49) (153.21)

Total

As at March 31, 2017 99.97 7.51 92.46

As at March 31, 2016 (205.50) (21.21) (184.29)

As at July 1, 2015 (296.90) (42.04) (254.86)

Note: Previous period/year figures are given in brackets.

b) Sale and Leaseback and further sub-lease on finance lease basis

(i) The Group has entered into transaction of sale and leaseback on finance lease basis and further sub-lease 
on finance lease basis for certain assets/inventories which comprise of computer systems and other related 
products. These leases have a primary period, which is fixed and non-cancelable. There are no exceptional/
restrictive covenants in these lease agreements.

(ii) Details of minimum lease payments and mimimum sub-lease receivables as at March 31, 2017 and its present 
value as at that date are as follows:

Payable on sale and leaseback Receivable on sub-lease

Total 

minimum 

lease 
payable

(`/Crores)

Interest 

included in 

minimum 

lease 

payable
(`/Crores)

Present 

value of 

minimum 

lease 
payable

(`/Crores)

Total 

minimum 

lease 

receivable

(`/Crores)

Interest 

included in 

minimum 
lease 

receivable

(`/Crores)

Present 

value of 

minimum 

lease 

receivable
(`/Crores)

Not later than one year

As at March 31, 2017 2.13 0.37 1.76 3.32 0.34 2.98

As at March 31, 2016 (4.02) (0.68) (3.34) (3.43) (0.66) (2.77)

As at July 1, 2015 (5.35) (1.17) (4.18) (5.74) (0.82) (4.92)

Later than one year and not later than five years

As at March 31, 2017 2.02 0.17 1.85 0.53 0.02 0.51

As at March 31, 2016 (3.62) (0.28) (3.34) (3.66) (0.29) (3.37)

As at July 1, 2015 (7.10) (0.83) (6.27) (6.16) (0.85) (5.31)

Total

As at March 31, 2017 4.15 0.54 3.61 3.85 0.36 3.49

As at March 31, 2016 (7.64) (0.96) (6.68) (7.09) (0.95) (6.14)

As at July 1, 2015 (12.45) (2.00) (10.45) (11.90) (1.67) (10.23)

Note: Previous period/year figures are given in brackets.
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c) Sale and Leaseback

As Lessee:

Total minimum 
lease payable

(`/Crores)

Interest included 
in minimum lease 

payable

(`/Crores)

Present value of 
minimum lease 

payable

(`/Crores)

Not later than one year

As at March 31, 2017 2.33 0.19 2.14

As at March 31, 2016 (1.41) (0.42) (0.99)

As at July 1, 2015 (3.87) (0.60) (3.27)

Later than one year and not later than five years

As at March 31, 2017 0.36 0.01 0.35

As at March 31, 2016 (3.22) (0.46) (2.76)

As at July 1, 2015 (4.28) (0.76) (3.52)

Total

As at March 31, 2017 2.69 0.20 2.49

As at March 31, 2016 (4.63) (0.88) (3.75)

As at July 1, 2015 (8.15) (1.36) (6.79)

d) Cancelable Operating Leases

As Lessee:

(i) The Group has taken various residential/commercial premises under cancelable operating leases. These leases 
are for a period of eleven months to three years and are normally renewable on expiry.

(ii) The rental expense in respect of operating leases is `48.88 crores (2016 - ` 33.23 Crores) which is disclosed as 
Rent expense under ‘Other expenses’.

As Lessor:

(`/Crores)

Particulars AS At Gross 
Block

Accumulated 
Depreciation

Net Block Depreciation 
Expense

March 31, 2017 1.87 - 1.87 -

Freehold Land March 31, 2016 (1.87) - (1.87) (-)

July 1, 2015 (1.01) (-) (1.01)

March 31, 2017 16.98 3.93 13.05 0.26

Building March 31, 2016 (16.98) (3.68) (13.30) (0.19)

July 1, 2015 (4.57) (2.27) (2.30)

March 31, 2017 20.39 12.75 7.64 3.21

Plant and Machinery March 31, 2016 (36.06) (21.41) (14.65) (5.16)

July 1, 2015 (33.49) (16.08) (17.41)

March 31, 2017 5.42 1.48 3.94 0.57

Furniture and Fixtures & Office 
Equipments

March 31, 2016 (5.43) (0.92) (4.51) (0.67)

July 1, 2015 (-) (-) (-)

March 31, 2017 0.23 0.15 0.08 0.06

Computers March 31, 2016 (0.27) (0.13) (0.14) (0.04)

July 1, 2015 (-) (-) (-)

March 31, 2017 44.89 18.31 26.58 4.10

TOTAL March 31, 2016 (60.61) (26.14) (34.47) (6.06)

July 1, 2015 (39.07) (18.35) (20.72)

Note: Previous period/year’s figures are given in brackets.
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d) Non-Cancelable Operating Leases

As Lessee:

The Group has taken Commercial Premises on non-cancelable operating leases the future minimum lease payments 
in respect of which are:

March 31, 2017
(`/Crores)

March 31, 2016
(`/Crores)

July 1, 2015
(`/Crores)

Not later than one year 0.93 1.43 1.55

Later than one year and not later than five years 0.15 1.10 2.18

Total 1.08 2.53 3.73

47 Earnings per share (EPS)

Basic loss per share is calculated by dividing the net loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders by the weighted 
average number of equity shares outstanding during the period. The loss considered in ascertaining the Group’s EPS 
represent (loss) for the year after tax. Diluted EPS is computed and disclosed using the weighted average number of equity 
and dilutive equivalent shares outstanding during the year except when results would be anti-dilutive.

Calculation of EPS:

(`/Crores)

Particulars March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016

(Loss) after tax (`/Crores) (247.67) (214.30)

Weighted average number of shares considered as outstanding in 
computation of Basic EPS

222,919,629 222,913,520

Weighted average number of shares outstanding in computation of Diluted 
EPS

222,919,629 222,913,520

Basic EPS (of ` 2/- each) (` 11.11) (` 9.61)

Diluted EPS (of ` 2/- each) (` 11.11) (` 9.61)

48 The Group has calculated the various benefits provided to employees as under:

(a) Defined Contribution

During the year, the Group has recognised the following amounts in the Statement of Profit and Loss:

March 31, 2017

(`/Crores)

March 31, 2016

(`/Crores)

Employers Contribution to Superannuation Fund* 0.73 0.79

Employers Contribution to National Pension Scheme* 0.22 0.08

Employers contribution to Employee State Insurance* 2.93 2.52

Employers contribution to Employee’s Pension Scheme 1995* 8.13 11.10

* Included in Contribution to Provident and Other Funds under Employee benefits expense (Refer Note 32).

(b) Defined Benefit

(i) Gratuity

(ii) Provident Fund#

The Company contributes to the employee provident fund trust “Hindustan Computers Limited Employees 
Provident Fund Trust” which is managed by the Company. The Company’s Provident Fund Trust is exempted 
under Section 17 of Employees’ Provident Fund Act, 1952. Conditions for grant of exemptions stipulate that the 

employer shall make good deficiency, if any, in the interest rate declared by the trust vis-à-vis statutory rate. As 
per Ind AS – 19, Employee Benefits, provident funds set up by employers, which requires interest shortfall to be 
met by the employer, needs to be treated as defined benefit plan. 
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The Trust includes employees of the Company as well as of it’s Indian wholly owned subsidiaries and of HCL 
Corporation Private Limited, a related party. In view of the same, it is a multi employer defined benefit plan. 

The Trust has been investing the Provident fund contributions of the employees of all the six companies in a 
composite manner and the same cannot be separately identified entity wise. 

In view of the same an actuarial valuation, in accordance with the Ind AS-19, was carried out at composite level. 
As per actuarial certificate there is no shortfall in the earning of fund against statutorily required “interest rate 
guarantee” and accordingly, the “liability on account of interest rate guarantee”” is nil.

In accordance with IND AS 19, an actuarial valuation was carried out in the respect of the aforesaid defined 
benefit plan based on the following assumptions:

Gratuity Provident Fund

March 31, 

2017

March 31, 

2016

July 1, 

2015

March 31, 

2017

March 31, 

2016

July 1, 

2015

Discount rate (per annum) 6.57% 7.44% 8.00% Not 

Applicable

Not 

Applicable

Not 

Applicable

Rate of increase in compensation 

levels

4.10% 6.00% 6.00% Not 

Applicable

Not 

Applicable

Not 

Applicable

Rate of return on plan assets Not 

Applicable

Not 

Applicable

Not 

Applicable

Not 

Applicable

Not 

Applicable

Not 

Applicable

Expected statutory interest rate Not 

Applicable

Not 

Applicable

Not 

Applicable

8.65% 8.80% 8.75%

Expected short fall in interest earnings Not 

Applicable

Not 

Applicable

Not 

Applicable

0.05% 0.05% 0.05%

Expected average remaining working 

lives of employees (years)

17.94 19.20 19.74 17.94 19.20 19.74

As of March 31, 2017, every 0.5 percentage point increase / decrease in discount rate will affect our gratuity 
benefit obligation by approximately by ` 0.22 Crores.

As of March 31, 2017, every 0.5 percentage point increase / decrease in weighted average rate of increase in 
compensation levels will effect our gratuity benefit obligation by approximately ` 0.22 Crores

The estimates of future salary increases considered in actuarial valuation take account of inflation, seniority, 
promotion and other relevant factors such as supply and demand in the employment market.

Description of Risk Exposures:

Valuations are based on certain assumptions, which are dynamic in nature and vary over time. As such company 
is exposed to various risks as follow - 

A) Salary Increases- Actual salary increases will increase the Plan’s liability. Increase in salary increase rate 

assumption in future valuations will also increase the liability.

B) Investment Risk – If Plan is funded then assets liabilities mismatch & actual investment return on assets 
lower than the discount rate assumed at the last valuation date can impact the liability.

C) Discount Rate : Reduction in discount rate in subsequent valuations can increase the plan’s liability.

D) Mortality & disability – Actual deaths & disability cases proving lower or higher than assumed in the 
valuation can impact the liabilities.
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E) Withdrawals – Actual withdrawals proving higher or lower than assumed withdrawals and change of 
withdrawal rates at subsequent valuations can impact Plan’s liability.

(`/Crores)

2017 2016 2015

Gratuity Provident 

Fund

Gratuity Provident 

Fund

Gratuity Provident 

Fund

Reconciliation of opening and 

closing balances of the present 

value of the defined benefit 

obligation:

Present value of obligation at the 

beginning of the year

20.10 182.22 20.10 167.44 22.07 169.36

Current service cost 2.00 6.28 2.75 6.80 0.91 7.11

Past service cost - - - - - -

Interest cost 1.24 14.58 1.04 13.40 1.32 13.55

Total amount recognised in profit 

or loss

3.24 20.86 3.79 20.20 2.23 20.66

Actuarial (gain)/loss from change in 

demographic assumptions

0.03 (0.01) 0.27

Actuarial (gain)/loss from change in 
financial assumptions

(0.44) 0.01 - - 0.28 -

Experience (Gain)/loss (0.50) (1.96) (0.07) (1.46) 3.22 (9.11)

Total amount recognised in other 

comprehensive income

(0.91) (1.95) (0.08) (1.46) 3.77 (9.11)

Benefits (paid) (6.67) (32.32) (3.71) (31.78) (7.97) (36.07)

Settlements/transfer In - 6.89 - 9.34 - 5.23

Contribution by plan participants - 16.75 - 18.48 - 17.37

Present value of obligation at the end 

of the year

15.76 192.45 20.10 182.22 20.10 167.44

(`/Crores)

2017 2016 2015

Provident 

Fund

Provident 

Fund

Provident 

Fund

Reconciliation of opening and 
closing fair value of plan assets:

Fair value of plan assets at the 
beginning of the year

195.62 177.69 169.62

Expected Return on Plan Assets 16.57 15.64 14.84

Employer Contribution 6.28 6.80 7.11

Settlements/Transfer In 6.89 9.34 5.23

Employee Contribution 16.75 18.48 17.37

Benefit Paid (32.32) (31.78) (36.07)

Actuarial gain/(loss) on Plan Assets 0.00 (0.55) (0.41)

Fair value of plan assets at the end of 
the year

209.79 195.62 177.69



Consolidated Notes to the Financial Statements

195Annual Report 2016-17

(`/Crores)

2017 2016

Gratuity Provident 
Fund

Gratuity Provident 
Fund

Cost recognised for the year:

Current service cost 2.00 - 2.75 -

Company contribution to Provident Fund - 6.28 - 6.80

Past service cost - - - -

Interest cost 1.24 - 1.04 -

Actuarial (gain)/loss (0.91) - (0.08) -

Interest guarantee liability - - - -

Shortfall in fund - - - -

Net cost recognised for the year* 2.33 6.28 3.71 6.80 @

* Included in Salaries, Wages, Bonus and Gratuity for Gratuity and Contribution to Provident and Other Funds 
for Provident Fund under Employee benefits expense (Refer Note 32).

# The Group contribution to the Provident Fund for the year is `11.90 Crores and the remaining relates to other 
related companies as mentioned above

The major categories of plan assets are as follows:

As at 
31.03.2017

As at 
31.03.2016

As at 
30.06.2015

Unquoted in % Unquoted in % Unquoted in %

Central Government Securities 35.44 37.35 38.31

State Government Securities 19.90 16.02 15.13

Public Sector Bonds 34.36 37.10 37.25

Special Deposit Scheme 7.73 8.31 9.18

Equity 1.69 0.79 0.00

Bank Balance 0.88 0.43 0.13

Total 100.00 100.00 100.00

Reconciliation of the present value of the defined benefit obligation and the fair value of the plan assets:

(`/Crores)

Gratuity

2017 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012

Present value of the obligation as at the 

end of the year

15.76 20.10 20.10 19.84 22.07 22.81

Fair value of plan assets at the end of the 

year

- - - - - -

Assets/(Liabilities) recognised in the 

Balance Sheet

(15.76) (20.10) (20.10) (19.84) (22.07) (22.81)

Experience adjustment in plan liabilities (0.50) (0.07) 3.22 (0.84) 0.16 0.03

Experience adjustment in plan assets - - - - - -

Provident Fund

2017 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012

Present value of the obligation as at the 

end of the year

(192.45) (182.22) (167.44) (169.36) (152.84) (140.49)

Fair value of plan assets at the end of the 
year

209.79 195.62 178.10 169.62 152.85 141.86

Assets/(Liabilities) recognised in the 

Balance Sheet

-** -** -** -** -** -**

Expected Contribution to the Provident 
fund in the next year

6.78 7.34 7.82

** As there is surplus, same has not been recognised in Balance Sheet.
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49 Subsequent to the balance sheet date, The Board of Directors of HCL Infosystems Limited in its Board Meeting held on 27th 
April, 2017 has approved the slump sale of an undertaking (Digischool Business undertakingconsisting of business of sale 
of software licenses to K-12 schools) of HCL Learning Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary,on a going concern basis to M/s. 
Everest Edusys and Solutions Private Limited. Subject to customary closing adjustments, the Sale consideration for the 
transaction is ` 20 Crores as a mix of Cash and 12% Secured Optionally Convertible Debentures and Issuance of 4,056,738 
Equity Shares of Everest Edusys& Solutions Pvt. Ltd., to HCL Learning Limited on the Closing Date, having a face value of ` 
10 (Rupees Ten Only), representing 33% of equity capital on a fully diluted basis. The closure of slump sale transaction is 
subject to certain conditions listed out in the Business Transfer Agreement.

Subsequent to the closure of the said acquisition, M/s. Everest Edusys and Solutions Private Limited would become an 
Associate Company of HCL Learning Limited.

50 The results of HCL Touch Inc. have been taken on the basis of unaudited financial statements for the year ended March 31, 
2017. It is unlikely that the audited results would be materially different from the unaudited results.

51 Contracts-in-progress

As at
March 31, 2017

(`/Crores)

As at
March 31, 2016

(`/Crores)

As at
July 1, 2015

(`/Crores)

Revenue from Composite Contracts recognised for the period 238.79 235.63 -

Aggregate amount of contract costs incurred and recognised 
profits (less recognised losses) for all contracts in progress 
upto the period ended

4,853.65 4,614.86 4,379.23

The amount of advances received 30.20 30.62 34.18

Gross amount due from customers for contracts-in-progress 63.67 73.03 54.59

Gross amount due to customers for contracts-in-progress 188.35 246.33 285.45

52 The Group had an interest in the following jointly venture as at March 31, 2016, however the Group has sold its investments 
during the year ended March 31, 2017, which does not have any material impact on these financial statements :

Name of the Company Portion of Ownership Incoporated in Accounting Method

Nokia HCL Mobile Internet Services Limited 49% India Equity Method

In the opinion of management, the aggregate amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenditure, to the extent of 
Group’s interest in the joint venture, is not material as at March 31, 2016 and July 1, 2016.

53 Expenditure on Research and Development:

2017
(`/Crores)

2016
(`/Crores)

2015
(`/Crores)

Capital - - 0.52

Add: Intangible assets under development - 2.16 -

- 2.16 0.52

Revenue (Depreciation, Personnel, Travel and Other 
Administration expenses)

- 11.97 15.84

Less: Transferred to Intangible assets under development - 2.16 -

- 9.81 15.84

Total - 11.97 16.36

54 Employee Stock Option Plan (ESOP):

(a) The Company has established Employee Stock Option Scheme 2000 and Employee Stock Based Compensation Plan 

2005, for which a total grant of 31,90,200 and 33,35,487 options have been set aside respectively for the employees of 
the Company and its subsidiaries. These options vest on a graded basis over a period of 42 and 60 months respectively 
from the date of grant and are to be exercised with in a maximum period of 5 years from the date of vesting.

The Board of Directors/Committee approves the grant of options, including the grant of options that lapse out of 

each grant. Each option of ` 10/- confers on the employee a right to five equity shares of ` 2/- each. 
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Exercise price is market price as specified in the Employee Stock Option Scheme and Employee Stock Purchase 
Scheme Guidelines, 1999 issued by the Securities and Exchange Board of India (“”SEBI””). 

Details of Grants made under Employee Stock Option Scheme 2000 as on 31.03.2017

(`/Crores)

Date of Grant Exercise price 
of the option 

for five equity 
shares of ` 2/- 

each

Options 
outstanding 

at the 
beginning 
of the year

Options 
granted 

during 
the year

Options 
forfeited 

during 
the year

Options 
exercised 

during 
the year

Options 
expired 

during 
the year

Options 
outstanding 
at the end of 

the year

Options 
exercisable 

at the end 
of the year

15-Mar-07 648.75 - - - - - - -

(49,200) (-) (-) (-) (49,200) (-) (-)

23-Jan-08 898.25 4,171 - - - 4,171 - -

(7,598) (-) (-) (-) (3,427) (4,171) (4,171)

30-Jan-12 233.25 - - - - - - -

(6,000) (-) (-) (-) (6000) (-) (-)

9-Sep-13 132 4,000 - 4,000 - - - -

(7,000) (-) (-) (3000) (-) (4,000) (-)

18-Sep-14 380.00 - - - - - - -

(15,000) (-) (12,000) (-) (3,000) (-) (-)

21-Nov-14 363.75 10,000 - 7,000 - 3,000 - -

(10,000) (-) (-) (-) (-) (10,000) (3,000)

Total 18,171 - 11,000 - 7,171 - -

(94,798) (-) (12,000) (3,000) (61,627) (18,171) (7,171)

Note: Previous period figures are given in brackets.

Details of Grants made under Employee Stock Based Compensation Plan 2005 as on 31.03.2017

(`/Crores)

Date of Grant Exercise price 

of the option 

for five equity 

shares of ` 2/- 

each

Options 

outstanding 

at the 

beginning 

of the year

Options 

granted 

during 

the year

Options 

forfeited 

during 

the year

Options 

exercised 

during 

the year

Options 

expired 

during 

the year

Options 

outstanding 

at the end of 

the year

Options 

exercisable 

at the end 

of the year

13-Aug-05 1,144.00 - - - - - - -

(188,698) (-) (-) (-) (188,698) (-) (-)

19-Oct-05 1,157.50 - - - - - - -

(3,198) (-) (-) (-) (3,198) (-) (-)

15-Nov-05 1,267.75 - - - - - - -

(1,070) (-) (-) (-) (1,070) (-) (-)

15-Dec-05 1,348.25 - - - - - - -

(470) (-) (-) (-) (470) (-) (-)

14-Jan-06 1,300.00 - - - - - - -

(340) (-) (-) (-) (340) (-) (-)

15-Feb-06 1,308.00 - - - - - - -

(280) (-) (-) (-) (280) (-) (-)

16-Mar-06 1,031.00 - - - - - - -

(690) (-) (-) (-) (690) (-) (-)

17-Apr-06 868.75 160 - - - 160 - -

(160) (-) (-) (-) (-) (160) (160)
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(`/Crores)

Date of Grant Exercise price 
of the option 

for five equity 
shares of ` 2/- 

each

Options 
outstanding 

at the 
beginning 
of the year

Options 
granted 

during 
the year

Options 
forfeited 

during 
the year

Options 
exercised 

during 
the year

Options 
expired 

during 
the year

Options 
outstanding 
at the end of 

the year

Options 
exercisable 

at the end 
of the year

15-May-06 842.50 810 - - - 810 - -

(810) (-) (-) (-) (-) (810) (810)

15-Jun-06 620.50 540 - - - 540 - -

(860) (-) (-) (-) (320) (540) (540)

17-Jul-06 673.75 310 - - - 310 - -

(620) (-) (-) (-) (310) (310) (310)

15-Mar-07 648.75 35,180 - - - 35,180 - -

(78,840) (-) (-) (-) (43,660) (35,180) (35,180)

23-Jan-08 898.25 9,960 - - - 5,895 4,065 4,065

(18,585) (-) (-) (-) (8,625) (9,960) (9,960)

17-Aug-11 375.00 7,000 - - - 7,000 - -

(7,000) (-) (-) (-) (-) (7,000) (5600)

30-Jan-13 186.00 20,000 - - - - 20,000 16,000

(20,000) (-) (-) (-) (-) (20000) (12000)

Total 73,960 - - - 49,895 24,065 20,065

(321,621) (-) (-) (-) (247,661) (73,960) (64,560)

Note: Previous period figures are given in brackets.

(b) Fair Value of options

Assumptions

The fair value of each stock option granted under Employee Stock Option Scheme 2000 and Employee Stock Based 
Compensation Plan 2005 as on the date of grant has been computed using Black-Scholes Option Pricing Formula and 
the model inputs are given as under:

Employee Stock 
Option Scheme 

2000

Employee Stock 
Based Compensation 

Plan 2005

Volatility 31% to 68% 31% to 65%

Risk free rate 6.25% to 6.783% 6.25% to 6.82%

Exercise Price 132.00 to 1,271.25 178.00 to 1,348.25

Time to Maturity (years) 2.20 to 5.50 2.50 to 7.00

Dividend Yield 0% to 32% 0% to 37%

Life of options 8.5 Years 10 Years

Fair Value of options as at the grant date ` 1.69 to ` 196.18 ` 0.00 to ` 268.16

Notes:

1. Volatility: Based on historical volatility in the share price movement of the Company.

2. Risk Free Rate: Being the interest rate applicable for maturity equal to the expected life of options based on yield 
curve for Government Securities.

3. Time to Maturity: Vesting period and volatility of the underlying equity shares have been considered for 
estimation.

4. Dividend Yield: Based on historical dividend payouts.
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55 Note on Goodwill Impairment

The Group has goodwill attributable to two CGUs/ Group of CGUs viz. Services and Learning segments in the consolidated 
financial statements. 

The Group tests goodwill for impairment annually on March 31 and whenever there are indicators of impairment. 

Impairment testing is performed at the level of each CGU or groups of CGUs expected to benefit from acquisition-related 
synergies and represent the lowest level within the entity at which the goodwill is monitored for internal management 
purposes, within an operating segment. 

The impairment assessment is based on value in use calculations except in case of Learning business, where fair value less 
cost to sell is used in view of the impending transaction of sale of Digischool business undertaking with Everest Edusys and 
Solutions Private Limited, as explained below. During the year, the testing resulted in impairment charge in the carrying 
amount of goodwill for both Services and Learning.

The carrying amount of goodwill (net of impairment) has been allocated to the following CGU/ Group of CGUs:

(`/Crores)

As at July 
1, 2015

During the Year Ended 
March 31, 2016

As at 
March 31, 

2016

During the Year Ended 
March 31, 2017

As at 
March 31, 

2017Translation 
adjustment

Impairment Translation 
adjustment

Impairment

Services - India, 
Singapore and Middle 
East

522.85 2.44 525.29 (2.47) (50.00) 472.82

Learning 112.42 - (70.00) 42.42 (11.00) 31.42

Total 635.27 2.44 (70.00) 567.71 (2.47) (61.00) 504.24

The movement in goodwill balance is given below:

(`/Crores)

Year ended

31-Mar-17 31-Mar-16 1-Jul-15

Balance at the beginning of the year 567.71 635.27 633.08

Translation adjustment (2.47) 2.44 2.19

Impairment during the year 61.00 70.00 -

Balance at the end of the year 504.24 567.71 635.27

Subsequent to the year-end, the Board of Directors of HCL Learning Limited (the wholly owned subsidiary), in its meeting 
held on April 27, 2017, approved the slump sale of Digischool Business, comprising of sale of digitised educational content’s 

licenses to digischools, on a going concern basis to M/s. Everest Edusys and Solutions Private Limited (the “Entity”). Pursuant 
to this, HCL Learning Limited has entered into a business transfer arrangement and shareholders’ agreement with the 
entity and other shareholders of the entity, for sale of Digischool business, for a specified consideration, comprising of 
cash, secured optionally convertible debentures and specified stake in the entity (i.e. the combined entity, after transfer 
of Digischool business undertaking). The closure of slump sale transaction is subject to certain conditions listed out in the 

Business Transfer Agreement. Subsequent to the closure of the said acquisition, M/s. Everest Edusys and Solutions Private 
Limited would become an Associate Company of HCL Learning Limited.

The measurement of fair value less cost to sell in case of Learning has been determined based on aggregate of sale 
consideration (including fair value of specified stake to be received by the Group in the entity) of Digischool business 
undertaking, as mentioned in the business transfer agreement mentioned above, and carrying values of remaining assets 
and liabilities in HCL Learning Limited, which are not attributable to the Digischool business undertaking. The remaining 
assets and liabilities are related to existing contracts of erstwhile business of HCL Learning Limited, which needs to be 

serviced over the remaining tenure of such contracts, and borrowings which are not being transferred.

The measurement of value-in-use for Services, during the year ended March 31, 2017, period ended March 31, 2016 and 
as at July 1, 2015), and Learning, during the period ended March 31, 2016 and as at July 1, 2015, is determined based on 
approved five year financial plans (planning period). The planning horizon reflects the assumptions for short-to-mid term 
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market developments. Cash flows beyond the planning period are extrapolated using appropriate terminal growth rates. 
The terminal growth rates used do not exceed the long term average growth rates of the respective industry and country 
in which the Group operates and are consistent with forecasts included in industry reports.

Key assumptions used in value-in-use calculations are :

Discount rate: Discount rate reflects the current market assessment of the risks specific to a CGU or group of CGUs. The 
discount rate is estimated based on the weighted average cost of capital for respective CGU or group of CGUs.

Terminal growth rates: The growth rates used are in line with the long term average growth rates of the respective industry 
and country in which the entity operates and are consistent with the forecasts included in the industry reports.

The key variables used in the calculation are as below -

Services :

Assumptions Singapore MEA India

31-Mar-
17

31-Mar-
16

30-Jun-
15

31-Mar-
17

31-Mar-
16

30-Jun-
15

31-Mar-
17

31-Mar-
16

30-Jun-
15

Terminal value long-
term growth rate

2.00% 2.00% 2.00% 2.00% 2.00% 2.20% 4.00% 4.00% 4.00%

After tax discount rate 17.00% 16.50% 16.50% 20.00% 17.50% 17.50% 16.50% 16.00% 16.03%

Learning :

Assumptions Learning

31-Mar-17 31-Mar-16 30-Jun-15

Terminal value long-term growth rate N.A 5.00% 4.00%

After tax discount rate N.A 17.00% 16.52-18.52%

In respect of Services, the Group has identified an impairment charge of ` 50 crores during the year considering the past 
business performance in the markets wherein Group operates in, changes in the market dynamics, current business 
strategy and focus areas for the future years. While the Group is optimistic about the future growth prospects, it has taken 
a holistic view of the past performance while designing the future outlook, with renewed strategy. No impairment was 
identified during the year ended March 31, 2016 and as at July 1, 2015. 

In respect of Learning, considering the impending transaction of sale of Digischool business undertaking, the Group has 
recognized an impairment charge of ̀  11 Crores (2016- ̀  70 Crores) during the year, on account of write down of Goodwill. 
An impairment charge of ` 70 crores was recognised during the period ended March 31, 2016, due to modification in the 
business model and changes in the overall business environment for the segment. No impairment was identified as at July 

1, 2015. 

An analysis of the calculation’s sensitivity to a change in the key variables, as mentioned above, based on reasonably 

probable assumptions, did not identify any probable scenarios where the recoverable amount would fall below its carrying 
amount as at March 31, 2016 and July 1, 2015 for services business and as at July 1, 2015 for learning business . However, an 
increase/decrease in the discount rate and long term growth rate by 0.5% shall increase/decrease the impairment charge 
as taken in March 31, 2017 for Services business by approximate ` 15 Cr and impairment charge as taken in March 31, 2016 
for Learning business by approximate ` 6 Cr.

The recoverable value for learning business as on March 31, 2017 has been assessed based on sale consideration 

as stipulated in the Business Transfer Agreement, in view of the impending transaction of sale of Digischool business 
undertaking, hence, it is not sensitive to use of any assumptions.”
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56 Details of Specified Bank Notes (SBN) held and transacted during the period from 8th November, 2016 to 30th 
December, 2016

(`/Crores)

SBNs Other 
denomination 

notes

Total

Closing cash in hand as on 08.11.2016 0.44 0.00 0.44

(+) Permitted receipts - 3.65 3.65

(-) Permitted payments - - -

(-) Amount deposited in Banks 0.44 3.50 3.94

Closing cash in hand as on 30.12.2016 - 0.15 0.15

57 Remuneration to Auditor*:

(`/Crores)

Year ended 
31.03.2017

Nine months period 
ended 31.03.2016

a) Statutory Audit 2.08 1.96

b) Other Audit Services/Certifications 0.58 0.50

c) Others - -

c) Out-of-Pocket Expenses 0.13 0.08

TOTAL 2.79 2.54

* Excluding service tax.

58 Additional information to consolidated accounts as at March 31, 2017 (Pursuat to Schedule III of the Companies 
Act 2013):

(`/Crores)

Name of the Entity Net Assets i.e, total 

assets minus total 

liabilities

Share in profit or (loss) Share in other 

comprehensive 

income

Share in total 

comprehensive 

income

As a % of 

consolidated 

net assets

Amount As a % of 

consolidated 

net (profit) 

/ loss

Amount As a % of 

consolidated 

net (profit) 

/ loss

Amount As a % of 

consolidated 

net (profit) 

/ loss

Amount

Parent company

HCL Infosystems Limited 113.22 622.07 17.11 (42.38) (0.88) 0.06 16.63 (42.32)

Subsidiaries: Indian

Digilife Distribution and Marketing Services 
Limited

0.62 3.43 (0.55) 1.35 0.03 (0.00) (0.53) 1.35

HCL Computing Products Limited 0.01 0.04 0.00 (0.01) 0.00 0.00 0.00 (0.01)

HCL Services Limited 9.82 53.94 30.21 (74.82) (3.94) 0.27 29.29 (74.55)

HCL Learning Limited (3.14) (17.25) 6.86 (17.00) (1.14) 0.08 6.65 (16.92)

HCL Infotech Limited (32.15) (176.62) 52.00 (128.78) (5.41) 0.37 50.45 (128.41)

Pimpri Chinchwad eServices Limited (0.01) (0.03) 0.00 (0.01) 0.00 0.00 0.00 (0.01)

Subsidiaries: Foreign

HCL Touch Inc., USA (0.27) (1.46) 0.78 (1.93) (1.97) 0.14 0.70 (1.79)

HCL Infosystems MEA FZE, Dubai (0.61) (3.35) 4.90 (12.14) (559.47) 38.25 (10.26) 26.11

HCL Infosystems LLC, Dubai (2.16) (11.88) 1.38 (3.43) (1,986.89) 135.88 (52.04) 132.45

HCL Infosystems MEA LLC, Abu Dhabi (0.11) (0.63) (1.01) 2.51 (105.37) 7.21 (3.82) 9.72

HCL Infosystems Qatar WLL 2.70 14.84 (2.49) 6.16 2,481.94 (169.74) 64.27 (163.58)

HCL Insys Pte Limited,Singapore 18.03 99.05 (9.01) 22.33 279.13 (19.09) (1.27) 3.24

HCL Investment Pte Limited,Singapore 2.31 12.70 0.00 (0.01) 3.96 (0.27) 0.11 (0.28)

Joint Venture

Nokia HCL Mobile Internet Services Limited 0.00 0.00 0.12 (0.30) 0.00 0.00 0.12 (0.30)

Intra-Group Eliminations (8.27) (45.43) (0.32) 0.79 0.00 0.00 (0.31) 0.79

Total 100.00 549.42 100.00 (247.67) 100.00 (6.84) 100.00 (254.51)
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(`/Crores)

Name of the Entity Net Assets i.e, total 
assets minus total 

liabilities

Share in profit or (loss) Share in other 
comprehensive 

income

Share in total 
comprehensive 

income

As a % of 
consolidated 

net assets

Amount As a % of 
consolidated 

net (profit) 
/ loss

Amount As a % of 
consolidated 

net (profit) 
/ loss

Amount As a % of 
consolidated 

net (profit) 
/ loss

Amount

Parent company

HCL Infosystems Limited 122.45 984.39 (20.62) 44.19 0.60 0.03 (21.13) 44.22

Subsidiaries: Indian

Digilife Distribution and Marketing Services 
limited

(0.74) (5.92) (0.85) 1.83 (0.05) (0.00) (0.88) 1.83

HCL Computing Products Limited 0.01 0.06 0.00 (0.01) 0.00 0.00 0.00 (0.01)

HCL Services Limited 15.98 128.50 26.47 (56.71) 0.80 0.04 27.08 (56.67)

HCL Learning Limited (0.04) (0.33) 13.02 (27.91) 0.20 0.01 13.33 (27.90)

HCL Infotech Limited (6.00) (48.20) 34.58 (74.11) 0.00 0.00 35.41 (74.11)

Pimpri Chinchwad eServices Limited (0.00) (0.01) 0.01 (0.01) 0.00 0.00 0.01 (0.01)

Subsidiaries: Foreign

HCL Touch Inc., USA 0.05 0.42 0.01 (0.02) 2.70 0.14 (0.06) 0.12

HCL Infosystems MEA FZE, Dubai (3.25) (26.14) 9.96 (21.35) (66.22) (3.32) 11.79 (24.67)

HCL Infosystems LLC, Dubai (1.02) (8.23) (0.13) 0.28 (20.83) (1.05) 0.37 (0.77)

HCL Infosystems MEA LLC, Abu Dhabi (0.37) (2.95) (1.76) 3.76 (7.48) (0.38) (1.61) 3.38

HCL Infosystems Qatar WLL 1.21 9.72 (2.96) 6.35 24.62 1.24 (3.63) 7.59

HCL Infosystems South Africa (Pty) Limited (0.13) (1.06) 0.00 (0.00) 0.00 0.00 0.00 (0.00)

HCL Insys Pte Limited,Singapore 19.85 159.55 (6.57) 14.07 155.32 7.79 (10.44) 21.86

HCL Investment Pte Limited,Singapore 1.61 12.98 0.03 (0.07) 10.34 0.52 (0.22) 0.45

Joint Venture

Nokia HCL Mobile Internet Services Limited (0.05) (0.41) 0.02 (0.05) 0.00 0.00 0.02 (0.05)

Intra-Group Eliminations (49.56) (398.44) 48.78 (104.54) 0.00 0.00 49.95 (104.54)

Total 100.00 803.93 100.00 (214.30) 100.00 5.02 100.00 (209.28)

59 In compliance with the Section 2(41) of Companies Act, 2013, the company has changed its Financial year end from June 
30 to March 31 in 2016. Accordingly, the previous year’s figures are for the nine month period from July 1, 2015 to March 
31, 2016 and to the extent are not comparable with those for the current year. Previous year’s figures have also been 
regrouped / recasted, wherever necessary, to conform to the current period’s presentation.

For Price Waterhouse For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Firm Registration Number-301112E
Chartered Accountants

AVIJIT MUKERJI PREMKUMAR SESHADRI KAUSHIK DUTTA
Partner Executive Vice Chairman Director
Membership Number - 056155 & Managing Director DIN - 03328890
 DIN - 03114983

Place : Noida S G MURALI SUSHIL KUMAR JAIN
Dated : May 30, 2017 Group Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

58 Additional information to consolidated accounts as at March 31, 2017 (Pursuat to Schedule III of the Companies 
Act 2013): (Contd.)
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